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·1· ·March 17, 2016· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·9:00 a.m.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·P R O C E E D I N G S

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And for the record, today is

·4· ·Wednesday, July 27th 2016.· It's nine o'clock in the

·5· ·morning.· This is the date and time set for the hearing

·6· ·in the matter of Marian L. Seamons.· She has filed a

·7· ·formal complaint against Ticaboo Utility Improvement

·8· ·District.

·9· · · · · · ·This is Docket No. 15-2508-01.· Let's go ahead

10· ·and put appearances on the record.· For Ms. Seamons?

11· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Jon Hogelin, and Ms. Seamons is

12· ·present.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.· And for Ticaboo?

14· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Adam Long and Chip Shortreed, the

15· ·district manager, is also present.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· All right.· Very good.

17· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I don't think my mic was on

18· ·before.· Do you want me to repeat?

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I think -- have you got

20· ·everything so far?

21· · · · · · ·COURT REPORTER:· Uh-huh.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· And I'll try

23· ·again.· Is there anyone on the line this morning?

24· ·Anyone on the phone this morning?

25· · · · · · ·(Silence.)
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I had a notice that Tom Hill

·2· ·was going to be calling in.· If he is not going to do

·3· ·that, I'm going to hang up the phone.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· If we could maybe give him a few

·5· ·minutes.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Okay.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. BROADBENT:· Can we turn the speaker up so

·8· ·she can hear?

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I think we're as loud as we

10· ·can go.

11· · · · · · ·MS. BROADBENT:· Okay.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· There is one item I wanted to

13· ·discuss with counsel.· This is considered a formal

14· ·complaint because it's gone through the informal process

15· ·that the division of public utilities uses to try to

16· ·help parties resolve complaints.· However, that does not

17· ·necessarily mean that this hearing needs to be conducted

18· ·as a formal adjudication under UAPA.

19· · · · · · ·So basically, if we conduct this as a formal

20· ·adjudication and the parties determine subsequently to

21· ·take the matter to court, it goes to the Court of

22· ·Appeals, and it's reviewed for commission error or abuse

23· ·of discretion.· If we convert this to an informal

24· ·proceeding and the parties take it to court, it goes to

25· ·District Court as a de novo trial.
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·1· · · · · · ·My inclination is to convert it to informal.

·2· ·I think there are some issues that the commission can't

·3· ·necessarily address that are -- that would be of

·4· ·importance to the parties and potentially of interest to

·5· ·the court.· And I think that it would be more useful to

·6· ·the parties to be able to take those issues on the

·7· ·merits to district court, rather than having to simply

·8· ·argue whether or not the commission correctly identified

·9· ·the boundaries of its jurisdiction.

10· · · · · · ·Any objection to my converting this to an

11· ·informal proceeding?

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· May I discuss with my client

13· ·real quick?

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

15· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Same request.

16· · · · · · ·(Discussion off the record.)

17· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· No objection from complainant.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· The district prefers to keep this

20· ·as a formal, a formal adjudication.· We have been

21· ·through the entire formal complaint process, and it

22· ·seems to us to derail it now would be not beneficial.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Why do you consider it to be a

24· ·derailing?· It doesn't change anything that happens

25· ·here.· It simply changes your position if you go to
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·1· ·court.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And I recognize that.· I think we

·3· ·would nonetheless prefer to keep it as a formal

·4· ·adjudication here.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· I'll take the objection

·6· ·then as part of the record.· It is the commission's

·7· ·determination whether to convert it.· The standard of

·8· ·the -- under the statute is whether converting is in the

·9· ·public interest and whether it poses a hardship or an

10· ·unfair burden on any party.

11· · · · · · ·Do you want to address those standards,

12· ·Mr. Long?

13· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I think we'll leave it up to the

14· ·commission's discretion.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Our objection is noted and --

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.· All right then.

18· ·Are there any other housekeeping items that the parties

19· ·want to address before we go to opening statements?

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· No.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· It doesn't appear that there

22· ·is.· All right then.· Ms. Seamons is the complainant, so

23· ·we'll go to opening statement from her.

24· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Would you prefer for me just to

25· ·stay here or --
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's -- yeah, do because

·2· ·there's no microphone up here.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I noticed that.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Obviously, the commission has

·6· ·made a ruling on part of the issues that were presented.

·7· ·Although we don't agree with the commission, we respect

·8· ·the commission's ruling.· And we also recognize that the

·9· ·commission has set aside today to address a couple

10· ·issues which the commission has provided very

11· ·succinctly.

12· · · · · · ·Essentially, Ms. Seamons is a resident -- or

13· ·well, she doesn't reside in Ticaboo, but she owns

14· ·property in Ticaboo.· She had this property prior to the

15· ·formation of the district.· When I say district, I am

16· ·referring to TUID.· And with the creation of TUID, there

17· ·has been obviously some changes with regards to power

18· ·and water and what we would normally refer to as

19· ·essential utilities.

20· · · · · · ·It has been very concerning, the limitations

21· ·and the financial burden that's been assessed to

22· ·Ms. Seamons in regards to the creation of the district.

23· ·But what's more troubling is the conduct of the district

24· ·in creating its tariff and enforcing its tariff or lack

25· ·thereof.
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·1· · · · · · ·Ms. Seamons filed the complaint based off the

·2· ·premise that she felt there was injustice being carried

·3· ·on by the district, in particular, with how her property

·4· ·is being liened up with certain financial burdens that

·5· ·seem completely unfair and outside the scope of the

·6· ·tariff.

·7· · · · · · ·In regards to what the commission has set

·8· ·provided to be addressed today, we plan to show that

·9· ·it's our understanding that TUID has not complied with

10· ·the commission regulations with regards to being in

11· ·compliance with regards to setting forth its own tariff.

12· · · · · · ·We also would like to show the tariff (sic)

13· ·today that the district doesn't follow its own tariff

14· ·and that -- and in particularly with certain fees and

15· ·with the implementation of standby fees, that the

16· ·standby fees were not implemented in accordance with

17· ·either a resolution or the tariff set forth by the

18· ·district and more particular the district manager, and

19· ·that they have continuously charged Ms. Seamons

20· ·inappropriately and unjustly.

21· · · · · · ·And when Ms. Seamons has tried to resolve the

22· ·issue, that there has been absolutely zero cooperation

23· ·from the district in trying to find a resolve to this,

24· ·which was a product of us bringing this before the

25· ·commission.· It shouldn't have to be that way.
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·1· · · · · · ·Also, there seems to be some unfairness with

·2· ·regards to the enforcement of the tariff with regards to

·3· ·how tenants are treated.· Obviously, not all the

·4· ·implementation of the tariff is being enforced with all

·5· ·tenants or owners with regards to said tenants having

·6· ·contracts with TUID.

·7· · · · · · ·And I think a more dire issue is the amount of

·8· ·notice and information that's being provided by the

·9· ·district that its tariff demands and that those

10· ·commission rules demand.· And we also plan to show today

11· ·the violation of Ms. Seamons' due process with regards

12· ·to utilities and more specifically with taps.

13· · · · · · ·I am not sure what TUID's incentive is with

14· ·regards to just running roughshod around its own tariffs

15· ·and around the commission's rules.· Believe me, Ms.

16· ·Seamons would rather not be here today.· She would

17· ·rather not have had to file a complaint.

18· · · · · · ·She feels akin to Ticaboo, having the --

19· ·coming from a long line of mining family and having, you

20· ·know, that property down there.· It's a sentimental

21· ·issue for them, not a financial or economical issue.

22· ·However, the district is making it solely a financial

23· ·and economical issue, and it's making it impossible for

24· ·Ms. Seamons to continue to have that property.

25· · · · · · ·And the bottom line is, not only is it making
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·1· ·it impossible for her to have the property; it's making

·2· ·it impossible for her and others to sell their property.

·3· · · · · · ·So we really don't know what the end game is

·4· ·here for the district where it just doesn't seem like

·5· ·the feasibility of how the -- it structures its policies

·6· ·and tariffs with regards to utilities, how it's going to

·7· ·continue, given the fact that it doesn't -- it's not

·8· ·affordable, especially with Ms. Seamons, who is a

·9· ·retired lady and doesn't have the income to do all these

10· ·things.

11· · · · · · ·Now, I know that's not before the commission

12· ·today, but we just felt that it was important to let the

13· ·commission know that, that this is, again, a no-win

14· ·situation for Ms. Seamons and likely other property

15· ·owners that are in Ticaboo.· And so we appreciate the

16· ·commission allowing us to be here today to raise these

17· ·concerns, to address these concerns, to make it public.

18· · · · · · ·Again, we feel strongly that Ms. Seamons is

19· ·not the only one that has these concerns but has the

20· ·wherewithal to try to stand up to the district and to

21· ·bring forth these issues to find resolve and hopefully

22· ·resolve for all property owners down in Ticaboo.· With

23· ·that, does the commission have any questions?

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I don't think I have any

25· ·questions.· I'll just make a couple of points on the
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·1· ·record.· First of all, we don't have any mechanism to

·2· ·entertain a sort of class action complaint.· We have

·3· ·received some additional complaints against TUID that

·4· ·raise similar issues.· And we will have to deal with

·5· ·those one on one.

·6· · · · · · ·Whatever order is issued here, if it grants

·7· ·relief to Ms. Seamons, that might be used as evidence by

·8· ·subsequent complainants, but likely would not extend to

·9· ·provide relief to them as well.

10· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· All right.· Mr. Long,

12· ·your opening.

13· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Thank you.· In Mr. Hogelin's

14· ·opening statement he seems to have taken a few steps

15· ·backwards.· I'd like to point out that the commission's

16· ·order of July 6, 2016, in this docket disposes of the

17· ·standby fee issue in its entirety.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's not correct.· It says

19· ·that standby fees are legal generally.· It does not say

20· ·that the current standby fees may be imposed or

21· ·collected against Ms. Seamons.· The question is whether

22· ·it has properly noticed and held the meetings that it

23· ·had to notice and hold in order to assess standby fees.

24· · · · · · ·If it has not done that, then its tariffs are

25· ·not necessarily valid, and if it does not have valid
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·1· ·tariffs, it cannot enforce them.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· True.· Without being argumentative,

·3· ·can I perhaps clarify our understanding?

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Please.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Reading from the order, the

·6· ·commission says, "We dismissed Ms. Seamons' allegations

·7· ·as to the legality in general of standby fees and as to

·8· ·legality of the specific rates and policies set forth in

·9· ·TUID's tariff."

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Correct.

11· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And goes on to list seven questions

12· ·which are the topic of this hearing day.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Correct.

14· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And Ticaboo is prepared to address

15· ·those seven questions.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Excellent.· So the fact that

17· ·the specific rates and fees are legal does not

18· ·necessarily mean that they are also currently

19· ·enforceable.· That's the distinction.

20· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Okay.· And I would like to point

21· ·out that the dockets referenced in these questions are

22· ·not the docket in which standby fees were implemented.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I understand that, but there

24· ·is a question on point No. 3 as to whether, in the 2013

25· ·docket, where standby fees were first imposed, if there

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 16
·1· ·was notice and a public meeting.· So we're going to be

·2· ·looking at both those dockets today.· Okay.· Go ahead

·3· ·with your opening.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· The issue of standby fees, which

·5· ·again the district doesn't feel needs any substantive

·6· ·justification, is simply a matter of fairly allocating

·7· ·costs to those property owners that bear the ben -- you

·8· ·know, that receive the benefits of the service provided

·9· ·by the district.

10· · · · · · ·You know, whether a house is occupied and

11· ·receiving utility service so actually having electricity

12· ·and water flowing to it, or the house is vacant or even

13· ·if it's an undeveloped lot for which the district is

14· ·ready to provide service essentially on a moment's

15· ·notice, the district incurs costs.

16· · · · · · ·And those are simple -- simple realities of a

17· ·utility, you know, to maintain power lines in this case

18· ·or to maintain generator, simply to keep the

19· ·infrastructure in place so service can be provided upon

20· ·request.· And standby fees simply fairly allocate those

21· ·costs to those who receive the benefits of it.

22· · · · · · ·As I noted previously, the district is

23· ·prepared to address the commission's questions as set

24· ·forth in the July 16th order, and to the extent that

25· ·that discussion today goes beyond those questions, I
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·1· ·would ask that we have the opportunity to file

·2· ·post-hearing briefs or some other sort of -- other sort

·3· ·of response after the hearing today.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's certainly an option.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· We potentially

·7· ·have an issue with burden of proof in this case.· As to

·8· ·the commission's specific questions that are set forth,

·9· ·I am not sure, I don't think, that Ms. Seamons has the

10· ·burden to demonstrate whether TUID did or did not hold a

11· ·board meeting within 30 days of the commission's

12· ·September 10th, 2015, order approving the stipulation.

13· ·I believe that that really is Ticaboo's burden.

14· · · · · · ·Do the parties disagree?

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We don't disagree.· However, we

16· ·would be -- if the commission will allow, we would like

17· ·to have on record Ms. Seamons' knowledge of those.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's fine.· Why don't we go

19· ·ahead and go with that.

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Would you like to have her

22· ·sworn then?

23· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Will you go ahead

25· ·and take care of that.
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·1· · · · · · ·COURT REPORTER:· Uh-huh.· Ma'am, would you

·2· ·raise your right hand and be sworn?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Actually, what I would like to

·4· ·request is that, this is her daughter, Mary Broadbent,

·5· ·who has power of attorney and is the executor of

·6· ·Ms. Seamons.· And I would request that she be sworn in

·7· ·to testify in Ms. Seamons' behalf.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's fine.· Why don't you

·9· ·both raise your hands.· Go ahead.

10· · · · · · · MARY BROADBENT (Witness Daughter),

11· · · · · · ·and MARIAN SEAMONS (Witness Mother),

12· ·called as witnesses at the instance of the complainant,

13· ·having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified

14· ·as follows:

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Thank you, and we'd also ask for

16· ·a little patience.· Ms. Seamons has some hearing --

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I understand and that's fine.

18· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· It may take a second to get

19· ·questions across.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· We will accommodate her as

21· ·best we can.

22· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

23· ·BY MR. HOGELIN:

24· · · · Q.· ·Mary, I'm going to direct these questions to

25· ·you.· Were you or was your mother aware of the joint
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·1· ·settlement stipulation of Docket 15-2508-T01?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· I am not.· And neither

·3· ·one of us at that time.

·4· · · · Q.· ·At what time?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· In September.· In October

·6· ·we enacted upon trying to go to meetings.· On October

·7· ·5th we called to --

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you didn't -- you weren't aware of a

·9· ·meeting in September --

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Oh, no.

11· · · · Q.· ·-- or October, okay.

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· Nothing prior.

13· · · · Q.· ·And then did -- were you aware of any board

14· ·meeting that was held by TUID between the dates of

15· ·September 30th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· No.

17· · · · Q.· ·Did you reach out to TUID to try to --

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Just a minute, Mr. Hogelin.

19· ·Did you mean September 10th?· I believe you said

20· ·September 30th.

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· You are right.· I did.· I was

22· ·looking at the 30 days.· I apologize.

23· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin)· ·So September 10th of 2015

24· ·and October 10, 2015, were you aware of any board

25· ·meeting that was held?
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· An October 5th board

·2· ·meeting was to be held.· I called and talked to

·3· ·Mr. Shortreed.· Well, my husband called, and we had it

·4· ·on voice speaker.· And it was canceled, he told us.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So there was no meeting that you are

·6· ·aware of that was held by the board for TUID between

·7· ·September 10th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· Right, no --

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

10· · · · A.· ·-- board meeting.

11· · · · Q.· ·With regards to the -- are you aware of any

12· ·revised tariff that was filed with the commission on

13· ·Docket No. 15-2508-T01 within 15 days after October

14· ·10th, 2015?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· No.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Did you make any -- did you take any

17· ·action to try to ascertain whether or not that had

18· ·happened?

19· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· Yes.· I spoke with the

20· ·commission office, Erika Tedder and another one.· I am

21· ·trying to think of her name, and asked if there was a

22· ·tariff filing for TUID, and they said that there was

23· ·not.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Now, regarding the tariff also known as

25· ·Docket No. 15-2508-T01, were you given any notice of any
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·1· ·public meetings regarding that tariff?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· I was not involved in that

·3· ·time, so my mother would have to then respond to that.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.

·5· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Do you know anything of the

·6· ·2013 meeting to the tariff filing or -- in 2013?

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Which, which?

·8· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Any month, for meetings

·9· ·held in 2013.· Were you alerted of meetings?

10· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· For the tariff.

11· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· No, you were not living

12· ·there.· But were you aware of any meetings that were to

13· ·be held --

14· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· No.

15· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER: -- in 2013?

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· No, I was not.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Were you informed of

18· ·meetings?

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· No.

20· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given any notice

21· ·regarding any public meetings concerning Docket

22· ·15-2508-T01?

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Now, were we given -- say

24· ·that one more time.· I'm sorry.

25· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given notice of any
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·1· ·public meetings that were to be held on court docket in

·2· ·2015, for the tariff in 2015?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

·4· · · · Q.· ·How did you find out about the 2015 docket

·5· ·regarding the tariff?

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) At September of 2015,

·7· ·started to look at ways that they were posting

·8· ·information towards meetings.· Searched the Internet,

·9· ·found TSSD, and then started to find out county

10· ·newspaper, located Garfield County, and was informed of

11· ·meetings under Garfield County newspaper.

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· And I believe that is our -- my

13· ·client's responses to the first three questions.· If you

14· ·want to hold there or go forward.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Let's keep going.

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.· So I am going to ask

17· ·Ms. Broadbent to testify on behalf of her mother, even

18· ·though her mother is the one that has the actual

19· ·knowledge.

20· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Broadbent, when did --

21· ·when did -- when was your mother first notified that she

22· ·was going to be charged standby fees?

23· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I'd like to note an objection.· I'd

24· ·like to note an objection.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Go ahead.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I understand we are not bound by

·2· ·the rules of evidence here, but on a hearsay basis, I --

·3· ·we would prefer to hear directly from Ms. Seamons.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, I am going to ahead and

·5· ·let her --

·6· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· -- difficulties.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· -- daughter say what she needs

·8· ·to say.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Sure.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Could you please make sure

11· ·that your mother can hear you.

12· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· As you speak, and then we'll

14· ·see where that takes us.

15· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· So she is going to allow me

16· ·to speak for you.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Right.· I can't hear.

18· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· She is hoping that I speak

19· ·loud enough that you can hear me.

20· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Oh, I'll try.

21· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· And then agree or disagree

22· ·at any point that I don't speak within what you would

23· ·testify on your own behalf.

24· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Okay.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So pull that microphone right
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·1· ·up to you.

·2· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· To me?

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Either way, yeah, either one,

·4· ·so that that should help your mom hear.

·5· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Okay.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· And speak nice and

·7· ·loud.

·8· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) When did -- when did your

·9· ·mother first get notice that she was being charged

10· ·standby fees?

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Her first notice was not

12· ·until March of 2014.

13· · · · Q.· ·Now, in that notice, when was she first

14· ·actually charged standby fees?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) The charges began September

16· ·1st of 2013.

17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Do you recall receiving or -- okay.  I

18· ·have here Ticaboo Utility Improvement District

19· ·Resolution No. 2013-0017.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

21· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Do you recognize this

22· ·document?

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.· But I received this

24· ·from --

25· · · · Q.· ·I am just asking if you --
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yeah, I recognize this.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And can you turn to the second page?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Do you see -- can you read the top line?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No. 1 or 2?

·6· · · · Q.· ·No, the top line.

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Oh.· "Now, therefore, be it

·8· ·resolved by the legislative body of Ticaboo Utility

·9· ·Improvement District as follows."

10· · · · Q.· ·And can you read paragraph No. 2.

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No. 2, the rules regarding

12· ·the minimum --

13· · · · Q.· ·The new rules.

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) "The new rules regarding

15· ·the minimum payment of standby fees for all services.

16· ·If a customer is receiving, connected and/or tapped into

17· ·any of the utility services provided; electric, water,

18· ·waste water, solid waste, will be required and hereby

19· ·approved by the district manager as authorized to file

20· ·the rules, with such clerical changes as district

21· ·manager deems reasonable and necessary to comply within

22· ·Utah law and with the rules and regulations of the

23· ·district."

24· · · · Q.· ·Can you read paragraph No. 3.

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· Three.· "The new rates and
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·1· ·rules shall become effective September 1st, 2013."

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is it signed?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· ·By who?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) It's a printed, Mr. Chip

·6· ·Shortreed and Justin Fischer, secretary with their seal.

·7· · · · Q.· ·And then is it sealed?

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Do you want that document --

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· -- in the record as an

11· ·exhibit?· Any objection?

12· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

14· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No.

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Permission to approach?

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah, go ahead.· So I am going

17· ·to mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 1.

18· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Amended?· Oh, okay.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I just didn't want to confuse

21· ·with all those other exhibits.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, they are not really

23· ·marked.

24· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· At least not particularly, not
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·1· ·in a really clear order.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So we'll just mark everything

·4· ·today.· Exhibit 1.

·5· · · · · · ·So let me just ask a couple of questions to

·6· ·deal with the evidentiary objection.· How, how do you

·7· ·know when the standby fees were first -- when your

·8· ·mother first received notice of the standby fees?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We're going to -- we're going to

10· ·show that.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We're going to show that.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And similarly, how do you know

14· ·when the charges began?

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Absolutely.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· If you are going to bring in

17· ·some documentary evidence, that would be helpful.

18· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yeah.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

21· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So what is your understanding

22· ·of paragraph 2?

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) In No. 2 being receiving,

24· ·connected or tapped, tapped being, my reference would be

25· ·the meters.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is your understanding that if you

·2· ·were not receiving, connected or tapped on any of your

·3· ·properties, that you would or would not be charged the

·4· ·standby fee?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Would not.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many properties does your mother

·7· ·own in the district?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) We have a total of eight.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· As of September 1st, 2013, were all

10· ·eight properties receiving, connected and/or tapped with

11· ·any utilities?

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) At that time of September

13· ·1st, we were only connected with one double-wide home.

14· · · · Q.· ·Just where --

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) One property.· Well, one

16· ·and two, but they are considered one with being

17· ·contiguous.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many properties were not receiving,

19· ·connected or tapped into with any type of utility at the

20· ·time of September 1st?

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Six.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Okay.· I have a document.· It says

23· ·audit history.· It's for Account 1000 for Ticaboo

24· ·Utility Improvement District.· For reference that is lot

25· ·005.· And do you recognize this document?
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Can you please -- can you please read the

·3· ·account number.

·4· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Account 1000.

·5· · · · Q.· ·And which lot is that for?

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Lot 5.

·7· · · · Q.· ·And in the -- well, is there a name at the top

·8· ·of it?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons is our

10· ·father and my mother's husband.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so is this a -- this is an audit

12· ·history of that lot, correct?

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.· We received one

14· ·for each property.

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Would the commission like a

16· ·copy?

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yes.· It's, it's in -- it's in

18· ·here, but let's go ahead and take a clean copy and mark

19· ·it.

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Great.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.· So I am going to

22· ·mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 2 unless there's an

23· ·objection.· Mr. Long, any objection?

24· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Sorry.· Could you repeat that?

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I am prepared to enter this
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·1· ·into evidence and mark it as Complainant's Exhibit 2.

·2· ·Any objection?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No objection.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.

·5· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So the first line of the

·6· ·audit, what's the date?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Well, the first one is

·8· ·August 31st, 2012.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And does it show a balance?

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) It shows a previous balance

11· ·of 758.06.

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So just for background purposes, why is

13· ·there a previous balance from that?

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) In the previous balance,

15· ·it's a bill that Ticaboo states that we owe, yet

16· ·under --

17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So it's a previous, an alleged previous

18· ·balance that was carried over?

19· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then for the next month, so what

21· ·does the next month say?

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Well, it goes down to 930,

23· ·beginning balance of usage, but at the bottom of the

24· ·page --

25· · · · Q.· ·No.· I'm asking questions here.
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Oh, okay.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So the next month says what?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) 9-30-2012.

·4· · · · Q.· ·And what's the balance?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) 758.06.

·6· · · · Q.· ·So essentially it was the same balance as the

·7· ·month before, correct?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I object.· This is -- these

10· ·balances are all water bills that were balances owed to

11· ·TSSD before the two districts were combined to form what

12· ·is now Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.· In the

13· ·district's opinion any issues with water service are

14· ·outside the commission's jurisdiction.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's an excellent point, so

16· ·we can talk about that in just a minute.· But look at

17· ·the December 31st, 2012, line.

18· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· The water issue is not what

19· ·we're using this for.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· This is where we see some

21· ·kilowatt hours.· So it looks like it does become both

22· ·electricity and water.· At least that's how it appears.

23· ·Is that correct?

24· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Yeah, that's correct.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And if we could simply move to the

·2· ·-- whatever issues they have with electric service.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yeah, I am getting there.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Is it correct that up until

·5· ·December 31st, 2012, the charges are for water, not for

·6· ·electricity?· Is that your understanding?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· For in -- yeah.· For whatever.

·8· ·Actually, these charges were carried over.· Okay?

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

10· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· So what we're trying to show is

11· ·that the billing is the same up until September of 2013.

12· ·Okay?

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Oh, okay.· So we have a

14· ·carried-over balance.

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Right.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· It begins -- this document

17· ·begins to show that carryover as to electricity

18· ·beginning December 31st, 2012.

19· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Correct.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· No changes in that balance

21· ·appear until --

22· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· September of 2013.

23· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· At the bottom of the page,

24· ·it shows 9-9-2013, and that began the standby fees

25· ·implementation.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· So I was just trying to get -- I

·2· ·was just trying to get the long way of giving a

·3· ·foundation for that.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.· And you don't need

·5· ·to -- I am not going to require you to spend a lot of

·6· ·time on foundation unless you are going to consider that

·7· ·to be an error and appeal on that basis.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No.· I am fine admitting this as

·9· ·evidence.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

11· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· This is a document that was

12· ·provided to them as part of what was ostensibly a GRAMA

13· ·request.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Right.· So go ahead

15· ·and --

16· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So in September of 2013 --

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

18· · · · Q.· ·-- what -- there was charges that were being

19· ·put on that property, correct?

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Right.

21· · · · Q.· ·And what charges were those?

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) They were standby fees for

23· ·tapped property.

24· · · · Q.· ·Now, prior to those charges being implemented,

25· ·was Lot 5, for which this audit is specifically for, was
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·1· ·it receiving, connected and/or tapped to any of the

·2· ·utility services?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· Meters were removed in

·4· ·2008.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So let me just make a

·7· ·note of that.· So this -- where does this show what the

·8· ·property number is or the property identifier?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, the 1000 is the account

10· ·number.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· And that account number

13· ·correlates, and based off the testimony of my client,

14· ·that that coordinates with 005.· And again, this was

15· ·provided by Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So Account No. 1000 is

17· ·for lot or plat number 005.

18· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Correct.· We, we -- my clients

19· ·received a letter from TUIA and explaining that.  I

20· ·didn't make copies.· But I do have --

21· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· It's submitted into the

22· ·formal complaint.

23· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· It is in the formal complaint.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· All right.· Well, if we

25· ·need to look for the documentary evidence, we can do
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·1· ·that.· I just want to make sure that I understand what

·2· ·we're talking about.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Correct.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So it's your testimony that on

·5· ·this particular plat, Lot 005, there were no taps, that

·6· ·taps had been removed in 2008; is that right?

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Right.

·8· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yes.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

10· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· Can you turn to the

11· ·second page of that audit.

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) This still says 1000.

13· · · · Q.· ·Just to the second page please.

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Oh, sure.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Can you please read -- do you see where

16· ·at March of 2014 the block is for?

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And what does it say at the bottom of

19· ·the block?

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1946.25

21· ·due on 4-21-2014.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Prior to March of 2014, is there

23· ·anywhere on the audit history that shows that there was

24· ·any notice printed or put forth to you?

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And did your mother receive any notice

·2· ·of these charges prior to March of 2014?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

·4· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· Okay.· As for Lot 3 and 4, and is

·6· ·it your testimony that Lot 3 and 4 are Account No. 1115?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Yes.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· What was the account number

11· ·again?

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· 1115.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· And that's Lots 3 and 4

14· ·together, correct?

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Correct.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

17· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) And for Account No. 1115,

18· ·Lots 3 and 4, was there -- we're looking at a copy of

19· ·audit history for Account 1115.· Is this the --

20· ·basically look the same as the account for 1000 in the

21· ·billing?

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes, and the same --

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is this -- where did you get this

24· ·from?

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) We GRAMA Act requested
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·1· ·documents from the district and received them in October

·2· ·of 2015.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And was there -- is there any billing

·4· ·shown on there prior to September of 2013?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Okay.· At that time, no.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So was Lots 3 and 4, were they

·7· ·receiving, connected and/or tapped to any utilities

·8· ·prior to September of 2013?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes, they were.· To this

10· ·lot there was.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) The meters were removed by

13· ·the district in August of 2013.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So it had taps through August?

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Of 2013.

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Well, July 31st, and in

17· ·August 1st of 2013 the district came and removed the

18· ·meters.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Hang on.· Let me get

20· ·the dates down.

21· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yes.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Through July 31st, 2013.

23· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Uh-huh.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right?· And then taps were

25· ·removed on what date?· August?
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·1· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· August of 2013.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· You don't know the

·3· ·exact date?

·4· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I went down there on the

·5· ·15th of that month.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· But the -- our renters that

·8· ·were there and had the taps called us at the first of

·9· ·the month and reported to us that the district had came

10· ·and removed the meters.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

12· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· If I could add a point of

13· ·clarification.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Sure.

15· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· There seem to be some confusion

16· ·about meters versus taps versus connections.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

18· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· The district in my own words

19· ·defines taps as the presence of a utility connection at

20· ·the property line.· So in this case a -- in the case of

21· ·electricity a line drop.· Is that --

22· · · · · · ·MR. SHORTREED:· A line extends to a meter.

23· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· So a power line of some sort

24· ·extends to the property.· Now, that's the tap as far as

25· ·the district is concerned.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Whether there's a meter connected

·3· ·to that tap is another issue.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And obviously, the district owns

·6· ·meters, and those are an expense.· And generally, if a

·7· ·property is not receiving service, having a meter on it

·8· ·is an expense the district tries to avoid.· So taps

·9· ·versus -- taps are not the same as meters.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So if meters were

11· ·removed, that doesn't necessarily mean that the taps

12· ·were removed.· Is that what you are saying?

13· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Precisely.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And as far as you know, the

15· ·meters were removed, but are you aware of whether or not

16· ·the line, the electrical line to the property was also

17· ·removed?

18· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Electrical line is to the

19· ·back of the property at the five foot variance.· It's

20· ·not actually on the property.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

22· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· So once they remove the

23· ·meters, that is upon the property of the district at

24· ·their five foot variance.· To the property?· No?

25· · · · · · ·VOICE:· It's your property.· It's just in an
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·1· ·easement.

·2· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· It's in an easement, but

·3· ·it's still my property.· But it's -- the line is

·4· ·lateral, once the meter is taken to the rear of the

·5· ·property.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So let me just -- let's

·7· ·go at it from this angle.· The tenants, excuse me,

·8· ·reported to you that the meters had been removed, right?

·9· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Correct.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did they also report that they

11· ·were no longer receiving electricity?

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· That is correct.

13· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· They were taken.· There's

14· ·no -- so there was nothing provided.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· No electricity being provided?

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Or water, correct.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· No power.

18· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Any utilities.

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Any utilities.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So if there was a line there,

21· ·it wasn't being used to deliver --

22· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· No.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· -- utility service.· Okay.

24· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) And again, this -- was this

25· ·before September 1st, 2013?
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·2· · · · Q.· ·So looking at this audit history, are there

·3· ·charges after September -- or beginning in September of

·4· ·2013?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·6· · · · Q.· ·And what charges are those?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Standby fees for utility

·8· ·service.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then can you turn to -- can you

10· ·turn to page 2.· And do you see where the -- it

11· ·represents the billing for March of 2014?

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.· $1213.49.

13· · · · Q.· ·What does it say at the bottom of that?

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49

15· ·due on 4-21 of 2014.

16· · · · Q.· ·For any of the other months was -- does it

17· ·show that there was any notices printed?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

19· · · · Q.· ·Did your mother receive any notices prior to

20· ·March of 2014?

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

23· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Are you going to put that

25· ·audit history into evidence for those two lots?
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· This is the original, right?

·2· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Is it my original?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· It doesn't matter.· I have

·5· ·it on the computer with original filings.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I have file docket so it's

·8· ·fine.· I have the --

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· But I printed it out.

10· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· -- zip drive.· That's fine.

11· ·I have the zip on it.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Any objection, Mr. Long?

13· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No objection.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

15· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So is it your testimony that

16· ·Lot 7 and 8 are --

17· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Mr. Hogelin, do you have a copy for

18· ·me?

19· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I don't.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Just --

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I do of all the other ones.  I

22· ·don't know what happened to that one.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· We'll take a little break, and

24· ·I'll go run some copies.

25· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· It's just that one.· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Hold on just a minute.· Let's

·2· ·just take a break, and we'll go.· How many did we need?

·3· ·Two.· Let's make two copies.

·4· · · · · · ·(Discussion off the record.)

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Just so you know, I wrote on

·6· ·your Exhibit No. 2.· Next to Account 1000, I put in

·7· ·parenthesis Lot 005.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And on No. 3, I did the same

10· ·thing, put in parentheses Lots 003 and 004 to help me

11· ·keep it straight.

12· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Do you want the original

13· ·that shows the lots showing them?

14· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We don't have the copies, but

15· ·that is the letter from TUID that shows the accounts

16· ·with corresponding lots.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Oh, any objection to this?

18· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No objection.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· We need copies of

20· ·this one as well?

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Please.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Be right back.· We can

23· ·go off the record.

24· · · · · · ·(Discussion off the record.)

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· There are some people

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 44
·1· ·who are listening to the hearing through our live

·2· ·streaming service, and we just received notice that they

·3· ·are having some difficulty hearing.· So if you would

·4· ·pull those mics right up close and try to speak loudly,

·5· ·that would be helpful.

·6· · · · · · ·Also, our court reporter has some -- has a

·7· ·little device that shows the transcription coming up on

·8· ·text as she captures what we do here today.· So

·9· ·Ms. Seamons is looking at that now, and that might help

10· ·her to participate a little bit more and answer some

11· ·questions.

12· · · · · · ·So Mrs. Seamons, can you see what I am saying?

13· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Can you see what --

14· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· I can read this.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· But understanding it and

17· ·going through it, her eyesight isn't as great either.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I understand.· These things

19· ·happen, and they will happen to all of us.

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· So --

22· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· I have to rely on my attorney

23· ·and my daughter.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I understand.· I am going to

25· ·mark the letter that ties the lot numbers to the account
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·1· ·numbers as Complainant's Exhibit 4.· All right.· Are we

·2· ·back on the record?

·3· · · · · · ·COURT REPORTER:· Uh-huh.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Mr. Hogelin, go

·5· ·ahead.

·6· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· So we were talking

·7· ·about Lots 7 and 8.· And is it your understanding,

·8· ·according to the letter from Ticaboo, that Lot 7 and 8

·9· ·are also known as Account No. 1131?

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I am handing you a document.· What does

12· ·it say at the very top?

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Audit history.

14· · · · Q.· ·And does it have an account number?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) 1131.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in whose name is at the top of

17· ·that?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Okay.· For 1131, does it -- when does

20· ·the billing start?

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) 9-30-2013.

22· · · · Q.· ·Was -- on Lot 7 and 8, was there -- were you

23· ·receiving, connected and/or tapped into any of the

24· ·utility services?

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· Vacant property.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Again, I would point out the

·3· ·difference between meters and taps that we discussed

·4· ·earlier.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's fine.· And I would

·6· ·actually -- it would be really helpful if, when you

·7· ·cross-examine or you bring your own witness, you could

·8· ·go through these same accounts and same lots and give me

·9· ·the utility's perspective of what was there.

10· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Certainly.· I just wanted to make

11· ·sure everyone is on the same page until that point.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· That's fine.· So just

13· ·to reiterate that testimony, as to these lots, these

14· ·were vacant property, you said.

15· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Vacant property.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So are you aware that

17· ·there was an electrical line or electrical meter to

18· ·these properties?

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Again at the back of each

20· ·one --

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

22· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· -- when the mining district

23· ·created the community in 1978 that was infrastructured.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

25· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· And those lines or -- is at
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·1· ·the rear of every property.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So there are lines running

·3· ·through the utilities easement on every property?

·4· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· As to whether there's a line

·6· ·that runs off of that to the -- to a home or to a home

·7· ·site, are you aware that there was any line?

·8· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Well, I know that they are

·9· ·available for hookup if you put something there, but

10· ·there's -- like, I mean.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

12· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· There's never been nothing

13· ·on there.

14· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· There had never been a

15· ·trailer or anything on that property.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I understand.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· There had never been any

18· ·power or water used on those vacant properties.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So there was no meter

20· ·there.

21· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· No.

22· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin)· And just to go back, so

23· ·based off the two other properties that we talked about,

24· ·Lots 3 and 4 and then Lots 5, the way that you answered

25· ·the commission's question, it's the same, same way,
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·1· ·correct?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Right.· Back at the 5 foot

·3· ·variance from the back of the property easement would be

·4· ·where the meters exist.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·6· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) But prior to this, there was

·7· ·no charges anyways, correct?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· We purchased the

·9· ·properties in 2000.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) I have to maybe state,

12· ·2006.· We actually bought them from SITLA.

13· · · · Q.· ·You are fine.· So these standby fee charges,

14· ·do they continue monthly?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then can you look down under the

17· ·charges of March of 2014.· What does the last item say?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Notice printed for

19· ·$1213.49.· Due on 4-21 of 2014.

20· · · · Q.· ·And is that statement provided in any of the

21· ·other months?

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.· We have never had any

23· ·statements before that.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So it's your testimony that you

25· ·never -- you never received notice of these fees until
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·1· ·March of 2014, correct?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Correct.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did you want to have this

·5· ·audit history marked?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.· Can we please have that

·7· ·marked as Exhibit 5, please.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Any objection, Mr. Long?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No objection.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.

11· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Is it your testimony, based

12· ·off the representation by TUID in the letter that is

13· ·Exhibit 4, that Lot 8 is also known --

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Yes.

15· · · · Q.· ·-- as Account No. 1132?

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And would you submit that your

18· ·testimony for Lot 8 is the same as your testimony for

19· ·Lot 7 and 8.

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· Correct.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Let me get copies of this.

23· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yeah, I can hear him.

24· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) What is your understanding

25· ·for the purpose that TUID combined 7 and 8 for Account
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·1· ·No. 1131 and then also has a separate account for Lot 8

·2· ·specifically?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) My understanding later upon

·4· ·reading the tariff is that they are contijuous, if I say

·5· ·that right.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Contiguous?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Contiguous, yes.

·8· ·Contiguous.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But again for Lot 8, Account 1132, it's

10· ·vacant?

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

12· · · · Q.· ·And there was no usage of any utilities prior

13· ·to September of 2013?

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.· No.

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We would like to have that as

16· ·Exhibit 6, please.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Any objection?

18· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No objection.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.

20· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· And referring to

21· ·Exhibit 4, the letter from TUID with regards to the

22· ·account numbers and lot numbers, is it your testimony

23· ·that Account No. 1133 is also known as Lot 98?

24· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) That's correct.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Could you please state what's at the

·2· ·top of the page.

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· Beginning of usage, 9-30.

·4· ·Oh, audit history, Sharon A. Seamons.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) 1133.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Is what, the account number?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Is Lot 98, Account No.

·9· ·1133.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) That's a vacant lot.· That's

12· ·that corner lot.

13· · · · Q.· ·Does this audit history show any charges prior

14· ·to September of 2013?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· No, it wasn't.

17· · · · Q.· ·Was this Account Lot No. 98, was it receiving,

18· ·connected and/or tapped into any of the utilities

19· ·services prior to September of 2013?

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No, it's not.

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Is it vacant?

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes, it's a vacant

24· ·property.

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· It was vacant.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·And as of September of 2013, were there any

·2· ·charges or billing?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· Prior to September, no.

·4· · · · Q.· ·But in September, there was billing?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Yes?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Oh, on September they

·8· ·started billing.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Prior no.

11· · · · Q.· ·And what were -- what was the billing for?

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Standby use of utilities.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And those charges continued every

14· ·month, correct?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in March of 2014 on the audit

17· ·history, what does the bottom line state?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49

19· ·due on 4-21 of 2014.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) That's correct.

22· · · · Q.· ·And did -- was -- is that listed any -- under

23· ·any of the previous months on the audit history?

24· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Did you receive any notice of these

·2· ·fees prior to March of 2014?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

·4· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No, we hadn't.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.· I would like to have that

·6· ·as, is that Exhibit 7?

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· It is.· Any objection?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No objection.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Did we -- did we already submit

10· ·the --

11· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yeah.

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· -- the resolution?· Is that

13· ·Exhibit 1?

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yes.

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.· Thank you.

16· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) You, however -- you own other

17· ·properties in Ticaboo, correct?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) The ones that we have just

19· ·stated.· We had two --

20· · · · Q.· ·Other than those?

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) We had two that were sold

22· ·in 2012 that were listed on that.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

24· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) It was --

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So we have been through six
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·1· ·properties by my count.

·2· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· So one and two were tapped

·3· ·into.· That was the living residence where my mother

·4· ·lived from 2000 to 2009, '10.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So that's Lots 001 and 002?

·6· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Uh-huh, that is correct.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And there's a residence on

·8· ·those?

·9· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· That's correct.

10· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· And those taps existed in

11· ·September of 2013, September of 2013.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

13· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I'm sorry?

14· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· We used that residence that

15· ·-- in one and two, Lot 1 and 2.

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Uh-huh.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Is where our residence is

18· ·that we have.

19· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay, great.

20· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· -- were tapped into and --

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Right.

22· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· And lived.

23· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Now, it also shows on here

24· ·Account Nos. 5051, 505 -- and when I say shows here, I

25· ·am referring to Exhibit 3, the letter from TUID
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·1· ·corresponding account numbers with lots.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· It's actually Exhibit 4.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Exhibit 4, excuse me.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· It's all right.

·5· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) 5051, 5052, 5054, do you

·6· ·currently own those properties?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· Those were sold in

·8· ·2012.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So is it your testimony out of the --

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Well, there's two, four,

11· ·six, eight.

12· · · · Q.· ·-- those six account numbers going from 1000

13· ·to 1000 -- 1133, that only one of those properties as of

14· ·September of 2013 was using or -- utilities?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.· Those were the

16· ·only ones out of the eight.· The other six did not have

17· ·meters.

18· · · · Q.· ·And on the one -- and we're talking about Lot

19· ·1 and 2, Account No. 1002, what notice would you receive

20· ·of billing of --

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Can I pause just a moment.

22· ·I'm sorry to interrupt.· So these three account numbers

23· ·which represent five properties, you say those

24· ·properties were all sold?

25· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· No.· I don't understand why
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·1· ·5051 is listed as one and two, because it's also listed

·2· ·as 0 -- 1002.

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·4· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· So error correction on

·5· ·that.· The only ones that were sold was Lot 5054.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, account.

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Account, I'm sorry.· Lots

·8· ·92 and 93 --

·9· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yeah, 92 and 93.

10· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· -- were sold in 2012.

11· ·Excuse us.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· In 2012 okay.· Just a minute.

13· ·Lots 92, 93 were sold in --

14· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· That did not have a meter.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· -- 2012, okay.

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· No.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And do you know why there are

18· ·two different account numbers for the combined Lots 1

19· ·and 2 and also two different account numbers for Lot 5?

20· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Okay.· The residence on

21· ·5051, Lot 1 and 2 --

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

23· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· -- is our home occupant,

24· ·that we occupied.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I understand that.
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·1· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· And then Lot 5 --

·2· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· It's a double-wide home.

·3· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· 5052 had the previous

·4· ·balance that they state owed from the prior --

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·6· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· -- district.· Same with

·7· ·5054.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.· But there are two

·9· ·different account numbers for each of those properties.

10· ·Do you know why that is?

11· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· You are referring to Lot 1 and

12· ·2, correct?

13· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I don't.· I think because

14· ·they existed before standby fees.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, maybe we'll have to have

16· ·Ticaboo Utility Improvement District explain that.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yeah.· I believe that's

18· ·before they existed before the standby fees.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· But you don't know.

20· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I don't know.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Go ahead.· Sorry.

22· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So for Lot 1 and 2 was the

23· ·only lots that were using utilities at the time as of --

24· ·prior to September of 2013, what notice do you receive

25· ·for utilities generally?· Is it monthly?
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Monthly.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so for Lot 1 and 2, you received

·3· ·notice monthly of what was owed.· But for all the other

·4· ·lots that start standby fees in September of 2013, you

·5· ·didn't receive notice until March of 2014?

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) I didn't understand that.

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Did you receive your

·8· ·billing for Lot 1 and 2 and not the other ones prior to

·9· ·that or up until March?

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Let's rephrase it.· Can you

11· ·hear me, Mrs. Seamons?

12· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Can you hear the judge?

13· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Now what?

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So for the lot where

15· ·you have the double-wide home.

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yes.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did you receive monthly bills

18· ·from TUID for the utilities?

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· I think so.· I kept those

20· ·current.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· And then on the other

22· ·properties that you own that are vacant, did you receive

23· ·monthly billings from TUID, or did you receive a

24· ·combined billing for several months' worth of charges?

25· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· I received a combined
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·1· ·billing.· But there were no charges on the vacant lots.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I believe the records, the

·3· ·records show that there were charges.· Did you mean to

·4· ·say that nobody there was using any utilities?

·5· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· I can't understand that.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Can you help?

·8· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) The lots that you were

·9· ·getting standby fees on, did you get monthly notice of

10· ·those bills?

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Like this?

12· · · · Q.· ·Just anything.

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Did I get a combined notice

14· ·on that?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I believe she's already

17· ·testified that she didn't receive any notice of -- until

18· ·March.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's what the complaint

20· ·states.

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· And I was just trying to show

22· ·there was -- on the ones that were being used she was

23· ·receiving monthly billing.· However, the ones where the

24· ·standby was being billed, that was not being given

25· ·notice or monthly bill but rather was a collection of
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·1· ·months that were done periodically.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So let me just ask you,

·3· ·Mr. Long.· I don't think that we have --

·4· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I don't know.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I know, but I'm going over

·6· ·here.· I don't think we have really clear testimony from

·7· ·Mrs. Seamons.· I think we have a communication

·8· ·breakdown.· But what counsel is asking me to accept into

·9· ·the record is that TUID was sending out monthly billings

10· ·for those Lots 1 and 2 for the utilities that were

11· ·actually being used, but on the vacant lots it was not

12· ·sending out monthly billings for the standby fees.· Do

13· ·you contest that?

14· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Yeah.· And I will have

15· ·Mr. Shortreed testify as to exactly how the billing

16· ·process works when it's his turn.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's fine.

18· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· In effect, the bills sent out are

19· ·sent out on a group bill basis, so each bill has all of

20· ·the lots owned by a particular property owner.

21· · · · · · ·MR. SHORTREED:· For Mrs. Seamons specifically,

22· ·in this case she gets a group billing.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· That's fine.· We'll

24· ·have -- Mr. Shortreed, until you are sworn in, if you

25· ·would let your counsel speak, that would, I think, be
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·1· ·best for the record.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SHORTREED:· Sorry.

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's all right.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And I'll have Mr. Shortreed address

·5· ·that question when he is speaking.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· That's fine.· And if we

·7· ·feel like we need any follow up with Mrs. Seamons, we'll

·8· ·give you that opportunity.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· If I could have one more shot

10· ·because I think this is very important to have on the

11· ·record.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Go ahead.

13· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Seamons.

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Yes.

15· · · · Q.· ·Did you receive any notice of any standby fees

16· ·prior to March of 2014?

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.· I did not.

18· · · · Q.· ·So is it fair to say that you did not receive

19· ·a monthly bill for those standby fees?

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.· I didn't know there was

21· ·standby fees.· So I didn't receive a bill.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So the bill that you did receive for

23· ·standby fees were for multiple months, correct?

24· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Correct.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And after March of 2014, on the
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·1· ·properties that were being billed standby fees, did you

·2· ·receive billing monthly for that?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so that is it your testimony that

·5· ·the properties with standby fees, you would only receive

·6· ·bills periodically with multiple months?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· Correct.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Go ahead.

10· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· Was the issue of being

11· ·billed for standby fees on properties that were not

12· ·using utilities prior to September of 2013, was that

13· ·ever addressed with TUID?

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) You will have to --

15· · · · Q.· ·You can answer too.

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) You will have to repeat

17· ·that, I'm sorry.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Did -- did you address the fact that

19· ·you had not received any notice or any bills concerning

20· ·the standby fees starting in 2013, September of 2013,

21· ·with TUID?

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· Yes.· I verbally addressed

23· ·that to Mr. Shortreed, and he said that if I paid those

24· ·fees, then I could abandon the properties.· But that was

25· ·an exorbitant amount of money because I only received
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·1· ·$750 a month Social Security.· And I was relying on the

·2· ·rental to keep my bills paid, and he pulled the meters

·3· ·from my rental.· So I received no money from my rents.

·4· · · · Q.· ·When did you address with Mr. Reed (sic) that

·5· ·you had been charged standby fees but hadn't received

·6· ·notice until March of 2014?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· I went down for a meeting.

·8· ·Was it the meeting?· I went to Ticaboo for the monthly

·9· ·meeting.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) And addressed that with

12· ·Mr. Shortreed at the meeting.

13· · · · Q.· ·So was that the March 21st, 2014, meeting?

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Yes.· Correct.

15· · · · Q.· ·And I believe it's already in the -- I know it

16· ·is.· It's already attached.· There are meeting minutes

17· ·from the TUID meeting on March 21st, 2014.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Do I have that marked?

19· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· That's already in with --

20· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Formal complaint.

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· With the formal complaint.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· But it's not marked as an

23· ·exhibit here today.

24· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· No, it's not.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Let's see if we could find
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·1· ·that because I think that would be helpful.· Any idea

·2· ·about where that is in this?

·3· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Nearly to the end of the

·4· ·filing.· I would say about 20 pages from the back.· It

·5· ·-- none of the pages are actually marked on that filing

·6· ·with the formal complaint in December.· We do have

·7· ·available if we need copies, but it is submitted.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· So it's the -- it starts with --

·9· ·the meeting minutes that was filed with the commission

10· ·starts with April 11th, 2013, and then goes chronically

11· ·to -- or chronologically to the March 21st, 2014,

12· ·meeting minutes.

13· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· They should be filed by

14· ·monthly order, I believe, is the way we received them.

15· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· If I may interject.· We have these

16· ·same meeting minutes as one of the -- one of the

17· ·exhibits we'll introduce as well if that's --

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Want to just do that right

19· ·now?· We'll --

20· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· If that's helpful.· I have -- I

21· ·have whole binders put together if I could pass those

22· ·out now, and that might save us some time.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Let's go ahead and do that

24· ·then.· I think that would be helpful.

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Here is a commission binder that
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·1· ·has electronic versions too, if that's helpful.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. SHORTREED:· Do you know which number that

·3· ·is?

·4· · · · · · ·(Discussion off the record.)

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· The commission has a CD of

·6· ·electronic versions too.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Thank you, Mr. Long.· It looks

·8· ·like it's under No. 15, index No. 15 of the trial

·9· ·binder, of TUID's trial binder.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And so I take it you have no

11· ·objection.

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· No objection.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So I will leave you the

14· ·option to object to anything that you find in, in this

15· ·binder as we go through, but for now I am just going to

16· ·consider these as marked, and then we'll see if, if as

17· ·we use them there's any evidentiary issues that you want

18· ·to make me aware of.

19· · · · · · ·So this is TUID's Exhibit No. 16.· And go

20· ·ahead.

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Fifteen.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Excuse me.· Thank you.· No.

23· ·15.· All right.· Go ahead.

24· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) On the third page -- you can

25· ·go ahead.· Was it state -- can you read the second
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·1· ·paragraph.

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Well, in this one it says,

·3· ·"Resolution 2014-0011 was introduced by Mr. Shortreed.

·4· ·The resolution amends Resolution 2014-005, the policies

·5· ·about the abandonment of utilities.

·6· · · · · · ·"Mrs. Seamons asked about leeway that the

·7· ·district might extend to those with few means.

·8· ·Mr. Shortreed describes why utilities in Ticaboo are so

·9· ·expensive and why fees must be high.· He noted that

10· ·standby fees were never intended to be perpetual.

11· ·Mrs. Seamons expressed her concerns for those with --

12· ·those on fixed incomes."

13· · · · Q.· ·So Ms. Seamons, is this when you addressed the

14· ·billing of the standby fees for the months from

15· ·September to March of 2014?

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· That's correct, yes.

17· · · · Q.· ·And what was their response to your bringing

18· ·up the issue?

19· · · · A.· ·He said he didn't care.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

21· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· That's hearsay, and the meeting

22· ·minutes don't reflect that.

23· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· It's the truth.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.· It's not -- it's not

25· ·relevant what his personal feelings were, so that's
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·1· ·fine.

·2· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· And then can you read

·3· ·this paragraph right here.· Oh.· Yeah, go ahead and read

·4· ·that.· Can you please read, it looks like two paragraphs

·5· ·up from the bottom.

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· "Mrs. Seamons asked a

·7· ·hypothetical question about a situation of nonpayment.

·8· ·Mr. Shortreed noted that she would have the right to

·9· ·terminate the lease.· She said that terminating the

10· ·lease is very difficult in the state of Utah."

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So when you addressed this standby fee

12· ·bill with TUID, what was your feeling of how they

13· ·addressed it, or how would you state that they -- it was

14· ·addressed by them?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· The standby fees?

16· · · · Q.· ·Uh-huh, or your concerns regarding the fees?

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) It looked to me like I was

18· ·being charged for the services.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) It didn't look like standby

21· ·fees at all.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) I was being charged for

24· ·power, water, sewer and garbage.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Which I did not use.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Did they try to meet with you individually to

·3· ·resolve your concerns?

·4· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) I didn't hear you.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Did they try to meet with you individually to

·6· ·resolve your concerns?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

·8· · · · Q.· ·No.· Did they offer to try to meet with you at

·9· ·all?

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· No.· I tried to meet with

11· ·him the next day.· I went to the office, and he said he

12· ·was on the phone and closed the door.· I have never been

13· ·in the office.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And since then, at any time that you

15· ·have tried to address the billing, have they been

16· ·cooperative with you at all?

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.· Since we have been

18· ·there, my daughter Mary and Rick have been helping me

19· ·with everything.· And they have tried, and my other

20· ·daughters have tried to talk with Mr. Shortreed and with

21· ·no results.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.

23· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· So I believe we have addressed

24· ·the issue that the commission has provided -- or set

25· ·with regards to this hearing for No. 4.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· With regards to beginning of the

·3· ·charges of the standby fees.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We would like to move on to the

·6· ·issue of tenants and just would like to ask my client.

·7· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Are you aware of any tenants

·8· ·that have contracts with TUID presently?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· The motel, the resort

10· ·carries the tenant contracts for SITLA.

11· · · · Q.· ·So who is the owner of the property?

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) The Utah State School Trust

13· ·Lands.

14· · · · Q.· ·Which is also known as?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) SITLA.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And however, the contracts with TUID,

17· ·are they with SITLA or through the tenant of SITLA's?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Through the tenant.

19· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) That's correct.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Have your tenants been entitled to the

21· ·same consideration as SITLA's?

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

24· · · · Q.· ·Have -- and what has been the response from

25· ·TUID regarding any concerns with regards to your tenants

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 70
·1· ·having contracts with TUID directly?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) That the property owner has

·3· ·to carry the contract with the district.

·4· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) That's correct.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Do you think it's fair that you aren't

·6· ·receiving the same considerations as another property

·7· ·owner in Ticaboo?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· We have to assume

·9· ·their utilities after they leave upon a contract.

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) That's correct.

11· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.· I believe that resolves

12· ·the issue No. 5 or, well, not resolves, but --

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I'm sorry.· One second.

15· · · · · · ·(Discussion off the record.)

16· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So have you had tenants on

17· ·the property, or any of your properties?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

19· · · · Q.· ·You have never had any tenants?

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Well, we had tenants.· The

21· ·tenants --

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) -- have not resided there

24· ·since --

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you have had tenants on your
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·1· ·property, correct?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· ·And when the tenants moved away from the

·4· ·property, were you able to stop the charges for the

·5· ·utilities?

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.· We continue to pay them.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you had to continue to pay them?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) I had to pay them.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· All right.

11· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I believe that we have addressed

12· ·No.· 5.· All right.· With regards to item No. 6 that the

13· ·commission had asked for evidence to be proffered,

14· ·obviously I just would like to make a note, it's kind of

15· ·hard to provide evidence of nothing.· But I will still

16· ·ask my clients for their testimony.· Excuse me.

17· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any

18· ·information pamphlets from TUID?

19· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Can we -- can we take a short

20· ·recess for restroom break?

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's fine.· We'll take a

22· ·break, go off the record for about 10 minutes.· Come

23· ·back at about 10:30.

24· · · · · · ·(Recess from 10:21 a.m. to 10:32 a.m.)

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· We'll go back on
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·1· ·the record.· We left off, we were just about to start

·2· ·talking about the customer information pamphlet.

·3· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any

·4· ·customer information pamphlet?· Did you receive a

·5· ·customer information pamphlet from TUID?

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) I didn't hear that correctly.

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Did you receive a customer

·8· ·information pamphlet?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Sorry.

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No, I did not.

13· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Did it work?

14· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Hit the button.

15· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· It shows on.· Oh, there we

16· ·go.· Sorry.

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No, I did not.

18· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· Thank you.· Have you

19· ·received any -- a copy of the statement of customer

20· ·rights and responsibilities from TUID ever?

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Have you received any notices from TUID

23· ·through any type of pamphlet?

24· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Did you receive a pamphlet?

25· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Mary, are you aware of any?
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes, we received a pamphlet

·2· ·February 20th, 2015.

·3· · · · Q.· ·And what was that pamphlet concerning?

·4· · · · A.· ·Meter tampering.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But nothing with regards to tariff or

·6· ·your rights or your responsibilities under the tariff?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) I didn't read completely

·8· ·through it, but I -- it was meter tampering and new

·9· ·rates of February.

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) There it is right there.

11· ·Yeah, that's correct.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· New rates as of February 2015?

13· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· 2015, February 20th, 2015.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

15· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· '16.· This year.· Sorry.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· '16.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yeah, just barely, we just

18· ·barely got it.

19· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Did you receive any pamphlets

20· ·prior to that?

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I'd like to go on to the last issue,

24· ·and that's regarding the removal of taps from

25· ·Ms. Seamons' property.· Ms. Seamons, have you -- has
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·1· ·TUID removed the taps from your property, or taps or

·2· ·meters from your property?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Yes, he has.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many times has that happened?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) At least twice.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So let's talk about the two, the two

·7· ·times.· On either -- well, on either of those times were

·8· ·you given any prior notice to the taps or meters being

·9· ·removed?

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· No, I did not.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I just need to clarify a

12· ·little bit.· Are we talking about a single property?

13· ·Are we talking about --

14· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· -- one and two?

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We are talking about a lot.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Three and four.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Lots 3 and 4?

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yes.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And twice something was

21· ·removed from Lots 3 and 4?

22· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Right, yes.

23· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· So it was the same lots?

24· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Same lots.

25· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Both properties.
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·1· · · · · · ·(Talking at once.)

·2· · · · · · ·COURT REPORT:· Sorry.· I'm having trouble with

·3· ·four people talking at once, just a little confusing.

·4· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· So just to recap, Lots

·5· ·3 and 4 are the lots at issue, and those are both --

·6· ·those are the lots for both incidents?

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So what's on those

·8· ·lots?· Is it a home?

·9· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Double-wide home.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· A double-wide home?

11· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Trailer home.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Double-wide trailer home,

13· ·okay.

14· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Four bedroom home.

15· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· So let's talk about

16· ·the first incident.· When about was the first incident?

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) The first time the taps, the

18· ·meters were removed, I had a renter, and the renter

19· ·called and said that they got a --

20· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· That they --

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· That they pulled the meters

22· ·on them because they, they had their own generator.· And

23· ·they had pulled the meters, and they had no water and no

24· ·power, and they had to move.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So the renters, did they notify TUID?
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Yes.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How did they notify TUID?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) They called me on the phone.

·4· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· No, T-U-I-D.

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Oh, T-U-I-D?

·6· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yes.· How did Jim and Val

·7· ·Hill in 2013?· Remember we GRAMA Acted.· Did you --

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) I didn't understand the

·9· ·question properly.

10· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin)· In what form did your

11· ·tenants inform TUID that they -- now, which utility were

12· ·they requesting to discontinue?

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) How did they contacted

14· ·T-U-I-D?

15· · · · Q.· ·Which utility were they asking TUID to

16· ·discontinue?

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) They were receiving their

18· ·water and power.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And what were they asking to be

20· ·discontinued?

21· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I'd just like to note a hearsay

22· ·objection here.· We are talking about what someone else

23· ·allegedly asked the district to do three-plus years ago.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Understood.· Thank you.

25· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) What did -- okay.· What did
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·1· ·your tenants tell you that they wanted disconnected?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) The tenants said they had no

·3· ·water or no power, and they couldn't stay.· They had a

·4· ·business there.

·5· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Okay.· So --

·6· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) What did they tell you that

·7· ·they wanted?· What utility did they tell you they wanted

·8· ·disconnected?· Did they want electric disconnected?· Did

·9· ·they want water disconnected?· Did they want all of it

10· ·disconnected?

11· · · · A.· ·They didn't want anything disconnected.

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Mary, can you testify?

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Okay.

14· · · · Q.· ·Mary, to your knowledge, did the tenants

15· ·inform your mom that they wanted any utility

16· ·disconnected?

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) They informed me.· I went

18· ·down in August of 2013, on the 15th of that month, and

19· ·was informed by them that they had requested to not have

20· ·power, that they wanted to run a generator.

21· · · · Q.· ·My question to you is, what did they tell you

22· ·that they wanted disconnected?

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Their power.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Did they want the water disconnected as

25· ·well?
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Did, did you or your mother inform TUID

·3· ·that -- or request that the power service be

·4· ·disconnected?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· No.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· That's correct.

·8· · · · Q.· ·All right.· And did TUID disconnect the power?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) They took the meters, both

10· ·water and power.

11· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Correct, they did.

12· · · · Q.· ·So they -- even though the tenants informed

13· ·you that they only wanted the power disconnected, TUID

14· ·came out and disconnected all of the utilities, correct?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Correct.

17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

18· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Again, objection that anything

19· ·beyond electric service is beyond the commission's

20· ·jurisdiction, I think beyond the scope of this hearing.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

23· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Was there any notice provided

24· ·that all of the utilities would be disconnected?

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· No.
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·1· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· No.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Was there any notice of what day or

·3· ·time that even the electrical utility would be

·4· ·disconnected?

·5· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· No.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Now, there -- the second

·7· ·incident that you referred to --

·8· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Can you put that in as

·9· ·exhibit?

10· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Mary, Mary.

11· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· That just recently?

12· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· So the -- let's talk

13· ·about the second incident.· Mary, you were involved in

14· ·that.· What -- can you please describe the second

15· ·incident with regards to the taps or meters being

16· ·removed from those lots.

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) We went down to the meeting

18· ·on April 28th, on a Thursday.· We stated our home --

19· · · · Q.· ·Sorry.· What year?

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· What year?

21· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· 2016.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So I need you to tell me what

23· ·happened between.· Did the utility service get

24· ·reinstated?

25· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Okay.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Oh, you are talking from 2013?

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

·4· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· So in 2000 -- after 2013,

·5· ·no renters, no meters replaced until August of 2014.· At

·6· ·that time we were required to pay an $1875 fee for

·7· ·standby fees during the year the meter was removed in

·8· ·order for the meters to put back on.

·9· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So the meters were removed in

10· ·August of 2013, but you were charged standby fees until

11· ·August of 2014?

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.· With the meters

13· ·removed.

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· Correct.

15· · · · Q.· ·And when did the tenants move in?

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did you -- did you pay that?

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yes.

18· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yes, we did.

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· For our tenants, for new

20· ·tenants to come in so that we could have a renter base.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

22· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So the tenants that had

23· ·requested for the electric to be removed, did they stay

24· ·on the property for that year?

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· They moved out of
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·1· ·state.· They had to move.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Why did they have to move?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Their -- it shut down their

·4· ·business, and there was no service.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Again hearsay.· We're going to

·6· ·someone else's motivations.

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Oh, well, there was no --

·8· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) To the best of your

·9· ·understanding.

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) They told me they could not

11· ·stay and with that -- and with no meters, no service

12· ·with utilities.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· But the fact is, they moved.

15· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yes.

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· They didn't have any water or

17· ·power.

18· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· So the second incident

19· ·so --

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Oh.

21· · · · Q.· ·You testified that the meters were put back in

22· ·August of 2014; is that correct?

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) In 2016, April 28th, we
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·1· ·went down.· We stayed at the house for four days and

·2· ·left on Sunday, May 1st.· May 2nd, upon returning,

·3· ·received an e-mail from Ticaboo that they had removed

·4· ·our meter.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· This is still on --

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· On three and four.

·8· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· This is three and four.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So you personally stayed there

10· ·for 10 days?

11· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· No.· We stayed there for

12· ·three -- four days.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· For four days.

14· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· We stayed in our home, but

15· ·we were over there cleaning and fixing it for new

16· ·renters.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I see, okay.· And so you

18· ·worked in the house for four days.

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· We worked in the house,

20· ·uh-huh.

21· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Now, let's go back to

22· ·February.

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) But we can go back to

24· ·February.

25· · · · Q.· ·So in February, was there an issue regarding
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·1· ·utilities in Ticaboo?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.· On February 18th

·3· ·there was a meeting.· And as we arrived to the meeting,

·4· ·it was stated that if anyone touched the meters or did

·5· ·any tampering, that they would have a thousand dollar

·6· ·tampering fee charge.· And they -- the meeting was in

·7· ·regards to changing the rates for tampering.

·8· · · · Q.· ·And had you -- had you had any contact with

·9· ·the meters?

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.· We didn't know that

11· ·you could not touch the meters, so during the winter

12· ·months we turned them off.· And so when we came down

13· ·there after being gone for the coldest months, November,

14· ·December, and January, we turned them on.· Make sure

15· ·there was no frozen pipes and then went over to -- and

16· ·we had to use water, so we turned on.

17· · · · · · ·And then we went over to the meeting.· During

18· ·the meeting we informed --

19· · · · Q.· ·So what was the purpose of turning them off

20· ·during the winter?· What were you trying -- what was the

21· ·purpose of it?

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· So no pipes would break.

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· That's correct.

24· · · · Q.· ·And so in February you went to the meeting,

25· ·and you were -- were you given a warning or anything for
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·1· ·doing that?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) During the meeting, as we

·3· ·informed the district, we informed them that we had

·4· ·turned the meters on.· And so Mr. Shortreed and the

·5· ·board members informed us that that was our warning.

·6· ·Upon returning home, we received the pamphlet.

·7· · · · Q.· ·When you say -- okay.· In February?

·8· · · · A.· ·February 20th.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I am going to object here.· This is

10· ·well beyond the scope of the commission's questions and

11· ·what I understand to be the scope of this hearing.· If

12· ·it needs addressed, I'd suggest that we do it in --

13· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Your Honor, we would ask --

14· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· -- filings after this hearing or at

15· ·least give Ticaboo the opportunity to respond.

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Can I respond to the objection?

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I'm trying to understand the

18· ·circumstances under which taps were removed.· They were

19· ·saying taps were removed or meters shut down or some

20· ·sort of action taken by Ticaboo to discontinue service

21· ·on two occasions.

22· · · · · · ·The first occasion was in connection with a

23· ·tenant who had a generator.· The second occasion was in

24· ·connection with their trying to prepare the property for

25· ·new tenants to move in, correct?
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·1· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Correct.

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So I am a little bit confused

·4· ·about dates.· So the second incident you said was this

·5· ·year, right?

·6· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· April of 2016?

·8· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Correct.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So the February meeting, was

10· ·that also of this year, 2016?

11· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Yes.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· And so the meeting that

13· ·you went to was dealing with tampering charges.· When

14· ·you had turned off the meters, that was to water,

15· ·correct?

16· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· The water was already on.

17· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· No.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did you turn off the meters

19· ·for the electricity at any time?

20· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Never.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So what does the --

22· ·does their taking action with the meter on the water

23· ·have anything to do with electricity?· Is there going to

24· ·be a tie-in?

25· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· That's where I am going with the
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·1· ·testimony, yes.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So your objection is

·3· ·noted, but I do need to hear the rest of this, and at

·4· ·that point I'll be able to tell if it's relevant or not.

·5· ·Go ahead.

·6· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin)· So to go back, you were

·7· ·given a warning in February about doing any action with

·8· ·the meters, correct?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· After February and you were given that

11· ·warning, did you take any actions or do anything with

12· ·regards to the meters?

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· You testified in April that you visited

15· ·the property and you were there for three days, correct?

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) Correct.

18· · · · Q.· ·And while you were visiting the property, did

19· ·you do anything with the meters, whether electrical,

20· ·water or whatever, turning anything on or off?

21· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· No.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then what was the -- so you left

24· ·the property on what date?

25· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) May 1st.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·May 1st.· And after May 1st, you -- did you

·2· ·receive any correspondence from TUID?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) On May 2nd we received an

·4· ·e-mail that our meters -- meter had been removed, water

·5· ·meter had been removed from our property.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Was your electrical meter removed?

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) I had -- did not check

·8· ·that.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) I turned off the power with

11· ·the box, our power box, our main box.

12· · · · Q.· ·But there wasn't any notice given prior to the

13· ·removal of the meter?

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No contact from the

15· ·district in regards.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So the question was,

17· ·was anything done to electricity, and you don't know,

18· ·right?

19· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I don't know.· I did not go

20· ·out and check that.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So do you have renters

22· ·in that property now?

23· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· We cannot.· They cannot use

24· ·water.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.
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·1· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I don't even know power.

·2· ·At that point we knew that there wasn't a viable.· We

·3· ·had renters ready to move in at that time.· That's why

·4· ·we were preparing that home, seasonal workers were

·5· ·there.

·6· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· They had gone back to pick up

·7· ·their things to move in.· We had the rent -- we had it

·8· ·rented.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Anything more,

10· ·Mr. Hogelin?

11· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We rest, your Honor.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Mr. Long, are you ready?

13· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Yeah.· I just have a few questions

14· ·for cross-examination.· And I guess the particular

15· ·person answering them, we will take answers from whoever

16· ·can give them.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Thank you.

18· · · · · · · · · · · ·CROSS-EXAMINATION

19· ·BY MR. LONG:

20· · · · Q.· ·So Ms. Seamons, I just have a handful of

21· ·questions.

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) If you ask questions, I'll

23· ·try to answer or if she can't hear.

24· · · · Q.· ·Sure.· And if I need to restate anything or

25· ·speak louder, please let me know.· As I understand your
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·1· ·testimony, and this is simply for the -- for my benefit,

·2· ·you claim that you had no notice of standby fees between

·3· ·September 2013, when the district first started charging

·4· ·standby fees, and March of 2014?

·5· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· So he is asking, did you

·6· ·have any notice on the standby fees from '13 until --

·7· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) No, I never had a bill until

·8· ·March.

·9· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) And again, by way of

10· ·clarification, I think, and please correct me if I am

11· ·wrong, that you testified that you had been receiving

12· ·bills for the house on Lot 1 and 2.· The house --

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Can I specify --

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother) I'm not sure.

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) -- an answer for that for

16· ·her?

17· · · · Q.· ·Certainly.

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) So during the course before

19· ·September 2013, any property that we had rented or sold

20· ·was held, a contract to the district to pay the

21· ·utilities.· So we weren't receiving any bills prior to

22· ·that.· And after 2000 -- that 2013, standby fees were

23· ·implemented, we did not receive one.· We received it for

24· ·one and two, the only lot, the house that we resided in.

25· · · · Q.· ·And at that time, the house that's built or
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·1· ·located on Lot 1 and 2 was occupied?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) We visit it.· We do not --

·3· ·we are not full-time residents.· We go down and

·4· ·seasonally visit.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Sorry.· Maybe more clearly, the house was

·6· ·actively receiving service, as in when you turn on the

·7· ·tap, water comes out?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct, on one and two.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Light switches, lights go on?

10· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And the other ones were either

12· ·undeveloped properties or not occupied?

13· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Correct.· The tenants had

14· ·left on three and four.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Okay.· Thank you, just by way of

16· ·clarification.

17· · · · A.· ·(Witness Mother)· Yeah, that's correct.

18· · · · Q.· ·You brought up a few different issues of

19· ·notice or claim that you didn't have notice of various

20· ·actions that the district was taking.· Are you familiar

21· ·with what's referred to as the Utah Public Notice

22· ·Website?

23· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.· Actually, last night

24· ·I received an alert that there's a meeting tomorrow

25· ·night.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·And have you subscribed to that?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Just in November.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) I wasn't aware of it prior.

·5· · · · Q.· ·And are you aware of the commission's website

·6· ·that contains filings from the district as far as they

·7· ·regard electrical service?

·8· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) I went in and tried to

·9· ·locate that before, but TSSD and TUID were very confused

10· ·within that.· And I wasn't aware of TUID being.· So I

11· ·tried to.· I did subscribe to the Public Services

12· ·Commission's, but they eliminated their alerts, I want

13· ·to say in April.· I got a notice that they no longer

14· ·would serve alerts in regards to filings or anything

15· ·with districts.

16· · · · Q.· ·So since -- after March of 2014, and again,

17· ·this is -- maybe I'm a little confused because this has

18· ·been sort of a hectic hearing.· Have you been receiving

19· ·bills for all of the properties?

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) So as of 2014 in March, we

23· ·started to receive combined billing statements for all

24· ·properties.

25· · · · Q.· ·And those combined billing statements, again
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·1· ·just for the commission's benefit, this is one bill that

·2· ·has, has charges for all eight lots that you own?

·3· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Let me look at the billings

·4· ·that I have.

·5· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· It's just right there.· You

·6· ·just had it there.

·7· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· I have current ones.· I had

·8· ·the current ones.

·9· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· It is for all properties.

10· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Well, I don't know if they

11· ·are combining seven and eight or if it's separate.

12· · · · · · ·WITNESS MOTHER:· Oh, I didn't know that

13· ·either.· I think it's separate.

14· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Seven and eight are

15· ·combined, so they are not -- they are separate.· But on

16· ·our property taxes, they are separate.

17· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Sure.

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Utility fees.

19· · · · Q.· ·We have discussed a little bit the difference

20· ·between taps and meters or connections.· Again, just to

21· ·clarify, understanding the district definition of a tap

22· ·is having utility service, in this case electrical

23· ·service, available at the property line, so at any edge

24· ·of the property, do all of the lots that you own in

25· ·Ticaboo have electrical service or electrical lines
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·1· ·available at the edge of the property?

·2· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Just to clarify, thank you.

·4· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter)· Well, I am not sure.

·5· ·Maybe they are and they are not.· I don't know if

·6· ·there's electrical really cable.· How would I know?

·7· ·It's buried.· There's pedestals.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) But I don't know what --

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· That's sufficient.· Can you

11· ·describe current tenants, if any, that you have?

12· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) None.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· In your opinion, would you be able to

14· ·rent any of these properties without utility service; in

15· ·particular, electrical service?

16· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· Utility?· Did you say

17· ·power?· With solar, I could, yes.

18· · · · Q.· ·Do any of your properties have essentially

19· ·off-the-grid capable solar systems?

20· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

22· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) But I could purchase a

23· ·generator.

24· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I have no further questions.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Thank you.· Any
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·1· ·follow-up?

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION

·3· ·BY MR. HOGELIN:

·4· · · · Q.· ·Have you looked into using alternative

·5· ·electrical services such as solar or generators?

·6· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.

·7· · · · Q.· ·And have you notified TUID that you are

·8· ·interested in using alternative services?

·9· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) Yes.· We have spoke with

10· ·Tom Hill and Mr. Shortreed.

11· · · · Q.· ·And did they -- were -- were you told, or is

12· ·it your understanding that if you use alternative

13· ·electrical services, that you will no longer have any

14· ·fees from TUID with regards to electrical?

15· · · · A.· ·(Witness Daughter) No.· We would still be

16· ·charged a standby fee.

17· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Thank you.· That's all.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Any recross?

19· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· No.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Go ahead.· You want to

21· ·call Mr. Shortreed?

22· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Yeah.· I'd like to discuss one

23· ·issue with the commission.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And I alluded to this earlier.
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·1· ·Again, the district has come prepared to answer the

·2· ·commission's questions, and those questions in

·3· ·particular involve Dockets 13-2508-T01 and 15-2508-T01.

·4· ·I'd like to point out to the commission at this point in

·5· ·the proceeding that neither of those dockets involve the

·6· ·implementation of standby fees.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· It was my understanding that

·8· ·Docket 13 is where standby fees were first introduced.

·9· ·Is that not correct?

10· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Docket 13-2508-T02 is the docket

11· ·where standby fee -- the new tariff including standby

12· ·fees was filed with the commission.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Well, perhaps I made a

14· ·mistake.· I took the docket number, I believe, straight

15· ·out of your response.

16· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And I am not promising we made no

17· ·typos.· We are prepared to address it on a very

18· ·preliminary basis here.· We would ask that anything

19· ·regarding the legality of standby fees or the notice

20· ·provided be --

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· The commission has already

22· ·stated that standby fees are legal.· The question is

23· ·whether you have a valid tariff that includes standby

24· ·fees.· That's the question.· And if you did not comply

25· ·with the statutory notice requirement to customers and

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 96
·1· ·to the commission in the docket where you created and

·2· ·first imposed those standby fees, then you do not have a

·3· ·valid tariff.· And that's what we're trying to figure

·4· ·out today.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I understand the commission's

·6· ·position.· I'd like to request the opportunity to

·7· ·complete some sort of posthearing brief or filing as the

·8· ·commission feels it necessary.· As based on our readings

·9· ·of the questions --

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So let me just figure this

11· ·out.· What's the docket number where you first created

12· ·standby fees?

13· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· That's 13-2508-T02.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So what was the purpose of

15· ·T01?

16· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· T01 made overall changes to the

17· ·rate structure.· It set forth different, I guess we

18· ·would call them, blocked billing schedules.· Essentially

19· ·changed the way that customers could pay for electrical

20· ·service.

21· · · · · · ·And again, we're prepared to address --

22· ·address the district's compliance with the requirements

23· ·as far as Docket 13-2508-T02.· But that hasn't been the

24· ·top of our preparation.· And understanding that was

25· ·perhaps a typo or miscommunication by us in the
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·1· ·beginning, we would simply like the opportunity to file

·2· ·a posthearing brief if we feel it necessary.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Point of clarification.· So is

·4· ·the commission asking when tariff -- the standby fees

·5· ·were introduced?

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Correct, into the tariff.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Although, I think it's not

·8· ·disputed that in the 2015 tariff it's also included,

·9· ·correct?

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· It's included in the 2015

11· ·tariff, yes.

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.· I just wanted to --

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· The question is whether -- is

14· ·where they were very first introduced.

15· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· So if it's helpful to the

16· ·commission, in our binder of exhibits, we have the

17· ·action request response in Docket 13-2508-T02.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

19· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· From the Division of Public

20· ·Utilities that describes essentially the changes that

21· ·were made in that tariff filing.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Where is that?

23· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· That's Exhibit 24.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Let's see.· Okay.· The

25· ·implementation of standby fees for all services provided
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·1· ·by district.· That's on page 2 of that exhibit.· Any

·2· ·objection, Mr. Hogelin, to this Exhibit No. 24?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· No objection, your Honor.· I'm

·4· ·sorry.· You were referring to page 2 with regards to --

·5· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· Is there an action number,

·6· ·did you say?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· No, no, just...

·8· · · · · · ·WITNESS DAUGHTER:· This says one.· How come

·9· ·that one says two?

10· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Just, Mary, please.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· We'll do the best

12· ·we can and see where it takes us, and if we need

13· ·posthearing briefing, we'll put together a schedule for

14· ·that.· Go ahead.

15· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Okay.· Understood.· Mr. Shortreed

16· ·has prepared a written statement that he would like to

17· ·read, as has typically been commission practice.· The

18· ·hope is that the statement will both set forth the

19· ·district responses to the commission's seven questions,

20· ·as well as introduce this entire binder full of

21· ·exhibits.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Go ahead and have him sworn.

23· · · · · · · · · · · · CHIP SHORTREED,

24· ·called as a witness at the instance of the Ticaboo

25· ·Utility Improvement District, having been first duly
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·1· ·sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Would you like Mr. Shortreed here?

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's fine.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· That acceptable?

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

·6· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Good morning.· My name is Chip

·7· ·Shortreed.· I am the district manager for the Ticaboo

·8· ·Utility Improvement District.· I have been involved with

·9· ·TUID for a number of years.· With the guidance of the

10· ·board of trustees, I am responsible for day-to-day

11· ·operations of TUID and its facilities, including

12· ·operations and maintenance, billing and finances,

13· ·customer relations and all other aspects of TUID.· I am

14· ·the sole full-time employee of TUID.· I am also a

15· ·resident of Ticaboo and a TUID customer.

16· · · · · · ·The major issue in these proceedings has been

17· ·standby fees charged by TUID.· TUID adopted its standby

18· ·fees in 2013, and the corresponding tariff changes were

19· ·filed and acknowledged by the commission on December 6,

20· ·2013 in commission Docket 13-2508-T02.

21· · · · · · ·This docket is not a topic for this hearing

22· ·per the commission.· Nevertheless, it is important to

23· ·note that TUID provided the required notice to customers

24· ·and to the commission of the proposed changes and that

25· ·the standby fees were acknowledged by the commission.
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·1· ·Could I just say, as a side-bar, this was written before

·2· ·what we have talked about today.

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I understand.

·4· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.· Thank you.· Although the

·5· ·commission has dismissed all aspects of Mrs. Seamons'

·6· ·complaint as it relates to standby fees, I want to make

·7· ·a brief statement on the record about the necessity of

·8· ·standby fees.

·9· · · · · · ·TUID's standby fees are the method by which

10· ·the costs of keeping and maintaining TUID's utility

11· ·infrastructure are fairly allocated among the customers

12· ·that are actively receiving utility service and those

13· ·property owners to which service is available upon

14· ·request.· Standby fees as charged by TUID are legal,

15· ·just, and reasonable.

16· · · · · · ·TUID is authorized to charge standby fees,

17· ·both as an improvement district and as a public utility.

18· ·Without standby fees, the active customers of TUID would

19· ·be forced to subsidize the owners of undeveloped

20· ·properties in Ticaboo.

21· · · · · · ·TUID stands ready to provide utility service

22· ·upon request to a number of yet-to-be-developed

23· ·properties in Ticaboo, the only full service community

24· ·within 60 miles.· The fact that utility services are

25· ·available upon request means that properties in Ticaboo
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·1· ·can be developed.· Without available utility services,

·2· ·platted lots in Ticaboo would be worth no more than

·3· ·barren, undeveloped and unimproved land in the desert.

·4· · · · · · ·TUID -- excuse me, TUID incurs expenses to

·5· ·keep these services available, and standby fees simply

·6· ·allocate these expenses according to those who benefit.

·7· ·The commission has very clearly stated that TUID's

·8· ·standby fees are legal.· In the order issued in this

·9· ·docket on July 6, 2016, the commission stated, "TUID is

10· ·correct that standby fees are legal.· The commission has

11· ·regularly approved and required standby fees in the

12· ·tariffs of regulated utilities."

13· · · · · · ·Further, Utah code, 17B-1-1032J allows a local

14· ·district to charge, quote, fees or other charges for

15· ·commodities, services or facilities provided that the

16· ·district -- provided by the district, end quote.· While

17· ·the statute does not use the specific term, quote,

18· ·standby fee, a tap is a facility for which a fee may be

19· ·charged.

20· · · · · · ·The commission has dismissed Ms. Seamons'

21· ·allegation as to legality in general of the standby fees

22· ·and as to the legality of the specific rates and

23· ·policies set forth in TUID's tariff.· That means the

24· ·standby fees are not at issue today, and I will not

25· ·address them any further in my statement.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Objection.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Sustained.· Go ahead.

·3· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· May I proceed?

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· In the order in this docket

·6· ·dated July 6, 2016, the commission listed seven

·7· ·questions to be answered at this hearing.· I will now

·8· ·take a few minutes and address each of those questions

·9· ·in turn.

10· · · · · · ·TUID has provided the commission and the other

11· ·parties with a binder of exhibits that are relevant to

12· ·the commission's questions, and I ask that those

13· ·documents be admitted into evidence at the conclusion of

14· ·my statements.· Footnote:· They already have been, I

15· ·guess.

16· · · · · · ·No. 1, when the commission approved the joint

17· ·settlement stipulation in Docket No. 15-2508-T01, TUID

18· ·was ordered to hold a board meeting within 30 days of

19· ·September 10, 2015, or no later than Saturday, October

20· ·10th, 2015.· Did TUID comply with that order?

21· · · · · · ·Our response:· The stipulated step -- excuse

22· ·me, the stipulated settlement in question was submitted

23· ·by the division on August 20th, 2015, with a proposed

24· ·settlement stipulation.· The division also filed revised

25· ·tariff sheets to reflect the terms of the stipulated
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·1· ·settlement.

·2· · · · · · ·On August 27, 2015, TUID had a publicly and

·3· ·properly noticed board meeting to approve the settlement

·4· ·and the revised tariff sheets, although this was prior

·5· ·to the issuance of the order from the commission on

·6· ·September 10th, 2015, approving the settlement,

·7· ·stipulated settlement.· TUID took board action prior to

·8· ·the issuance of the actual order as the board was

·9· ·confident that the commission would approve the

10· ·settlement as requested by the division.

11· · · · · · ·On November 18, 2015, Justin Jetter, one of

12· ·the attorneys for the division, e-mailed TUID's attorney

13· ·to check if the required board meeting had been held to

14· ·adopt the changes in the stipulated settlement.· On that

15· ·same day TUID's attorney replied to Mr. Jetter and sent

16· ·him the resolution approving the changes, as well as the

17· ·minutes from that meeting.

18· · · · · · ·The stipulated settlement is marked as Exhibit

19· ·TUID-001.· The red-lined revised tariff sheets submitted

20· ·by the division are marked as Exhibit TUID-002.

21· ·Resolution 2015-0019 approving the tariff changes is

22· ·marked as Exhibit TUID-003.

23· · · · · · ·The minutes of the August 27, 2015, meeting

24· ·are marked as Exhibit TUID-004.· The e-mail

25· ·correspondence between Mr. Jetter and TUID's attorney is
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·1· ·marked as Exhibit TUID-005.· The notice of the August

·2· ·27th meeting posted on the public notice website is

·3· ·marked as Exhibit TUID-006.· The agenda for the August

·4· ·27th meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-007.

·5· · · · · · ·No. 2, if TUID held the board meeting as

·6· ·ordered in Docket No. 15-2058-T01, did it also file its

·7· ·revised tariff with the commission within the ensuing 15

·8· ·days?· Through an unfortunate oversight, TUID did not

·9· ·file the revised tariff with the commission within 15

10· ·days of the board meeting.

11· · · · · · ·Please note that the board meeting

12· ·contemplated by the commission had already happened by

13· ·the time this order was issued.· To meet the special

14· ·15-day requirement as set by the commission in this

15· ·unique case, TUID would have needed to file the revised

16· ·tariff within two days of the order.· TUID should have

17· ·completed that file, but mistakenly failed to do so.

18· · · · · · ·The changes in this update tariff are

19· ·relatively minor and deal with tampering fees and some

20· ·details regarding service to tenant-occupied properties.

21· ·I am sorry, tenant, hyphen, occupied properties.· From

22· ·TUID's perspective, this -- these changes do not have

23· ·any material effect on Ms. Seamons' claims that are

24· ·currently at issue.

25· · · · · · ·Notice was given of the board meeting by
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·1· ·public notice website.· See footnotes.· You can see that

·2· ·in our footnotes from our previous response, and posted

·3· ·at the meeting location in compliance with the Utah Open

·4· ·and Public Meetings Act, thus giving notice of the

·5· ·pending changes to any interested parties.

·6· · · · · · ·The fact that TUID mistakenly failed to file

·7· ·its revised tariff sheets did not disadvantage

·8· ·Mrs. Seamons, as all of the changes to be made to the

·9· ·tariff were discussed in the stipulated settlement and

10· ·were also shown on the tariff sheets the division filed

11· ·along with the stipulated settlement on August 21st,

12· ·2015.

13· · · · · · ·TUID did file, including the changes as agreed

14· ·to in the stipulated settlement, on March 1st, 2016, in

15· ·Docket 16-2508-T01.· The division reviewed those changes

16· ·and recommended that the commission acknowledge the

17· ·changes on March 30th, 2016.· On April 20th, 2016, the

18· ·commission issued a letter acknowledging the changes on

19· ·March 31st, 2016.

20· · · · · · ·No. 3, did TUID hold public meetings for

21· ·customers as required under Utah Code 17B-2A-406,

22· ·(6)(A)(iii), both as to Docket 13-2508-T01 and as to

23· ·Docket No. 15-2508-T01?· If so, was Mrs. Seamons

24· ·properly notified of the public meetings pursuant to

25· ·Utah code 17B-2A-406, (6)(A)(iii).
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·1· · · · · · ·Some background is useful in this case to

·2· ·understand the tariff changes filed with the commission

·3· ·in these two dockets.· The tariff changes filed with the

·4· ·commission, Docket 13-2508-T01, set up a variety of

·5· ·different electric service schedules designed to meet

·6· ·customers needs and provide predictable revenue to TUID

·7· ·and set an enrollment period for these different service

·8· ·schedules.

·9· · · · · · ·These changes are described in the division's

10· ·action response dated May 30th, 2013, which is marked as

11· ·Exhibit TUID-026.· Docket 15-2508-T01 changed certain

12· ·definitions, required landlords to be responsible for

13· ·utilities instead of tenants, clarified the ability of

14· ·property owners to fully abandon the taps on their

15· ·properties, and made other changes.

16· · · · · · ·The division's action request response

17· ·describing these changes is marked as Exhibit TUID-027.

18· ·In that docket TUID and the division disagreed on

19· ·several issues.· However, those issues were eventually

20· ·resolved, and TUID and the division agreed to a

21· ·settlement that was approved by the commission.

22· · · · · · ·As part of that stipulation, TUID agreed to

23· ·make certain changes to its tariff, including reducing

24· ·the charges for tampering or unauthorized connections,

25· ·clarifying that a landlord can have separate accounts
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·1· ·for multiple rental properties, and made it clear that

·2· ·tenants may request the status of the landlord's

·3· ·utilities account for that particular property.· As

·4· ·noted previously, the stipulation is marked as Exhibit

·5· ·TUID-001.

·6· · · · · · ·As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a regular

·7· ·meeting of the board -- of the TUID board on April 11,

·8· ·2013, the board discussed proposed changes to TUID's

·9· ·electric rates and rules and scheduled a public hearing

10· ·on the changes for April 29th, 2013.

11· · · · · · ·Customers were notified at that meeting by a

12· ·U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website,

13· ·publication of notice in the local newspaper on April

14· ·18th and 25th, and posting notice of the hearing on

15· ·TUID's community bulletin board located by the community

16· ·mailboxes on Ticaboo Drive.· I, personally mailed the

17· ·notices and posted the notice on the TUID community

18· ·bulletin board.

19· · · · · · ·The agenda and minutes of the April 11th

20· ·meeting are marked as Exhibit TUID-008.· The notice of

21· ·the April 29th meeting, as posted on the public notice

22· ·website is marked as Exhibit TUID-009.· The published

23· ·notice of the April 29th meeting is marked as Exhibit

24· ·TUID-010.

25· · · · · · ·That public hearing was indeed held on April
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·1· ·29, 2013.· On that same day the proposed rate changes

·2· ·were approved by Resolution 2013-0008.· The other tariff

·3· ·changes were approved by Resolution 2013-0009.· TUID

·4· ·then submitted the tariff changes in Docket 13-2508-T01,

·5· ·and the commission issued its letter acknowledging the

·6· ·tariff on June 14th, 2013.· Mrs. Seamons did not provide

·7· ·comments or otherwise involve herself in the TUID board

·8· ·meetings or in the related commission docket.

·9· · · · · · ·The minutes of the April 29th meeting are

10· ·marked as Exhibit TUID-011.· Resolution 2013-008 is

11· ·marked as Exhibit TUID-012.· Resolution 2013-009 -- I'm

12· ·sorry, 0009, is marked as Exhibit TUID-013.· The

13· ·commission's tariff acknowledgement letter in Docket

14· ·13-2508-T01 is marked as Exhibit TUID-014.

15· · · · · · ·As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a public and

16· ·properly noticed board meeting held on March 21st, 2014,

17· ·the TUI -- TUID board made changes to rules regarding

18· ·the abandonment of taps and imposing an increased

19· ·penalty charge for unauthorized connection or tampering.

20· · · · · · ·Customers were notified of this meeting by

21· ·U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website, posting

22· ·of notice on the TUID community bulletin board, and I,

23· ·personally mailed the notices and made the posting on

24· ·the public notice website and on the community bulletin

25· ·board.
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·1· · · · · · ·Mrs. Seamons was in attendance at this

·2· ·meeting, and her attendance is noted in the meeting

·3· ·minutes.· Mrs. Seamons was provided with actual notice

·4· ·of this meeting, as is shown by her attendance.· Note

·5· ·that the tampering fees that were adopted at this

·6· ·meeting were later decreased as part of the settlement

·7· ·stipulation that I mentioned earlier.

·8· · · · · · ·The minutes of the March 21st meeting are

·9· ·marked as Exhibit TUID-015.· The agenda for the March

10· ·21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-016.· The notice

11· ·of the March 21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-017.

12· · · · · · ·No. 4, when did TUID first begin to charge

13· ·Mrs. Seamons' standby fees?· TUID first began charging

14· ·standby fees to Mrs. Seamons and other property owners

15· ·on August 1st -- excuse me, correct that.· October 1st,

16· ·2013.· As I noted previously, the standby fees were

17· ·implemented with the tariff changes filed with the

18· ·commission in Docket 13-2508-T02.

19· · · · · · ·The division reviewed the proposed changes and

20· ·recommended that the commission acknowledge the tariff

21· ·changes in the letter dated November 19th, 2013.· The

22· ·commission acknowledged the changes on December 6th,

23· ·2013.· The changes were effective on September 1st,

24· ·2013, and the charges for standby fees began October 1st

25· ·of 2013.
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·1· · · · · · ·The division's recommendation letter in Docket

·2· ·13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-018.· The

·3· ·commission's acknowledgement letter in Docket

·4· ·13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-019.

·5· · · · · · ·No. 5, does TUID allow contracts with tenants?

·6· ·If so, are Mrs. Seamons' tenants entitled to similar

·7· ·consideration?· Excuse me.

·8· · · · · · ·TUID is required to follow its tariff.· In

·9· ·accordance with the tariff, TUID does not -- excuse me,

10· ·TUID generally does not allow for contracts directly

11· ·with tenants.· The tariff allows for exceptions in the

12· ·case of long-term existing tenants that are TUID

13· ·customers in good standing.· Even if such an exception

14· ·is granted, if service is disconnected and then later

15· ·reconnected, the landlord will be responsible for

16· ·utility services in accordance with the general rule.

17· · · · · · ·As far as TUID is aware, none of the tenants

18· ·in Mrs. Seamons' properties would qualify for this

19· ·exception.· If Mrs. Seamons has long-term tenants that

20· ·may fit this exception, TUID will of course discuss this

21· ·issue with her.

22· · · · · · ·Simply stated, the purpose of this rule is to

23· ·make sure that TUID is paid for the services it

24· ·provides.· Ticaboo generally has a large number of

25· ·seasonal, temporary residents, and TUID has found that
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·1· ·collecting past-due fees from former tenants of rental

·2· ·properties is often difficult.

·3· · · · · · ·Once a tenant moves away from Ticaboo, the

·4· ·only way for TUID to collect those fees is to sue the

·5· ·former tenant, obtain a judgment against that tenant,

·6· ·and collect on that judgment.· Suing a former tenant for

·7· ·a few hundred or even a few thousand dollars in unpaid

·8· ·fees is generally not cost effective.· And even once a

·9· ·judgment is obtained, collecting on a judgment is often

10· ·impossible.

11· · · · · · ·In the end, when a tenant moves away without

12· ·paying their utility bills, TUID is simply unable to

13· ·collect.· Since TUID is a governmental -- local

14· ·governmental entity, TUID relies completely on revenues

15· ·from utility services to pay its expenses.· When a

16· ·customer does not pay and TUID is unable to collect, the

17· ·funds to cover the services that customer received must

18· ·necessarily come from the remaining TUID customers.

19· · · · · · ·TUID believes that is not fair for those other

20· ·customers to pay more than their fair share.· For many

21· ·larger utilities a few nonpaying customers may not be a

22· ·serious issue.· However, for TUID, the matter of a few

23· ·thousand dollars in unpaid fees is a serious issue, and

24· ·those costs eventually must be paid by the remaining

25· ·customers.
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·1· · · · · · ·By making landlords responsible for utility

·2· ·services, TUID increases the likelihood that it will

·3· ·actually receive payment for those services it provides.

·4· ·A tenant in a given property must pay for utility

·5· ·services.· Whether that tenant pays for those services

·6· ·as part of the rent to the landlord or directly to TUID

·7· ·as a customer is really irrelevant as the amounts due

·8· ·for the services are the same.

·9· · · · · · ·Requiring that landlords are responsible for

10· ·the utilities makes sense as the landlord is the person

11· ·screening and selecting tenants that are likely to pay

12· ·their bills.· There is no premium to be charged or added

13· ·expense in requiring that landlords be responsible for

14· ·utilities, and the tenants are no worse off.· The policy

15· ·simply increases the ability of TUID to collect the

16· ·amounts it is owed.

17· · · · · · ·No. 6, has TUID mailed a customer information

18· ·pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons as required under the tariff

19· ·and by commission rule?

20· · · · · · ·TUID has mailed the customer information

21· ·pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons.· I mailed the pamphlets every

22· ·year myself to the addresses on file with TUID in

23· ·September or October with the monthly bills.· TUID does

24· ·not obtain proof of delivery of these mailings, as

25· ·mailing those notices via certified mail or some similar
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·1· ·method would be an unnecessary expense and an unneeded

·2· ·strain on an already very tight budget.

·3· · · · · · ·The customer information pamphlet is available

·4· ·on the TUID website as well, along with a variety of

·5· ·other documents and information.· The current version of

·6· ·the -- the current version of the pamphlet is marked as

·7· ·Exhibit TUID-028.

·8· · · · · · ·No. 7, has TUID removed taps from

·9· ·Mrs. Seamons' properties or property?· If so, what were

10· ·the circumstances under which the taps were removed?

11· · · · · · ·TUID has not physically removed any of the

12· ·taps from any of Mrs. Seamons' multiple properties.

13· ·Note that, quote, taps are the physical connections to a

14· ·particular property for a particular service, such as

15· ·service laterals for water and sewer service or a power

16· ·line terminating on the property.

17· · · · · · ·I also wish to offer my testimony as to

18· ·several other minor matters not covered by the

19· ·commission's specific list of questions.· TUID has

20· ·mailed the annual customer information pamphlet --

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Objection, your Honor.· He has

22· ·already admitted to the fact that he is going to be --

23· ·I'm sorry.· Objection.· He's stating that he's going to

24· ·be making statements outside of the scope of what the

25· ·commission has requested to be presented today.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Response?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I believe the hearing to this point

·3· ·has been in large part outside of the bounds of those

·4· ·seven questions, particularly anything regarding Docket

·5· ·13-2508-T02 is technically outside the bounds of those

·6· ·questions as written.· I understand that that may have

·7· ·been a typo or miscommunication somewhere along the

·8· ·line, but an objection now seems unfounded.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, if -- you know, counsel is

10· ·raising that one issue.· I mean, but he's stating that

11· ·he's going to go outside the scope on a number of

12· ·issues.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· What issues do you want to

14· ·address, Mr. Shortreed?

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Ma'am, I'm addressing the

16· ·customer information pamphlet and addressing standby

17· ·fees as they relate to Docket 13-2508-T02.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I do need information about

19· ·Docket 13-T02.· If we can deal with it here, that would

20· ·be great.· I would hate to have to continue this hearing

21· ·and call you all back from the south of the state.· It

22· ·is unfortunate that we didn't get the correct docket

23· ·number.· That well could be my mistake, so I'd like to

24· ·do what we can on that docket.

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And if I may, the topics that
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·1· ·Mr. Shortreed is going to address in the last little bit

·2· ·of his statement are topics that have been raised by

·3· ·Ms. Seamons in various filings, you know, perhaps

·4· ·outside of those seven questions.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Let's go ahead and hear

·6· ·what you have to say, Mr. Shortreed.

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I also wish to offer my

·8· ·testimony as to several other minor matters not covered

·9· ·by the commission's specific list of questions.· TUID

10· ·has mailed the annual customer information pamphlets

11· ·every year as required by its tariff and the

12· ·commission's rules.

13· · · · · · ·Mrs. Seamons alleges that she has not received

14· ·this pamphlet.· While TUID does not have any information

15· ·about whether Mrs. Seamons actually received the

16· ·pamphlet, I did send out these pamphlets every year as

17· ·required by the tariff.

18· · · · · · ·Mrs. Seamons also alleges that the tariff is

19· ·not publicly available in the TUID office and that the

20· ·required notice is not posted in the office.· Based on

21· ·my own personal knowledge as district manager and the

22· ·sole full-time employee of TUID, the tariff is indeed

23· ·available for public inspection, and the notice is

24· ·posted in the office stating that the rate schedules are

25· ·available for inspection.
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·1· · · · · · ·TUID also posts a variety of information on

·2· ·its basic website, and all tariff filings are available

·3· ·on the commission's website.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· If I may interrupt Mr. Shortreed, I

·5· ·think now would be a time to discuss briefly

·6· ·13-2508-T02, even though we had assumed it was outside

·7· ·the bounds of this hearing.· If that's acceptable to the

·8· ·commission, Mr. Shortreed has prepared a very short

·9· ·statement on that.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Please go ahead.

11· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Standby fees were proposed in a

12· ·regular TUID board meeting on August 8th, 2013.· TUID

13· ·mailed notice to all customers of the proposed rate

14· ·changes and hearing, published notice in the newspaper

15· ·of the proposed rate increase and hearing on August

16· ·15th, 2013, and posted a similar notice on the TUID

17· ·community bulletin board.

18· · · · · · ·I, personally mailed those notices.· The

19· ·public hearing and public meeting to adopt the proposed

20· ·standby fees was held on August 29, 2013, as scheduled.

21· ·TUID adopted the standby fees with Resolution 2013-0017

22· ·on August 29th, 2013, and the rate went into effect

23· ·September 1st, 2013.

24· · · · · · ·TUID filed its revised tariff sheet with the

25· ·commission on October 16th, 2013.· The division
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·1· ·recommended that the commission acknowledge the revised

·2· ·tariff sheets on November 19th, 2013.· The commission

·3· ·acknowledged the revised tariff sheets on December 6th,

·4· ·2013.

·5· · · · · · ·In addition to the notices required prior to

·6· ·adopting the standby fees, TUID also mailed information

·7· ·brochures to all customers explaining the necessity of

·8· ·the standby fees and answering common questions about

·9· ·the standby fees.

10· · · · · · ·August 8th, 2013, meeting minutes are Exhibit

11· ·TUID-020.· The published notice of the proposed rate

12· ·change and public hearing is marked as Exhibit TUID-021.

13· ·August 29, 2013, meeting minutes are marked as Exhibit

14· ·TUID-022.· Resolution 2013-0017 is marked as Exhibit

15· ·TUID-023.· The division recommendation is marked as

16· ·Exhibit TUID-024.· And the commission's acknowledgement

17· ·letter is marked as Exhibit TUID-025.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So let me just ask you

19· ·some questions.· On Docket 13-T02, what was the date

20· ·that you mailed out the customer notices?

21· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· It was the same day that I

22· ·published the notices.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So what date was that?

24· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Prior to August -- prior or on

25· ·to August 15th, immediately following the board meeting.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So on August 15th you

·2· ·mailed out a notice as to an August 29th, 2013, meeting?

·3· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Do you have a copy of that

·5· ·notice for me?

·6· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Not here, no, ma'am, and I don't

·7· ·know if I have one.· I can't readily state that right

·8· ·now.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· We do have a copy of the published

10· ·notice that made it in the newspaper marked as one of

11· ·our exhibits.· Perhaps Mr. Shortreed can testify the

12· ·notice mailed out was substantially the same as that

13· ·notice.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, here's the difficulty.

15· ·Under the statute, the statute does not acknowledge a

16· ·website notice or a newspaper notice.· The only thing

17· ·that qualifies you for exemption from commission

18· ·oversight of your tariff is if you mail a notice at

19· ·least 10 days ahead of the date on which you hold the

20· ·public meeting.

21· · · · · · ·So that's what I am trying to figure out, is

22· ·where is that public notice and when was it mailed.· So

23· ·I believe that is your burden to demonstrate, and if all

24· ·we have got is a customer testimony saying, "Never got

25· ·one," and you saying, "I am absolutely sure I mailed
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·1· ·that," then this gets decided on the burden of proof.

·2· ·And it's your burden.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Understood and, you know, had we

·4· ·known this docket was coming three years later, we

·5· ·perhaps would have sent those in some sort of trackable

·6· ·format.· Barring that, Mr. Shortreed can testify that he

·7· ·mailed the notices, to the contents of the notices and

·8· ·can also testify as to the standard practice and

·9· ·procedures of the district.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So let's look then at

11· ·the August 29th, 2013, public meeting, in which the

12· ·changes that included the introduction of standby fees

13· ·were to be proposed and discussed.· I -- we have in the

14· ·record a printout of your website, your public notices

15· ·website.· Where on that website is this August 29th,

16· ·2013, meeting noticed?

17· · · · · · ·Here is what I see.· I see a post on February

18· ·6, 2016, of a meeting that occurred prior to that, on

19· ·January 28th, 2016.· I see a post on February 6th, 2016.

20· ·Then a post on May 20th, 2015, again as to a meeting

21· ·that took place previously on April 23rd, 2015.· And

22· ·notice of a public meeting for June 11th, 2015.

23· · · · · · ·There is a post on May 20th, 2015, a post on

24· ·November 11th, 2013, and then a post on April 20th,

25· ·2013.· As I have gone through here, I don't see anything
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·1· ·on your website that talks about an August 29th, 2013,

·2· ·meeting.· Am I missing that?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Without looking at the public

·4· ·notice website, I'm not sure we can speak to that.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Here is the printout.· Would

·6· ·you like a minute to look it over?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· If that would be helpful to the

·8· ·commission, certainly.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That would be great.· Let's go

10· ·off the record for about 10 minutes.

11· · · · · · ·(Recess from 11:35 a.m. to 11:46 a.m.)

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Go ahead.· Help me

13· ·out with the August 29th, 2013 meeting, if you can, and

14· ·if you can't today, then we'll figure out how to deal

15· ·with that.

16· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And I think it may be the latter.

17· ·I am looking at this right here, and this is a printout

18· ·from Ticaboo's own website?

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Correct.

20· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Not the public notice website.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Correct.

22· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And off the top of my head the

23· ·district is not required to provide electronic notice on

24· ·its own website of public meetings.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Correct.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And again, just off the top of my

·2· ·head, and again, this may be better addressed in a

·3· ·written filing, unless we are all very up to speed on

·4· ·our Open and Public Meeting Act's requirements.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I am pretty up to speed.· But

·6· ·what -- I am not concerned about whether you complied

·7· ·with the Open and Public Meetings Act.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Okay.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I am concerned with whether

10· ·you complied with 17B, which requires mailed notice of

11· ·the August 29th, 2013, meeting to customers at least 10

12· ·days ahead of that date.· And that's, that's really the

13· ·critical issue in this case, is whether that notice was

14· ·mailed out.

15· · · · · · ·So, I mean, if I were running a small utility

16· ·like this, and I were trying to be sure that I stayed

17· ·within my exemption, I would have a copy of that notice.

18· ·I would -- you have got 80-some customers.· I would

19· ·maybe even photocopy a few of the envelopes to keep in

20· ·my files as evidence that they were in fact mailed.

21· · · · · · ·That's up to you, of course, how you handle

22· ·that.· But I, I need to see whatever you have got to

23· ·demonstrate that you mailed out a notice at least on --

24· ·what's 10 days before the 29th?· August 19th, 2013.· And

25· ·perhaps we'd have to deal with that after the hearing.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And that may be true.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· We don't have any evidence of a --

·4· ·we don't have a photocopy of that mailing or something

·5· ·to that extent.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So I have some

·7· ·additional questions.· Of your 80-some-odd customers,

·8· ·how many of those lots -- or 80-some-odd lots that you

·9· ·are either serving or standing ready to serve, how many

10· ·of those are standby properties for electricity?· Do you

11· ·know?· Even an estimate would be helpful.

12· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.· I'd like to

13· ·correct, though, that it's approximately 124 customers

14· ·that are billed for active or standby services.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

16· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· As a rough estimate of that, I

17· ·would say that on a guess, probably 60 of those.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· About half -- almost half, not

19· ·quite half.

20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· That would be my best guess,

21· ·yes, ma'am.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Are standbys, okay.· And of

23· ·those, do you -- again, do you know -- and you might

24· ·not.· Of those 60, how many have structures on the

25· ·premises where, you know, upon notice to you, you can do
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·1· ·something in your computer, and they can flick the

·2· ·switch and the lights come on?· Versus how many are

·3· ·vacant lots with nothing built?

·4· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Well, I can't give you a

·5· ·specific number, ma'am.· I can say a majority are vacant

·6· ·lots with nothing built on them.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Majority are vacant, okay.· So

·8· ·of those that are vacant, how many are liened for unpaid

·9· ·standby fees?

10· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I believe at my last

11· ·certification with the Garfield County treasurer, we

12· ·were at 13.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Thirteen liens, 13 liened

14· ·properties.· Have you foreclosed?

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· No, ma'am.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So I need to understand

17· ·what you consider to be -- mean that you are ready,

18· ·willing and able to deliver service to a vacant lot.

19· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Does that mean simply that you

21· ·have your main supply line running through your utility

22· ·easement on the property?· Or does that mean that you

23· ·have a direct drop line from your supply line to a point

24· ·on the property where a structure might be built?

25· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· To a point on the property where
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·1· ·the structure might be built for all utility services.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So there is a line outside of

·3· ·the utility easement onto a potential building site on

·4· ·the property?

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· In every case?

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· No.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So do you charge --

·9· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· In every -- I'm sorry, ma'am.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Do you charge a standby fee

11· ·even where you don't have a drop line to a building site

12· ·or a potential building site?

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Can I have a moment?

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I'm sorry, ma'am.· Ticaboo is a

16· ·very difficult situation when it comes to the

17· ·infrastructure because it was constructed in two

18· ·primarily different ways.· In the mobile home park,

19· ·where Mrs. Seamons' property -- Mrs. Seamons' properties

20· ·are, all of the utility electric lines are run to the

21· ·perimeter or to the property on the back side of the

22· ·property, where there is a ped in place for the customer

23· ·to be able to connect from the home to the ped.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

25· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Now, in the estates it's a
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·1· ·little bit different, which is another platted section

·2· ·of the -- of Ticaboo, where the lines run parallel to

·3· ·the property on the property line.· But because the lots

·4· ·are vacant, there may not be a connection to a customer

·5· ·home because there is no lot -- no home there.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So let's, let's talk

·7· ·about the mobile home sites.· And correct me if I am

·8· ·wrong.· Does -- is that what all of these properties

·9· ·are?· They are all within a mobile home park?

10· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So if Ms. Seamons had a

12· ·tenant bring in a mobile home and site it on her

13· ·property, how long would it take for you to deliver

14· ·electricity to that mobile home?

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· In accordance with our rules and

16· ·regulations, it would be immediate.· Only the customer

17· ·would have to extend the customer service from the home

18· ·to the ped.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So there's a drop line

20· ·available --

21· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· -- to each of those.· Okay.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· One second.· Yeah, there's a ped

24· ·on every mobile home lot except for maybe one or two.

25· ·In Mrs. Seamons' case, they are all there.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So these properties

·2· ·were all purchased prior to the date on which you first

·3· ·imposed standby fees.· So -- and you have got maybe a

·4· ·third of your customers who, who own vacant lots not

·5· ·paying the standby fees.· And yet you have made the

·6· ·argument that these fees are necessary to the health and

·7· ·the ongoing operations of the company.

·8· · · · · · ·So my question is, how were you functioning

·9· ·before 2013 without them?· And how are you continuing to

10· ·function where at least a third of your standby

11· ·customers are not paying?

12· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Do you want me to be blunt and

13· ·frank?

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yes, I do.

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.· So prior to the

16· ·implementation of the standby fees, we were operating

17· ·dramatically in the red as a utility district, as an

18· ·improvement district, barely making enough money to be

19· ·able to pay for fuel through usage fees and everything

20· ·else.· Oftentimes problems were dealt with in the best

21· ·way that we could, given the finances that we had at the

22· ·time, which unfortunately was how the utilities were

23· ·handled in the town of Ticaboo for 35 years prior to the

24· ·Ticaboo Electric Improvement District Coming into

25· ·existence in 2009, and going into operations in 2010.
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·1· · · · · · ·At that time, the board of trustees realized

·2· ·that we had to do something in order to be able to

·3· ·ensure that we could deliver reliable service on demand

·4· ·to our customers, in an effort to be able to improve

·5· ·those customer relations.· And also while it is not our

·6· ·responsibility to promote economic development, but to

·7· ·be able to support it if economic development were to

·8· ·happen.

·9· · · · · · ·So 2013 was a very tumultuous year in that

10· ·regards.· Is that me that keeps knocking this with my

11· ·voice?

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I apologize.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's all right.

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· In 2013 was a very involved year

16· ·because we got involved in so many different things to

17· ·fix.· We started fixing the things that needed to be

18· ·fixed in town to be able to ensure we could deliver that

19· ·service when required.

20· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And I think it may be worth noting

21· ·that at this point nobody was getting paid for any of

22· ·this work.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· That's correct.· There were no

24· ·paid staff members for much of that time.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· All right.· So let's
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·1· ·turn to the tariff itself.· I read through it very

·2· ·carefully.· Where is the language that says that the

·3· ·restriction against the tenant contract is waived or

·4· ·lifted if we're dealing with a long-term tenant?

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Ma'am, I don't have that in

·6· ·front of me, but I believe it's in Section 8, if I

·7· ·remember right.· It may be 8.02.· But I don't have that

·8· ·in front of me, but it does state in there an exception

·9· ·paragraph.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

11· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· An exception paragraph does

12· ·stipulate that -- I'd like to say, ma'am, that we

13· ·actually instituted that exception based upon public

14· ·comment and concerns.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

16· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Primarily because of SITLA

17· ·properties.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

19· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· So we understood those concerns,

20· ·and by putting that exception in place, we were able to

21· ·ensure that none of the existing SITLA tenants were -- I

22· ·hate to be harsh -- but summarily evicted because SITLA

23· ·won't be responsible for utility bills, just as a part

24· ·of their policy.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So have you allowed a
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·1· ·long-term tenant contract under any owner other than

·2· ·SITLA?

·3· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Me, for example.· I am a renter

·6· ·in Ticaboo, ma'am.· And I was a long-time customer prior

·7· ·to this rule being put in place.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So on the 2015 T docket where

·9· ·you entered into the stipulation with the division, it

10· ·was sometime later that the commission issued the order

11· ·approving the stipulation.· During that period of time

12· ·that passed, you held a public meeting.

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, excuse me.· You held a

15· ·board meeting.· And in the statement that you have read,

16· ·you have identified exhibits where that board meeting --

17· ·where the board meeting minutes are and so on, correct?

18· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did you also hold a public

20· ·meeting?

21· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· All of our board meetings are

22· ·public, ma'am.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did you send out a mailed

24· ·customer notice of a public meeting with regard to the

25· ·tariff changes?
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·1· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I would have to admittingly say

·2· ·where the tariff changes were concerned, no, ma'am,

·3· ·because we weren't instituting any rate changes.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· It was just agreeing to the

·6· ·settlement stipulation that Mr. Jetter had drafted and

·7· ·sent forward as part of that T docket.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· But it did include,

·9· ·though, a penalty fee for tampering.· You had proposed a

10· ·thousand dollars per day.· But then you agreed with the

11· ·division to take it down to a hundred dollars per day.

12· ·So this was a new tariff charge.

13· · · · · · ·And my question is whether you noticed within

14· ·10 days of a public meeting, sent a notice to customers

15· ·within 10 days prior to the public meeting saying,

16· ·"We're putting a new fee in our tariff.· It's been

17· ·approved by the board, or it's going to be approved by

18· ·the board, and here is our public meeting for customers

19· ·to come and talk to us about this."

20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Factually, ma'am, that

21· ·particular tampering rate was already in place, and

22· ·during this particular T docket it was brought up as a

23· ·point of concern or contention.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

25· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And was then settled upon
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·1· ·because I believe, if memory serves me right, our

·2· ·original charge was a thousand dollars per incident per

·3· ·day.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And then through the settlement

·6· ·stipulation with the division, we changed it to a

·7· ·thousand dollars per incident, a hundred dollars per

·8· ·day.· Now, having said that, I cannot sit here in front

·9· ·of you and tell you that I sent out a notice for a

10· ·reduction in a fee.· I have no recollection of sending

11· ·such a notice out to my customers.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· I am going to have

13· ·to -- I am going to have to check again the records of

14· ·that because my, my sense is that the tampering fine was

15· ·brand-new in the tariff in that 2015 docket.· You think

16· ·you had a tampering fine in place prior to that?

17· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I can maybe shed a little bit of

18· ·light without looking at the details.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Great.

20· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· The tampering fee has in recent

21· ·memory always been $1,000 per incident.· In the very

22· ·beginning of that docket, 15-2508-T01, that fee was

23· ·increased to $1,000 per incident plus a $1,000 per-day

24· ·tampering fee.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Per day, okay.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Going off the top of my head, I

·2· ·believe the district complied with all the notice

·3· ·requirements for that initial change.· At that point,

·4· ·when those -- when those changes were filed with the

·5· ·commission, the division had some objections to them.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And this was a situation where the

·8· ·district and the division have some -- and probably

·9· ·still have some disagreement about how far the

10· ·commission's jurisdiction extends.

11· · · · · · ·At any rate, in the settlement stipulation

12· ·that we have introduced as Exhibit TUID-001, we

13· ·essentially came to a conclusion on the points the

14· ·division had problems with.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

16· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And that tampering fee was reduced,

17· ·so -- in the district.· And the tampering fee was

18· ·effective upon filing with the commission.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So wait.· But you just said

20· ·that prior to the 2015 docket, the tampering fee was a

21· ·thousand dollars per incident, no per-day fine, correct?

22· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Correct.

23· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So through the 2015 docket you

24· ·implemented a per-day fine.

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Uh-huh.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And the dispute between the

·2· ·district and the division was what the number would be,

·3· ·correct?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Correct, and perhaps it's useful to

·5· ·think of that 2015 docket as two separate tariff

·6· ·changes.· We had the initial tariff changes done by the

·7· ·district on -- I'd have to go look at the docket.· At

·8· ·any rate, at the very beginning of that docket, that

·9· ·docket started -- that docket started after the district

10· ·had adopted those changes, and following the

11· ·requirements, the district is required to file the

12· ·tariff with the commission.

13· · · · · · ·So at that point, from the district's

14· ·perspective, the tariff was effective.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So here is my question.· Did

16· ·you mail out a notice of a public meeting that included

17· ·discussion of a per-day tampering fine, whatever the

18· ·amount was?

19· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I'd have to defer to Mr. Shortreed,

20· ·and perhaps this is something that needs looked at,

21· ·but --

22· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I would have to go back and

23· ·check my records on that, ma'am.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· But Mr. Shortreed perhaps can tell
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·1· ·us if it's the district's policy to mail out notice of

·2· ·any rate increases or any increases that would cause

·3· ·dollars paid by customers to go up.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, I think that's what the

·5· ·statute requires.

·6· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am, and that is also

·7· ·what we follow.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Just for the record, we do have

10· ·a copy of the tariff that was effective, and this is

11· ·redlined, July 25th.· Or I'm sorry, March 21st of

12· ·2000 -- I'm sorry.· Never mind.· I withdraw.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· All right.· So we have

14· ·Ms. Seamons' testimony that the district removed meters

15· ·from a rental property twice.· And your -- in your

16· ·statement that you read, it seemed to me that you were

17· ·stating that that's simply not true.· Well, you said no

18· ·taps were removed.

19· · · · · · ·So this is what I want to know.· Is a tap in

20· ·your mind equivalent with a drop line?· Is that the same

21· ·thing?

22· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· What is your definition of a

23· ·drop line, ma'am?

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· A drop line is dedicated line

25· ·from your main supply source that runs through your
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·1· ·easement, to the property.· So here is your main --

·2· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Saying electric pedestal, ma'am?

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I don't know what an electric

·4· ·pedestal is.· Here is your supply line that runs through

·5· ·your easement.· Here is the property.· Here is your drop

·6· ·line right there.· Where is -- what is the tap?

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· The tap is anything from the

·8· ·main line to service on the property.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

10· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· To a pedestal, to a meter.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So you have never

12· ·pulled the drop line?

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· No, ma'am.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· You have never pulled the tap.

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· No, ma'am.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Have you pulled a

17· ·meter?

18· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Did you comply with the

20· ·commission's rules for notice to the customer before

21· ·pulling that meter?

22· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I would have complied with those

23· ·rules, ma'am, if I were terminating the service.· But

24· ·the service was requested to be terminated by the

25· ·tenant.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Say that again.

·2· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Had I enforced a termination

·3· ·rule in accordance with the rules, I would have had to

·4· ·have properly noticed.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· What do you consider to

·6· ·be termination of electrical service?

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Something as -- of an adverse

·8· ·nature, such as no payment on the bill.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, that would be grounds

10· ·for termination.· From the customer's point of view, if

11· ·I flip the switch and it doesn't come on, the

12· ·electricity doesn't come on, have I been terminated?

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.· But in this

14· ·particular circumstance, it was cited by Mrs. Seamons.

15· ·The customer at the time, who was a tenant of

16· ·Mrs. Seamons, requested the service in writing to be

17· ·turned off.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

19· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· They made that request of us.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

21· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· As a matter of fact that --

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Is that in the record?· Is

23· ·that written request in the record?

24· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I do not believe that it is,

25· ·ma'am.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We have a copy of it.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, it's the original but...

·4· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And that should be a letter from

·5· ·Jim and Valerie Hills, ma'am.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So what action did you

·7· ·take on receiving this letter?· Shall we put this in the

·8· ·record?· Let's do.· Let's make this Complainant's

·9· ·Exhibit 8.· Will you go run a couple copies of this?

10· · · · · · ·So what action did you take on receiving that

11· ·letter?

12· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Correct me if I'm wrong, ma'am,

13· ·but the rules state that at least three days of notice

14· ·have to be given for the turning on or turning off of a

15· ·service, and arrangements were made with Mr. and

16· ·Mrs. Hills to turn off the service after they had

17· ·vacated the property.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So were the tenants

19· ·your customers?· Did they have an account with you?

20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· At that time, yes, ma'am.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· They did at that time.

22· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am, because that was

23· ·prior to that rule change.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· And then when you

25· ·pulled the meter and discontinued their service, you
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·1· ·also began charging standby fees to the owner.· Is that

·2· ·correct?

·3· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I don't know how that timeline

·4· ·falls, ma'am.· I would have to go back and check that.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Your Honor, let the accounts

·6· ·that we admitted as exhibits show that the standby fees

·7· ·did take effect after that.

·8· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· That's 1115.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.

10· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Actually, ma'am, in answer to

11· ·your question, at the time that Mr. and Mrs. Hills

12· ·vacated the premises just so happened to be at the time

13· ·the standby fees were adopted by the board and made part

14· ·of the resolution -- or part of the tariff.· So that

15· ·following month the standby fees would have started to

16· ·be charged, yes, ma'am.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So if the tenant had

18· ·requested to permanently abandon service, what would

19· ·have been your response?

20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· No, ma'am.· That has to come

21· ·from a property owner per our rules.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Property owner.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· Any

25· ·cross-examination?
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Go ahead.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · ·CROSS-EXAMINATION

·4· ·BY MR. HOGELIN:

·5· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Shortreed, in your epilog, you stated that

·6· ·the standby fees started in October of 2013?

·7· · · · A.· ·Yes, sir.· That's when they were billed with

·8· ·the October 1st billing that went out, which was for the

·9· ·month of September.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So there has been a number of exhibits

11· ·submitted today with -- of account summaries provided by

12· ·your office and possibly by you to Ms. Seamons that

13· ·reflects the standby fees actually started in September.

14· ·Why does your testimony conflict with the account audit

15· ·histories that you provided to Ms. Seamons?

16· · · · A.· ·They don't conflict, sir.· Our billing date is

17· ·October 1st for the month, September, that was billed

18· ·for.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But you --

20· · · · A.· ·So they were billed October 1st for the

21· ·standby fees.

22· · · · Q.· ·But they were filled for September?

23· · · · A.· ·For September services, yes, sir.

24· · · · Q.· ·All right.· So just a clarification there.

25· ·You also testified that you were granted an exception as
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·1· ·a long-term resident to the owner.· Who granted that

·2· ·exception?

·3· · · · A.· ·The, the board did.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And you applied for that exception?

·5· · · · A.· ·There's no application process.· It's taken as

·6· ·a case-by-case basis on --

·7· · · · Q.· ·So when were you granted exception to that?

·8· · · · A.· ·At the same time that the other residents were

·9· ·granted exception under that rule.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you were specifically -- they

11· ·specifically gave you that exception?· Or was that just

12· ·something that just kind of, everybody kind of went

13· ·about their way and assumed that it was there?

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Is it in the meeting minutes?

15· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I think this is perhaps a little

16· ·bit more of a leading question than I would like.· Maybe

17· ·I can explain, and Mr. Shortreed can confirm.

18· · · · · · ·The exception to the tenant rules, it

19· ·essentially allows status quo to stay the same, that if

20· ·a tenant is there and stays there, that tenant's account

21· ·with the district for utility services stays as it was.

22· ·If that tenant were to move out and hypothetically move

23· ·back in or if a new tenant moves back in after these

24· ·rules are implemented, the landlord would then be

25· ·responsible for that utility account.
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·1· · · · · · ·Is that a correct statement of the rules,

·2· ·Mr. Shortreed?

·3· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.· What I am asking

·5· ·though, is who determines that?

·6· · · · A.· ·The district manager does.

·7· · · · Q.· ·So you determined for yourself to have the

·8· ·exception apply?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Object.· I think we made it clear,

10· ·there's no determination that's required.· Simply if no

11· ·change is made, no change is required to be made

12· ·according to rules of the tariff.

13· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· The rules -- his testimony said

14· ·that exceptions can be applied.

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So --

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· So what I am trying to find out

17· ·is what's -- how does that happen?· Who has the

18· ·discretion?· So I am asking Mr. Shortreed, "Who has

19· ·discretion?"· And I am doing it by applying his own

20· ·situation which he testified that he was granted this

21· ·exception.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, and I think it is a

23· ·relevant point.· I want to see the tariff provision that

24· ·sets out that exemption, and I would like to see how the

25· ·tariff says it works.· If it doesn't say how it works,
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·1· ·then we potentially have a problem.

·2· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So my point is,

·3· ·Mr. Shortreed, you testified that there were others.

·4· ·You included yourself, and so I am just trying to find

·5· ·out when and how that exception was applied and in what

·6· ·-- if it was done formally or informally.· So that's a

·7· ·compound question.· So let me rephrase that.

·8· · · · · · ·Was your exception applied formally or

·9· ·informally?

10· · · · A.· ·I don't understand what you mean by formally

11· ·or informally.

12· · · · Q.· ·So it's your testimony that you didn't apply

13· ·for the exception, correct?

14· · · · A.· ·We don't have an application process for the

15· ·exception, no.

16· · · · Q.· ·So was your exception presented to the board,

17· ·your specific exception?

18· · · · A.· ·No.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So the board never -- so no one ever

20· ·really approved your exception?

21· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I object to that leading question.

22· ·Perhaps Mr. Hogelin could simply ask Mr. Shortreed what

23· ·the process is.

24· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I can ask leading questions.

25· ·This is cross-examination.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, these rules don't apply.

·2· ·We are in an administrative proceeding, so let's -- this

·3· ·is what -- this is what I need to know.· These long-term

·4· ·customers, including yourself, including some tenants of

·5· ·SITLA, including at least, well --

·6· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, that's where I want to go.

·7· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Is there any other long-term

·8· ·tenants that have been granted this exception besides

·9· ·yourself or the -- associated with SITLA?

10· · · · A.· ·No.· Because the long-term tenants, as they

11· ·are defined, are those people.· There have been no other

12· ·long-term tenants in good standing with the district.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So here is the

14· ·question.

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And if I -- I'm sorry, ma'am.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Did the tenants have to come

17· ·to you and say, "I am a long-term tenant.· I want to

18· ·be -- I want to have the contract with you"?· Were they

19· ·required to do that?

20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· No, ma'am.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Was the property owner

22· ·required to come to you and say, "I have long-term

23· ·tenants.· I want your contract to be with my tenant not

24· ·with me"?

25· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Not required, no, ma'am.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Did -- so how did you

·2· ·decide who the long-term tenants were?

·3· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Because I know everybody in

·4· ·Ticaboo, ma'am, because there's a whopping 40 people who

·5· ·live there.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So you just did this on your

·7· ·own.· You went through your accounts and you said,

·8· ·"Okay.· This is one with a tenant, but this is a

·9· ·long-term tenant, so we're going to keep the account

10· ·with the tenant."

11· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· In accordance with the rule that

12· ·we set forth, I identified those customers who would

13· ·have fit the exception, yes.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

15· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I think the perhaps the point is

16· ·that the rule doesn't require any changes to the

17· ·situation as it existed when that rule was implemented.

18· ·If a tenant had an account at that time, that tenant

19· ·could continue.· And if a new tenant moved in after

20· ·that, the owner would then be responsible for the

21· ·account.

22· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And I don't -- I apologize,

23· ·ma'am.· I don't have a copy of my tariff in front of me,

24· ·and I must say that I don't know this particular section

25· ·verbatim.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· That's fine.

·2· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· But if memory serves me right, I

·3· ·believe there was a one-year stipulation in that

·4· ·exception that said, so long as the tenant was a

·5· ·customer, a long-term customer of one year or more in

·6· ·good standing with the district, then they would qualify

·7· ·for the exception rule.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· And that's what I want

·9· ·to see is the tariff language so --

10· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I apologize, I don't have that.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So I'll look for it.· But I'm

12· ·probably going to order you to submit posthearing briefs

13· ·that deal with some of these things.

14· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Certainly, and we're happy to do

15· ·that.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· All right.

17· ·Mr. Hogelin, go ahead.

18· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) I guess that was my next

19· ·question is because SITLA, their tenants came in about

20· ·2013, correct?

21· · · · A.· ·No.· There are some -- there are some people

22· ·in Ticaboo who have been tenants of SITLA for a number

23· ·of years, beyond 2013.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But you are including the resort in

25· ·these discussion, right?
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·1· · · · A.· ·No, I am not.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So the resort isn't powered by TUID?

·3· · · · A.· ·By TUID, powered by TUID?

·4· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.

·5· · · · A.· ·We do provide them with power, yes, sir.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And they are owned by SITLA, correct?

·7· · · · A.· ·No, they are not.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Who are they owned by?

·9· · · · A.· ·Themselves, sir.· They are their own

10· ·organization.· They own their own land.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· The resort does, the resort

12· ·owns the lands?

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

14· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

15· · · · A.· ·I will offer this, though.· They are a master

16· ·development lease holder of SITLA.

17· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) They are what?

18· · · · A.· ·A master development lease holder.

19· · · · · · ·MS. BROADBENT:· So they lease the other

20· ·property.

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Mary, please.

22· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So -- but they own the

23· ·property.

24· · · · A.· ·Not where they are the master development

25· ·lease holder, no.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Who does?

·2· · · · A.· ·SITLA does.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · A.· ·In that particular case.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So how much of the property do they

·6· ·own?

·7· · · · A.· ·SITLA?

·8· · · · Q.· ·No, the resort.

·9· · · · A.· ·They own all the commercial property and

10· ·approximately one, two, three -- four or five

11· ·residential properties.

12· · · · Q.· ·So but they are the master -- I'm sorry,

13· ·designer on --

14· · · · A.· ·Master development lease holder, sir, yes.

15· · · · Q.· ·For a property that's owned by SITLA, and are

16· ·there standby fees charged on that?

17· · · · A.· ·No, because SITLA abandoned all of the taps in

18· ·2014.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so prior to 2014 -- or I mean, so

20· ·-- but there was a -- why wouldn't there be a standby

21· ·fee then?

22· · · · A.· ·Our abandonment rule allows that if a customer

23· ·applies for abandonment of their taps, once that

24· ·application has been approved and processed, then they

25· ·are no longer responsible for paying standby fees.· And
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·1· ·that abandonment application in turn gets recorded on to

·2· ·the property records with Garfield County.

·3· · · · Q.· ·So the abandonment process, doesn't that

·4· ·include a fee?

·5· · · · A.· ·An application fee, yes, sir.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And how much is the application fee?

·7· · · · A.· ·$75.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And that's the only fee that's

·9· ·associated with abandonment?

10· · · · A.· ·Yes, sir.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And the -- but they would have to pay

12· ·other fees to get -- to be rehooked back up, correct?

13· · · · A.· ·To be hooked back up, yes, sir.· If they

14· ·abandon the taps, they essentially would have to pay

15· ·fees as if the taps didn't exist.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

17· · · · A.· ·To have those taps re -- reinitiated.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

19· · · · A.· ·Or removed from abandonment status, if you

20· ·will.

21· · · · Q.· ·And that abandonment status was pursuant to

22· ·the 2013 docket or tariff?

23· · · · A.· ·I believe that it was, but without having it

24· ·in front of me, I can't say for sure.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· But a property owner is not

·2· ·allowed to abandon if you consider that they have a

·3· ·delinquent account.

·4· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· That's correct.· Their account

·5· ·has to be in good standing.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And they have to continue to

·7· ·pay, at a minimum, standby fees until and unless you

·8· ·approve the abandonment application.

·9· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And there is no -- there is no

11· ·requirement in the tariff that would actually state that

12· ·you have to approve the abandonment.

13· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, the standby fees are two

14· ·years.

15· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.· Actually, there is

16· ·in the tariff.· It does stipulate in the tariff what the

17· ·requirements for abandonment are.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· For the customer.· But it

19· ·doesn't put any obligation on you to approve it.· As I

20· ·read the tariff, it looks like you could just simply

21· ·decline to approve an application for abandonment and

22· ·continue to require the customer to pay standby fees

23· ·into perpetuity.

24· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I don't think that's the

25· ·understanding of the district.· If it's written that
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·1· ·way, perhaps it needs revised.

·2· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· There's a fair bit in the

·3· ·tariff that I think could use a good hard edit.· Just

·4· ·throw that out.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Sure, and if there are things the

·6· ·commission would like to see changed, we will certainly

·7· ·consider that.· I mean, the district is working with

·8· ·very, very, very, very limited resources.· Most of this

·9· ·was frankly done by Mr. Shortreed on an unpaid basis for

10· ·years.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

12· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· So recognize the district is in a

13· ·tough situation all around.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Mr. Hogelin?

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes, and we did -- Mr. Shortreed

16· ·was correct.· Under Section 8.02 of the tariff, it does

17· ·provide the exceptions.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

19· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· For that.

20· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) It does state that it is at

21· ·the sole discretion of the district, as long as these

22· ·conditions apply, meaning that just because you qualify,

23· ·you still -- correct me if I am wrong, you still are the

24· ·one that makes that determination, correct?

25· · · · A.· ·Based upon the rules, yes.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Well, it says here, at your sole discretion.

·2· ·So if they qualify, you could still reject them,

·3· ·correct?

·4· · · · A.· ·I suppose that it could be perceived that way,

·5· ·yes.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·7· · · · A.· ·But as your Honor just pointed out, we seem to

·8· ·have some things we need to edit in our tariff.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Well, to me it seems pretty clear that

10· ·what this is stating, though, that the sole discretion

11· ·of the district under the following conditions.· And

12· ·this is something -- and I just want to be real clear.

13· ·This isn't something that the board agrees on.· This is

14· ·something that -- when it says "the district," is that

15· ·just you or is that the board?

16· · · · A.· ·By the authority given to me by the board, I

17· ·follow the rules that they approve.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And who makes up the board?

19· · · · A.· ·What do you mean, sir?

20· · · · Q.· ·Who makes up the board?· How is the board

21· ·created?

22· · · · A.· ·The board is created by appointment from the

23· ·Garfield County Commission.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And how many board members are there?

25· · · · A.· ·Five.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·And is there any training that the board goes

·2· ·through?

·3· · · · A.· ·Yes, there is required training in accordance

·4· ·with the Open and Public Meetings Act, as well as a

·5· ·special service district.

·6· · · · Q.· ·So in August of 2015, was there a -- was the

·7· ·board meeting that was -- that you have testified was

·8· ·also a public meeting, was that a training meeting for

·9· ·the board?

10· · · · A.· ·Yes, as a matter of fact it was.· The first

11· ·half of the meeting was set as an executive session

12· ·where LeGrand Bitter from the UASD came down and

13· ·provided the board with their annual training.

14· · · · Q.· ·So first, you trained them the first half of

15· ·the part, and then the second half of the part addressed

16· ·the tariff; is that correct?

17· · · · A.· ·I believe it is, if you are speaking to the

18· ·joint settlement stipulation.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So prior to that meeting, did the board

20· ·have any knowledge of the tariff?

21· · · · A.· ·Did the board members have any knowledge of

22· ·the tariff?· Absolutely.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· They just hadn't been trained.

24· · · · · · ·(Discussion off the record.)

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· The training that Mr. Shortreed and
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·1· ·I think Mr. Hogelin is referring to is simply the annual

·2· ·required training by the Utah Open -- required by the

·3· ·Utah Open and Public Meetings Act.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· We unfortunately don't have an

·6· ·expert in running an electric district coming to train

·7· ·the board members.· There are unfortunately a severe

·8· ·lack of those.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yeah.

10· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Mr. Shortreed, are you aware

11· ·of how many property owners reside full time in Ticaboo?

12· · · · A.· ·I can estimate pretty closely, yes.

13· · · · Q.· ·How many would that be?

14· · · · A.· ·Thirty to 40, depending upon how many stay

15· ·during the off season.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

17· · · · A.· ·That's full-time, year-round residents.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· 30 to 40?

19· · · · A.· ·Yes, sir.

20· · · · Q.· ·Now, is -- so from the briefings you had

21· ·stated that the office and your house are kind of the

22· ·same; is that correct?

23· · · · A.· ·That is correct.· The district doesn't have

24· ·the budget to be able to build an office.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so --
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I'd like to point out, this is well

·2· ·beyond the scope of what this hearing was intended to

·3· ·be, based on the commission's order.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Where are you headed,

·5· ·Mr. Hogelin?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I am just going off what he

·7· ·testified.· He was talking about -- he testified today

·8· ·at the hearing that he makes the tariff visible, so I

·9· ·just wanted to ask him a question about it.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Oh, okay.· Where is it?

11· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· He opened the door so...

12· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) So in your testimony you said

13· ·that you make the tariff, upon request.· But is the

14· ·tariff visible to people who come into that office,

15· ·slash, home?

16· · · · A.· ·The notice is visible.· The tariff is

17· ·available for inspection.· The tariff is actually kept

18· ·in a three ring binder with all revisions as they were

19· ·filed with the commission.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So no -- it's impossible for anybody to

21· ·look at the tariff without your presence; is that

22· ·correct?

23· · · · A.· ·No, not necessarily.· They can look at our

24· ·tariff online at the Public Service Commission's

25· ·website.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Well, but that's electronically.· I'm talking

·2· ·about the one that's located at the office.

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Just tell me.· If I come knock

·4· ·on your door and say, "I want to see the tariff," what

·5· ·happens next?

·6· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· We schedule an appointment for

·7· ·you to come in and see the tariff.

·8· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·9· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) Have you ever refused to make

10· ·the tariff available to Ms. Seamons or anyone acting on

11· ·Ms. Seamons' behalf?

12· · · · A.· ·No.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Have you ever refused -- have you ever

14· ·-- on February 18th, do you recall Ms. Seamons'

15· ·daughter, Mary Broadbent, requesting the availability of

16· ·the tariff at a public meeting?

17· · · · A.· ·No.· I don't recall it, but that doesn't mean

18· ·it didn't happen.· I would have to go back and check the

19· ·meeting minutes.

20· · · · Q.· ·So if you don't recall that, I mean, do you

21· ·recall rejecting her request to make an appointment to

22· ·come and view the tariff?

23· · · · A.· ·No.· I don't recall that because I wouldn't

24· ·reject a request for an appointment.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you don't recall that.· You -- okay.
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·1· ·I think we have already -- I think the commission

·2· ·already discussed the date that the notices were sent

·3· ·out.

·4· · · · · · ·We don't -- do we have a date on when the

·5· ·notices were sent out in the March -- let's see, in

·6· ·April for the April meeting of 2013, when they were

·7· ·mailed?

·8· · · · A.· ·We don't -- yeah.· We don't have -- I'm sorry.

·9· ·We don't have a specific date.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· You had testified that there was a

11· ·meeting in 2013 where you addressed the standby fees, a

12· ·public meeting.· Do you recall that?

13· · · · A.· ·Yes.

14· · · · Q.· ·And then you said that Ms. Seamons did not

15· ·provide any comments.· Do you know if Ms. Seamons was at

16· ·that meeting?

17· · · · A.· ·I would have to go back and double-check the

18· ·records.· But to the best of my recollection, she was

19· ·not present.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

21· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I'd like to make a clarification.

22· ·I think Mr. Shortreed's testimony was as to a meeting in

23· ·Docket 13-2508-T01, which, as discussed previously, was

24· ·the docket where the district implemented different

25· ·electric service rate schedules.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I was just trying to -- he made

·2· ·the statement that she didn't make any statements.  I

·3· ·was just trying to see if he recollect that she was even

·4· ·there.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·6· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Hogelin) You had testified that you

·7· ·recall doing the mailings yourself.

·8· · · · A.· ·That is correct.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Do you recall specifically doing a mailing to

10· ·Ms. Seamons?

11· · · · A.· ·Yes, to all customers.

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And that you recall doing that for each

13· ·year?

14· · · · A.· ·Yes.

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.· That's all my questions.

16· ·Thank you.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So it's after noon, and

18· ·I'd like to try to wrap up, and we can -- I'll certainly

19· ·give you time to do closing argument if you want to.

20· ·But since, I think, we are going to be some posthearing

21· ·briefing, we can maybe do closing argument as part of

22· ·that.· But I'll leave it to counsel as to what you would

23· ·prefer.

24· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I am happy to leave that into a

25· ·posthearing brief.· I think we have some issues that
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·1· ·need, need more discussion.· I do have a couple more

·2· ·redirect questions.

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Some redirect.· Go ahead.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· But I expect to be very short.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Go ahead.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION

·7· ·BY MR. LONG:

·8· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Shortreed, can you describe the process

·9· ·for sending utility bills every month.· Just describe

10· ·the process that you go through in order to send out

11· ·utility bills.

12· · · · A.· ·Meter readings are entered into a utility

13· ·billing system that we have, and then those readings are

14· ·printed out onto either three-by-five postcards that go

15· ·out to the customers, or in some cases we have several

16· ·customers who receive what's called group billing, which

17· ·is an eight and a half by 11 sheets of paper.

18· · · · · · ·One page summarizes all of the accounts that

19· ·are being billed in the group billing, in the group, and

20· ·then following pages that itemize and individualize each

21· ·one of those accounts.

22· · · · Q.· ·So your testimony is that you send a bill out

23· ·every month for every account?

24· · · · A.· ·That is correct.

25· · · · Q.· ·In the various audit history reports
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·1· ·introduced by Ms. Seamons; you know, for example, I am

·2· ·looking at the one that's marked Exhibit 7.· There is a

·3· ·line item on some dates that says "notice printed for,"

·4· ·and then a certain amount and a due on date.· Can you

·5· ·describe what that, what that entry on the audit history

·6· ·means?

·7· · · · A.· ·That's a system-generated notice in the

·8· ·billing software that notifies the customer on a

·9· ·separate piece of paper, which is eight and a half by

10· ·11, that their account is past due and what the amount

11· ·past due is.

12· · · · · · ·In some applicable circumstances, it will also

13· ·have a termination notice of typically 20 or 21 days,

14· ·notifying the customer, if they don't pay the bill

15· ·within that time, then their service will be turned off.

16· · · · Q.· ·So to summarize, if we look at the audit

17· ·history for a given account, the customer receives a

18· ·bill for each monthly -- each set of monthly charges,

19· ·and the notice lines are simply an extraordinary notice

20· ·saying the account is past due or has some other issue?

21· · · · A.· ·Yes.· There will be a line on the bill that

22· ·says the account is past due.

23· · · · Q.· ·But the sending of a regular monthly bill

24· ·doesn't generate an entry on the audit history?

25· · · · A.· ·No.· That is the audit history.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Have -- Mr. Hogelin asked you some questions

·2· ·about, about the approval of longtime tenants to keep a

·3· ·tenant's utility account.· In your previous testimony

·4· ·you mentioned that you were one of those tenants.

·5· ·Mr. Hogelin implied from reading the tariff that the

·6· ·district had sole discretion in determining that.

·7· · · · · · ·I guess, is any particular action required by

·8· ·the district?· If we have a long-term tenant, and

·9· ·nothing is changed, that tenant is still present, does

10· ·the district take any action?· Or does the district need

11· ·to take any action to keep that -- the tenant's account?

12· · · · A.· ·No.· It just stays current.

13· · · · Q.· ·We also talked about the abandonment

14· ·application, and as I understand it, when a person

15· ·abandons their utility taps, it essentially returns the

16· ·property to an undeveloped state as far as the district

17· ·is concerned and relieves the district of any obligation

18· ·to provide utility service.· Is that -- is that a fair

19· ·description?

20· · · · A.· ·Yes.

21· · · · Q.· ·And thereby relieving the district of any

22· ·costs that it would incur to, say, for example, make

23· ·sure the district's generators have sufficient capacity

24· ·to serve those properties?

25· · · · A.· ·That is correct.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·And for the abandonment application,

·2· ·Mr. Hogelin asked some questions about the process.· Has

·3· ·the district ever denied an abandonment application for

·4· ·a property owner that has met the requirements set forth

·5· ·in the tariff?

·6· · · · A.· ·No.

·7· · · · Q.· ·And I guess one final question as to the

·8· ·billing process.· Has the billing process you described

·9· ·been the same since, say, January of 2013?

10· · · · A.· ·Yes.

11· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I have no further questions.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· I am sorry to drag this

13· ·out further, but you have mentioned some things that

14· ·reminded me of some questions.· On the -- we have the

15· ·letter from the Hills who were the tenants requesting

16· ·discontinuance of service.· And then we have testimony

17· ·from Mrs. Seamons that they brought the account current

18· ·sometime later in order to reestablish service, but it

19· ·was once again discontinued by the district and on the

20· ·district's decision.

21· · · · · · ·Do you -- do you have any testimony to help me

22· ·understand what happened there?

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· When the Hills disconnected the

24· ·service, ma'am, the property continued to accrue standby

25· ·fees.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·2· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· At the time that they wanted to

·3· ·reinstate service.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Thus turn it back on.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Fees had accrued that had not

·8· ·been paid.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

10· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And then of course, there were

11· ·turn-on, turn-off fees that were associated with that as

12· ·well.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

14· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· In that particular circumstance,

15· ·the tenants at the time actually paid the unpaid fees.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

17· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Directly to the district, and

18· ·then service was reinstated obviously, at the customer's

19· ·request, which is the property owner's request.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

21· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Under a specific rate schedule.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Of which there was an

24· ·application or an e-mail or both that was done for that.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.
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·1· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And then the -- that particular

·2· ·tenant then vacated the property, the one that we had

·3· ·turned it on for, ma'am.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· After how long?

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Oh, I think they were there a

·6· ·year, ma'am.· I think it was about a year.· They vacated

·7· ·the property.· During an inspection and audit of our

·8· ·meters in February of this year, we sent out a number of

·9· ·notices to customers advising them of our findings in

10· ·the inspection and during the audit, things such as

11· ·meters that were previously turned on were now turned

12· ·off.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right, okay.

14· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And other elementary

15· ·inspections, like accessibility to the meter to be able

16· ·to read it or things like that.· We then notified the

17· ·customers of our findings, and in cases where tampering

18· ·was witnessed -- and we did take photographs and

19· ·provided those photographs to the customers in the

20· ·inspection reports -- we notified the customer that this

21· ·was a warning.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· We were not going to impose a

24· ·tampering fee right away.· We just wanted to make sure

25· ·that they were aware that we found this problem.· If
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·1· ·they need their service turned back on, they need to

·2· ·notify the district and schedule that turn-on service at

·3· ·the meter.

·4· · · · · · ·Shortly following, sometime in April, I

·5· ·believe it was, a meter started to show usage that was

·6· ·previously recorded as having been turned off.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Are we talking all about

·8· ·water?

·9· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

10· · · · · · ·MS. BROADBENT:· Yes.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Never mind.· All right.

12· ·Thanks.

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, ma'am.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· So any recross,

15· ·Mr. Hogelin?

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Nothing relevant.

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So again, I apologize

18· ·to everyone for the error in the docket number.· The

19· ·docket number that I need some help with is the 2013-T02

20· ·docket.· And what I need there is information as to when

21· ·the public meeting was held in which the standby fees

22· ·were explained and introduced to customers.

23· · · · · · ·I also need information about how that meeting

24· ·was noticed to customers.· It would be very helpful to

25· ·me to see the monthly bills that were sent to
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·1· ·Ms. Seamons.· I don't know if either party has that or

·2· ·has the ability to --

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· We have -- we have some monthly

·4· ·bills that were sent.

·5· · · · · · ·MS. BROADBENT:· Right now?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, we'll provide it.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. BROADBENT:· Yes, we have current ones.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Shhh.

·9· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· I am also interested as

10· ·to the 15-T01 docket that was subject to settlement, I

11· ·am interested in the parties clarifying whether a

12· ·per-day tampering charge was introduced in that docket.

13· ·And I am interested in better understanding whether a

14· ·public meeting was noticed and held to present and

15· ·explain to customers a per-day tampering charge.

16· · · · · · ·The commission does not regulate TUID's

17· ·provision of water, so to the extent that the testimony

18· ·today has dealt with standby fees as to water service or

19· ·discontinuation of water service, the order will not go,

20· ·go into that.

21· · · · · · ·And then of course, the parties are welcome to

22· ·provide closing argument as to the testimony and the

23· ·evidence that's been provided today.· How long do you

24· ·want to file these briefs?

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I would suggest 30 days.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Filed simultaneously?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· That's fine.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· That's fine.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Maybe as a point of

·6· ·clarification --

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Are you planning on issuing an

·9· ·order setting out these questions that you would like to

10· ·see additional information on?

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Would that be helpful?

12· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Yes, I think it would be.

13· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Very much.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· So I'll do that

15· ·today.

16· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And while I'm --

17· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· And have I missed anything?

18· ·Is there anything else that you feel like needs to be

19· ·addressed or that you want to address?

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, I would like to address

21· ·one thing that's been brought up by TUID.· It's my

22· ·understanding that what's been represented to the

23· ·commission is that they had an August 27th meeting which

24· ·supposedly fit the requirement of the -- of the

25· ·mandated --
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· The stipulation and the order

·2· ·approving the stipulation.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· -- for the board meeting that

·4· ·was supposed to happen between September 10th and

·5· ·October 10th.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I just want to make a statement

·8· ·regarding that, because one -- in the response from the

·9· ·commission, you know, it's been made very clear that,

10· ·based upon that meeting, that sets a deadline, a 30 day

11· ·deadline for a rehearing with regards to any issues

12· ·concerning the tariff.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

14· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· And I, I don't quite understand

15· ·the argument that August 27th meeting could replace the

16· ·other meeting, just by e-mails being made between

17· ·individuals without there being a due process of that 30

18· ·days for any and all --

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Right.

20· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· -- people of interest.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So I'll just tell you some of

22· ·the things that I would anticipate discussing with the

23· ·commission, is whether the board meeting that was held

24· ·prior to the date the commission approved the

25· ·stipulation is, is of concern to them or whether they
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·1· ·feel like that board meeting is okay.· And also whether

·2· ·they consider that there needed to be a public meeting

·3· ·noticed at some point.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Well, my concern goes farther

·5· ·than that.

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· Go ahead.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Because if the commission says,

·8· ·"Okay.· The August 27th fulfilled the requirement that

·9· ·was supposed to be in those."

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

11· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· How in the world are -- was

12· ·Ms. Seamons supposed to know that that then started the

13· ·30 day time limit to a request for rehearing?

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So I'm not sure that we

15· ·actually have anything on that issue in the record.· The

16· ·30 day -- the 30 day notice -- are you talking about the

17· ·30 day request for rehearing before the commission?

18· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· In the December 29th, 2015,

19· ·memorandum to the original complaint that had been

20· ·filed --

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Uh-huh.

22· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· -- from the division to the

23· ·commission, it was brought up that the order --

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· She didn't intervene, right?

25· ·We're talking about --
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· For review of rehearing for 30

·2· ·days after the issuance, but none was requested by any

·3· ·party.· In other words, what was brought to light or

·4· ·what was argued is that after September 10th, there was

·5· ·30 days to which the request should have or could have

·6· ·been made with regards to consultation of the tariff.

·7· ·And because that wasn't done, you know, Ms. Seamons'

·8· ·formal complaint was moot.

·9· · · · · · ·And so I am just saying that that's another

10· ·issue.· Based off the testimony -- and I appreciate that

11· ·it may not be an issue that's been brought up or has

12· ·been contemplated by the order.· But I don't think it's

13· ·something that can be neglected.

14· · · · · · ·If it is determined that the timeline was

15· ·changed, then I think the commission does need to take

16· ·into consideration, how would that 30 day objection be,

17· ·you know, administered if, you know, the parties of

18· ·interest didn't realize that the August 27th meeting was

19· ·the one --

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I see.

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Because not everybody, not all

22· ·the property owners were involved, from my

23· ·understanding, in these e-mails that were saying that

24· ·this August 27th meeting was okay.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· I understand.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I -- perhaps you can clarify for

·2· ·me.· I'm not sure I understand.· Is it an issue that

·3· ·Ms. Seamons would have requested review or rehearing of

·4· ·the commission's September 10th order had some date been

·5· ·different?

·6· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, I -- the question is, if

·7· ·a customer had read that order and had interpreted it as

·8· ·requiring a meeting to be held between September 30th

·9· ·and October 30th; or is that right?

10· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· 10th.

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· September 10th and October

12· ·10th and saw no meeting scheduled or held there, would

13· ·that customer reasonably have assumed that there was no

14· ·need to request rehearing or reconsideration because the

15· ·stipulation had not been complied with, and the order

16· ·had not been complied with?

17· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Thank you.· You put it very

18· ·succinctly.

19· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· I do have one evidentiary point.

20· ·Everyone has this very large binder of exhibits from the

21· ·district.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yes.

23· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Can that be admitted into evidence?

24· ·I believe Mr. Shortreed spoke to each of those in his

25· ·prepared statement.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Any objection, Mr. Hogelin?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Can I use that post briefing?

·3· ·And the reason being is, Mr. Shortreed did use them, but

·4· ·he did go through them rather quickly.· It was hard to

·5· ·keep up and review the exhibits as he was going through

·6· ·them.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· So let's do this in a

·8· ·couple of stages then.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Also, I think there are a couple

10· ·that are duplicative so --

11· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I'm sure there are.· So let me

12· ·give you a very short deadline to give me any objection.

13· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.· Fair enough.

14· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Just like a couple of days.

15· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Sure.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay?

17· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yes.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· So I don't imagine there will

19· ·be one.· I haven't looked at every one, but it looks to

20· ·me like they are pretty much --

21· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I would agree.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· -- records that would come in.

23· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· I just want to do due diligence.

24· ·That's all.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Yes.· That's fine.· So, and
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·1· ·can you get back to me by Friday end of business with

·2· ·any objection to any exhibit?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Yep.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Okay.· All right.· And then 30

·5· ·days from now for final briefing, including oral

·6· ·argument and addressing of these questions related to

·7· ·the 13-T02 docket as well as the 15-T01 docket.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Is the commission going to make

·9· ·available the order today?

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Well, I will write the order

11· ·today.

12· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· But it has to go to the

14· ·commissioners, and they have to approve it.· So that

15· ·might happen today or it might not.

16· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Okay.

17· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· And I believe you said oral

18· ·argument.· I think you meant closing argument.

19· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· I'm sorry, yes, closing

20· ·argument.

21· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Just making sure we're clear.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· Closing argument, and if you

23· ·can give me documentary evidence as to the notices that

24· ·went out to the consumers, you are welcome to do that.

25· · · · · · ·MR. LONG:· Noted.
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·1· · · · · · ·JUDGE JONSSON:· All right.· With that I

·2· ·believe we can close this hearing.· Thank you all very

·3· ·much.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. HOGELIN:· Thank you.

·5

·6· · · · · · ·(The hearing adjourned at 12:47 p.m.)
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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·C E R T I F I C A T E

·2· ·STATE OF UTAH· · · ·)

·3· ·COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

·4· · · · THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings

·5· ·were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified

·6· ·Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary

·7· ·Public in and for the State of Utah.

·8· · · · That the proceedings were reported by me in

·9· ·Stenotype, and thereafter transcribed by computer under

10· ·my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct

11· ·transcription is set forth in the foregoing pages,

12· ·numbered 3 through 173 inclusive.

13· · · · I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise

14· ·associated with any of the parties to said cause of

15· ·action, and that I am not interested in the event

16· ·thereof.

17· · · · WITNESS MY HAND and official seal at Salt Lake

18· ·City, Utah, this 8th day of August, 2016.

19

20
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·Teri Hansen Cronenwett, CRR, RMR
21· · · · · · · · · · · ·License No. 91-109812-7801

22· ·My commission expires:
· · ·January 19, 2019
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 1   March 17, 2016                               9:00 a.m.

 2                     P R O C E E D I N G S

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  And for the record, today is

 4   Wednesday, July 27th 2016.  It's nine o'clock in the

 5   morning.  This is the date and time set for the hearing

 6   in the matter of Marian L. Seamons.  She has filed a

 7   formal complaint against Ticaboo Utility Improvement

 8   District.

 9             This is Docket No. 15-2508-01.  Let's go ahead

10   and put appearances on the record.  For Ms. Seamons?

11             MR. HOGELIN:  Jon Hogelin, and Ms. Seamons is

12   present.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  And for Ticaboo?

14             MR. LONG:  Adam Long and Chip Shortreed, the

15   district manager, is also present.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Very good.

17             MR. HOGELIN:  I don't think my mic was on

18   before.  Do you want me to repeat?

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  I think -- have you got

20   everything so far?

21             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  And I'll try

23   again.  Is there anyone on the line this morning?

24   Anyone on the phone this morning?

25             (Silence.)
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  I had a notice that Tom Hill

 2   was going to be calling in.  If he is not going to do

 3   that, I'm going to hang up the phone.

 4             MR. LONG:  If we could maybe give him a few

 5   minutes.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Okay.

 7             MS. BROADBENT:  Can we turn the speaker up so

 8   she can hear?

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  I think we're as loud as we

10   can go.

11             MS. BROADBENT:  Okay.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  There is one item I wanted to

13   discuss with counsel.  This is considered a formal

14   complaint because it's gone through the informal process

15   that the division of public utilities uses to try to

16   help parties resolve complaints.  However, that does not

17   necessarily mean that this hearing needs to be conducted

18   as a formal adjudication under UAPA.

19             So basically, if we conduct this as a formal

20   adjudication and the parties determine subsequently to

21   take the matter to court, it goes to the Court of

22   Appeals, and it's reviewed for commission error or abuse

23   of discretion.  If we convert this to an informal

24   proceeding and the parties take it to court, it goes to

25   District Court as a de novo trial.
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 1             My inclination is to convert it to informal.

 2   I think there are some issues that the commission can't

 3   necessarily address that are -- that would be of

 4   importance to the parties and potentially of interest to

 5   the court.  And I think that it would be more useful to

 6   the parties to be able to take those issues on the

 7   merits to district court, rather than having to simply

 8   argue whether or not the commission correctly identified

 9   the boundaries of its jurisdiction.

10             Any objection to my converting this to an

11   informal proceeding?

12             MR. HOGELIN:  May I discuss with my client

13   real quick?

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

15             MR. LONG:  Same request.

16             (Discussion off the record.)

17             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection from complainant.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.

19             MR. LONG:  The district prefers to keep this

20   as a formal, a formal adjudication.  We have been

21   through the entire formal complaint process, and it

22   seems to us to derail it now would be not beneficial.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Why do you consider it to be a

24   derailing?  It doesn't change anything that happens

25   here.  It simply changes your position if you go to
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 1   court.

 2             MR. LONG:  And I recognize that.  I think we

 3   would nonetheless prefer to keep it as a formal

 4   adjudication here.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I'll take the objection

 6   then as part of the record.  It is the commission's

 7   determination whether to convert it.  The standard of

 8   the -- under the statute is whether converting is in the

 9   public interest and whether it poses a hardship or an

10   unfair burden on any party.

11             Do you want to address those standards,

12   Mr. Long?

13             MR. LONG:  I think we'll leave it up to the

14   commission's discretion.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.

16             MR. LONG:  Our objection is noted and --

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  All right then.

18   Are there any other housekeeping items that the parties

19   want to address before we go to opening statements?

20             MR. HOGELIN:  No.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  It doesn't appear that there

22   is.  All right then.  Ms. Seamons is the complainant, so

23   we'll go to opening statement from her.

24             MR. HOGELIN:  Would you prefer for me just to

25   stay here or --
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's -- yeah, do because

 2   there's no microphone up here.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  I noticed that.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.

 5             MR. HOGELIN:  Obviously, the commission has

 6   made a ruling on part of the issues that were presented.

 7   Although we don't agree with the commission, we respect

 8   the commission's ruling.  And we also recognize that the

 9   commission has set aside today to address a couple

10   issues which the commission has provided very

11   succinctly.

12             Essentially, Ms. Seamons is a resident -- or

13   well, she doesn't reside in Ticaboo, but she owns

14   property in Ticaboo.  She had this property prior to the

15   formation of the district.  When I say district, I am

16   referring to TUID.  And with the creation of TUID, there

17   has been obviously some changes with regards to power

18   and water and what we would normally refer to as

19   essential utilities.

20             It has been very concerning, the limitations

21   and the financial burden that's been assessed to

22   Ms. Seamons in regards to the creation of the district.

23   But what's more troubling is the conduct of the district

24   in creating its tariff and enforcing its tariff or lack

25   thereof.
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 1             Ms. Seamons filed the complaint based off the

 2   premise that she felt there was injustice being carried

 3   on by the district, in particular, with how her property

 4   is being liened up with certain financial burdens that

 5   seem completely unfair and outside the scope of the

 6   tariff.

 7             In regards to what the commission has set

 8   provided to be addressed today, we plan to show that

 9   it's our understanding that TUID has not complied with

10   the commission regulations with regards to being in

11   compliance with regards to setting forth its own tariff.

12             We also would like to show the tariff (sic)

13   today that the district doesn't follow its own tariff

14   and that -- and in particularly with certain fees and

15   with the implementation of standby fees, that the

16   standby fees were not implemented in accordance with

17   either a resolution or the tariff set forth by the

18   district and more particular the district manager, and

19   that they have continuously charged Ms. Seamons

20   inappropriately and unjustly.

21             And when Ms. Seamons has tried to resolve the

22   issue, that there has been absolutely zero cooperation

23   from the district in trying to find a resolve to this,

24   which was a product of us bringing this before the

25   commission.  It shouldn't have to be that way.
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 1             Also, there seems to be some unfairness with

 2   regards to the enforcement of the tariff with regards to

 3   how tenants are treated.  Obviously, not all the

 4   implementation of the tariff is being enforced with all

 5   tenants or owners with regards to said tenants having

 6   contracts with TUID.

 7             And I think a more dire issue is the amount of

 8   notice and information that's being provided by the

 9   district that its tariff demands and that those

10   commission rules demand.  And we also plan to show today

11   the violation of Ms. Seamons' due process with regards

12   to utilities and more specifically with taps.

13             I am not sure what TUID's incentive is with

14   regards to just running roughshod around its own tariffs

15   and around the commission's rules.  Believe me, Ms.

16   Seamons would rather not be here today.  She would

17   rather not have had to file a complaint.

18             She feels akin to Ticaboo, having the --

19   coming from a long line of mining family and having, you

20   know, that property down there.  It's a sentimental

21   issue for them, not a financial or economical issue.

22   However, the district is making it solely a financial

23   and economical issue, and it's making it impossible for

24   Ms. Seamons to continue to have that property.

25             And the bottom line is, not only is it making
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 1   it impossible for her to have the property; it's making

 2   it impossible for her and others to sell their property.

 3             So we really don't know what the end game is

 4   here for the district where it just doesn't seem like

 5   the feasibility of how the -- it structures its policies

 6   and tariffs with regards to utilities, how it's going to

 7   continue, given the fact that it doesn't -- it's not

 8   affordable, especially with Ms. Seamons, who is a

 9   retired lady and doesn't have the income to do all these

10   things.

11             Now, I know that's not before the commission

12   today, but we just felt that it was important to let the

13   commission know that, that this is, again, a no-win

14   situation for Ms. Seamons and likely other property

15   owners that are in Ticaboo.  And so we appreciate the

16   commission allowing us to be here today to raise these

17   concerns, to address these concerns, to make it public.

18             Again, we feel strongly that Ms. Seamons is

19   not the only one that has these concerns but has the

20   wherewithal to try to stand up to the district and to

21   bring forth these issues to find resolve and hopefully

22   resolve for all property owners down in Ticaboo.  With

23   that, does the commission have any questions?

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  I don't think I have any

25   questions.  I'll just make a couple of points on the
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 1   record.  First of all, we don't have any mechanism to

 2   entertain a sort of class action complaint.  We have

 3   received some additional complaints against TUID that

 4   raise similar issues.  And we will have to deal with

 5   those one on one.

 6             Whatever order is issued here, if it grants

 7   relief to Ms. Seamons, that might be used as evidence by

 8   subsequent complainants, but likely would not extend to

 9   provide relief to them as well.

10             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Mr. Long,

12   your opening.

13             MR. LONG:  Thank you.  In Mr. Hogelin's

14   opening statement he seems to have taken a few steps

15   backwards.  I'd like to point out that the commission's

16   order of July 6, 2016, in this docket disposes of the

17   standby fee issue in its entirety.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's not correct.  It says

19   that standby fees are legal generally.  It does not say

20   that the current standby fees may be imposed or

21   collected against Ms. Seamons.  The question is whether

22   it has properly noticed and held the meetings that it

23   had to notice and hold in order to assess standby fees.

24             If it has not done that, then its tariffs are

25   not necessarily valid, and if it does not have valid
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 1   tariffs, it cannot enforce them.

 2             MR. LONG:  True.  Without being argumentative,

 3   can I perhaps clarify our understanding?

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Please.

 5             MR. LONG:  Reading from the order, the

 6   commission says, "We dismissed Ms. Seamons' allegations

 7   as to the legality in general of standby fees and as to

 8   legality of the specific rates and policies set forth in

 9   TUID's tariff."

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.

11             MR. LONG:  And goes on to list seven questions

12   which are the topic of this hearing day.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.

14             MR. LONG:  And Ticaboo is prepared to address

15   those seven questions.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Excellent.  So the fact that

17   the specific rates and fees are legal does not

18   necessarily mean that they are also currently

19   enforceable.  That's the distinction.

20             MR. LONG:  Okay.  And I would like to point

21   out that the dockets referenced in these questions are

22   not the docket in which standby fees were implemented.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand that, but there

24   is a question on point No. 3 as to whether, in the 2013

25   docket, where standby fees were first imposed, if there
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 1   was notice and a public meeting.  So we're going to be

 2   looking at both those dockets today.  Okay.  Go ahead

 3   with your opening.

 4             MR. LONG:  The issue of standby fees, which

 5   again the district doesn't feel needs any substantive

 6   justification, is simply a matter of fairly allocating

 7   costs to those property owners that bear the ben -- you

 8   know, that receive the benefits of the service provided

 9   by the district.

10             You know, whether a house is occupied and

11   receiving utility service so actually having electricity

12   and water flowing to it, or the house is vacant or even

13   if it's an undeveloped lot for which the district is

14   ready to provide service essentially on a moment's

15   notice, the district incurs costs.

16             And those are simple -- simple realities of a

17   utility, you know, to maintain power lines in this case

18   or to maintain generator, simply to keep the

19   infrastructure in place so service can be provided upon

20   request.  And standby fees simply fairly allocate those

21   costs to those who receive the benefits of it.

22             As I noted previously, the district is

23   prepared to address the commission's questions as set

24   forth in the July 16th order, and to the extent that

25   that discussion today goes beyond those questions, I
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 1   would ask that we have the opportunity to file

 2   post-hearing briefs or some other sort of -- other sort

 3   of response after the hearing today.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's certainly an option.

 5             MR. LONG:  Thank you.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We potentially

 7   have an issue with burden of proof in this case.  As to

 8   the commission's specific questions that are set forth,

 9   I am not sure, I don't think, that Ms. Seamons has the

10   burden to demonstrate whether TUID did or did not hold a

11   board meeting within 30 days of the commission's

12   September 10th, 2015, order approving the stipulation.

13   I believe that that really is Ticaboo's burden.

14             Do the parties disagree?

15             MR. HOGELIN:  We don't disagree.  However, we

16   would be -- if the commission will allow, we would like

17   to have on record Ms. Seamons' knowledge of those.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  Why don't we go

19   ahead and go with that.

20             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Would you like to have her

22   sworn then?

23             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Will you go ahead

25   and take care of that.
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 1             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.  Ma'am, would you

 2   raise your right hand and be sworn?

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Actually, what I would like to

 4   request is that, this is her daughter, Mary Broadbent,

 5   who has power of attorney and is the executor of

 6   Ms. Seamons.  And I would request that she be sworn in

 7   to testify in Ms. Seamons' behalf.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  Why don't you

 9   both raise your hands.  Go ahead.

10              MARY BROADBENT (Witness Daughter),

11             and MARIAN SEAMONS (Witness Mother),

12   called as witnesses at the instance of the complainant,

13   having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified

14   as follows:

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you, and we'd also ask for

16   a little patience.  Ms. Seamons has some hearing --

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand and that's fine.

18             MR. HOGELIN:  It may take a second to get

19   questions across.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  We will accommodate her as

21   best we can.

22                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

23   BY MR. HOGELIN:

24        Q.   Mary, I'm going to direct these questions to

25   you.  Were you or was your mother aware of the joint
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 1   settlement stipulation of Docket 15-2508-T01?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  I am not.  And neither

 3   one of us at that time.

 4        Q.   At what time?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter)  In September.  In October

 6   we enacted upon trying to go to meetings.  On October

 7   5th we called to --

 8        Q.   Okay.  So you didn't -- you weren't aware of a

 9   meeting in September --

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, no.

11        Q.   -- or October, okay.

12        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Nothing prior.

13        Q.   And then did -- were you aware of any board

14   meeting that was held by TUID between the dates of

15   September 30th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?

16        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.

17        Q.   Did you reach out to TUID to try to --

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just a minute, Mr. Hogelin.

19   Did you mean September 10th?  I believe you said

20   September 30th.

21             MR. HOGELIN:  You are right.  I did.  I was

22   looking at the 30 days.  I apologize.

23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)   So September 10th of 2015

24   and October 10, 2015, were you aware of any board

25   meeting that was held?
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 1        A.   (Witness Daughter)  An October 5th board

 2   meeting was to be held.  I called and talked to

 3   Mr. Shortreed.  Well, my husband called, and we had it

 4   on voice speaker.  And it was canceled, he told us.

 5        Q.   Okay.  So there was no meeting that you are

 6   aware of that was held by the board for TUID between

 7   September 10th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Right, no --

 9        Q.   Okay.

10        A.   -- board meeting.

11        Q.   With regards to the -- are you aware of any

12   revised tariff that was filed with the commission on

13   Docket No. 15-2508-T01 within 15 days after October

14   10th, 2015?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.

16        Q.   Okay.  Did you make any -- did you take any

17   action to try to ascertain whether or not that had

18   happened?

19        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Yes.  I spoke with the

20   commission office, Erika Tedder and another one.  I am

21   trying to think of her name, and asked if there was a

22   tariff filing for TUID, and they said that there was

23   not.

24        Q.   Okay.  Now, regarding the tariff also known as

25   Docket No. 15-2508-T01, were you given any notice of any
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 1   public meetings regarding that tariff?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter)  I was not involved in that

 3   time, so my mother would have to then respond to that.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.

 5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Do you know anything of the

 6   2013 meeting to the tariff filing or -- in 2013?

 7             WITNESS MOTHER:  Which, which?

 8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Any month, for meetings

 9   held in 2013.  Were you alerted of meetings?

10             MR. HOGELIN:  For the tariff.

11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No, you were not living

12   there.  But were you aware of any meetings that were to

13   be held --

14             THE WITNESS:  No.

15             WITNESS DAUGHTER: -- in 2013?

16             WITNESS MOTHER:  No, I was not.

17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Were you informed of

18   meetings?

19             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.

20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given any notice

21   regarding any public meetings concerning Docket

22   15-2508-T01?

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Now, were we given -- say

24   that one more time.  I'm sorry.

25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given notice of any
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 1   public meetings that were to be held on court docket in

 2   2015, for the tariff in 2015?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

 4        Q.   How did you find out about the 2015 docket

 5   regarding the tariff?

 6        A.   (Witness Daughter) At September of 2015,

 7   started to look at ways that they were posting

 8   information towards meetings.  Searched the Internet,

 9   found TSSD, and then started to find out county

10   newspaper, located Garfield County, and was informed of

11   meetings under Garfield County newspaper.

12             MR. HOGELIN:  And I believe that is our -- my

13   client's responses to the first three questions.  If you

14   want to hold there or go forward.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's keep going.

16             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  So I am going to ask

17   Ms. Broadbent to testify on behalf of her mother, even

18   though her mother is the one that has the actual

19   knowledge.

20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Broadbent, when did --

21   when did -- when was your mother first notified that she

22   was going to be charged standby fees?

23             MR. LONG:  I'd like to note an objection.  I'd

24   like to note an objection.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.
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 1             MR. LONG:  I understand we are not bound by

 2   the rules of evidence here, but on a hearsay basis, I --

 3   we would prefer to hear directly from Ms. Seamons.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I am going to ahead and

 5   let her --

 6             MR. LONG:  -- difficulties.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- daughter say what she needs

 8   to say.

 9             MR. LONG:  Sure.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Could you please make sure

11   that your mother can hear you.

12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  As you speak, and then we'll

14   see where that takes us.

15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So she is going to allow me

16   to speak for you.

17             WITNESS MOTHER:  Right.  I can't hear.

18             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  She is hoping that I speak

19   loud enough that you can hear me.

20             WITNESS MOTHER:  Oh, I'll try.

21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And then agree or disagree

22   at any point that I don't speak within what you would

23   testify on your own behalf.

24             WITNESS MOTHER:  Okay.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So pull that microphone right
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 1   up to you.

 2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  To me?

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Either way, yeah, either one,

 4   so that that should help your mom hear.

 5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  And speak nice and

 7   loud.

 8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) When did -- when did your

 9   mother first get notice that she was being charged

10   standby fees?

11        A.   (Witness Daughter) Her first notice was not

12   until March of 2014.

13        Q.   Now, in that notice, when was she first

14   actually charged standby fees?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) The charges began September

16   1st of 2013.

17        Q.   Okay.  Do you recall receiving or -- okay.  I

18   have here Ticaboo Utility Improvement District

19   Resolution No. 2013-0017.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Do you recognize this

22   document?

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  But I received this

24   from --

25        Q.   I am just asking if you --
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 1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yeah, I recognize this.

 2        Q.   Okay.  And can you turn to the second page?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 4        Q.   Do you see -- can you read the top line?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter) No. 1 or 2?

 6        Q.   No, the top line.

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh.  "Now, therefore, be it

 8   resolved by the legislative body of Ticaboo Utility

 9   Improvement District as follows."

10        Q.   And can you read paragraph No. 2.

11        A.   (Witness Daughter) No. 2, the rules regarding

12   the minimum --

13        Q.   The new rules.

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) "The new rules regarding

15   the minimum payment of standby fees for all services.

16   If a customer is receiving, connected and/or tapped into

17   any of the utility services provided; electric, water,

18   waste water, solid waste, will be required and hereby

19   approved by the district manager as authorized to file

20   the rules, with such clerical changes as district

21   manager deems reasonable and necessary to comply within

22   Utah law and with the rules and regulations of the

23   district."

24        Q.   Can you read paragraph No. 3.

25        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Three.  "The new rates and
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 1   rules shall become effective September 1st, 2013."

 2        Q.   Okay.  And is it signed?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 4        Q.   By who?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter) It's a printed, Mr. Chip

 6   Shortreed and Justin Fischer, secretary with their seal.

 7        Q.   And then is it sealed?

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you want that document --

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- in the record as an

11   exhibit?  Any objection?

12             MR. LONG:  No.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

14             MR. LONG:  No.

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Permission to approach?

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah, go ahead.  So I am going

17   to mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 1.

18             MR. HOGELIN:  Amended?  Oh, okay.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.

20             MR. HOGELIN:  I just didn't want to confuse

21   with all those other exhibits.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, they are not really

23   marked.

24             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  At least not particularly, not
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 1   in a really clear order.

 2             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  So we'll just mark everything

 4   today.  Exhibit 1.

 5             So let me just ask a couple of questions to

 6   deal with the evidentiary objection.  How, how do you

 7   know when the standby fees were first -- when your

 8   mother first received notice of the standby fees?

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  We're going to -- we're going to

10   show that.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

12             MR. HOGELIN:  We're going to show that.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  And similarly, how do you know

14   when the charges began?

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Absolutely.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  If you are going to bring in

17   some documentary evidence, that would be helpful.

18             MR. HOGELIN:  Yeah.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

20             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So what is your understanding

22   of paragraph 2?

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) In No. 2 being receiving,

24   connected or tapped, tapped being, my reference would be

25   the meters.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  And is your understanding that if you

 2   were not receiving, connected or tapped on any of your

 3   properties, that you would or would not be charged the

 4   standby fee?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Would not.

 6        Q.   Okay.  How many properties does your mother

 7   own in the district?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter) We have a total of eight.

 9        Q.   Okay.  As of September 1st, 2013, were all

10   eight properties receiving, connected and/or tapped with

11   any utilities?

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) At that time of September

13   1st, we were only connected with one double-wide home.

14        Q.   Just where --

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) One property.  Well, one

16   and two, but they are considered one with being

17   contiguous.

18        Q.   Okay.  How many properties were not receiving,

19   connected or tapped into with any type of utility at the

20   time of September 1st?

21        A.   (Witness Daughter) Six.

22        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I have a document.  It says

23   audit history.  It's for Account 1000 for Ticaboo

24   Utility Improvement District.  For reference that is lot

25   005.  And do you recognize this document?
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 1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 2        Q.   Can you please -- can you please read the

 3   account number.

 4        A.   (Witness Daughter) Account 1000.

 5        Q.   And which lot is that for?

 6        A.   (Witness Daughter) Lot 5.

 7        Q.   And in the -- well, is there a name at the top

 8   of it?

 9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons is our

10   father and my mother's husband.

11        Q.   Okay.  And so is this a -- this is an audit

12   history of that lot, correct?

13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  We received one

14   for each property.

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Would the commission like a

16   copy?

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.  It's, it's in -- it's in

18   here, but let's go ahead and take a clean copy and mark

19   it.

20             MR. HOGELIN:  Great.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  So I am going to

22   mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 2 unless there's an

23   objection.  Mr. Long, any objection?

24             MR. LONG:  Sorry.  Could you repeat that?

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am prepared to enter this
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 1   into evidence and mark it as Complainant's Exhibit 2.

 2   Any objection?

 3             MR. LONG:  No objection.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.

 5        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the first line of the

 6   audit, what's the date?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, the first one is

 8   August 31st, 2012.

 9        Q.   Okay.  And does it show a balance?

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) It shows a previous balance

11   of 758.06.

12        Q.   Okay.  So just for background purposes, why is

13   there a previous balance from that?

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) In the previous balance,

15   it's a bill that Ticaboo states that we owe, yet

16   under --

17        Q.   Okay.  So it's a previous, an alleged previous

18   balance that was carried over?

19        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.

20        Q.   Okay.  And then for the next month, so what

21   does the next month say?

22        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, it goes down to 930,

23   beginning balance of usage, but at the bottom of the

24   page --

25        Q.   No.  I'm asking questions here.
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 1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, okay.

 2        Q.   Okay.  So the next month says what?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) 9-30-2012.

 4        Q.   And what's the balance?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter) 758.06.

 6        Q.   So essentially it was the same balance as the

 7   month before, correct?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.

 9             MR. LONG:  I object.  This is -- these

10   balances are all water bills that were balances owed to

11   TSSD before the two districts were combined to form what

12   is now Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.  In the

13   district's opinion any issues with water service are

14   outside the commission's jurisdiction.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's an excellent point, so

16   we can talk about that in just a minute.  But look at

17   the December 31st, 2012, line.

18             MR. HOGELIN:  The water issue is not what

19   we're using this for.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  This is where we see some

21   kilowatt hours.  So it looks like it does become both

22   electricity and water.  At least that's how it appears.

23   Is that correct?

24             MR. LONG:  Yeah, that's correct.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

0032

 1             MR. LONG:  And if we could simply move to the

 2   -- whatever issues they have with electric service.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yeah, I am getting there.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is it correct that up until

 5   December 31st, 2012, the charges are for water, not for

 6   electricity?  Is that your understanding?

 7             MR. HOGELIN:  For in -- yeah.  For whatever.

 8   Actually, these charges were carried over.  Okay?

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

10             MR. HOGELIN:  So what we're trying to show is

11   that the billing is the same up until September of 2013.

12   Okay?

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, okay.  So we have a

14   carried-over balance.

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Right.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  It begins -- this document

17   begins to show that carryover as to electricity

18   beginning December 31st, 2012.

19             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  No changes in that balance

21   appear until --

22             MR. HOGELIN:  September of 2013.

23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  At the bottom of the page,

24   it shows 9-9-2013, and that began the standby fees

25   implementation.
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  So I was just trying to get -- I

 2   was just trying to get the long way of giving a

 3   foundation for that.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.  And you don't need

 5   to -- I am not going to require you to spend a lot of

 6   time on foundation unless you are going to consider that

 7   to be an error and appeal on that basis.

 8             MR. LONG:  No.  I am fine admitting this as

 9   evidence.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

11             MR. LONG:  This is a document that was

12   provided to them as part of what was ostensibly a GRAMA

13   request.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Right.  So go ahead

15   and --

16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So in September of 2013 --

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

18        Q.   -- what -- there was charges that were being

19   put on that property, correct?

20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Right.

21        Q.   And what charges were those?

22        A.   (Witness Daughter) They were standby fees for

23   tapped property.

24        Q.   Now, prior to those charges being implemented,

25   was Lot 5, for which this audit is specifically for, was
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 1   it receiving, connected and/or tapped to any of the

 2   utility services?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Meters were removed in

 4   2008.

 5        Q.   Okay.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just make a

 7   note of that.  So this -- where does this show what the

 8   property number is or the property identifier?

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, the 1000 is the account

10   number.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

12             MR. HOGELIN:  And that account number

13   correlates, and based off the testimony of my client,

14   that that coordinates with 005.  And again, this was

15   provided by Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So Account No. 1000 is

17   for lot or plat number 005.

18             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.  We, we -- my clients

19   received a letter from TUIA and explaining that.  I

20   didn't make copies.  But I do have --

21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It's submitted into the

22   formal complaint.

23             MR. HOGELIN:  It is in the formal complaint.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Well, if we

25   need to look for the documentary evidence, we can do
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 1   that.  I just want to make sure that I understand what

 2   we're talking about.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  So it's your testimony that on

 5   this particular plat, Lot 005, there were no taps, that

 6   taps had been removed in 2008; is that right?

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Right.

 8             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Can you turn to the

11   second page of that audit.

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) This still says 1000.

13        Q.   Just to the second page please.

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, sure.

15        Q.   Okay.  Can you please read -- do you see where

16   at March of 2014 the block is for?

17        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

18        Q.   Okay.  And what does it say at the bottom of

19   the block?

20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1946.25

21   due on 4-21-2014.

22        Q.   Okay.  Prior to March of 2014, is there

23   anywhere on the audit history that shows that there was

24   any notice printed or put forth to you?

25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  And did your mother receive any notice

 2   of these charges prior to March of 2014?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

 4        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

 5        Q.   Thank you.  Okay.  As for Lot 3 and 4, and is

 6   it your testimony that Lot 3 and 4 are Account No. 1115?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 8        Q.   Okay.

 9        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  What was the account number

11   again?

12             MR. HOGELIN:  1115.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And that's Lots 3 and 4

14   together, correct?

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And for Account No. 1115,

18   Lots 3 and 4, was there -- we're looking at a copy of

19   audit history for Account 1115.  Is this the --

20   basically look the same as the account for 1000 in the

21   billing?

22        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, and the same --

23        Q.   Okay.  And is this -- where did you get this

24   from?

25        A.   (Witness Daughter) We GRAMA Act requested
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 1   documents from the district and received them in October

 2   of 2015.

 3        Q.   Okay.  And was there -- is there any billing

 4   shown on there prior to September of 2013?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Okay.  At that time, no.

 6        Q.   Okay.  So was Lots 3 and 4, were they

 7   receiving, connected and/or tapped to any utilities

 8   prior to September of 2013?

 9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, they were.  To this

10   lot there was.

11        Q.   Okay.

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) The meters were removed by

13   the district in August of 2013.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  So it had taps through August?

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Of 2013.

16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, July 31st, and in

17   August 1st of 2013 the district came and removed the

18   meters.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Hang on.  Let me get

20   the dates down.

21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Through July 31st, 2013.

23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Uh-huh.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right?  And then taps were

25   removed on what date?  August?
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 1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  August of 2013.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  You don't know the

 3   exact date?

 4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I went down there on the

 5   15th of that month.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  But the -- our renters that

 8   were there and had the taps called us at the first of

 9   the month and reported to us that the district had came

10   and removed the meters.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

12             MR. LONG:  If I could add a point of

13   clarification.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Sure.

15             MR. LONG:  There seem to be some confusion

16   about meters versus taps versus connections.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

18             MR. LONG:  The district in my own words

19   defines taps as the presence of a utility connection at

20   the property line.  So in this case a -- in the case of

21   electricity a line drop.  Is that --

22             MR. SHORTREED:  A line extends to a meter.

23             MR. LONG:  So a power line of some sort

24   extends to the property.  Now, that's the tap as far as

25   the district is concerned.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 2             MR. LONG:  Whether there's a meter connected

 3   to that tap is another issue.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 5             MR. LONG:  And obviously, the district owns

 6   meters, and those are an expense.  And generally, if a

 7   property is not receiving service, having a meter on it

 8   is an expense the district tries to avoid.  So taps

 9   versus -- taps are not the same as meters.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if meters were

11   removed, that doesn't necessarily mean that the taps

12   were removed.  Is that what you are saying?

13             MR. LONG:  Precisely.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  And as far as you know, the

15   meters were removed, but are you aware of whether or not

16   the line, the electrical line to the property was also

17   removed?

18             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Electrical line is to the

19   back of the property at the five foot variance.  It's

20   not actually on the property.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So once they remove the

23   meters, that is upon the property of the district at

24   their five foot variance.  To the property?  No?

25             VOICE:  It's your property.  It's just in an
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 1   easement.

 2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It's in an easement, but

 3   it's still my property.  But it's -- the line is

 4   lateral, once the meter is taken to the rear of the

 5   property.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just -- let's

 7   go at it from this angle.  The tenants, excuse me,

 8   reported to you that the meters had been removed, right?

 9             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Correct.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did they also report that they

11   were no longer receiving electricity?

12             MR. HOGELIN:  That is correct.

13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  They were taken.  There's

14   no -- so there was nothing provided.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  No electricity being provided?

16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Or water, correct.

17             WITNESS MOTHER:  No power.

18             MR. HOGELIN:  Any utilities.

19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Any utilities.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  So if there was a line there,

21   it wasn't being used to deliver --

22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- utility service.  Okay.

24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And again, this -- was this

25   before September 1st, 2013?
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 1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 2        Q.   So looking at this audit history, are there

 3   charges after September -- or beginning in September of

 4   2013?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 6        Q.   And what charges are those?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Standby fees for utility

 8   service.

 9        Q.   Okay.  And then can you turn to -- can you

10   turn to page 2.  And do you see where the -- it

11   represents the billing for March of 2014?

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  $1213.49.

13        Q.   What does it say at the bottom of that?

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49

15   due on 4-21 of 2014.

16        Q.   For any of the other months was -- does it

17   show that there was any notices printed?

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

19        Q.   Did your mother receive any notices prior to

20   March of 2014?

21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

23        Q.   Thank you.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are you going to put that

25   audit history into evidence for those two lots?
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  This is the original, right?

 2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is it my original?

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

 4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It doesn't matter.  I have

 5   it on the computer with original filings.

 6             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I have file docket so it's

 8   fine.  I have the --

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  But I printed it out.

10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- zip drive.  That's fine.

11   I have the zip on it.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Long?

13             MR. LONG:  No objection.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

15        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So is it your testimony that

16   Lot 7 and 8 are --

17             MR. LONG:  Mr. Hogelin, do you have a copy for

18   me?

19             MR. HOGELIN:  I don't.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Just --

21             MR. HOGELIN:  I do of all the other ones.  I

22   don't know what happened to that one.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  We'll take a little break, and

24   I'll go run some copies.

25             MR. HOGELIN:  It's just that one.  Thank you.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Hold on just a minute.  Let's

 2   just take a break, and we'll go.  How many did we need?

 3   Two.  Let's make two copies.

 4             (Discussion off the record.)

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just so you know, I wrote on

 6   your Exhibit No. 2.  Next to Account 1000, I put in

 7   parenthesis Lot 005.

 8             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  And on No. 3, I did the same

10   thing, put in parentheses Lots 003 and 004 to help me

11   keep it straight.

12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Do you want the original

13   that shows the lots showing them?

14             MR. HOGELIN:  We don't have the copies, but

15   that is the letter from TUID that shows the accounts

16   with corresponding lots.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, any objection to this?

18             MR. LONG:  No objection.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We need copies of

20   this one as well?

21             MR. HOGELIN:  Please.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Be right back.  We can

23   go off the record.

24             (Discussion off the record.)

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  There are some people
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 1   who are listening to the hearing through our live

 2   streaming service, and we just received notice that they

 3   are having some difficulty hearing.  So if you would

 4   pull those mics right up close and try to speak loudly,

 5   that would be helpful.

 6             Also, our court reporter has some -- has a

 7   little device that shows the transcription coming up on

 8   text as she captures what we do here today.  So

 9   Ms. Seamons is looking at that now, and that might help

10   her to participate a little bit more and answer some

11   questions.

12             So Mrs. Seamons, can you see what I am saying?

13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you see what --

14             WITNESS MOTHER:  I can read this.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  But understanding it and

17   going through it, her eyesight isn't as great either.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.  These things

19   happen, and they will happen to all of us.

20             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So --

22             WITNESS MOTHER:  I have to rely on my attorney

23   and my daughter.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.  I am going to

25   mark the letter that ties the lot numbers to the account
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 1   numbers as Complainant's Exhibit 4.  All right.  Are we

 2   back on the record?

 3             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Mr. Hogelin, go

 5   ahead.

 6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So we were talking

 7   about Lots 7 and 8.  And is it your understanding,

 8   according to the letter from Ticaboo, that Lot 7 and 8

 9   are also known as Account No. 1131?

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

11        Q.   Okay.  I am handing you a document.  What does

12   it say at the very top?

13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Audit history.

14        Q.   And does it have an account number?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) 1131.

16        Q.   Okay.  And in whose name is at the top of

17   that?

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons.

19        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  For 1131, does it -- when does

20   the billing start?

21        A.   (Witness Daughter) 9-30-2013.

22        Q.   Was -- on Lot 7 and 8, was there -- were you

23   receiving, connected and/or tapped into any of the

24   utility services?

25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Vacant property.
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 1        Q.   Okay.

 2             MR. LONG:  Again, I would point out the

 3   difference between meters and taps that we discussed

 4   earlier.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  And I would

 6   actually -- it would be really helpful if, when you

 7   cross-examine or you bring your own witness, you could

 8   go through these same accounts and same lots and give me

 9   the utility's perspective of what was there.

10             MR. LONG:  Certainly.  I just wanted to make

11   sure everyone is on the same page until that point.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  So just

13   to reiterate that testimony, as to these lots, these

14   were vacant property, you said.

15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Vacant property.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So are you aware that

17   there was an electrical line or electrical meter to

18   these properties?

19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Again at the back of each

20   one --

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- when the mining district

23   created the community in 1978 that was infrastructured.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And those lines or -- is at
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 1   the rear of every property.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  So there are lines running

 3   through the utilities easement on every property?

 4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  As to whether there's a line

 6   that runs off of that to the -- to a home or to a home

 7   site, are you aware that there was any line?

 8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, I know that they are

 9   available for hookup if you put something there, but

10   there's -- like, I mean.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  There's never been nothing

13   on there.

14             WITNESS MOTHER:  There had never been a

15   trailer or anything on that property.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.

17             WITNESS MOTHER:  There had never been any

18   power or water used on those vacant properties.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So there was no meter

20   there.

21             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.

22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  And just to go back, so

23   based off the two other properties that we talked about,

24   Lots 3 and 4 and then Lots 5, the way that you answered

25   the commission's question, it's the same, same way,
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 1   correct?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Right.  Back at the 5 foot

 3   variance from the back of the property easement would be

 4   where the meters exist.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) But prior to this, there was

 7   no charges anyways, correct?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We purchased the

 9   properties in 2000.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   (Witness Daughter) I have to maybe state,

12   2006.  We actually bought them from SITLA.

13        Q.   You are fine.  So these standby fee charges,

14   do they continue monthly?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

16        Q.   Okay.  And then can you look down under the

17   charges of March of 2014.  What does the last item say?

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for

19   $1213.49.  Due on 4-21 of 2014.

20        Q.   And is that statement provided in any of the

21   other months?

22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  We have never had any

23   statements before that.

24        Q.   Okay.  So it's your testimony that you

25   never -- you never received notice of these fees until
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 1   March of 2014, correct?

 2        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.

 3        Q.   Okay.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you want to have this

 5   audit history marked?

 6             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.  Can we please have that

 7   marked as Exhibit 5, please.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Long?

 9             MR. LONG:  No objection.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.

11        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Is it your testimony, based

12   off the representation by TUID in the letter that is

13   Exhibit 4, that Lot 8 is also known --

14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.

15        Q.   -- as Account No. 1132?

16        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

17        Q.   Okay.  And would you submit that your

18   testimony for Lot 8 is the same as your testimony for

19   Lot 7 and 8.

20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.

21        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.

22        Q.   Okay.  Let me get copies of this.

23             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yeah, I can hear him.

24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What is your understanding

25   for the purpose that TUID combined 7 and 8 for Account
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 1   No. 1131 and then also has a separate account for Lot 8

 2   specifically?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) My understanding later upon

 4   reading the tariff is that they are contijuous, if I say

 5   that right.

 6        Q.   Contiguous?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Contiguous, yes.

 8   Contiguous.

 9        Q.   Okay.  But again for Lot 8, Account 1132, it's

10   vacant?

11        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

12        Q.   And there was no usage of any utilities prior

13   to September of 2013?

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  No.

15             MR. HOGELIN:  We would like to have that as

16   Exhibit 6, please.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection?

18             MR. LONG:  No objection.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.

20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  And referring to

21   Exhibit 4, the letter from TUID with regards to the

22   account numbers and lot numbers, is it your testimony

23   that Account No. 1133 is also known as Lot 98?

24        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

25        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  Could you please state what's at the

 2   top of the page.

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Beginning of usage, 9-30.

 4   Oh, audit history, Sharon A. Seamons.

 5        Q.   Okay.

 6        A.   (Witness Daughter) 1133.

 7        Q.   Is what, the account number?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Is Lot 98, Account No.

 9   1133.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   (Witness Mother) That's a vacant lot.  That's

12   that corner lot.

13        Q.   Does this audit history show any charges prior

14   to September of 2013?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

16        A.   (Witness Mother)  No, it wasn't.

17        Q.   Was this Account Lot No. 98, was it receiving,

18   connected and/or tapped into any of the utilities

19   services prior to September of 2013?

20        A.   (Witness Daughter) No, it's not.

21        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

22        Q.   Okay.  Is it vacant?

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, it's a vacant

24   property.

25        A.   (Witness Mother)  It was vacant.
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 1        Q.   And as of September of 2013, were there any

 2   charges or billing?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Prior to September, no.

 4        Q.   But in September, there was billing?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

 6        Q.   Yes?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, on September they

 8   started billing.

 9        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Prior no.

11        Q.   And what were -- what was the billing for?

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Standby use of utilities.

13        Q.   Okay.  And those charges continued every

14   month, correct?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

16        Q.   Okay.  And in March of 2014 on the audit

17   history, what does the bottom line state?

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49

19   due on 4-21 of 2014.

20        Q.   Okay.

21        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.

22        Q.   And did -- was -- is that listed any -- under

23   any of the previous months on the audit history?

24        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

25        A.   (Witness Mother) No.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  Did you receive any notice of these

 2   fees prior to March of 2014?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

 4        A.   (Witness Mother) No, we hadn't.

 5             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  I would like to have that

 6   as, is that Exhibit 7?

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  It is.  Any objection?

 8             MR. LONG:  No objection.

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  Did we -- did we already submit

10   the --

11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.

12             MR. HOGELIN:  -- the resolution?  Is that

13   Exhibit 1?

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  Thank you.

16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) You, however -- you own other

17   properties in Ticaboo, correct?

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) The ones that we have just

19   stated.  We had two --

20        Q.   Other than those?

21        A.   (Witness Daughter) We had two that were sold

22   in 2012 that were listed on that.

23        Q.   Okay.

24        A.   (Witness Daughter) It was --

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So we have been through six
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 1   properties by my count.

 2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So one and two were tapped

 3   into.  That was the living residence where my mother

 4   lived from 2000 to 2009, '10.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  So that's Lots 001 and 002?

 6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Uh-huh, that is correct.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  And there's a residence on

 8   those?

 9             WITNESS MOTHER:  That's correct.

10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And those taps existed in

11   September of 2013, September of 2013.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

13             MR. HOGELIN:  I'm sorry?

14             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We used that residence that

15   -- in one and two, Lot 1 and 2.

16             MR. HOGELIN:  Uh-huh.

17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is where our residence is

18   that we have.

19             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay, great.

20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- were tapped into and --

21             MR. HOGELIN:  Right.

22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And lived.

23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Now, it also shows on here

24   Account Nos. 5051, 505 -- and when I say shows here, I

25   am referring to Exhibit 3, the letter from TUID
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 1   corresponding account numbers with lots.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's actually Exhibit 4.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Exhibit 4, excuse me.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's all right.

 5        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) 5051, 5052, 5054, do you

 6   currently own those properties?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Those were sold in

 8   2012.

 9        Q.   Okay.  So is it your testimony out of the --

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, there's two, four,

11   six, eight.

12        Q.   -- those six account numbers going from 1000

13   to 1000 -- 1133, that only one of those properties as of

14   September of 2013 was using or -- utilities?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  Those were the

16   only ones out of the eight.  The other six did not have

17   meters.

18        Q.   And on the one -- and we're talking about Lot

19   1 and 2, Account No. 1002, what notice would you receive

20   of billing of --

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Can I pause just a moment.

22   I'm sorry to interrupt.  So these three account numbers

23   which represent five properties, you say those

24   properties were all sold?

25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.  I don't understand why
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 1   5051 is listed as one and two, because it's also listed

 2   as 0 -- 1002.

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So error correction on

 5   that.  The only ones that were sold was Lot 5054.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, account.

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Account, I'm sorry.  Lots

 8   92 and 93 --

 9             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yeah, 92 and 93.

10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- were sold in 2012.

11   Excuse us.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  In 2012 okay.  Just a minute.

13   Lots 92, 93 were sold in --

14             WITNESS MOTHER:  That did not have a meter.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- 2012, okay.

16             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  And do you know why there are

18   two different account numbers for the combined Lots 1

19   and 2 and also two different account numbers for Lot 5?

20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.  The residence on

21   5051, Lot 1 and 2 --

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- is our home occupant,

24   that we occupied.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand that.
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 1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And then Lot 5 --

 2             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's a double-wide home.

 3             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  5052 had the previous

 4   balance that they state owed from the prior --

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- district.  Same with

 7   5054.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.  But there are two

 9   different account numbers for each of those properties.

10   Do you know why that is?

11             MR. HOGELIN:  You are referring to Lot 1 and

12   2, correct?

13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't.  I think because

14   they existed before standby fees.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, maybe we'll have to have

16   Ticaboo Utility Improvement District explain that.

17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.  I believe that's

18   before they existed before the standby fees.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  But you don't know.

20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.  Sorry.

22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So for Lot 1 and 2 was the

23   only lots that were using utilities at the time as of --

24   prior to September of 2013, what notice do you receive

25   for utilities generally?  Is it monthly?
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 1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Monthly.

 2        Q.   Okay.  And so for Lot 1 and 2, you received

 3   notice monthly of what was owed.  But for all the other

 4   lots that start standby fees in September of 2013, you

 5   didn't receive notice until March of 2014?

 6        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't understand that.

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did you receive your

 8   billing for Lot 1 and 2 and not the other ones prior to

 9   that or up until March?

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's rephrase it.  Can you

11   hear me, Mrs. Seamons?

12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you hear the judge?

13             WITNESS MOTHER:  Now what?

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So for the lot where

15   you have the double-wide home.

16             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you receive monthly bills

18   from TUID for the utilities?

19             WITNESS MOTHER:  I think so.  I kept those

20   current.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And then on the other

22   properties that you own that are vacant, did you receive

23   monthly billings from TUID, or did you receive a

24   combined billing for several months' worth of charges?

25             WITNESS MOTHER:  I received a combined
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 1   billing.  But there were no charges on the vacant lots.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  I believe the records, the

 3   records show that there were charges.  Did you mean to

 4   say that nobody there was using any utilities?

 5             WITNESS MOTHER:  I can't understand that.

 6             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Can you help?

 8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) The lots that you were

 9   getting standby fees on, did you get monthly notice of

10   those bills?

11        A.   (Witness Mother) Like this?

12        Q.   Just anything.

13        A.   (Witness Mother) Did I get a combined notice

14   on that?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

16             MR. HOGELIN:  I believe she's already

17   testified that she didn't receive any notice of -- until

18   March.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's what the complaint

20   states.

21             MR. HOGELIN:  And I was just trying to show

22   there was -- on the ones that were being used she was

23   receiving monthly billing.  However, the ones where the

24   standby was being billed, that was not being given

25   notice or monthly bill but rather was a collection of
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 1   months that were done periodically.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just ask you,

 3   Mr. Long.  I don't think that we have --

 4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  I know, but I'm going over

 6   here.  I don't think we have really clear testimony from

 7   Mrs. Seamons.  I think we have a communication

 8   breakdown.  But what counsel is asking me to accept into

 9   the record is that TUID was sending out monthly billings

10   for those Lots 1 and 2 for the utilities that were

11   actually being used, but on the vacant lots it was not

12   sending out monthly billings for the standby fees.  Do

13   you contest that?

14             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  And I will have

15   Mr. Shortreed testify as to exactly how the billing

16   process works when it's his turn.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.

18             MR. LONG:  In effect, the bills sent out are

19   sent out on a group bill basis, so each bill has all of

20   the lots owned by a particular property owner.

21             MR. SHORTREED:  For Mrs. Seamons specifically,

22   in this case she gets a group billing.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  We'll

24   have -- Mr. Shortreed, until you are sworn in, if you

25   would let your counsel speak, that would, I think, be
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 1   best for the record.

 2             MR. SHORTREED:  Sorry.

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's all right.

 4             MR. LONG:  And I'll have Mr. Shortreed address

 5   that question when he is speaking.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  And if we

 7   feel like we need any follow up with Mrs. Seamons, we'll

 8   give you that opportunity.

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  If I could have one more shot

10   because I think this is very important to have on the

11   record.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.

13        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Seamons.

14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.

15        Q.   Did you receive any notice of any standby fees

16   prior to March of 2014?

17        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  I did not.

18        Q.   So is it fair to say that you did not receive

19   a monthly bill for those standby fees?

20        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  I didn't know there was

21   standby fees.  So I didn't receive a bill.

22        Q.   Okay.  So the bill that you did receive for

23   standby fees were for multiple months, correct?

24        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.

25        Q.   Okay.  And after March of 2014, on the
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 1   properties that were being billed standby fees, did you

 2   receive billing monthly for that?

 3        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

 4        Q.   Okay.  And so that is it your testimony that

 5   the properties with standby fees, you would only receive

 6   bills periodically with multiple months?

 7        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.

 8        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.

10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Was the issue of being

11   billed for standby fees on properties that were not

12   using utilities prior to September of 2013, was that

13   ever addressed with TUID?

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) You will have to --

15        Q.   You can answer too.

16        A.   (Witness Daughter) You will have to repeat

17   that, I'm sorry.

18        Q.   Okay.  Did -- did you address the fact that

19   you had not received any notice or any bills concerning

20   the standby fees starting in 2013, September of 2013,

21   with TUID?

22        A.   (Witness Mother)  Yes.  I verbally addressed

23   that to Mr. Shortreed, and he said that if I paid those

24   fees, then I could abandon the properties.  But that was

25   an exorbitant amount of money because I only received
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 1   $750 a month Social Security.  And I was relying on the

 2   rental to keep my bills paid, and he pulled the meters

 3   from my rental.  So I received no money from my rents.

 4        Q.   When did you address with Mr. Reed (sic) that

 5   you had been charged standby fees but hadn't received

 6   notice until March of 2014?

 7        A.   (Witness Mother)  I went down for a meeting.

 8   Was it the meeting?  I went to Ticaboo for the monthly

 9   meeting.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   (Witness Mother) And addressed that with

12   Mr. Shortreed at the meeting.

13        Q.   So was that the March 21st, 2014, meeting?

14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.  Correct.

15        Q.   And I believe it's already in the -- I know it

16   is.  It's already attached.  There are meeting minutes

17   from the TUID meeting on March 21st, 2014.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do I have that marked?

19             MR. HOGELIN:  That's already in with --

20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Formal complaint.

21             MR. HOGELIN:  With the formal complaint.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  But it's not marked as an

23   exhibit here today.

24             MR. HOGELIN:  No, it's not.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's see if we could find
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 1   that because I think that would be helpful.  Any idea

 2   about where that is in this?

 3             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Nearly to the end of the

 4   filing.  I would say about 20 pages from the back.  It

 5   -- none of the pages are actually marked on that filing

 6   with the formal complaint in December.  We do have

 7   available if we need copies, but it is submitted.

 8             MR. HOGELIN:  So it's the -- it starts with --

 9   the meeting minutes that was filed with the commission

10   starts with April 11th, 2013, and then goes chronically

11   to -- or chronologically to the March 21st, 2014,

12   meeting minutes.

13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  They should be filed by

14   monthly order, I believe, is the way we received them.

15             MR. LONG:  If I may interject.  We have these

16   same meeting minutes as one of the -- one of the

17   exhibits we'll introduce as well if that's --

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Want to just do that right

19   now?  We'll --

20             MR. LONG:  If that's helpful.  I have -- I

21   have whole binders put together if I could pass those

22   out now, and that might save us some time.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's go ahead and do that

24   then.  I think that would be helpful.

25             MR. LONG:  Here is a commission binder that
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 1   has electronic versions too, if that's helpful.

 2             MR. SHORTREED:  Do you know which number that

 3   is?

 4             (Discussion off the record.)

 5             MR. LONG:  The commission has a CD of

 6   electronic versions too.

 7             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you, Mr. Long.  It looks

 8   like it's under No. 15, index No. 15 of the trial

 9   binder, of TUID's trial binder.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  And so I take it you have no

11   objection.

12             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I will leave you the

14   option to object to anything that you find in, in this

15   binder as we go through, but for now I am just going to

16   consider these as marked, and then we'll see if, if as

17   we use them there's any evidentiary issues that you want

18   to make me aware of.

19             So this is TUID's Exhibit No. 16.  And go

20   ahead.

21             MR. HOGELIN:  Fifteen.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Excuse me.  Thank you.  No.

23   15.  All right.  Go ahead.

24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) On the third page -- you can

25   go ahead.  Was it state -- can you read the second
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 1   paragraph.

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, in this one it says,

 3   "Resolution 2014-0011 was introduced by Mr. Shortreed.

 4   The resolution amends Resolution 2014-005, the policies

 5   about the abandonment of utilities.

 6             "Mrs. Seamons asked about leeway that the

 7   district might extend to those with few means.

 8   Mr. Shortreed describes why utilities in Ticaboo are so

 9   expensive and why fees must be high.  He noted that

10   standby fees were never intended to be perpetual.

11   Mrs. Seamons expressed her concerns for those with --

12   those on fixed incomes."

13        Q.   So Ms. Seamons, is this when you addressed the

14   billing of the standby fees for the months from

15   September to March of 2014?

16        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct, yes.

17        Q.   And what was their response to your bringing

18   up the issue?

19        A.   He said he didn't care.

20        Q.   Okay.

21             MR. LONG:  That's hearsay, and the meeting

22   minutes don't reflect that.

23             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's the truth.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.  It's not -- it's not

25   relevant what his personal feelings were, so that's
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 1   fine.

 2        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  And then can you read

 3   this paragraph right here.  Oh.  Yeah, go ahead and read

 4   that.  Can you please read, it looks like two paragraphs

 5   up from the bottom.

 6        A.   (Witness Daughter)  "Mrs. Seamons asked a

 7   hypothetical question about a situation of nonpayment.

 8   Mr. Shortreed noted that she would have the right to

 9   terminate the lease.  She said that terminating the

10   lease is very difficult in the state of Utah."

11        Q.   Okay.  So when you addressed this standby fee

12   bill with TUID, what was your feeling of how they

13   addressed it, or how would you state that they -- it was

14   addressed by them?

15        A.   (Witness Mother)  The standby fees?

16        Q.   Uh-huh, or your concerns regarding the fees?

17        A.   (Witness Mother) It looked to me like I was

18   being charged for the services.

19        Q.   Okay.

20        A.   (Witness Mother) It didn't look like standby

21   fees at all.

22        Q.   Okay.

23        A.   (Witness Mother) I was being charged for

24   power, water, sewer and garbage.

25        Q.   Okay.

0068

 1        A.   (Witness Mother) Which I did not use.

 2        Q.   Did they try to meet with you individually to

 3   resolve your concerns?

 4        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't hear you.

 5        Q.   Did they try to meet with you individually to

 6   resolve your concerns?

 7        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

 8        Q.   No.  Did they offer to try to meet with you at

 9   all?

10        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.  I tried to meet with

11   him the next day.  I went to the office, and he said he

12   was on the phone and closed the door.  I have never been

13   in the office.

14        Q.   Okay.  And since then, at any time that you

15   have tried to address the billing, have they been

16   cooperative with you at all?

17        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  Since we have been

18   there, my daughter Mary and Rick have been helping me

19   with everything.  And they have tried, and my other

20   daughters have tried to talk with Mr. Shortreed and with

21   no results.

22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

23             MR. HOGELIN:  So I believe we have addressed

24   the issue that the commission has provided -- or set

25   with regards to this hearing for No. 4.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 2             MR. HOGELIN:  With regards to beginning of the

 3   charges of the standby fees.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 5             MR. HOGELIN:  We would like to move on to the

 6   issue of tenants and just would like to ask my client.

 7        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Are you aware of any tenants

 8   that have contracts with TUID presently?

 9        A.   (Witness Daughter)  The motel, the resort

10   carries the tenant contracts for SITLA.

11        Q.   So who is the owner of the property?

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) The Utah State School Trust

13   Lands.

14        Q.   Which is also known as?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) SITLA.

16        Q.   Okay.  And however, the contracts with TUID,

17   are they with SITLA or through the tenant of SITLA's?

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Through the tenant.

19        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.

20        Q.   Okay.  Have your tenants been entitled to the

21   same consideration as SITLA's?

22        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

23        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

24        Q.   Have -- and what has been the response from

25   TUID regarding any concerns with regards to your tenants
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 1   having contracts with TUID directly?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) That the property owner has

 3   to carry the contract with the district.

 4        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.

 5        Q.   Do you think it's fair that you aren't

 6   receiving the same considerations as another property

 7   owner in Ticaboo?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We have to assume

 9   their utilities after they leave upon a contract.

10        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.

11             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  I believe that resolves

12   the issue No. 5 or, well, not resolves, but --

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.

14             MR. HOGELIN:  I'm sorry.  One second.

15             (Discussion off the record.)

16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So have you had tenants on

17   the property, or any of your properties?

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

19        Q.   You have never had any tenants?

20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, we had tenants.  The

21   tenants --

22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) -- have not resided there

24   since --

25        Q.   Okay.  So you have had tenants on your
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 1   property, correct?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 3        Q.   And when the tenants moved away from the

 4   property, were you able to stop the charges for the

 5   utilities?

 6        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

 7        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  We continue to pay them.

 8        Q.   Okay.  So you had to continue to pay them?

 9        A.   (Witness Mother) I had to pay them.

10        Q.   Okay.  All right.

11             MR. HOGELIN:  I believe that we have addressed

12   No.  5.  All right.  With regards to item No. 6 that the

13   commission had asked for evidence to be proffered,

14   obviously I just would like to make a note, it's kind of

15   hard to provide evidence of nothing.  But I will still

16   ask my clients for their testimony.  Excuse me.

17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any

18   information pamphlets from TUID?

19             MR. HOGELIN:  Can we -- can we take a short

20   recess for restroom break?

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  We'll take a

22   break, go off the record for about 10 minutes.  Come

23   back at about 10:30.

24             (Recess from 10:21 a.m. to 10:32 a.m.)

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We'll go back on
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 1   the record.  We left off, we were just about to start

 2   talking about the customer information pamphlet.

 3        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any

 4   customer information pamphlet?  Did you receive a

 5   customer information pamphlet from TUID?

 6        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't hear that correctly.

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did you receive a customer

 8   information pamphlet?

 9        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

10        Q.   Okay.

11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Sorry.

12        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I did not.

13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did it work?

14             MR. HOGELIN:  Hit the button.

15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It shows on.  Oh, there we

16   go.  Sorry.

17        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I did not.

18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Thank you.  Have you

19   received any -- a copy of the statement of customer

20   rights and responsibilities from TUID ever?

21        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

22        Q.   Okay.  Have you received any notices from TUID

23   through any type of pamphlet?

24             MR. LONG:  Did you receive a pamphlet?

25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Mary, are you aware of any?

0073

 1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, we received a pamphlet

 2   February 20th, 2015.

 3        Q.   And what was that pamphlet concerning?

 4        A.   Meter tampering.

 5        Q.   Okay.  But nothing with regards to tariff or

 6   your rights or your responsibilities under the tariff?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) I didn't read completely

 8   through it, but I -- it was meter tampering and new

 9   rates of February.

10        A.   (Witness Mother) There it is right there.

11   Yeah, that's correct.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  New rates as of February 2015?

13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  2015, February 20th, 2015.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  '16.  This year.  Sorry.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  '16.

17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah, just barely, we just

18   barely got it.

19        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Did you receive any pamphlets

20   prior to that?

21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.

23        Q.   Okay.  I'd like to go on to the last issue,

24   and that's regarding the removal of taps from

25   Ms. Seamons' property.  Ms. Seamons, have you -- has
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 1   TUID removed the taps from your property, or taps or

 2   meters from your property?

 3        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes, he has.

 4        Q.   Okay.  How many times has that happened?

 5        A.   (Witness Mother) At least twice.

 6        Q.   Okay.  So let's talk about the two, the two

 7   times.  On either -- well, on either of those times were

 8   you given any prior notice to the taps or meters being

 9   removed?

10        A.   (Witness Mother)  No, I did not.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  I just need to clarify a

12   little bit.  Are we talking about a single property?

13   Are we talking about --

14             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- one and two?

16             MR. HOGELIN:  We are talking about a lot.

17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Three and four.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Lots 3 and 4?

19             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  And twice something was

21   removed from Lots 3 and 4?

22             WITNESS MOTHER:  Right, yes.

23             MR. HOGELIN:  So it was the same lots?

24             WITNESS MOTHER:  Same lots.

25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Both properties.
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 1             (Talking at once.)

 2             COURT REPORT:  Sorry.  I'm having trouble with

 3   four people talking at once, just a little confusing.

 4        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So just to recap, Lots

 5   3 and 4 are the lots at issue, and those are both --

 6   those are the lots for both incidents?

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what's on those

 8   lots?  Is it a home?

 9             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Double-wide home.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  A double-wide home?

11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Trailer home.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Double-wide trailer home,

13   okay.

14             WITNESS MOTHER:  Four bedroom home.

15        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So let's talk about

16   the first incident.  When about was the first incident?

17        A.   (Witness Mother) The first time the taps, the

18   meters were removed, I had a renter, and the renter

19   called and said that they got a --

20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  That they --

21        A.   (Witness Mother)  That they pulled the meters

22   on them because they, they had their own generator.  And

23   they had pulled the meters, and they had no water and no

24   power, and they had to move.

25        Q.   Okay.  So the renters, did they notify TUID?
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 1        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.

 2        Q.   Okay.  How did they notify TUID?

 3        A.   (Witness Mother) They called me on the phone.

 4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No, T-U-I-D.

 5        A.   (Witness Mother) Oh, T-U-I-D?

 6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.  How did Jim and Val

 7   Hill in 2013?  Remember we GRAMA Acted.  Did you --

 8        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't understand the

 9   question properly.

10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  In what form did your

11   tenants inform TUID that they -- now, which utility were

12   they requesting to discontinue?

13        A.   (Witness Mother) How did they contacted

14   T-U-I-D?

15        Q.   Which utility were they asking TUID to

16   discontinue?

17        A.   (Witness Mother) They were receiving their

18   water and power.

19        Q.   Okay.  And what were they asking to be

20   discontinued?

21             MR. LONG:  I'd just like to note a hearsay

22   objection here.  We are talking about what someone else

23   allegedly asked the district to do three-plus years ago.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Understood.  Thank you.

25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What did -- okay.  What did
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 1   your tenants tell you that they wanted disconnected?

 2        A.   (Witness Mother) The tenants said they had no

 3   water or no power, and they couldn't stay.  They had a

 4   business there.

 5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.  So --

 6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What did they tell you that

 7   they wanted?  What utility did they tell you they wanted

 8   disconnected?  Did they want electric disconnected?  Did

 9   they want water disconnected?  Did they want all of it

10   disconnected?

11        A.   They didn't want anything disconnected.

12        Q.   Okay.  Mary, can you testify?

13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Okay.

14        Q.   Mary, to your knowledge, did the tenants

15   inform your mom that they wanted any utility

16   disconnected?

17        A.   (Witness Daughter) They informed me.  I went

18   down in August of 2013, on the 15th of that month, and

19   was informed by them that they had requested to not have

20   power, that they wanted to run a generator.

21        Q.   My question to you is, what did they tell you

22   that they wanted disconnected?

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Their power.

24        Q.   Okay.  Did they want the water disconnected as

25   well?
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 1        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

 2        Q.   Okay.  Did, did you or your mother inform TUID

 3   that -- or request that the power service be

 4   disconnected?

 5        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.

 6        Q.   Okay.

 7        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct.

 8        Q.   All right.  And did TUID disconnect the power?

 9        A.   (Witness Daughter) They took the meters, both

10   water and power.

11        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct, they did.

12        Q.   So they -- even though the tenants informed

13   you that they only wanted the power disconnected, TUID

14   came out and disconnected all of the utilities, correct?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.

16        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.

17        Q.   Okay.

18             MR. LONG:  Again, objection that anything

19   beyond electric service is beyond the commission's

20   jurisdiction, I think beyond the scope of this hearing.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.

22             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Was there any notice provided

24   that all of the utilities would be disconnected?

25        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.
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 1        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.

 2        Q.   Okay.  Was there any notice of what day or

 3   time that even the electrical utility would be

 4   disconnected?

 5        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.

 6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, there -- the second

 7   incident that you referred to --

 8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you put that in as

 9   exhibit?

10             MR. HOGELIN:  Mary, Mary.

11             WITNESS MOTHER:  That just recently?

12        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So the -- let's talk

13   about the second incident.  Mary, you were involved in

14   that.  What -- can you please describe the second

15   incident with regards to the taps or meters being

16   removed from those lots.

17        A.   (Witness Daughter) We went down to the meeting

18   on April 28th, on a Thursday.  We stated our home --

19        Q.   Sorry.  What year?

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  What year?

21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  2016.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I need you to tell me what

23   happened between.  Did the utility service get

24   reinstated?

25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  Oh, you are talking from 2013?

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

 4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So in 2000 -- after 2013,

 5   no renters, no meters replaced until August of 2014.  At

 6   that time we were required to pay an $1875 fee for

 7   standby fees during the year the meter was removed in

 8   order for the meters to put back on.

 9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the meters were removed in

10   August of 2013, but you were charged standby fees until

11   August of 2014?

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  With the meters

13   removed.

14        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.

15        Q.   And when did the tenants move in?

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you -- did you pay that?

17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.

18             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes, we did.

19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  For our tenants, for new

20   tenants to come in so that we could have a renter base.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the tenants that had

23   requested for the electric to be removed, did they stay

24   on the property for that year?

25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  They moved out of
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 1   state.  They had to move.

 2        Q.   Why did they have to move?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Their -- it shut down their

 4   business, and there was no service.

 5             MR. LONG:  Again hearsay.  We're going to

 6   someone else's motivations.

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Oh, well, there was no --

 8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) To the best of your

 9   understanding.

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) They told me they could not

11   stay and with that -- and with no meters, no service

12   with utilities.

13        Q.   Okay.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  But the fact is, they moved.

15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.

16             WITNESS MOTHER:  They didn't have any water or

17   power.

18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So the second incident

19   so --

20        A.   (Witness Mother) Oh.

21        Q.   You testified that the meters were put back in

22   August of 2014; is that correct?

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.

24        Q.   Okay.

25        A.   (Witness Daughter) In 2016, April 28th, we
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 1   went down.  We stayed at the house for four days and

 2   left on Sunday, May 1st.  May 2nd, upon returning,

 3   received an e-mail from Ticaboo that they had removed

 4   our meter.

 5        Q.   Okay.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  This is still on --

 7             WITNESS MOTHER:  On three and four.

 8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  This is three and four.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  So you personally stayed there

10   for 10 days?

11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.  We stayed there for

12   three -- four days.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  For four days.

14             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We stayed in our home, but

15   we were over there cleaning and fixing it for new

16   renters.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I see, okay.  And so you

18   worked in the house for four days.

19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We worked in the house,

20   uh-huh.

21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Now, let's go back to

22   February.

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) But we can go back to

24   February.

25        Q.   So in February, was there an issue regarding
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 1   utilities in Ticaboo?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  On February 18th

 3   there was a meeting.  And as we arrived to the meeting,

 4   it was stated that if anyone touched the meters or did

 5   any tampering, that they would have a thousand dollar

 6   tampering fee charge.  And they -- the meeting was in

 7   regards to changing the rates for tampering.

 8        Q.   And had you -- had you had any contact with

 9   the meters?

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  We didn't know that

11   you could not touch the meters, so during the winter

12   months we turned them off.  And so when we came down

13   there after being gone for the coldest months, November,

14   December, and January, we turned them on.  Make sure

15   there was no frozen pipes and then went over to -- and

16   we had to use water, so we turned on.

17             And then we went over to the meeting.  During

18   the meeting we informed --

19        Q.   So what was the purpose of turning them off

20   during the winter?  What were you trying -- what was the

21   purpose of it?

22        A.   (Witness Daughter)  So no pipes would break.

23        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct.

24        Q.   And so in February you went to the meeting,

25   and you were -- were you given a warning or anything for
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 1   doing that?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) During the meeting, as we

 3   informed the district, we informed them that we had

 4   turned the meters on.  And so Mr. Shortreed and the

 5   board members informed us that that was our warning.

 6   Upon returning home, we received the pamphlet.

 7        Q.   When you say -- okay.  In February?

 8        A.   February 20th.

 9             MR. LONG:  I am going to object here.  This is

10   well beyond the scope of the commission's questions and

11   what I understand to be the scope of this hearing.  If

12   it needs addressed, I'd suggest that we do it in --

13             MR. HOGELIN:  Your Honor, we would ask --

14             MR. LONG:  -- filings after this hearing or at

15   least give Ticaboo the opportunity to respond.

16             MR. HOGELIN:  Can I respond to the objection?

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I'm trying to understand the

18   circumstances under which taps were removed.  They were

19   saying taps were removed or meters shut down or some

20   sort of action taken by Ticaboo to discontinue service

21   on two occasions.

22             The first occasion was in connection with a

23   tenant who had a generator.  The second occasion was in

24   connection with their trying to prepare the property for

25   new tenants to move in, correct?
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 1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.

 2             WITNESS MOTHER:  Correct.

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I am a little bit confused

 4   about dates.  So the second incident you said was this

 5   year, right?

 6             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  April of 2016?

 8             WITNESS MOTHER:  Correct.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  So the February meeting, was

10   that also of this year, 2016?

11             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And so the meeting that

13   you went to was dealing with tampering charges.  When

14   you had turned off the meters, that was to water,

15   correct?

16             WITNESS MOTHER:  The water was already on.

17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you turn off the meters

19   for the electricity at any time?

20             WITNESS MOTHER:  Never.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what does the --

22   does their taking action with the meter on the water

23   have anything to do with electricity?  Is there going to

24   be a tie-in?

25             MR. HOGELIN:  That's where I am going with the
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 1   testimony, yes.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So your objection is

 3   noted, but I do need to hear the rest of this, and at

 4   that point I'll be able to tell if it's relevant or not.

 5   Go ahead.

 6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  So to go back, you were

 7   given a warning in February about doing any action with

 8   the meters, correct?

 9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.

10        Q.   Okay.  After February and you were given that

11   warning, did you take any actions or do anything with

12   regards to the meters?

13        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

14        Q.   Okay.  You testified in April that you visited

15   the property and you were there for three days, correct?

16        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.

17        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.

18        Q.   And while you were visiting the property, did

19   you do anything with the meters, whether electrical,

20   water or whatever, turning anything on or off?

21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

22        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.

23        Q.   Okay.  And then what was the -- so you left

24   the property on what date?

25        A.   (Witness Daughter) May 1st.
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 1        Q.   May 1st.  And after May 1st, you -- did you

 2   receive any correspondence from TUID?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) On May 2nd we received an

 4   e-mail that our meters -- meter had been removed, water

 5   meter had been removed from our property.

 6        Q.   Was your electrical meter removed?

 7        A.   (Witness Daughter) I had -- did not check

 8   that.

 9        Q.   Okay.

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) I turned off the power with

11   the box, our power box, our main box.

12        Q.   But there wasn't any notice given prior to the

13   removal of the meter?

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) No contact from the

15   district in regards.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So the question was,

17   was anything done to electricity, and you don't know,

18   right?

19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.  I did not go

20   out and check that.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So do you have renters

22   in that property now?

23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We cannot.  They cannot use

24   water.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.
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 1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't even know power.

 2   At that point we knew that there wasn't a viable.  We

 3   had renters ready to move in at that time.  That's why

 4   we were preparing that home, seasonal workers were

 5   there.

 6             WITNESS MOTHER:  They had gone back to pick up

 7   their things to move in.  We had the rent -- we had it

 8   rented.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Anything more,

10   Mr. Hogelin?

11             MR. HOGELIN:  We rest, your Honor.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Mr. Long, are you ready?

13             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  I just have a few questions

14   for cross-examination.  And I guess the particular

15   person answering them, we will take answers from whoever

16   can give them.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.

18                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

19   BY MR. LONG:

20        Q.   So Ms. Seamons, I just have a handful of

21   questions.

22        A.   (Witness Daughter) If you ask questions, I'll

23   try to answer or if she can't hear.

24        Q.   Sure.  And if I need to restate anything or

25   speak louder, please let me know.  As I understand your
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 1   testimony, and this is simply for the -- for my benefit,

 2   you claim that you had no notice of standby fees between

 3   September 2013, when the district first started charging

 4   standby fees, and March of 2014?

 5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So he is asking, did you

 6   have any notice on the standby fees from '13 until --

 7        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I never had a bill until

 8   March.

 9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And again, by way of

10   clarification, I think, and please correct me if I am

11   wrong, that you testified that you had been receiving

12   bills for the house on Lot 1 and 2.  The house --

13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Can I specify --

14        A.   (Witness Mother) I'm not sure.

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) -- an answer for that for

16   her?

17        Q.   Certainly.

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) So during the course before

19   September 2013, any property that we had rented or sold

20   was held, a contract to the district to pay the

21   utilities.  So we weren't receiving any bills prior to

22   that.  And after 2000 -- that 2013, standby fees were

23   implemented, we did not receive one.  We received it for

24   one and two, the only lot, the house that we resided in.

25        Q.   And at that time, the house that's built or
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 1   located on Lot 1 and 2 was occupied?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) We visit it.  We do not --

 3   we are not full-time residents.  We go down and

 4   seasonally visit.

 5        Q.   Sorry.  Maybe more clearly, the house was

 6   actively receiving service, as in when you turn on the

 7   tap, water comes out?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct, on one and two.

 9        Q.   Light switches, lights go on?

10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

11        Q.   Okay.  And the other ones were either

12   undeveloped properties or not occupied?

13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  The tenants had

14   left on three and four.

15        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  Thank you, just by way of

16   clarification.

17        A.   (Witness Mother)  Yeah, that's correct.

18        Q.   You brought up a few different issues of

19   notice or claim that you didn't have notice of various

20   actions that the district was taking.  Are you familiar

21   with what's referred to as the Utah Public Notice

22   Website?

23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  Actually, last night

24   I received an alert that there's a meeting tomorrow

25   night.
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 1        Q.   And have you subscribed to that?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Just in November.

 3        Q.   Okay.

 4        A.   (Witness Daughter) I wasn't aware of it prior.

 5        Q.   And are you aware of the commission's website

 6   that contains filings from the district as far as they

 7   regard electrical service?

 8        A.   (Witness Daughter) I went in and tried to

 9   locate that before, but TSSD and TUID were very confused

10   within that.  And I wasn't aware of TUID being.  So I

11   tried to.  I did subscribe to the Public Services

12   Commission's, but they eliminated their alerts, I want

13   to say in April.  I got a notice that they no longer

14   would serve alerts in regards to filings or anything

15   with districts.

16        Q.   So since -- after March of 2014, and again,

17   this is -- maybe I'm a little confused because this has

18   been sort of a hectic hearing.  Have you been receiving

19   bills for all of the properties?

20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

21        Q.   Okay.

22        A.   (Witness Daughter) So as of 2014 in March, we

23   started to receive combined billing statements for all

24   properties.

25        Q.   And those combined billing statements, again
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 1   just for the commission's benefit, this is one bill that

 2   has, has charges for all eight lots that you own?

 3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Let me look at the billings

 4   that I have.

 5             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's just right there.  You

 6   just had it there.

 7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I have current ones.  I had

 8   the current ones.

 9             WITNESS MOTHER:  It is for all properties.

10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, I don't know if they

11   are combining seven and eight or if it's separate.

12             WITNESS MOTHER:  Oh, I didn't know that

13   either.  I think it's separate.

14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Seven and eight are

15   combined, so they are not -- they are separate.  But on

16   our property taxes, they are separate.

17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Sure.

18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Utility fees.

19        Q.   We have discussed a little bit the difference

20   between taps and meters or connections.  Again, just to

21   clarify, understanding the district definition of a tap

22   is having utility service, in this case electrical

23   service, available at the property line, so at any edge

24   of the property, do all of the lots that you own in

25   Ticaboo have electrical service or electrical lines
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 1   available at the edge of the property?

 2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 3        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Just to clarify, thank you.

 4        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Well, I am not sure.

 5   Maybe they are and they are not.  I don't know if

 6   there's electrical really cable.  How would I know?

 7   It's buried.  There's pedestals.

 8        Q.   Okay.

 9        A.   (Witness Daughter) But I don't know what --

10        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  That's sufficient.  Can you

11   describe current tenants, if any, that you have?

12        A.   (Witness Daughter) None.

13        Q.   Okay.  In your opinion, would you be able to

14   rent any of these properties without utility service; in

15   particular, electrical service?

16        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Utility?  Did you say

17   power?  With solar, I could, yes.

18        Q.   Do any of your properties have essentially

19   off-the-grid capable solar systems?

20        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.

21        Q.   Okay.

22        A.   (Witness Daughter) But I could purchase a

23   generator.

24             MR. LONG:  I have no further questions.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any
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 1   follow-up?

 2                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 3   BY MR. HOGELIN:

 4        Q.   Have you looked into using alternative

 5   electrical services such as solar or generators?

 6        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.

 7        Q.   And have you notified TUID that you are

 8   interested in using alternative services?

 9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  We have spoke with

10   Tom Hill and Mr. Shortreed.

11        Q.   And did they -- were -- were you told, or is

12   it your understanding that if you use alternative

13   electrical services, that you will no longer have any

14   fees from TUID with regards to electrical?

15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We would still be

16   charged a standby fee.

17             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.  That's all.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Any recross?

19             MR. LONG:  No.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.  You want to

21   call Mr. Shortreed?

22             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  I'd like to discuss one

23   issue with the commission.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

25             MR. LONG:  And I alluded to this earlier.
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 1   Again, the district has come prepared to answer the

 2   commission's questions, and those questions in

 3   particular involve Dockets 13-2508-T01 and 15-2508-T01.

 4   I'd like to point out to the commission at this point in

 5   the proceeding that neither of those dockets involve the

 6   implementation of standby fees.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  It was my understanding that

 8   Docket 13 is where standby fees were first introduced.

 9   Is that not correct?

10             MR. LONG:  Docket 13-2508-T02 is the docket

11   where standby fee -- the new tariff including standby

12   fees was filed with the commission.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Well, perhaps I made a

14   mistake.  I took the docket number, I believe, straight

15   out of your response.

16             MR. LONG:  And I am not promising we made no

17   typos.  We are prepared to address it on a very

18   preliminary basis here.  We would ask that anything

19   regarding the legality of standby fees or the notice

20   provided be --

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  The commission has already

22   stated that standby fees are legal.  The question is

23   whether you have a valid tariff that includes standby

24   fees.  That's the question.  And if you did not comply

25   with the statutory notice requirement to customers and
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 1   to the commission in the docket where you created and

 2   first imposed those standby fees, then you do not have a

 3   valid tariff.  And that's what we're trying to figure

 4   out today.

 5             MR. LONG:  I understand the commission's

 6   position.  I'd like to request the opportunity to

 7   complete some sort of posthearing brief or filing as the

 8   commission feels it necessary.  As based on our readings

 9   of the questions --

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  So let me just figure this

11   out.  What's the docket number where you first created

12   standby fees?

13             MR. LONG:  That's 13-2508-T02.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  So what was the purpose of

15   T01?

16             MR. LONG:  T01 made overall changes to the

17   rate structure.  It set forth different, I guess we

18   would call them, blocked billing schedules.  Essentially

19   changed the way that customers could pay for electrical

20   service.

21             And again, we're prepared to address --

22   address the district's compliance with the requirements

23   as far as Docket 13-2508-T02.  But that hasn't been the

24   top of our preparation.  And understanding that was

25   perhaps a typo or miscommunication by us in the
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 1   beginning, we would simply like the opportunity to file

 2   a posthearing brief if we feel it necessary.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Point of clarification.  So is

 4   the commission asking when tariff -- the standby fees

 5   were introduced?

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct, into the tariff.

 7             MR. HOGELIN:  Although, I think it's not

 8   disputed that in the 2015 tariff it's also included,

 9   correct?

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's included in the 2015

11   tariff, yes.

12             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.  I just wanted to --

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  The question is whether -- is

14   where they were very first introduced.

15             MR. LONG:  So if it's helpful to the

16   commission, in our binder of exhibits, we have the

17   action request response in Docket 13-2508-T02.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

19             MR. LONG:  From the Division of Public

20   Utilities that describes essentially the changes that

21   were made in that tariff filing.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Where is that?

23             MR. LONG:  That's Exhibit 24.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's see.  Okay.  The

25   implementation of standby fees for all services provided
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 1   by district.  That's on page 2 of that exhibit.  Any

 2   objection, Mr. Hogelin, to this Exhibit No. 24?

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection, your Honor.  I'm

 4   sorry.  You were referring to page 2 with regards to --

 5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is there an action number,

 6   did you say?

 7             MR. HOGELIN:  No, no, just...

 8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  This says one.  How come

 9   that one says two?

10             MR. HOGELIN:  Just, Mary, please.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We'll do the best

12   we can and see where it takes us, and if we need

13   posthearing briefing, we'll put together a schedule for

14   that.  Go ahead.

15             MR. LONG:  Okay.  Understood.  Mr. Shortreed

16   has prepared a written statement that he would like to

17   read, as has typically been commission practice.  The

18   hope is that the statement will both set forth the

19   district responses to the commission's seven questions,

20   as well as introduce this entire binder full of

21   exhibits.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead and have him sworn.

23                        CHIP SHORTREED,

24   called as a witness at the instance of the Ticaboo

25   Utility Improvement District, having been first duly
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 1   sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

 2             MR. LONG:  Would you like Mr. Shortreed here?

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.

 4             MR. LONG:  That acceptable?

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

 6             THE WITNESS:  Good morning.  My name is Chip

 7   Shortreed.  I am the district manager for the Ticaboo

 8   Utility Improvement District.  I have been involved with

 9   TUID for a number of years.  With the guidance of the

10   board of trustees, I am responsible for day-to-day

11   operations of TUID and its facilities, including

12   operations and maintenance, billing and finances,

13   customer relations and all other aspects of TUID.  I am

14   the sole full-time employee of TUID.  I am also a

15   resident of Ticaboo and a TUID customer.

16             The major issue in these proceedings has been

17   standby fees charged by TUID.  TUID adopted its standby

18   fees in 2013, and the corresponding tariff changes were

19   filed and acknowledged by the commission on December 6,

20   2013 in commission Docket 13-2508-T02.

21             This docket is not a topic for this hearing

22   per the commission.  Nevertheless, it is important to

23   note that TUID provided the required notice to customers

24   and to the commission of the proposed changes and that

25   the standby fees were acknowledged by the commission.
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 1   Could I just say, as a side-bar, this was written before

 2   what we have talked about today.

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.

 4             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you.  Although the

 5   commission has dismissed all aspects of Mrs. Seamons'

 6   complaint as it relates to standby fees, I want to make

 7   a brief statement on the record about the necessity of

 8   standby fees.

 9             TUID's standby fees are the method by which

10   the costs of keeping and maintaining TUID's utility

11   infrastructure are fairly allocated among the customers

12   that are actively receiving utility service and those

13   property owners to which service is available upon

14   request.  Standby fees as charged by TUID are legal,

15   just, and reasonable.

16             TUID is authorized to charge standby fees,

17   both as an improvement district and as a public utility.

18   Without standby fees, the active customers of TUID would

19   be forced to subsidize the owners of undeveloped

20   properties in Ticaboo.

21             TUID stands ready to provide utility service

22   upon request to a number of yet-to-be-developed

23   properties in Ticaboo, the only full service community

24   within 60 miles.  The fact that utility services are

25   available upon request means that properties in Ticaboo
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 1   can be developed.  Without available utility services,

 2   platted lots in Ticaboo would be worth no more than

 3   barren, undeveloped and unimproved land in the desert.

 4             TUID -- excuse me, TUID incurs expenses to

 5   keep these services available, and standby fees simply

 6   allocate these expenses according to those who benefit.

 7   The commission has very clearly stated that TUID's

 8   standby fees are legal.  In the order issued in this

 9   docket on July 6, 2016, the commission stated, "TUID is

10   correct that standby fees are legal.  The commission has

11   regularly approved and required standby fees in the

12   tariffs of regulated utilities."

13             Further, Utah code, 17B-1-1032J allows a local

14   district to charge, quote, fees or other charges for

15   commodities, services or facilities provided that the

16   district -- provided by the district, end quote.  While

17   the statute does not use the specific term, quote,

18   standby fee, a tap is a facility for which a fee may be

19   charged.

20             The commission has dismissed Ms. Seamons'

21   allegation as to legality in general of the standby fees

22   and as to the legality of the specific rates and

23   policies set forth in TUID's tariff.  That means the

24   standby fees are not at issue today, and I will not

25   address them any further in my statement.
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  Objection.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Sustained.  Go ahead.

 3             THE WITNESS:  May I proceed?

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

 5             THE WITNESS:  In the order in this docket

 6   dated July 6, 2016, the commission listed seven

 7   questions to be answered at this hearing.  I will now

 8   take a few minutes and address each of those questions

 9   in turn.

10             TUID has provided the commission and the other

11   parties with a binder of exhibits that are relevant to

12   the commission's questions, and I ask that those

13   documents be admitted into evidence at the conclusion of

14   my statements.  Footnote:  They already have been, I

15   guess.

16             No. 1, when the commission approved the joint

17   settlement stipulation in Docket No. 15-2508-T01, TUID

18   was ordered to hold a board meeting within 30 days of

19   September 10, 2015, or no later than Saturday, October

20   10th, 2015.  Did TUID comply with that order?

21             Our response:  The stipulated step -- excuse

22   me, the stipulated settlement in question was submitted

23   by the division on August 20th, 2015, with a proposed

24   settlement stipulation.  The division also filed revised

25   tariff sheets to reflect the terms of the stipulated
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 1   settlement.

 2             On August 27, 2015, TUID had a publicly and

 3   properly noticed board meeting to approve the settlement

 4   and the revised tariff sheets, although this was prior

 5   to the issuance of the order from the commission on

 6   September 10th, 2015, approving the settlement,

 7   stipulated settlement.  TUID took board action prior to

 8   the issuance of the actual order as the board was

 9   confident that the commission would approve the

10   settlement as requested by the division.

11             On November 18, 2015, Justin Jetter, one of

12   the attorneys for the division, e-mailed TUID's attorney

13   to check if the required board meeting had been held to

14   adopt the changes in the stipulated settlement.  On that

15   same day TUID's attorney replied to Mr. Jetter and sent

16   him the resolution approving the changes, as well as the

17   minutes from that meeting.

18             The stipulated settlement is marked as Exhibit

19   TUID-001.  The red-lined revised tariff sheets submitted

20   by the division are marked as Exhibit TUID-002.

21   Resolution 2015-0019 approving the tariff changes is

22   marked as Exhibit TUID-003.

23             The minutes of the August 27, 2015, meeting

24   are marked as Exhibit TUID-004.  The e-mail

25   correspondence between Mr. Jetter and TUID's attorney is
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 1   marked as Exhibit TUID-005.  The notice of the August

 2   27th meeting posted on the public notice website is

 3   marked as Exhibit TUID-006.  The agenda for the August

 4   27th meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-007.

 5             No. 2, if TUID held the board meeting as

 6   ordered in Docket No. 15-2058-T01, did it also file its

 7   revised tariff with the commission within the ensuing 15

 8   days?  Through an unfortunate oversight, TUID did not

 9   file the revised tariff with the commission within 15

10   days of the board meeting.

11             Please note that the board meeting

12   contemplated by the commission had already happened by

13   the time this order was issued.  To meet the special

14   15-day requirement as set by the commission in this

15   unique case, TUID would have needed to file the revised

16   tariff within two days of the order.  TUID should have

17   completed that file, but mistakenly failed to do so.

18             The changes in this update tariff are

19   relatively minor and deal with tampering fees and some

20   details regarding service to tenant-occupied properties.

21   I am sorry, tenant, hyphen, occupied properties.  From

22   TUID's perspective, this -- these changes do not have

23   any material effect on Ms. Seamons' claims that are

24   currently at issue.

25             Notice was given of the board meeting by
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 1   public notice website.  See footnotes.  You can see that

 2   in our footnotes from our previous response, and posted

 3   at the meeting location in compliance with the Utah Open

 4   and Public Meetings Act, thus giving notice of the

 5   pending changes to any interested parties.

 6             The fact that TUID mistakenly failed to file

 7   its revised tariff sheets did not disadvantage

 8   Mrs. Seamons, as all of the changes to be made to the

 9   tariff were discussed in the stipulated settlement and

10   were also shown on the tariff sheets the division filed

11   along with the stipulated settlement on August 21st,

12   2015.

13             TUID did file, including the changes as agreed

14   to in the stipulated settlement, on March 1st, 2016, in

15   Docket 16-2508-T01.  The division reviewed those changes

16   and recommended that the commission acknowledge the

17   changes on March 30th, 2016.  On April 20th, 2016, the

18   commission issued a letter acknowledging the changes on

19   March 31st, 2016.

20             No. 3, did TUID hold public meetings for

21   customers as required under Utah Code 17B-2A-406,

22   (6)(A)(iii), both as to Docket 13-2508-T01 and as to

23   Docket No. 15-2508-T01?  If so, was Mrs. Seamons

24   properly notified of the public meetings pursuant to

25   Utah code 17B-2A-406, (6)(A)(iii).
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 1             Some background is useful in this case to

 2   understand the tariff changes filed with the commission

 3   in these two dockets.  The tariff changes filed with the

 4   commission, Docket 13-2508-T01, set up a variety of

 5   different electric service schedules designed to meet

 6   customers needs and provide predictable revenue to TUID

 7   and set an enrollment period for these different service

 8   schedules.

 9             These changes are described in the division's

10   action response dated May 30th, 2013, which is marked as

11   Exhibit TUID-026.  Docket 15-2508-T01 changed certain

12   definitions, required landlords to be responsible for

13   utilities instead of tenants, clarified the ability of

14   property owners to fully abandon the taps on their

15   properties, and made other changes.

16             The division's action request response

17   describing these changes is marked as Exhibit TUID-027.

18   In that docket TUID and the division disagreed on

19   several issues.  However, those issues were eventually

20   resolved, and TUID and the division agreed to a

21   settlement that was approved by the commission.

22             As part of that stipulation, TUID agreed to

23   make certain changes to its tariff, including reducing

24   the charges for tampering or unauthorized connections,

25   clarifying that a landlord can have separate accounts
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 1   for multiple rental properties, and made it clear that

 2   tenants may request the status of the landlord's

 3   utilities account for that particular property.  As

 4   noted previously, the stipulation is marked as Exhibit

 5   TUID-001.

 6             As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a regular

 7   meeting of the board -- of the TUID board on April 11,

 8   2013, the board discussed proposed changes to TUID's

 9   electric rates and rules and scheduled a public hearing

10   on the changes for April 29th, 2013.

11             Customers were notified at that meeting by a

12   U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website,

13   publication of notice in the local newspaper on April

14   18th and 25th, and posting notice of the hearing on

15   TUID's community bulletin board located by the community

16   mailboxes on Ticaboo Drive.  I, personally mailed the

17   notices and posted the notice on the TUID community

18   bulletin board.

19             The agenda and minutes of the April 11th

20   meeting are marked as Exhibit TUID-008.  The notice of

21   the April 29th meeting, as posted on the public notice

22   website is marked as Exhibit TUID-009.  The published

23   notice of the April 29th meeting is marked as Exhibit

24   TUID-010.

25             That public hearing was indeed held on April
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 1   29, 2013.  On that same day the proposed rate changes

 2   were approved by Resolution 2013-0008.  The other tariff

 3   changes were approved by Resolution 2013-0009.  TUID

 4   then submitted the tariff changes in Docket 13-2508-T01,

 5   and the commission issued its letter acknowledging the

 6   tariff on June 14th, 2013.  Mrs. Seamons did not provide

 7   comments or otherwise involve herself in the TUID board

 8   meetings or in the related commission docket.

 9             The minutes of the April 29th meeting are

10   marked as Exhibit TUID-011.  Resolution 2013-008 is

11   marked as Exhibit TUID-012.  Resolution 2013-009 -- I'm

12   sorry, 0009, is marked as Exhibit TUID-013.  The

13   commission's tariff acknowledgement letter in Docket

14   13-2508-T01 is marked as Exhibit TUID-014.

15             As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a public and

16   properly noticed board meeting held on March 21st, 2014,

17   the TUI -- TUID board made changes to rules regarding

18   the abandonment of taps and imposing an increased

19   penalty charge for unauthorized connection or tampering.

20             Customers were notified of this meeting by

21   U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website, posting

22   of notice on the TUID community bulletin board, and I,

23   personally mailed the notices and made the posting on

24   the public notice website and on the community bulletin

25   board.
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 1             Mrs. Seamons was in attendance at this

 2   meeting, and her attendance is noted in the meeting

 3   minutes.  Mrs. Seamons was provided with actual notice

 4   of this meeting, as is shown by her attendance.  Note

 5   that the tampering fees that were adopted at this

 6   meeting were later decreased as part of the settlement

 7   stipulation that I mentioned earlier.

 8             The minutes of the March 21st meeting are

 9   marked as Exhibit TUID-015.  The agenda for the March

10   21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-016.  The notice

11   of the March 21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-017.

12             No. 4, when did TUID first begin to charge

13   Mrs. Seamons' standby fees?  TUID first began charging

14   standby fees to Mrs. Seamons and other property owners

15   on August 1st -- excuse me, correct that.  October 1st,

16   2013.  As I noted previously, the standby fees were

17   implemented with the tariff changes filed with the

18   commission in Docket 13-2508-T02.

19             The division reviewed the proposed changes and

20   recommended that the commission acknowledge the tariff

21   changes in the letter dated November 19th, 2013.  The

22   commission acknowledged the changes on December 6th,

23   2013.  The changes were effective on September 1st,

24   2013, and the charges for standby fees began October 1st

25   of 2013.
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 1             The division's recommendation letter in Docket

 2   13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-018.  The

 3   commission's acknowledgement letter in Docket

 4   13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-019.

 5             No. 5, does TUID allow contracts with tenants?

 6   If so, are Mrs. Seamons' tenants entitled to similar

 7   consideration?  Excuse me.

 8             TUID is required to follow its tariff.  In

 9   accordance with the tariff, TUID does not -- excuse me,

10   TUID generally does not allow for contracts directly

11   with tenants.  The tariff allows for exceptions in the

12   case of long-term existing tenants that are TUID

13   customers in good standing.  Even if such an exception

14   is granted, if service is disconnected and then later

15   reconnected, the landlord will be responsible for

16   utility services in accordance with the general rule.

17             As far as TUID is aware, none of the tenants

18   in Mrs. Seamons' properties would qualify for this

19   exception.  If Mrs. Seamons has long-term tenants that

20   may fit this exception, TUID will of course discuss this

21   issue with her.

22             Simply stated, the purpose of this rule is to

23   make sure that TUID is paid for the services it

24   provides.  Ticaboo generally has a large number of

25   seasonal, temporary residents, and TUID has found that
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 1   collecting past-due fees from former tenants of rental

 2   properties is often difficult.

 3             Once a tenant moves away from Ticaboo, the

 4   only way for TUID to collect those fees is to sue the

 5   former tenant, obtain a judgment against that tenant,

 6   and collect on that judgment.  Suing a former tenant for

 7   a few hundred or even a few thousand dollars in unpaid

 8   fees is generally not cost effective.  And even once a

 9   judgment is obtained, collecting on a judgment is often

10   impossible.

11             In the end, when a tenant moves away without

12   paying their utility bills, TUID is simply unable to

13   collect.  Since TUID is a governmental -- local

14   governmental entity, TUID relies completely on revenues

15   from utility services to pay its expenses.  When a

16   customer does not pay and TUID is unable to collect, the

17   funds to cover the services that customer received must

18   necessarily come from the remaining TUID customers.

19             TUID believes that is not fair for those other

20   customers to pay more than their fair share.  For many

21   larger utilities a few nonpaying customers may not be a

22   serious issue.  However, for TUID, the matter of a few

23   thousand dollars in unpaid fees is a serious issue, and

24   those costs eventually must be paid by the remaining

25   customers.
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 1             By making landlords responsible for utility

 2   services, TUID increases the likelihood that it will

 3   actually receive payment for those services it provides.

 4   A tenant in a given property must pay for utility

 5   services.  Whether that tenant pays for those services

 6   as part of the rent to the landlord or directly to TUID

 7   as a customer is really irrelevant as the amounts due

 8   for the services are the same.

 9             Requiring that landlords are responsible for

10   the utilities makes sense as the landlord is the person

11   screening and selecting tenants that are likely to pay

12   their bills.  There is no premium to be charged or added

13   expense in requiring that landlords be responsible for

14   utilities, and the tenants are no worse off.  The policy

15   simply increases the ability of TUID to collect the

16   amounts it is owed.

17             No. 6, has TUID mailed a customer information

18   pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons as required under the tariff

19   and by commission rule?

20             TUID has mailed the customer information

21   pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons.  I mailed the pamphlets every

22   year myself to the addresses on file with TUID in

23   September or October with the monthly bills.  TUID does

24   not obtain proof of delivery of these mailings, as

25   mailing those notices via certified mail or some similar
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 1   method would be an unnecessary expense and an unneeded

 2   strain on an already very tight budget.

 3             The customer information pamphlet is available

 4   on the TUID website as well, along with a variety of

 5   other documents and information.  The current version of

 6   the -- the current version of the pamphlet is marked as

 7   Exhibit TUID-028.

 8             No. 7, has TUID removed taps from

 9   Mrs. Seamons' properties or property?  If so, what were

10   the circumstances under which the taps were removed?

11             TUID has not physically removed any of the

12   taps from any of Mrs. Seamons' multiple properties.

13   Note that, quote, taps are the physical connections to a

14   particular property for a particular service, such as

15   service laterals for water and sewer service or a power

16   line terminating on the property.

17             I also wish to offer my testimony as to

18   several other minor matters not covered by the

19   commission's specific list of questions.  TUID has

20   mailed the annual customer information pamphlet --

21             MR. HOGELIN:  Objection, your Honor.  He has

22   already admitted to the fact that he is going to be --

23   I'm sorry.  Objection.  He's stating that he's going to

24   be making statements outside of the scope of what the

25   commission has requested to be presented today.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Response?

 2             MR. LONG:  I believe the hearing to this point

 3   has been in large part outside of the bounds of those

 4   seven questions, particularly anything regarding Docket

 5   13-2508-T02 is technically outside the bounds of those

 6   questions as written.  I understand that that may have

 7   been a typo or miscommunication somewhere along the

 8   line, but an objection now seems unfounded.

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, if -- you know, counsel is

10   raising that one issue.  I mean, but he's stating that

11   he's going to go outside the scope on a number of

12   issues.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  What issues do you want to

14   address, Mr. Shortreed?

15             THE WITNESS:  Ma'am, I'm addressing the

16   customer information pamphlet and addressing standby

17   fees as they relate to Docket 13-2508-T02.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  I do need information about

19   Docket 13-T02.  If we can deal with it here, that would

20   be great.  I would hate to have to continue this hearing

21   and call you all back from the south of the state.  It

22   is unfortunate that we didn't get the correct docket

23   number.  That well could be my mistake, so I'd like to

24   do what we can on that docket.

25             MR. LONG:  And if I may, the topics that
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 1   Mr. Shortreed is going to address in the last little bit

 2   of his statement are topics that have been raised by

 3   Ms. Seamons in various filings, you know, perhaps

 4   outside of those seven questions.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Let's go ahead and hear

 6   what you have to say, Mr. Shortreed.

 7             THE WITNESS:  I also wish to offer my

 8   testimony as to several other minor matters not covered

 9   by the commission's specific list of questions.  TUID

10   has mailed the annual customer information pamphlets

11   every year as required by its tariff and the

12   commission's rules.

13             Mrs. Seamons alleges that she has not received

14   this pamphlet.  While TUID does not have any information

15   about whether Mrs. Seamons actually received the

16   pamphlet, I did send out these pamphlets every year as

17   required by the tariff.

18             Mrs. Seamons also alleges that the tariff is

19   not publicly available in the TUID office and that the

20   required notice is not posted in the office.  Based on

21   my own personal knowledge as district manager and the

22   sole full-time employee of TUID, the tariff is indeed

23   available for public inspection, and the notice is

24   posted in the office stating that the rate schedules are

25   available for inspection.
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 1             TUID also posts a variety of information on

 2   its basic website, and all tariff filings are available

 3   on the commission's website.

 4             MR. LONG:  If I may interrupt Mr. Shortreed, I

 5   think now would be a time to discuss briefly

 6   13-2508-T02, even though we had assumed it was outside

 7   the bounds of this hearing.  If that's acceptable to the

 8   commission, Mr. Shortreed has prepared a very short

 9   statement on that.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Please go ahead.

11             THE WITNESS:  Standby fees were proposed in a

12   regular TUID board meeting on August 8th, 2013.  TUID

13   mailed notice to all customers of the proposed rate

14   changes and hearing, published notice in the newspaper

15   of the proposed rate increase and hearing on August

16   15th, 2013, and posted a similar notice on the TUID

17   community bulletin board.

18             I, personally mailed those notices.  The

19   public hearing and public meeting to adopt the proposed

20   standby fees was held on August 29, 2013, as scheduled.

21   TUID adopted the standby fees with Resolution 2013-0017

22   on August 29th, 2013, and the rate went into effect

23   September 1st, 2013.

24             TUID filed its revised tariff sheet with the

25   commission on October 16th, 2013.  The division
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 1   recommended that the commission acknowledge the revised

 2   tariff sheets on November 19th, 2013.  The commission

 3   acknowledged the revised tariff sheets on December 6th,

 4   2013.

 5             In addition to the notices required prior to

 6   adopting the standby fees, TUID also mailed information

 7   brochures to all customers explaining the necessity of

 8   the standby fees and answering common questions about

 9   the standby fees.

10             August 8th, 2013, meeting minutes are Exhibit

11   TUID-020.  The published notice of the proposed rate

12   change and public hearing is marked as Exhibit TUID-021.

13   August 29, 2013, meeting minutes are marked as Exhibit

14   TUID-022.  Resolution 2013-0017 is marked as Exhibit

15   TUID-023.  The division recommendation is marked as

16   Exhibit TUID-024.  And the commission's acknowledgement

17   letter is marked as Exhibit TUID-025.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just ask you

19   some questions.  On Docket 13-T02, what was the date

20   that you mailed out the customer notices?

21             THE WITNESS:  It was the same day that I

22   published the notices.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  So what date was that?

24             THE WITNESS:  Prior to August -- prior or on

25   to August 15th, immediately following the board meeting.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So on August 15th you

 2   mailed out a notice as to an August 29th, 2013, meeting?

 3             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you have a copy of that

 5   notice for me?

 6             THE WITNESS:  Not here, no, ma'am, and I don't

 7   know if I have one.  I can't readily state that right

 8   now.

 9             MR. LONG:  We do have a copy of the published

10   notice that made it in the newspaper marked as one of

11   our exhibits.  Perhaps Mr. Shortreed can testify the

12   notice mailed out was substantially the same as that

13   notice.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, here's the difficulty.

15   Under the statute, the statute does not acknowledge a

16   website notice or a newspaper notice.  The only thing

17   that qualifies you for exemption from commission

18   oversight of your tariff is if you mail a notice at

19   least 10 days ahead of the date on which you hold the

20   public meeting.

21             So that's what I am trying to figure out, is

22   where is that public notice and when was it mailed.  So

23   I believe that is your burden to demonstrate, and if all

24   we have got is a customer testimony saying, "Never got

25   one," and you saying, "I am absolutely sure I mailed
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 1   that," then this gets decided on the burden of proof.

 2   And it's your burden.

 3             MR. LONG:  Understood and, you know, had we

 4   known this docket was coming three years later, we

 5   perhaps would have sent those in some sort of trackable

 6   format.  Barring that, Mr. Shortreed can testify that he

 7   mailed the notices, to the contents of the notices and

 8   can also testify as to the standard practice and

 9   procedures of the district.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's look then at

11   the August 29th, 2013, public meeting, in which the

12   changes that included the introduction of standby fees

13   were to be proposed and discussed.  I -- we have in the

14   record a printout of your website, your public notices

15   website.  Where on that website is this August 29th,

16   2013, meeting noticed?

17             Here is what I see.  I see a post on February

18   6, 2016, of a meeting that occurred prior to that, on

19   January 28th, 2016.  I see a post on February 6th, 2016.

20   Then a post on May 20th, 2015, again as to a meeting

21   that took place previously on April 23rd, 2015.  And

22   notice of a public meeting for June 11th, 2015.

23             There is a post on May 20th, 2015, a post on

24   November 11th, 2013, and then a post on April 20th,

25   2013.  As I have gone through here, I don't see anything
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 1   on your website that talks about an August 29th, 2013,

 2   meeting.  Am I missing that?

 3             MR. LONG:  Without looking at the public

 4   notice website, I'm not sure we can speak to that.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Here is the printout.  Would

 6   you like a minute to look it over?

 7             MR. LONG:  If that would be helpful to the

 8   commission, certainly.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  That would be great.  Let's go

10   off the record for about 10 minutes.

11             (Recess from 11:35 a.m. to 11:46 a.m.)

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.  Help me

13   out with the August 29th, 2013 meeting, if you can, and

14   if you can't today, then we'll figure out how to deal

15   with that.

16             MR. LONG:  And I think it may be the latter.

17   I am looking at this right here, and this is a printout

18   from Ticaboo's own website?

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.

20             MR. LONG:  Not the public notice website.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.

22             MR. LONG:  And off the top of my head the

23   district is not required to provide electronic notice on

24   its own website of public meetings.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.
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 1             MR. LONG:  And again, just off the top of my

 2   head, and again, this may be better addressed in a

 3   written filing, unless we are all very up to speed on

 4   our Open and Public Meeting Act's requirements.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am pretty up to speed.  But

 6   what -- I am not concerned about whether you complied

 7   with the Open and Public Meetings Act.

 8             MR. LONG:  Okay.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am concerned with whether

10   you complied with 17B, which requires mailed notice of

11   the August 29th, 2013, meeting to customers at least 10

12   days ahead of that date.  And that's, that's really the

13   critical issue in this case, is whether that notice was

14   mailed out.

15             So, I mean, if I were running a small utility

16   like this, and I were trying to be sure that I stayed

17   within my exemption, I would have a copy of that notice.

18   I would -- you have got 80-some customers.  I would

19   maybe even photocopy a few of the envelopes to keep in

20   my files as evidence that they were in fact mailed.

21             That's up to you, of course, how you handle

22   that.  But I, I need to see whatever you have got to

23   demonstrate that you mailed out a notice at least on --

24   what's 10 days before the 29th?  August 19th, 2013.  And

25   perhaps we'd have to deal with that after the hearing.
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 1             MR. LONG:  And that may be true.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.

 3             MR. LONG:  We don't have any evidence of a --

 4   we don't have a photocopy of that mailing or something

 5   to that extent.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I have some

 7   additional questions.  Of your 80-some-odd customers,

 8   how many of those lots -- or 80-some-odd lots that you

 9   are either serving or standing ready to serve, how many

10   of those are standby properties for electricity?  Do you

11   know?  Even an estimate would be helpful.

12             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  I'd like to

13   correct, though, that it's approximately 124 customers

14   that are billed for active or standby services.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

16             THE WITNESS:  As a rough estimate of that, I

17   would say that on a guess, probably 60 of those.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  About half -- almost half, not

19   quite half.

20             THE WITNESS:  That would be my best guess,

21   yes, ma'am.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are standbys, okay.  And of

23   those, do you -- again, do you know -- and you might

24   not.  Of those 60, how many have structures on the

25   premises where, you know, upon notice to you, you can do
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 1   something in your computer, and they can flick the

 2   switch and the lights come on?  Versus how many are

 3   vacant lots with nothing built?

 4             THE WITNESS:  Well, I can't give you a

 5   specific number, ma'am.  I can say a majority are vacant

 6   lots with nothing built on them.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Majority are vacant, okay.  So

 8   of those that are vacant, how many are liened for unpaid

 9   standby fees?

10             THE WITNESS:  I believe at my last

11   certification with the Garfield County treasurer, we

12   were at 13.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thirteen liens, 13 liened

14   properties.  Have you foreclosed?

15             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I need to understand

17   what you consider to be -- mean that you are ready,

18   willing and able to deliver service to a vacant lot.

19             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Does that mean simply that you

21   have your main supply line running through your utility

22   easement on the property?  Or does that mean that you

23   have a direct drop line from your supply line to a point

24   on the property where a structure might be built?

25             THE WITNESS:  To a point on the property where
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 1   the structure might be built for all utility services.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  So there is a line outside of

 3   the utility easement onto a potential building site on

 4   the property?

 5             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  In every case?

 7             THE WITNESS:  No.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So do you charge --

 9             THE WITNESS:  In every -- I'm sorry, ma'am.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you charge a standby fee

11   even where you don't have a drop line to a building site

12   or a potential building site?

13             THE WITNESS:  Can I have a moment?

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

15             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, ma'am.  Ticaboo is a

16   very difficult situation when it comes to the

17   infrastructure because it was constructed in two

18   primarily different ways.  In the mobile home park,

19   where Mrs. Seamons' property -- Mrs. Seamons' properties

20   are, all of the utility electric lines are run to the

21   perimeter or to the property on the back side of the

22   property, where there is a ped in place for the customer

23   to be able to connect from the home to the ped.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

25             THE WITNESS:  Now, in the estates it's a
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 1   little bit different, which is another platted section

 2   of the -- of Ticaboo, where the lines run parallel to

 3   the property on the property line.  But because the lots

 4   are vacant, there may not be a connection to a customer

 5   home because there is no lot -- no home there.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's, let's talk

 7   about the mobile home sites.  And correct me if I am

 8   wrong.  Does -- is that what all of these properties

 9   are?  They are all within a mobile home park?

10             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if Ms. Seamons had a

12   tenant bring in a mobile home and site it on her

13   property, how long would it take for you to deliver

14   electricity to that mobile home?

15             THE WITNESS:  In accordance with our rules and

16   regulations, it would be immediate.  Only the customer

17   would have to extend the customer service from the home

18   to the ped.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So there's a drop line

20   available --

21             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- to each of those.  Okay.

23             THE WITNESS:  One second.  Yeah, there's a ped

24   on every mobile home lot except for maybe one or two.

25   In Mrs. Seamons' case, they are all there.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So these properties

 2   were all purchased prior to the date on which you first

 3   imposed standby fees.  So -- and you have got maybe a

 4   third of your customers who, who own vacant lots not

 5   paying the standby fees.  And yet you have made the

 6   argument that these fees are necessary to the health and

 7   the ongoing operations of the company.

 8             So my question is, how were you functioning

 9   before 2013 without them?  And how are you continuing to

10   function where at least a third of your standby

11   customers are not paying?

12             THE WITNESS:  Do you want me to be blunt and

13   frank?

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes, I do.

15             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So prior to the

16   implementation of the standby fees, we were operating

17   dramatically in the red as a utility district, as an

18   improvement district, barely making enough money to be

19   able to pay for fuel through usage fees and everything

20   else.  Oftentimes problems were dealt with in the best

21   way that we could, given the finances that we had at the

22   time, which unfortunately was how the utilities were

23   handled in the town of Ticaboo for 35 years prior to the

24   Ticaboo Electric Improvement District Coming into

25   existence in 2009, and going into operations in 2010.
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 1             At that time, the board of trustees realized

 2   that we had to do something in order to be able to

 3   ensure that we could deliver reliable service on demand

 4   to our customers, in an effort to be able to improve

 5   those customer relations.  And also while it is not our

 6   responsibility to promote economic development, but to

 7   be able to support it if economic development were to

 8   happen.

 9             So 2013 was a very tumultuous year in that

10   regards.  Is that me that keeps knocking this with my

11   voice?

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.

13             THE WITNESS:  I apologize.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's all right.

15             THE WITNESS:  In 2013 was a very involved year

16   because we got involved in so many different things to

17   fix.  We started fixing the things that needed to be

18   fixed in town to be able to ensure we could deliver that

19   service when required.

20             MR. LONG:  And I think it may be worth noting

21   that at this point nobody was getting paid for any of

22   this work.

23             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  There were no

24   paid staff members for much of that time.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  So let's
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 1   turn to the tariff itself.  I read through it very

 2   carefully.  Where is the language that says that the

 3   restriction against the tenant contract is waived or

 4   lifted if we're dealing with a long-term tenant?

 5             THE WITNESS:  Ma'am, I don't have that in

 6   front of me, but I believe it's in Section 8, if I

 7   remember right.  It may be 8.02.  But I don't have that

 8   in front of me, but it does state in there an exception

 9   paragraph.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

11             THE WITNESS:  An exception paragraph does

12   stipulate that -- I'd like to say, ma'am, that we

13   actually instituted that exception based upon public

14   comment and concerns.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

16             THE WITNESS:  Primarily because of SITLA

17   properties.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

19             THE WITNESS:  So we understood those concerns,

20   and by putting that exception in place, we were able to

21   ensure that none of the existing SITLA tenants were -- I

22   hate to be harsh -- but summarily evicted because SITLA

23   won't be responsible for utility bills, just as a part

24   of their policy.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So have you allowed a
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 1   long-term tenant contract under any owner other than

 2   SITLA?

 3             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 5             THE WITNESS:  Me, for example.  I am a renter

 6   in Ticaboo, ma'am.  And I was a long-time customer prior

 7   to this rule being put in place.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  So on the 2015 T docket where

 9   you entered into the stipulation with the division, it

10   was sometime later that the commission issued the order

11   approving the stipulation.  During that period of time

12   that passed, you held a public meeting.

13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, excuse me.  You held a

15   board meeting.  And in the statement that you have read,

16   you have identified exhibits where that board meeting --

17   where the board meeting minutes are and so on, correct?

18             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you also hold a public

20   meeting?

21             THE WITNESS:  All of our board meetings are

22   public, ma'am.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you send out a mailed

24   customer notice of a public meeting with regard to the

25   tariff changes?
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 1             THE WITNESS:  I would have to admittingly say

 2   where the tariff changes were concerned, no, ma'am,

 3   because we weren't instituting any rate changes.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 5             THE WITNESS:  It was just agreeing to the

 6   settlement stipulation that Mr. Jetter had drafted and

 7   sent forward as part of that T docket.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  But it did include,

 9   though, a penalty fee for tampering.  You had proposed a

10   thousand dollars per day.  But then you agreed with the

11   division to take it down to a hundred dollars per day.

12   So this was a new tariff charge.

13             And my question is whether you noticed within

14   10 days of a public meeting, sent a notice to customers

15   within 10 days prior to the public meeting saying,

16   "We're putting a new fee in our tariff.  It's been

17   approved by the board, or it's going to be approved by

18   the board, and here is our public meeting for customers

19   to come and talk to us about this."

20             THE WITNESS:  Factually, ma'am, that

21   particular tampering rate was already in place, and

22   during this particular T docket it was brought up as a

23   point of concern or contention.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

25             THE WITNESS:  And was then settled upon
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 1   because I believe, if memory serves me right, our

 2   original charge was a thousand dollars per incident per

 3   day.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 5             THE WITNESS:  And then through the settlement

 6   stipulation with the division, we changed it to a

 7   thousand dollars per incident, a hundred dollars per

 8   day.  Now, having said that, I cannot sit here in front

 9   of you and tell you that I sent out a notice for a

10   reduction in a fee.  I have no recollection of sending

11   such a notice out to my customers.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am going to have

13   to -- I am going to have to check again the records of

14   that because my, my sense is that the tampering fine was

15   brand-new in the tariff in that 2015 docket.  You think

16   you had a tampering fine in place prior to that?

17             MR. LONG:  I can maybe shed a little bit of

18   light without looking at the details.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Great.

20             MR. LONG:  The tampering fee has in recent

21   memory always been $1,000 per incident.  In the very

22   beginning of that docket, 15-2508-T01, that fee was

23   increased to $1,000 per incident plus a $1,000 per-day

24   tampering fee.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Per day, okay.
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 1             MR. LONG:  Going off the top of my head, I

 2   believe the district complied with all the notice

 3   requirements for that initial change.  At that point,

 4   when those -- when those changes were filed with the

 5   commission, the division had some objections to them.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 7             MR. LONG:  And this was a situation where the

 8   district and the division have some -- and probably

 9   still have some disagreement about how far the

10   commission's jurisdiction extends.

11             At any rate, in the settlement stipulation

12   that we have introduced as Exhibit TUID-001, we

13   essentially came to a conclusion on the points the

14   division had problems with.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

16             MR. LONG:  And that tampering fee was reduced,

17   so -- in the district.  And the tampering fee was

18   effective upon filing with the commission.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  So wait.  But you just said

20   that prior to the 2015 docket, the tampering fee was a

21   thousand dollars per incident, no per-day fine, correct?

22             MR. LONG:  Correct.

23             JUDGE JONSSON:  So through the 2015 docket you

24   implemented a per-day fine.

25             MR. LONG:  Uh-huh.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  And the dispute between the

 2   district and the division was what the number would be,

 3   correct?

 4             MR. LONG:  Correct, and perhaps it's useful to

 5   think of that 2015 docket as two separate tariff

 6   changes.  We had the initial tariff changes done by the

 7   district on -- I'd have to go look at the docket.  At

 8   any rate, at the very beginning of that docket, that

 9   docket started -- that docket started after the district

10   had adopted those changes, and following the

11   requirements, the district is required to file the

12   tariff with the commission.

13             So at that point, from the district's

14   perspective, the tariff was effective.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  So here is my question.  Did

16   you mail out a notice of a public meeting that included

17   discussion of a per-day tampering fine, whatever the

18   amount was?

19             MR. LONG:  I'd have to defer to Mr. Shortreed,

20   and perhaps this is something that needs looked at,

21   but --

22             THE WITNESS:  I would have to go back and

23   check my records on that, ma'am.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

25             MR. LONG:  But Mr. Shortreed perhaps can tell

0134

 1   us if it's the district's policy to mail out notice of

 2   any rate increases or any increases that would cause

 3   dollars paid by customers to go up.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I think that's what the

 5   statute requires.

 6             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, and that is also

 7   what we follow.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  Just for the record, we do have

10   a copy of the tariff that was effective, and this is

11   redlined, July 25th.  Or I'm sorry, March 21st of

12   2000 -- I'm sorry.  Never mind.  I withdraw.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  So we have

14   Ms. Seamons' testimony that the district removed meters

15   from a rental property twice.  And your -- in your

16   statement that you read, it seemed to me that you were

17   stating that that's simply not true.  Well, you said no

18   taps were removed.

19             So this is what I want to know.  Is a tap in

20   your mind equivalent with a drop line?  Is that the same

21   thing?

22             THE WITNESS:  What is your definition of a

23   drop line, ma'am?

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  A drop line is dedicated line

25   from your main supply source that runs through your
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 1   easement, to the property.  So here is your main --

 2             THE WITNESS:  Saying electric pedestal, ma'am?

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  I don't know what an electric

 4   pedestal is.  Here is your supply line that runs through

 5   your easement.  Here is the property.  Here is your drop

 6   line right there.  Where is -- what is the tap?

 7             THE WITNESS:  The tap is anything from the

 8   main line to service on the property.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

10             THE WITNESS:  To a pedestal, to a meter.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So you have never

12   pulled the drop line?

13             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  You have never pulled the tap.

15             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Have you pulled a

17   meter?

18             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Did you comply with the

20   commission's rules for notice to the customer before

21   pulling that meter?

22             THE WITNESS:  I would have complied with those

23   rules, ma'am, if I were terminating the service.  But

24   the service was requested to be terminated by the

25   tenant.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Say that again.

 2             THE WITNESS:  Had I enforced a termination

 3   rule in accordance with the rules, I would have had to

 4   have properly noticed.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  What do you consider to

 6   be termination of electrical service?

 7             THE WITNESS:  Something as -- of an adverse

 8   nature, such as no payment on the bill.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, that would be grounds

10   for termination.  From the customer's point of view, if

11   I flip the switch and it doesn't come on, the

12   electricity doesn't come on, have I been terminated?

13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  But in this

14   particular circumstance, it was cited by Mrs. Seamons.

15   The customer at the time, who was a tenant of

16   Mrs. Seamons, requested the service in writing to be

17   turned off.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

19             THE WITNESS:  They made that request of us.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

21             THE WITNESS:  As a matter of fact that --

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is that in the record?  Is

23   that written request in the record?

24             THE WITNESS:  I do not believe that it is,

25   ma'am.
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  We have a copy of it.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, it's the original but...

 4             THE WITNESS:  And that should be a letter from

 5   Jim and Valerie Hills, ma'am.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what action did you

 7   take on receiving this letter?  Shall we put this in the

 8   record?  Let's do.  Let's make this Complainant's

 9   Exhibit 8.  Will you go run a couple copies of this?

10             So what action did you take on receiving that

11   letter?

12             THE WITNESS:  Correct me if I'm wrong, ma'am,

13   but the rules state that at least three days of notice

14   have to be given for the turning on or turning off of a

15   service, and arrangements were made with Mr. and

16   Mrs. Hills to turn off the service after they had

17   vacated the property.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So were the tenants

19   your customers?  Did they have an account with you?

20             THE WITNESS:  At that time, yes, ma'am.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  They did at that time.

22             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, because that was

23   prior to that rule change.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And then when you

25   pulled the meter and discontinued their service, you
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 1   also began charging standby fees to the owner.  Is that

 2   correct?

 3             THE WITNESS:  I don't know how that timeline

 4   falls, ma'am.  I would have to go back and check that.

 5             MR. HOGELIN:  Your Honor, let the accounts

 6   that we admitted as exhibits show that the standby fees

 7   did take effect after that.

 8             THE WITNESS:  That's 1115.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.

10             THE WITNESS:  Actually, ma'am, in answer to

11   your question, at the time that Mr. and Mrs. Hills

12   vacated the premises just so happened to be at the time

13   the standby fees were adopted by the board and made part

14   of the resolution -- or part of the tariff.  So that

15   following month the standby fees would have started to

16   be charged, yes, ma'am.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if the tenant had

18   requested to permanently abandon service, what would

19   have been your response?

20             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.  That has to come

21   from a property owner per our rules.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Property owner.

23             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Any

25   cross-examination?
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.

 3                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

 4   BY MR. HOGELIN:

 5        Q.   Mr. Shortreed, in your epilog, you stated that

 6   the standby fees started in October of 2013?

 7        A.   Yes, sir.  That's when they were billed with

 8   the October 1st billing that went out, which was for the

 9   month of September.

10        Q.   Okay.  So there has been a number of exhibits

11   submitted today with -- of account summaries provided by

12   your office and possibly by you to Ms. Seamons that

13   reflects the standby fees actually started in September.

14   Why does your testimony conflict with the account audit

15   histories that you provided to Ms. Seamons?

16        A.   They don't conflict, sir.  Our billing date is

17   October 1st for the month, September, that was billed

18   for.

19        Q.   Okay.  But you --

20        A.   So they were billed October 1st for the

21   standby fees.

22        Q.   But they were filled for September?

23        A.   For September services, yes, sir.

24        Q.   All right.  So just a clarification there.

25   You also testified that you were granted an exception as
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 1   a long-term resident to the owner.  Who granted that

 2   exception?

 3        A.   The, the board did.

 4        Q.   Okay.  And you applied for that exception?

 5        A.   There's no application process.  It's taken as

 6   a case-by-case basis on --

 7        Q.   So when were you granted exception to that?

 8        A.   At the same time that the other residents were

 9   granted exception under that rule.

10        Q.   Okay.  So you were specifically -- they

11   specifically gave you that exception?  Or was that just

12   something that just kind of, everybody kind of went

13   about their way and assumed that it was there?

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is it in the meeting minutes?

15             MR. LONG:  I think this is perhaps a little

16   bit more of a leading question than I would like.  Maybe

17   I can explain, and Mr. Shortreed can confirm.

18             The exception to the tenant rules, it

19   essentially allows status quo to stay the same, that if

20   a tenant is there and stays there, that tenant's account

21   with the district for utility services stays as it was.

22   If that tenant were to move out and hypothetically move

23   back in or if a new tenant moves back in after these

24   rules are implemented, the landlord would then be

25   responsible for that utility account.
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 1             Is that a correct statement of the rules,

 2   Mr. Shortreed?

 3             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 4        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  What I am asking

 5   though, is who determines that?

 6        A.   The district manager does.

 7        Q.   So you determined for yourself to have the

 8   exception apply?

 9             MR. LONG:  Object.  I think we made it clear,

10   there's no determination that's required.  Simply if no

11   change is made, no change is required to be made

12   according to rules of the tariff.

13             MR. HOGELIN:  The rules -- his testimony said

14   that exceptions can be applied.

15             JUDGE JONSSON:  So --

16             MR. HOGELIN:  So what I am trying to find out

17   is what's -- how does that happen?  Who has the

18   discretion?  So I am asking Mr. Shortreed, "Who has

19   discretion?"  And I am doing it by applying his own

20   situation which he testified that he was granted this

21   exception.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, and I think it is a

23   relevant point.  I want to see the tariff provision that

24   sets out that exemption, and I would like to see how the

25   tariff says it works.  If it doesn't say how it works,
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 1   then we potentially have a problem.

 2        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So my point is,

 3   Mr. Shortreed, you testified that there were others.

 4   You included yourself, and so I am just trying to find

 5   out when and how that exception was applied and in what

 6   -- if it was done formally or informally.  So that's a

 7   compound question.  So let me rephrase that.

 8             Was your exception applied formally or

 9   informally?

10        A.   I don't understand what you mean by formally

11   or informally.

12        Q.   So it's your testimony that you didn't apply

13   for the exception, correct?

14        A.   We don't have an application process for the

15   exception, no.

16        Q.   So was your exception presented to the board,

17   your specific exception?

18        A.   No.

19        Q.   Okay.  So the board never -- so no one ever

20   really approved your exception?

21             MR. LONG:  I object to that leading question.

22   Perhaps Mr. Hogelin could simply ask Mr. Shortreed what

23   the process is.

24             MR. HOGELIN:  I can ask leading questions.

25   This is cross-examination.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, these rules don't apply.

 2   We are in an administrative proceeding, so let's -- this

 3   is what -- this is what I need to know.  These long-term

 4   customers, including yourself, including some tenants of

 5   SITLA, including at least, well --

 6             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, that's where I want to go.

 7        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Is there any other long-term

 8   tenants that have been granted this exception besides

 9   yourself or the -- associated with SITLA?

10        A.   No.  Because the long-term tenants, as they

11   are defined, are those people.  There have been no other

12   long-term tenants in good standing with the district.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So here is the

14   question.

15             THE WITNESS:  And if I -- I'm sorry, ma'am.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did the tenants have to come

17   to you and say, "I am a long-term tenant.  I want to

18   be -- I want to have the contract with you"?  Were they

19   required to do that?

20             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Was the property owner

22   required to come to you and say, "I have long-term

23   tenants.  I want your contract to be with my tenant not

24   with me"?

25             THE WITNESS:  Not required, no, ma'am.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Did -- so how did you

 2   decide who the long-term tenants were?

 3             THE WITNESS:  Because I know everybody in

 4   Ticaboo, ma'am, because there's a whopping 40 people who

 5   live there.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  So you just did this on your

 7   own.  You went through your accounts and you said,

 8   "Okay.  This is one with a tenant, but this is a

 9   long-term tenant, so we're going to keep the account

10   with the tenant."

11             THE WITNESS:  In accordance with the rule that

12   we set forth, I identified those customers who would

13   have fit the exception, yes.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

15             MR. LONG:  I think the perhaps the point is

16   that the rule doesn't require any changes to the

17   situation as it existed when that rule was implemented.

18   If a tenant had an account at that time, that tenant

19   could continue.  And if a new tenant moved in after

20   that, the owner would then be responsible for the

21   account.

22             THE WITNESS:  And I don't -- I apologize,

23   ma'am.  I don't have a copy of my tariff in front of me,

24   and I must say that I don't know this particular section

25   verbatim.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.

 2             THE WITNESS:  But if memory serves me right, I

 3   believe there was a one-year stipulation in that

 4   exception that said, so long as the tenant was a

 5   customer, a long-term customer of one year or more in

 6   good standing with the district, then they would qualify

 7   for the exception rule.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And that's what I want

 9   to see is the tariff language so --

10             THE WITNESS:  I apologize, I don't have that.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I'll look for it.  But I'm

12   probably going to order you to submit posthearing briefs

13   that deal with some of these things.

14             MR. LONG:  Certainly, and we're happy to do

15   that.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.

17   Mr. Hogelin, go ahead.

18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) I guess that was my next

19   question is because SITLA, their tenants came in about

20   2013, correct?

21        A.   No.  There are some -- there are some people

22   in Ticaboo who have been tenants of SITLA for a number

23   of years, beyond 2013.

24        Q.   Okay.  But you are including the resort in

25   these discussion, right?
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 1        A.   No, I am not.

 2        Q.   Okay.  So the resort isn't powered by TUID?

 3        A.   By TUID, powered by TUID?

 4        Q.   Yeah.

 5        A.   We do provide them with power, yes, sir.

 6        Q.   Okay.  And they are owned by SITLA, correct?

 7        A.   No, they are not.

 8        Q.   Who are they owned by?

 9        A.   Themselves, sir.  They are their own

10   organization.  They own their own land.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  The resort does, the resort

12   owns the lands?

13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

14             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

15        A.   I will offer this, though.  They are a master

16   development lease holder of SITLA.

17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) They are what?

18        A.   A master development lease holder.

19             MS. BROADBENT:  So they lease the other

20   property.

21             MR. HOGELIN:  Mary, please.

22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So -- but they own the

23   property.

24        A.   Not where they are the master development

25   lease holder, no.
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 1        Q.   Who does?

 2        A.   SITLA does.

 3        Q.   Okay.

 4        A.   In that particular case.

 5        Q.   Okay.  So how much of the property do they

 6   own?

 7        A.   SITLA?

 8        Q.   No, the resort.

 9        A.   They own all the commercial property and

10   approximately one, two, three -- four or five

11   residential properties.

12        Q.   So but they are the master -- I'm sorry,

13   designer on --

14        A.   Master development lease holder, sir, yes.

15        Q.   For a property that's owned by SITLA, and are

16   there standby fees charged on that?

17        A.   No, because SITLA abandoned all of the taps in

18   2014.

19        Q.   Okay.  And so prior to 2014 -- or I mean, so

20   -- but there was a -- why wouldn't there be a standby

21   fee then?

22        A.   Our abandonment rule allows that if a customer

23   applies for abandonment of their taps, once that

24   application has been approved and processed, then they

25   are no longer responsible for paying standby fees.  And
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 1   that abandonment application in turn gets recorded on to

 2   the property records with Garfield County.

 3        Q.   So the abandonment process, doesn't that

 4   include a fee?

 5        A.   An application fee, yes, sir.

 6        Q.   Okay.  And how much is the application fee?

 7        A.   $75.

 8        Q.   Okay.  And that's the only fee that's

 9   associated with abandonment?

10        A.   Yes, sir.

11        Q.   Okay.  And the -- but they would have to pay

12   other fees to get -- to be rehooked back up, correct?

13        A.   To be hooked back up, yes, sir.  If they

14   abandon the taps, they essentially would have to pay

15   fees as if the taps didn't exist.

16        Q.   Okay.

17        A.   To have those taps re -- reinitiated.

18        Q.   Okay.

19        A.   Or removed from abandonment status, if you

20   will.

21        Q.   And that abandonment status was pursuant to

22   the 2013 docket or tariff?

23        A.   I believe that it was, but without having it

24   in front of me, I can't say for sure.

25        Q.   Okay.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  But a property owner is not

 2   allowed to abandon if you consider that they have a

 3   delinquent account.

 4             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  Their account

 5   has to be in good standing.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  And they have to continue to

 7   pay, at a minimum, standby fees until and unless you

 8   approve the abandonment application.

 9             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  And there is no -- there is no

11   requirement in the tariff that would actually state that

12   you have to approve the abandonment.

13             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, the standby fees are two

14   years.

15             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  Actually, there is

16   in the tariff.  It does stipulate in the tariff what the

17   requirements for abandonment are.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  For the customer.  But it

19   doesn't put any obligation on you to approve it.  As I

20   read the tariff, it looks like you could just simply

21   decline to approve an application for abandonment and

22   continue to require the customer to pay standby fees

23   into perpetuity.

24             MR. LONG:  I don't think that's the

25   understanding of the district.  If it's written that
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 1   way, perhaps it needs revised.

 2             JUDGE JONSSON:  There's a fair bit in the

 3   tariff that I think could use a good hard edit.  Just

 4   throw that out.

 5             MR. LONG:  Sure, and if there are things the

 6   commission would like to see changed, we will certainly

 7   consider that.  I mean, the district is working with

 8   very, very, very, very limited resources.  Most of this

 9   was frankly done by Mr. Shortreed on an unpaid basis for

10   years.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

12             MR. LONG:  So recognize the district is in a

13   tough situation all around.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Mr. Hogelin?

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes, and we did -- Mr. Shortreed

16   was correct.  Under Section 8.02 of the tariff, it does

17   provide the exceptions.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

19             MR. HOGELIN:  For that.

20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) It does state that it is at

21   the sole discretion of the district, as long as these

22   conditions apply, meaning that just because you qualify,

23   you still -- correct me if I am wrong, you still are the

24   one that makes that determination, correct?

25        A.   Based upon the rules, yes.
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 1        Q.   Well, it says here, at your sole discretion.

 2   So if they qualify, you could still reject them,

 3   correct?

 4        A.   I suppose that it could be perceived that way,

 5   yes.

 6        Q.   Okay.

 7        A.   But as your Honor just pointed out, we seem to

 8   have some things we need to edit in our tariff.

 9        Q.   Okay.  Well, to me it seems pretty clear that

10   what this is stating, though, that the sole discretion

11   of the district under the following conditions.  And

12   this is something -- and I just want to be real clear.

13   This isn't something that the board agrees on.  This is

14   something that -- when it says "the district," is that

15   just you or is that the board?

16        A.   By the authority given to me by the board, I

17   follow the rules that they approve.

18        Q.   Okay.  And who makes up the board?

19        A.   What do you mean, sir?

20        Q.   Who makes up the board?  How is the board

21   created?

22        A.   The board is created by appointment from the

23   Garfield County Commission.

24        Q.   Okay.  And how many board members are there?

25        A.   Five.
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 1        Q.   And is there any training that the board goes

 2   through?

 3        A.   Yes, there is required training in accordance

 4   with the Open and Public Meetings Act, as well as a

 5   special service district.

 6        Q.   So in August of 2015, was there a -- was the

 7   board meeting that was -- that you have testified was

 8   also a public meeting, was that a training meeting for

 9   the board?

10        A.   Yes, as a matter of fact it was.  The first

11   half of the meeting was set as an executive session

12   where LeGrand Bitter from the UASD came down and

13   provided the board with their annual training.

14        Q.   So first, you trained them the first half of

15   the part, and then the second half of the part addressed

16   the tariff; is that correct?

17        A.   I believe it is, if you are speaking to the

18   joint settlement stipulation.

19        Q.   Okay.  So prior to that meeting, did the board

20   have any knowledge of the tariff?

21        A.   Did the board members have any knowledge of

22   the tariff?  Absolutely.

23        Q.   Okay.  They just hadn't been trained.

24             (Discussion off the record.)

25             MR. LONG:  The training that Mr. Shortreed and
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 1   I think Mr. Hogelin is referring to is simply the annual

 2   required training by the Utah Open -- required by the

 3   Utah Open and Public Meetings Act.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 5             MR. LONG:  We unfortunately don't have an

 6   expert in running an electric district coming to train

 7   the board members.  There are unfortunately a severe

 8   lack of those.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.

10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Mr. Shortreed, are you aware

11   of how many property owners reside full time in Ticaboo?

12        A.   I can estimate pretty closely, yes.

13        Q.   How many would that be?

14        A.   Thirty to 40, depending upon how many stay

15   during the off season.

16        Q.   Okay.

17        A.   That's full-time, year-round residents.

18        Q.   Okay.  30 to 40?

19        A.   Yes, sir.

20        Q.   Now, is -- so from the briefings you had

21   stated that the office and your house are kind of the

22   same; is that correct?

23        A.   That is correct.  The district doesn't have

24   the budget to be able to build an office.

25        Q.   Okay.  And so --
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 1             MR. LONG:  I'd like to point out, this is well

 2   beyond the scope of what this hearing was intended to

 3   be, based on the commission's order.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Where are you headed,

 5   Mr. Hogelin?

 6             MR. HOGELIN:  I am just going off what he

 7   testified.  He was talking about -- he testified today

 8   at the hearing that he makes the tariff visible, so I

 9   just wanted to ask him a question about it.

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, okay.  Where is it?

11             MR. HOGELIN:  He opened the door so...

12        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So in your testimony you said

13   that you make the tariff, upon request.  But is the

14   tariff visible to people who come into that office,

15   slash, home?

16        A.   The notice is visible.  The tariff is

17   available for inspection.  The tariff is actually kept

18   in a three ring binder with all revisions as they were

19   filed with the commission.

20        Q.   Okay.  So no -- it's impossible for anybody to

21   look at the tariff without your presence; is that

22   correct?

23        A.   No, not necessarily.  They can look at our

24   tariff online at the Public Service Commission's

25   website.
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 1        Q.   Well, but that's electronically.  I'm talking

 2   about the one that's located at the office.

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just tell me.  If I come knock

 4   on your door and say, "I want to see the tariff," what

 5   happens next?

 6             THE WITNESS:  We schedule an appointment for

 7   you to come in and see the tariff.

 8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you ever refused to make

10   the tariff available to Ms. Seamons or anyone acting on

11   Ms. Seamons' behalf?

12        A.   No.

13        Q.   Okay.  Have you ever refused -- have you ever

14   -- on February 18th, do you recall Ms. Seamons'

15   daughter, Mary Broadbent, requesting the availability of

16   the tariff at a public meeting?

17        A.   No.  I don't recall it, but that doesn't mean

18   it didn't happen.  I would have to go back and check the

19   meeting minutes.

20        Q.   So if you don't recall that, I mean, do you

21   recall rejecting her request to make an appointment to

22   come and view the tariff?

23        A.   No.  I don't recall that because I wouldn't

24   reject a request for an appointment.

25        Q.   Okay.  So you don't recall that.  You -- okay.
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 1   I think we have already -- I think the commission

 2   already discussed the date that the notices were sent

 3   out.

 4             We don't -- do we have a date on when the

 5   notices were sent out in the March -- let's see, in

 6   April for the April meeting of 2013, when they were

 7   mailed?

 8        A.   We don't -- yeah.  We don't have -- I'm sorry.

 9   We don't have a specific date.

10        Q.   Okay.  You had testified that there was a

11   meeting in 2013 where you addressed the standby fees, a

12   public meeting.  Do you recall that?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   And then you said that Ms. Seamons did not

15   provide any comments.  Do you know if Ms. Seamons was at

16   that meeting?

17        A.   I would have to go back and double-check the

18   records.  But to the best of my recollection, she was

19   not present.

20        Q.   Okay.

21             MR. LONG:  I'd like to make a clarification.

22   I think Mr. Shortreed's testimony was as to a meeting in

23   Docket 13-2508-T01, which, as discussed previously, was

24   the docket where the district implemented different

25   electric service rate schedules.
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  I was just trying to -- he made

 2   the statement that she didn't make any statements.  I

 3   was just trying to see if he recollect that she was even

 4   there.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) You had testified that you

 7   recall doing the mailings yourself.

 8        A.   That is correct.

 9        Q.   Do you recall specifically doing a mailing to

10   Ms. Seamons?

11        A.   Yes, to all customers.

12        Q.   Okay.  And that you recall doing that for each

13   year?

14        A.   Yes.

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  That's all my questions.

16   Thank you.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So it's after noon, and

18   I'd like to try to wrap up, and we can -- I'll certainly

19   give you time to do closing argument if you want to.

20   But since, I think, we are going to be some posthearing

21   briefing, we can maybe do closing argument as part of

22   that.  But I'll leave it to counsel as to what you would

23   prefer.

24             MR. LONG:  I am happy to leave that into a

25   posthearing brief.  I think we have some issues that
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 1   need, need more discussion.  I do have a couple more

 2   redirect questions.

 3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Some redirect.  Go ahead.

 4             MR. LONG:  But I expect to be very short.

 5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.

 6                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 7   BY MR. LONG:

 8        Q.   Mr. Shortreed, can you describe the process

 9   for sending utility bills every month.  Just describe

10   the process that you go through in order to send out

11   utility bills.

12        A.   Meter readings are entered into a utility

13   billing system that we have, and then those readings are

14   printed out onto either three-by-five postcards that go

15   out to the customers, or in some cases we have several

16   customers who receive what's called group billing, which

17   is an eight and a half by 11 sheets of paper.

18             One page summarizes all of the accounts that

19   are being billed in the group billing, in the group, and

20   then following pages that itemize and individualize each

21   one of those accounts.

22        Q.   So your testimony is that you send a bill out

23   every month for every account?

24        A.   That is correct.

25        Q.   In the various audit history reports
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 1   introduced by Ms. Seamons; you know, for example, I am

 2   looking at the one that's marked Exhibit 7.  There is a

 3   line item on some dates that says "notice printed for,"

 4   and then a certain amount and a due on date.  Can you

 5   describe what that, what that entry on the audit history

 6   means?

 7        A.   That's a system-generated notice in the

 8   billing software that notifies the customer on a

 9   separate piece of paper, which is eight and a half by

10   11, that their account is past due and what the amount

11   past due is.

12             In some applicable circumstances, it will also

13   have a termination notice of typically 20 or 21 days,

14   notifying the customer, if they don't pay the bill

15   within that time, then their service will be turned off.

16        Q.   So to summarize, if we look at the audit

17   history for a given account, the customer receives a

18   bill for each monthly -- each set of monthly charges,

19   and the notice lines are simply an extraordinary notice

20   saying the account is past due or has some other issue?

21        A.   Yes.  There will be a line on the bill that

22   says the account is past due.

23        Q.   But the sending of a regular monthly bill

24   doesn't generate an entry on the audit history?

25        A.   No.  That is the audit history.
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 1        Q.   Have -- Mr. Hogelin asked you some questions

 2   about, about the approval of longtime tenants to keep a

 3   tenant's utility account.  In your previous testimony

 4   you mentioned that you were one of those tenants.

 5   Mr. Hogelin implied from reading the tariff that the

 6   district had sole discretion in determining that.

 7             I guess, is any particular action required by

 8   the district?  If we have a long-term tenant, and

 9   nothing is changed, that tenant is still present, does

10   the district take any action?  Or does the district need

11   to take any action to keep that -- the tenant's account?

12        A.   No.  It just stays current.

13        Q.   We also talked about the abandonment

14   application, and as I understand it, when a person

15   abandons their utility taps, it essentially returns the

16   property to an undeveloped state as far as the district

17   is concerned and relieves the district of any obligation

18   to provide utility service.  Is that -- is that a fair

19   description?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   And thereby relieving the district of any

22   costs that it would incur to, say, for example, make

23   sure the district's generators have sufficient capacity

24   to serve those properties?

25        A.   That is correct.
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 1        Q.   And for the abandonment application,

 2   Mr. Hogelin asked some questions about the process.  Has

 3   the district ever denied an abandonment application for

 4   a property owner that has met the requirements set forth

 5   in the tariff?

 6        A.   No.

 7        Q.   And I guess one final question as to the

 8   billing process.  Has the billing process you described

 9   been the same since, say, January of 2013?

10        A.   Yes.

11             MR. LONG:  I have no further questions.

12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am sorry to drag this

13   out further, but you have mentioned some things that

14   reminded me of some questions.  On the -- we have the

15   letter from the Hills who were the tenants requesting

16   discontinuance of service.  And then we have testimony

17   from Mrs. Seamons that they brought the account current

18   sometime later in order to reestablish service, but it

19   was once again discontinued by the district and on the

20   district's decision.

21             Do you -- do you have any testimony to help me

22   understand what happened there?

23             THE WITNESS:  When the Hills disconnected the

24   service, ma'am, the property continued to accrue standby

25   fees.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 2             THE WITNESS:  At the time that they wanted to

 3   reinstate service.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 5             THE WITNESS:  Thus turn it back on.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 7             THE WITNESS:  Fees had accrued that had not

 8   been paid.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

10             THE WITNESS:  And then of course, there were

11   turn-on, turn-off fees that were associated with that as

12   well.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

14             THE WITNESS:  In that particular circumstance,

15   the tenants at the time actually paid the unpaid fees.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

17             THE WITNESS:  Directly to the district, and

18   then service was reinstated obviously, at the customer's

19   request, which is the property owner's request.

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

21             THE WITNESS:  Under a specific rate schedule.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

23             THE WITNESS:  Of which there was an

24   application or an e-mail or both that was done for that.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.
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 1             THE WITNESS:  And then the -- that particular

 2   tenant then vacated the property, the one that we had

 3   turned it on for, ma'am.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  After how long?

 5             THE WITNESS:  Oh, I think they were there a

 6   year, ma'am.  I think it was about a year.  They vacated

 7   the property.  During an inspection and audit of our

 8   meters in February of this year, we sent out a number of

 9   notices to customers advising them of our findings in

10   the inspection and during the audit, things such as

11   meters that were previously turned on were now turned

12   off.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right, okay.

14             THE WITNESS:  And other elementary

15   inspections, like accessibility to the meter to be able

16   to read it or things like that.  We then notified the

17   customers of our findings, and in cases where tampering

18   was witnessed -- and we did take photographs and

19   provided those photographs to the customers in the

20   inspection reports -- we notified the customer that this

21   was a warning.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

23             THE WITNESS:  We were not going to impose a

24   tampering fee right away.  We just wanted to make sure

25   that they were aware that we found this problem.  If
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 1   they need their service turned back on, they need to

 2   notify the district and schedule that turn-on service at

 3   the meter.

 4             Shortly following, sometime in April, I

 5   believe it was, a meter started to show usage that was

 6   previously recorded as having been turned off.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are we talking all about

 8   water?

 9             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

10             MS. BROADBENT:  Yes.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Never mind.  All right.

12   Thanks.

13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So any recross,

15   Mr. Hogelin?

16             MR. HOGELIN:  Nothing relevant.

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So again, I apologize

18   to everyone for the error in the docket number.  The

19   docket number that I need some help with is the 2013-T02

20   docket.  And what I need there is information as to when

21   the public meeting was held in which the standby fees

22   were explained and introduced to customers.

23             I also need information about how that meeting

24   was noticed to customers.  It would be very helpful to

25   me to see the monthly bills that were sent to
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 1   Ms. Seamons.  I don't know if either party has that or

 2   has the ability to --

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  We have -- we have some monthly

 4   bills that were sent.

 5             MS. BROADBENT:  Right now?

 6             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, we'll provide it.

 7             MS. BROADBENT:  Yes, we have current ones.

 8             MR. HOGELIN:  Shhh.

 9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am also interested as

10   to the 15-T01 docket that was subject to settlement, I

11   am interested in the parties clarifying whether a

12   per-day tampering charge was introduced in that docket.

13   And I am interested in better understanding whether a

14   public meeting was noticed and held to present and

15   explain to customers a per-day tampering charge.

16             The commission does not regulate TUID's

17   provision of water, so to the extent that the testimony

18   today has dealt with standby fees as to water service or

19   discontinuation of water service, the order will not go,

20   go into that.

21             And then of course, the parties are welcome to

22   provide closing argument as to the testimony and the

23   evidence that's been provided today.  How long do you

24   want to file these briefs?

25             MR. LONG:  I would suggest 30 days.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Filed simultaneously?

 2             MR. LONG:  That's fine.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  That's fine.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.

 5             MR. LONG:  Maybe as a point of

 6   clarification --

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

 8             MR. LONG:  Are you planning on issuing an

 9   order setting out these questions that you would like to

10   see additional information on?

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Would that be helpful?

12             MR. LONG:  Yes, I think it would be.

13             MR. HOGELIN:  Very much.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So I'll do that

15   today.

16             MR. LONG:  And while I'm --

17             JUDGE JONSSON:  And have I missed anything?

18   Is there anything else that you feel like needs to be

19   addressed or that you want to address?

20             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, I would like to address

21   one thing that's been brought up by TUID.  It's my

22   understanding that what's been represented to the

23   commission is that they had an August 27th meeting which

24   supposedly fit the requirement of the -- of the

25   mandated --
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  The stipulation and the order

 2   approving the stipulation.

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  -- for the board meeting that

 4   was supposed to happen between September 10th and

 5   October 10th.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

 7             MR. HOGELIN:  I just want to make a statement

 8   regarding that, because one -- in the response from the

 9   commission, you know, it's been made very clear that,

10   based upon that meeting, that sets a deadline, a 30 day

11   deadline for a rehearing with regards to any issues

12   concerning the tariff.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

14             MR. HOGELIN:  And I, I don't quite understand

15   the argument that August 27th meeting could replace the

16   other meeting, just by e-mails being made between

17   individuals without there being a due process of that 30

18   days for any and all --

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.

20             MR. HOGELIN:  -- people of interest.

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I'll just tell you some of

22   the things that I would anticipate discussing with the

23   commission, is whether the board meeting that was held

24   prior to the date the commission approved the

25   stipulation is, is of concern to them or whether they
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 1   feel like that board meeting is okay.  And also whether

 2   they consider that there needed to be a public meeting

 3   noticed at some point.

 4             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, my concern goes farther

 5   than that.

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.

 7             MR. HOGELIN:  Because if the commission says,

 8   "Okay.  The August 27th fulfilled the requirement that

 9   was supposed to be in those."

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

11             MR. HOGELIN:  How in the world are -- was

12   Ms. Seamons supposed to know that that then started the

13   30 day time limit to a request for rehearing?

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I'm not sure that we

15   actually have anything on that issue in the record.  The

16   30 day -- the 30 day notice -- are you talking about the

17   30 day request for rehearing before the commission?

18             MR. HOGELIN:  In the December 29th, 2015,

19   memorandum to the original complaint that had been

20   filed --

21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.

22             MR. HOGELIN:  -- from the division to the

23   commission, it was brought up that the order --

24             JUDGE JONSSON:  She didn't intervene, right?

25   We're talking about --
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 1             MR. HOGELIN:  For review of rehearing for 30

 2   days after the issuance, but none was requested by any

 3   party.  In other words, what was brought to light or

 4   what was argued is that after September 10th, there was

 5   30 days to which the request should have or could have

 6   been made with regards to consultation of the tariff.

 7   And because that wasn't done, you know, Ms. Seamons'

 8   formal complaint was moot.

 9             And so I am just saying that that's another

10   issue.  Based off the testimony -- and I appreciate that

11   it may not be an issue that's been brought up or has

12   been contemplated by the order.  But I don't think it's

13   something that can be neglected.

14             If it is determined that the timeline was

15   changed, then I think the commission does need to take

16   into consideration, how would that 30 day objection be,

17   you know, administered if, you know, the parties of

18   interest didn't realize that the August 27th meeting was

19   the one --

20             JUDGE JONSSON:  I see.

21             MR. HOGELIN:  Because not everybody, not all

22   the property owners were involved, from my

23   understanding, in these e-mails that were saying that

24   this August 27th meeting was okay.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I understand.
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 1             MR. LONG:  I -- perhaps you can clarify for

 2   me.  I'm not sure I understand.  Is it an issue that

 3   Ms. Seamons would have requested review or rehearing of

 4   the commission's September 10th order had some date been

 5   different?

 6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I -- the question is, if

 7   a customer had read that order and had interpreted it as

 8   requiring a meeting to be held between September 30th

 9   and October 30th; or is that right?

10             MR. HOGELIN:  10th.

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  September 10th and October

12   10th and saw no meeting scheduled or held there, would

13   that customer reasonably have assumed that there was no

14   need to request rehearing or reconsideration because the

15   stipulation had not been complied with, and the order

16   had not been complied with?

17             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.  You put it very

18   succinctly.

19             MR. LONG:  I do have one evidentiary point.

20   Everyone has this very large binder of exhibits from the

21   district.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.

23             MR. LONG:  Can that be admitted into evidence?

24   I believe Mr. Shortreed spoke to each of those in his

25   prepared statement.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Hogelin?

 2             MR. HOGELIN:  Can I use that post briefing?

 3   And the reason being is, Mr. Shortreed did use them, but

 4   he did go through them rather quickly.  It was hard to

 5   keep up and review the exhibits as he was going through

 6   them.

 7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's do this in a

 8   couple of stages then.

 9             MR. HOGELIN:  Also, I think there are a couple

10   that are duplicative so --

11             JUDGE JONSSON:  I'm sure there are.  So let me

12   give you a very short deadline to give me any objection.

13             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  Fair enough.

14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just like a couple of days.

15             MR. HOGELIN:  Sure.

16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay?

17             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.

18             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I don't imagine there will

19   be one.  I haven't looked at every one, but it looks to

20   me like they are pretty much --

21             MR. HOGELIN:  I would agree.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- records that would come in.

23             MR. HOGELIN:  I just want to do due diligence.

24   That's all.

25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.  That's fine.  So, and
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 1   can you get back to me by Friday end of business with

 2   any objection to any exhibit?

 3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yep.

 4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  And then 30

 5   days from now for final briefing, including oral

 6   argument and addressing of these questions related to

 7   the 13-T02 docket as well as the 15-T01 docket.

 8             MR. HOGELIN:  Is the commission going to make

 9   available the order today?

10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I will write the order

11   today.

12             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

13             JUDGE JONSSON:  But it has to go to the

14   commissioners, and they have to approve it.  So that

15   might happen today or it might not.

16             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.

17             MR. LONG:  And I believe you said oral

18   argument.  I think you meant closing argument.

19             JUDGE JONSSON:  I'm sorry, yes, closing

20   argument.

21             MR. LONG:  Just making sure we're clear.

22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Closing argument, and if you

23   can give me documentary evidence as to the notices that

24   went out to the consumers, you are welcome to do that.

25             MR. LONG:  Noted.
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 1             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  With that I

 2   believe we can close this hearing.  Thank you all very

 3   much.

 4             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.

 5

 6             (The hearing adjourned at 12:47 p.m.)
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 1                     C E R T I F I C A T E

 2   STATE OF UTAH       )

 3   COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

 4        THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings

 5   were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified

 6   Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary
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 8        That the proceedings were reported by me in
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10   my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct
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		200						LN		6		25		false		              25             (Silence.)				false

		201						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		202						LN		7		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  I had a notice that Tom Hill				false

		203						LN		7		2		false		               2   was going to be calling in.  If he is not going to do				false

		204						LN		7		3		false		               3   that, I'm going to hang up the phone.				false

		205						LN		7		4		false		               4             MR. LONG:  If we could maybe give him a few				false

		206						LN		7		5		false		               5   minutes.				false

		207						LN		7		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Okay.				false

		208						LN		7		7		false		               7             MS. BROADBENT:  Can we turn the speaker up so				false

		209						LN		7		8		false		               8   she can hear?				false

		210						LN		7		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  I think we're as loud as we				false

		211						LN		7		10		false		              10   can go.				false

		212						LN		7		11		false		              11             MS. BROADBENT:  Okay.				false

		213						LN		7		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  There is one item I wanted to				false

		214						LN		7		13		false		              13   discuss with counsel.  This is considered a formal				false

		215						LN		7		14		false		              14   complaint because it's gone through the informal process				false

		216						LN		7		15		false		              15   that the division of public utilities uses to try to				false

		217						LN		7		16		false		              16   help parties resolve complaints.  However, that does not				false

		218						LN		7		17		false		              17   necessarily mean that this hearing needs to be conducted				false

		219						LN		7		18		false		              18   as a formal adjudication under UAPA.				false

		220						LN		7		19		false		              19             So basically, if we conduct this as a formal				false

		221						LN		7		20		false		              20   adjudication and the parties determine subsequently to				false

		222						LN		7		21		false		              21   take the matter to court, it goes to the Court of				false

		223						LN		7		22		false		              22   Appeals, and it's reviewed for commission error or abuse				false

		224						LN		7		23		false		              23   of discretion.  If we convert this to an informal				false

		225						LN		7		24		false		              24   proceeding and the parties take it to court, it goes to				false

		226						LN		7		25		false		              25   District Court as a de novo trial.				false

		227						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		228						LN		8		1		false		               1             My inclination is to convert it to informal.				false

		229						LN		8		2		false		               2   I think there are some issues that the commission can't				false

		230						LN		8		3		false		               3   necessarily address that are -- that would be of				false

		231						LN		8		4		false		               4   importance to the parties and potentially of interest to				false

		232						LN		8		5		false		               5   the court.  And I think that it would be more useful to				false

		233						LN		8		6		false		               6   the parties to be able to take those issues on the				false

		234						LN		8		7		false		               7   merits to district court, rather than having to simply				false

		235						LN		8		8		false		               8   argue whether or not the commission correctly identified				false

		236						LN		8		9		false		               9   the boundaries of its jurisdiction.				false

		237						LN		8		10		false		              10             Any objection to my converting this to an				false

		238						LN		8		11		false		              11   informal proceeding?				false

		239						LN		8		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  May I discuss with my client				false

		240						LN		8		13		false		              13   real quick?				false

		241						LN		8		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		242						LN		8		15		false		              15             MR. LONG:  Same request.				false

		243						LN		8		16		false		              16             (Discussion off the record.)				false

		244						LN		8		17		false		              17             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection from complainant.				false

		245						LN		8		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.				false

		246						LN		8		19		false		              19             MR. LONG:  The district prefers to keep this				false

		247						LN		8		20		false		              20   as a formal, a formal adjudication.  We have been				false

		248						LN		8		21		false		              21   through the entire formal complaint process, and it				false

		249						LN		8		22		false		              22   seems to us to derail it now would be not beneficial.				false

		250						LN		8		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Why do you consider it to be a				false

		251						LN		8		24		false		              24   derailing?  It doesn't change anything that happens				false

		252						LN		8		25		false		              25   here.  It simply changes your position if you go to				false

		253						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		254						LN		9		1		false		               1   court.				false

		255						LN		9		2		false		               2             MR. LONG:  And I recognize that.  I think we				false

		256						LN		9		3		false		               3   would nonetheless prefer to keep it as a formal				false

		257						LN		9		4		false		               4   adjudication here.				false

		258						LN		9		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I'll take the objection				false

		259						LN		9		6		false		               6   then as part of the record.  It is the commission's				false

		260						LN		9		7		false		               7   determination whether to convert it.  The standard of				false

		261						LN		9		8		false		               8   the -- under the statute is whether converting is in the				false

		262						LN		9		9		false		               9   public interest and whether it poses a hardship or an				false

		263						LN		9		10		false		              10   unfair burden on any party.				false

		264						LN		9		11		false		              11             Do you want to address those standards,				false

		265						LN		9		12		false		              12   Mr. Long?				false

		266						LN		9		13		false		              13             MR. LONG:  I think we'll leave it up to the				false

		267						LN		9		14		false		              14   commission's discretion.				false

		268						LN		9		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		269						LN		9		16		false		              16             MR. LONG:  Our objection is noted and --				false

		270						LN		9		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  All right then.				false

		271						LN		9		18		false		              18   Are there any other housekeeping items that the parties				false

		272						LN		9		19		false		              19   want to address before we go to opening statements?				false

		273						LN		9		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  No.				false

		274						LN		9		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  It doesn't appear that there				false

		275						LN		9		22		false		              22   is.  All right then.  Ms. Seamons is the complainant, so				false

		276						LN		9		23		false		              23   we'll go to opening statement from her.				false

		277						LN		9		24		false		              24             MR. HOGELIN:  Would you prefer for me just to				false

		278						LN		9		25		false		              25   stay here or --				false

		279						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		280						LN		10		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's -- yeah, do because				false

		281						LN		10		2		false		               2   there's no microphone up here.				false

		282						LN		10		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  I noticed that.				false

		283						LN		10		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.				false

		284						LN		10		5		false		               5             MR. HOGELIN:  Obviously, the commission has				false

		285						LN		10		6		false		               6   made a ruling on part of the issues that were presented.				false

		286						LN		10		7		false		               7   Although we don't agree with the commission, we respect				false

		287						LN		10		8		false		               8   the commission's ruling.  And we also recognize that the				false

		288						LN		10		9		false		               9   commission has set aside today to address a couple				false

		289						LN		10		10		false		              10   issues which the commission has provided very				false

		290						LN		10		11		false		              11   succinctly.				false

		291						LN		10		12		false		              12             Essentially, Ms. Seamons is a resident -- or				false

		292						LN		10		13		false		              13   well, she doesn't reside in Ticaboo, but she owns				false

		293						LN		10		14		false		              14   property in Ticaboo.  She had this property prior to the				false

		294						LN		10		15		false		              15   formation of the district.  When I say district, I am				false

		295						LN		10		16		false		              16   referring to TUID.  And with the creation of TUID, there				false

		296						LN		10		17		false		              17   has been obviously some changes with regards to power				false

		297						LN		10		18		false		              18   and water and what we would normally refer to as				false

		298						LN		10		19		false		              19   essential utilities.				false

		299						LN		10		20		false		              20             It has been very concerning, the limitations				false

		300						LN		10		21		false		              21   and the financial burden that's been assessed to				false

		301						LN		10		22		false		              22   Ms. Seamons in regards to the creation of the district.				false

		302						LN		10		23		false		              23   But what's more troubling is the conduct of the district				false

		303						LN		10		24		false		              24   in creating its tariff and enforcing its tariff or lack				false

		304						LN		10		25		false		              25   thereof.				false

		305						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		306						LN		11		1		false		               1             Ms. Seamons filed the complaint based off the				false

		307						LN		11		2		false		               2   premise that she felt there was injustice being carried				false

		308						LN		11		3		false		               3   on by the district, in particular, with how her property				false

		309						LN		11		4		false		               4   is being liened up with certain financial burdens that				false

		310						LN		11		5		false		               5   seem completely unfair and outside the scope of the				false

		311						LN		11		6		false		               6   tariff.				false

		312						LN		11		7		false		               7             In regards to what the commission has set				false

		313						LN		11		8		false		               8   provided to be addressed today, we plan to show that				false

		314						LN		11		9		false		               9   it's our understanding that TUID has not complied with				false

		315						LN		11		10		false		              10   the commission regulations with regards to being in				false

		316						LN		11		11		false		              11   compliance with regards to setting forth its own tariff.				false

		317						LN		11		12		false		              12             We also would like to show the tariff (sic)				false

		318						LN		11		13		false		              13   today that the district doesn't follow its own tariff				false

		319						LN		11		14		false		              14   and that -- and in particularly with certain fees and				false

		320						LN		11		15		false		              15   with the implementation of standby fees, that the				false

		321						LN		11		16		false		              16   standby fees were not implemented in accordance with				false

		322						LN		11		17		false		              17   either a resolution or the tariff set forth by the				false

		323						LN		11		18		false		              18   district and more particular the district manager, and				false

		324						LN		11		19		false		              19   that they have continuously charged Ms. Seamons				false

		325						LN		11		20		false		              20   inappropriately and unjustly.				false

		326						LN		11		21		false		              21             And when Ms. Seamons has tried to resolve the				false

		327						LN		11		22		false		              22   issue, that there has been absolutely zero cooperation				false

		328						LN		11		23		false		              23   from the district in trying to find a resolve to this,				false

		329						LN		11		24		false		              24   which was a product of us bringing this before the				false

		330						LN		11		25		false		              25   commission.  It shouldn't have to be that way.				false

		331						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		332						LN		12		1		false		               1             Also, there seems to be some unfairness with				false

		333						LN		12		2		false		               2   regards to the enforcement of the tariff with regards to				false

		334						LN		12		3		false		               3   how tenants are treated.  Obviously, not all the				false

		335						LN		12		4		false		               4   implementation of the tariff is being enforced with all				false

		336						LN		12		5		false		               5   tenants or owners with regards to said tenants having				false

		337						LN		12		6		false		               6   contracts with TUID.				false

		338						LN		12		7		false		               7             And I think a more dire issue is the amount of				false

		339						LN		12		8		false		               8   notice and information that's being provided by the				false

		340						LN		12		9		false		               9   district that its tariff demands and that those				false

		341						LN		12		10		false		              10   commission rules demand.  And we also plan to show today				false

		342						LN		12		11		false		              11   the violation of Ms. Seamons' due process with regards				false

		343						LN		12		12		false		              12   to utilities and more specifically with taps.				false

		344						LN		12		13		false		              13             I am not sure what TUID's incentive is with				false

		345						LN		12		14		false		              14   regards to just running roughshod around its own tariffs				false

		346						LN		12		15		false		              15   and around the commission's rules.  Believe me, Ms.				false

		347						LN		12		16		false		              16   Seamons would rather not be here today.  She would				false

		348						LN		12		17		false		              17   rather not have had to file a complaint.				false

		349						LN		12		18		false		              18             She feels akin to Ticaboo, having the --				false

		350						LN		12		19		false		              19   coming from a long line of mining family and having, you				false

		351						LN		12		20		false		              20   know, that property down there.  It's a sentimental				false

		352						LN		12		21		false		              21   issue for them, not a financial or economical issue.				false

		353						LN		12		22		false		              22   However, the district is making it solely a financial				false

		354						LN		12		23		false		              23   and economical issue, and it's making it impossible for				false

		355						LN		12		24		false		              24   Ms. Seamons to continue to have that property.				false

		356						LN		12		25		false		              25             And the bottom line is, not only is it making				false

		357						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		358						LN		13		1		false		               1   it impossible for her to have the property; it's making				false

		359						LN		13		2		false		               2   it impossible for her and others to sell their property.				false

		360						LN		13		3		false		               3             So we really don't know what the end game is				false

		361						LN		13		4		false		               4   here for the district where it just doesn't seem like				false

		362						LN		13		5		false		               5   the feasibility of how the -- it structures its policies				false

		363						LN		13		6		false		               6   and tariffs with regards to utilities, how it's going to				false

		364						LN		13		7		false		               7   continue, given the fact that it doesn't -- it's not				false

		365						LN		13		8		false		               8   affordable, especially with Ms. Seamons, who is a				false

		366						LN		13		9		false		               9   retired lady and doesn't have the income to do all these				false

		367						LN		13		10		false		              10   things.				false

		368						LN		13		11		false		              11             Now, I know that's not before the commission				false

		369						LN		13		12		false		              12   today, but we just felt that it was important to let the				false

		370						LN		13		13		false		              13   commission know that, that this is, again, a no-win				false

		371						LN		13		14		false		              14   situation for Ms. Seamons and likely other property				false

		372						LN		13		15		false		              15   owners that are in Ticaboo.  And so we appreciate the				false

		373						LN		13		16		false		              16   commission allowing us to be here today to raise these				false

		374						LN		13		17		false		              17   concerns, to address these concerns, to make it public.				false

		375						LN		13		18		false		              18             Again, we feel strongly that Ms. Seamons is				false

		376						LN		13		19		false		              19   not the only one that has these concerns but has the				false

		377						LN		13		20		false		              20   wherewithal to try to stand up to the district and to				false

		378						LN		13		21		false		              21   bring forth these issues to find resolve and hopefully				false

		379						LN		13		22		false		              22   resolve for all property owners down in Ticaboo.  With				false

		380						LN		13		23		false		              23   that, does the commission have any questions?				false

		381						LN		13		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  I don't think I have any				false

		382						LN		13		25		false		              25   questions.  I'll just make a couple of points on the				false

		383						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		384						LN		14		1		false		               1   record.  First of all, we don't have any mechanism to				false

		385						LN		14		2		false		               2   entertain a sort of class action complaint.  We have				false

		386						LN		14		3		false		               3   received some additional complaints against TUID that				false

		387						LN		14		4		false		               4   raise similar issues.  And we will have to deal with				false

		388						LN		14		5		false		               5   those one on one.				false

		389						LN		14		6		false		               6             Whatever order is issued here, if it grants				false

		390						LN		14		7		false		               7   relief to Ms. Seamons, that might be used as evidence by				false

		391						LN		14		8		false		               8   subsequent complainants, but likely would not extend to				false

		392						LN		14		9		false		               9   provide relief to them as well.				false

		393						LN		14		10		false		              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.				false

		394						LN		14		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Mr. Long,				false

		395						LN		14		12		false		              12   your opening.				false

		396						LN		14		13		false		              13             MR. LONG:  Thank you.  In Mr. Hogelin's				false

		397						LN		14		14		false		              14   opening statement he seems to have taken a few steps				false

		398						LN		14		15		false		              15   backwards.  I'd like to point out that the commission's				false

		399						LN		14		16		false		              16   order of July 6, 2016, in this docket disposes of the				false

		400						LN		14		17		false		              17   standby fee issue in its entirety.				false

		401						LN		14		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's not correct.  It says				false

		402						LN		14		19		false		              19   that standby fees are legal generally.  It does not say				false

		403						LN		14		20		false		              20   that the current standby fees may be imposed or				false

		404						LN		14		21		false		              21   collected against Ms. Seamons.  The question is whether				false

		405						LN		14		22		false		              22   it has properly noticed and held the meetings that it				false

		406						LN		14		23		false		              23   had to notice and hold in order to assess standby fees.				false

		407						LN		14		24		false		              24             If it has not done that, then its tariffs are				false

		408						LN		14		25		false		              25   not necessarily valid, and if it does not have valid				false

		409						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		410						LN		15		1		false		               1   tariffs, it cannot enforce them.				false

		411						LN		15		2		false		               2             MR. LONG:  True.  Without being argumentative,				false

		412						LN		15		3		false		               3   can I perhaps clarify our understanding?				false

		413						LN		15		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Please.				false

		414						LN		15		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  Reading from the order, the				false

		415						LN		15		6		false		               6   commission says, "We dismissed Ms. Seamons' allegations				false

		416						LN		15		7		false		               7   as to the legality in general of standby fees and as to				false

		417						LN		15		8		false		               8   legality of the specific rates and policies set forth in				false

		418						LN		15		9		false		               9   TUID's tariff."				false

		419						LN		15		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.				false

		420						LN		15		11		false		              11             MR. LONG:  And goes on to list seven questions				false

		421						LN		15		12		false		              12   which are the topic of this hearing day.				false

		422						LN		15		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.				false

		423						LN		15		14		false		              14             MR. LONG:  And Ticaboo is prepared to address				false

		424						LN		15		15		false		              15   those seven questions.				false

		425						LN		15		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Excellent.  So the fact that				false

		426						LN		15		17		false		              17   the specific rates and fees are legal does not				false

		427						LN		15		18		false		              18   necessarily mean that they are also currently				false

		428						LN		15		19		false		              19   enforceable.  That's the distinction.				false

		429						LN		15		20		false		              20             MR. LONG:  Okay.  And I would like to point				false

		430						LN		15		21		false		              21   out that the dockets referenced in these questions are				false

		431						LN		15		22		false		              22   not the docket in which standby fees were implemented.				false

		432						LN		15		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand that, but there				false

		433						LN		15		24		false		              24   is a question on point No. 3 as to whether, in the 2013				false

		434						LN		15		25		false		              25   docket, where standby fees were first imposed, if there				false

		435						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		436						LN		16		1		false		               1   was notice and a public meeting.  So we're going to be				false

		437						LN		16		2		false		               2   looking at both those dockets today.  Okay.  Go ahead				false

		438						LN		16		3		false		               3   with your opening.				false

		439						LN		16		4		false		               4             MR. LONG:  The issue of standby fees, which				false

		440						LN		16		5		false		               5   again the district doesn't feel needs any substantive				false

		441						LN		16		6		false		               6   justification, is simply a matter of fairly allocating				false

		442						LN		16		7		false		               7   costs to those property owners that bear the ben -- you				false

		443						LN		16		8		false		               8   know, that receive the benefits of the service provided				false

		444						LN		16		9		false		               9   by the district.				false

		445						LN		16		10		false		              10             You know, whether a house is occupied and				false

		446						LN		16		11		false		              11   receiving utility service so actually having electricity				false

		447						LN		16		12		false		              12   and water flowing to it, or the house is vacant or even				false

		448						LN		16		13		false		              13   if it's an undeveloped lot for which the district is				false

		449						LN		16		14		false		              14   ready to provide service essentially on a moment's				false

		450						LN		16		15		false		              15   notice, the district incurs costs.				false

		451						LN		16		16		false		              16             And those are simple -- simple realities of a				false

		452						LN		16		17		false		              17   utility, you know, to maintain power lines in this case				false

		453						LN		16		18		false		              18   or to maintain generator, simply to keep the				false

		454						LN		16		19		false		              19   infrastructure in place so service can be provided upon				false

		455						LN		16		20		false		              20   request.  And standby fees simply fairly allocate those				false

		456						LN		16		21		false		              21   costs to those who receive the benefits of it.				false

		457						LN		16		22		false		              22             As I noted previously, the district is				false

		458						LN		16		23		false		              23   prepared to address the commission's questions as set				false

		459						LN		16		24		false		              24   forth in the July 16th order, and to the extent that				false

		460						LN		16		25		false		              25   that discussion today goes beyond those questions, I				false

		461						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		462						LN		17		1		false		               1   would ask that we have the opportunity to file				false

		463						LN		17		2		false		               2   post-hearing briefs or some other sort of -- other sort				false

		464						LN		17		3		false		               3   of response after the hearing today.				false

		465						LN		17		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's certainly an option.				false

		466						LN		17		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  Thank you.				false

		467						LN		17		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We potentially				false

		468						LN		17		7		false		               7   have an issue with burden of proof in this case.  As to				false

		469						LN		17		8		false		               8   the commission's specific questions that are set forth,				false

		470						LN		17		9		false		               9   I am not sure, I don't think, that Ms. Seamons has the				false

		471						LN		17		10		false		              10   burden to demonstrate whether TUID did or did not hold a				false

		472						LN		17		11		false		              11   board meeting within 30 days of the commission's				false

		473						LN		17		12		false		              12   September 10th, 2015, order approving the stipulation.				false

		474						LN		17		13		false		              13   I believe that that really is Ticaboo's burden.				false

		475						LN		17		14		false		              14             Do the parties disagree?				false

		476						LN		17		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  We don't disagree.  However, we				false

		477						LN		17		16		false		              16   would be -- if the commission will allow, we would like				false

		478						LN		17		17		false		              17   to have on record Ms. Seamons' knowledge of those.				false

		479						LN		17		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  Why don't we go				false

		480						LN		17		19		false		              19   ahead and go with that.				false

		481						LN		17		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		482						LN		17		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Would you like to have her				false

		483						LN		17		22		false		              22   sworn then?				false

		484						LN		17		23		false		              23             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.				false

		485						LN		17		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Will you go ahead				false

		486						LN		17		25		false		              25   and take care of that.				false

		487						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		488						LN		18		1		false		               1             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.  Ma'am, would you				false

		489						LN		18		2		false		               2   raise your right hand and be sworn?				false

		490						LN		18		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Actually, what I would like to				false

		491						LN		18		4		false		               4   request is that, this is her daughter, Mary Broadbent,				false

		492						LN		18		5		false		               5   who has power of attorney and is the executor of				false

		493						LN		18		6		false		               6   Ms. Seamons.  And I would request that she be sworn in				false

		494						LN		18		7		false		               7   to testify in Ms. Seamons' behalf.				false

		495						LN		18		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  Why don't you				false

		496						LN		18		9		false		               9   both raise your hands.  Go ahead.				false

		497						LN		18		10		false		              10              MARY BROADBENT (Witness Daughter),				false

		498						LN		18		11		false		              11             and MARIAN SEAMONS (Witness Mother),				false

		499						LN		18		12		false		              12   called as witnesses at the instance of the complainant,				false

		500						LN		18		13		false		              13   having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified				false

		501						LN		18		14		false		              14   as follows:				false

		502						LN		18		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you, and we'd also ask for				false

		503						LN		18		16		false		              16   a little patience.  Ms. Seamons has some hearing --				false

		504						LN		18		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand and that's fine.				false

		505						LN		18		18		false		              18             MR. HOGELIN:  It may take a second to get				false

		506						LN		18		19		false		              19   questions across.				false

		507						LN		18		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  We will accommodate her as				false

		508						LN		18		21		false		              21   best we can.				false

		509						LN		18		22		false		              22                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		510						LN		18		23		false		              23   BY MR. HOGELIN:				false

		511						LN		18		24		false		              24        Q.   Mary, I'm going to direct these questions to				false

		512						LN		18		25		false		              25   you.  Were you or was your mother aware of the joint				false

		513						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		514						LN		19		1		false		               1   settlement stipulation of Docket 15-2508-T01?				false

		515						LN		19		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  I am not.  And neither				false

		516						LN		19		3		false		               3   one of us at that time.				false

		517						LN		19		4		false		               4        Q.   At what time?				false

		518						LN		19		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter)  In September.  In October				false

		519						LN		19		6		false		               6   we enacted upon trying to go to meetings.  On October				false

		520						LN		19		7		false		               7   5th we called to --				false

		521						LN		19		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.  So you didn't -- you weren't aware of a				false

		522						LN		19		9		false		               9   meeting in September --				false

		523						LN		19		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, no.				false

		524						LN		19		11		false		              11        Q.   -- or October, okay.				false

		525						LN		19		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Nothing prior.				false

		526						LN		19		13		false		              13        Q.   And then did -- were you aware of any board				false

		527						LN		19		14		false		              14   meeting that was held by TUID between the dates of				false

		528						LN		19		15		false		              15   September 30th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?				false

		529						LN		19		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.				false

		530						LN		19		17		false		              17        Q.   Did you reach out to TUID to try to --				false

		531						LN		19		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just a minute, Mr. Hogelin.				false

		532						LN		19		19		false		              19   Did you mean September 10th?  I believe you said				false

		533						LN		19		20		false		              20   September 30th.				false

		534						LN		19		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  You are right.  I did.  I was				false

		535						LN		19		22		false		              22   looking at the 30 days.  I apologize.				false

		536						LN		19		23		false		              23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)   So September 10th of 2015				false

		537						LN		19		24		false		              24   and October 10, 2015, were you aware of any board				false

		538						LN		19		25		false		              25   meeting that was held?				false

		539						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		540						LN		20		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter)  An October 5th board				false

		541						LN		20		2		false		               2   meeting was to be held.  I called and talked to				false

		542						LN		20		3		false		               3   Mr. Shortreed.  Well, my husband called, and we had it				false

		543						LN		20		4		false		               4   on voice speaker.  And it was canceled, he told us.				false

		544						LN		20		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  So there was no meeting that you are				false

		545						LN		20		6		false		               6   aware of that was held by the board for TUID between				false

		546						LN		20		7		false		               7   September 10th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?				false

		547						LN		20		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Right, no --				false

		548						LN		20		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.				false

		549						LN		20		10		false		              10        A.   -- board meeting.				false

		550						LN		20		11		false		              11        Q.   With regards to the -- are you aware of any				false

		551						LN		20		12		false		              12   revised tariff that was filed with the commission on				false

		552						LN		20		13		false		              13   Docket No. 15-2508-T01 within 15 days after October				false

		553						LN		20		14		false		              14   10th, 2015?				false

		554						LN		20		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.				false

		555						LN		20		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  Did you make any -- did you take any				false

		556						LN		20		17		false		              17   action to try to ascertain whether or not that had				false

		557						LN		20		18		false		              18   happened?				false

		558						LN		20		19		false		              19        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Yes.  I spoke with the				false

		559						LN		20		20		false		              20   commission office, Erika Tedder and another one.  I am				false

		560						LN		20		21		false		              21   trying to think of her name, and asked if there was a				false

		561						LN		20		22		false		              22   tariff filing for TUID, and they said that there was				false

		562						LN		20		23		false		              23   not.				false

		563						LN		20		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  Now, regarding the tariff also known as				false

		564						LN		20		25		false		              25   Docket No. 15-2508-T01, were you given any notice of any				false

		565						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		566						LN		21		1		false		               1   public meetings regarding that tariff?				false

		567						LN		21		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter)  I was not involved in that				false

		568						LN		21		3		false		               3   time, so my mother would have to then respond to that.				false

		569						LN		21		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.				false

		570						LN		21		5		false		               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Do you know anything of the				false

		571						LN		21		6		false		               6   2013 meeting to the tariff filing or -- in 2013?				false

		572						LN		21		7		false		               7             WITNESS MOTHER:  Which, which?				false

		573						LN		21		8		false		               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Any month, for meetings				false

		574						LN		21		9		false		               9   held in 2013.  Were you alerted of meetings?				false

		575						LN		21		10		false		              10             MR. HOGELIN:  For the tariff.				false

		576						LN		21		11		false		              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No, you were not living				false

		577						LN		21		12		false		              12   there.  But were you aware of any meetings that were to				false

		578						LN		21		13		false		              13   be held --				false

		579						LN		21		14		false		              14             THE WITNESS:  No.				false

		580						LN		21		15		false		              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER: -- in 2013?				false

		581						LN		21		16		false		              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  No, I was not.				false

		582						LN		21		17		false		              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Were you informed of				false

		583						LN		21		18		false		              18   meetings?				false

		584						LN		21		19		false		              19             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.				false

		585						LN		21		20		false		              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given any notice				false

		586						LN		21		21		false		              21   regarding any public meetings concerning Docket				false

		587						LN		21		22		false		              22   15-2508-T01?				false

		588						LN		21		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Now, were we given -- say				false

		589						LN		21		24		false		              24   that one more time.  I'm sorry.				false

		590						LN		21		25		false		              25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given notice of any				false

		591						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		592						LN		22		1		false		               1   public meetings that were to be held on court docket in				false

		593						LN		22		2		false		               2   2015, for the tariff in 2015?				false

		594						LN		22		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		595						LN		22		4		false		               4        Q.   How did you find out about the 2015 docket				false

		596						LN		22		5		false		               5   regarding the tariff?				false

		597						LN		22		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) At September of 2015,				false

		598						LN		22		7		false		               7   started to look at ways that they were posting				false

		599						LN		22		8		false		               8   information towards meetings.  Searched the Internet,				false

		600						LN		22		9		false		               9   found TSSD, and then started to find out county				false

		601						LN		22		10		false		              10   newspaper, located Garfield County, and was informed of				false

		602						LN		22		11		false		              11   meetings under Garfield County newspaper.				false

		603						LN		22		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  And I believe that is our -- my				false

		604						LN		22		13		false		              13   client's responses to the first three questions.  If you				false

		605						LN		22		14		false		              14   want to hold there or go forward.				false

		606						LN		22		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's keep going.				false

		607						LN		22		16		false		              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  So I am going to ask				false

		608						LN		22		17		false		              17   Ms. Broadbent to testify on behalf of her mother, even				false

		609						LN		22		18		false		              18   though her mother is the one that has the actual				false

		610						LN		22		19		false		              19   knowledge.				false

		611						LN		22		20		false		              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Broadbent, when did --				false

		612						LN		22		21		false		              21   when did -- when was your mother first notified that she				false

		613						LN		22		22		false		              22   was going to be charged standby fees?				false

		614						LN		22		23		false		              23             MR. LONG:  I'd like to note an objection.  I'd				false

		615						LN		22		24		false		              24   like to note an objection.				false

		616						LN		22		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.				false

		617						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		618						LN		23		1		false		               1             MR. LONG:  I understand we are not bound by				false

		619						LN		23		2		false		               2   the rules of evidence here, but on a hearsay basis, I --				false

		620						LN		23		3		false		               3   we would prefer to hear directly from Ms. Seamons.				false

		621						LN		23		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I am going to ahead and				false

		622						LN		23		5		false		               5   let her --				false

		623						LN		23		6		false		               6             MR. LONG:  -- difficulties.				false

		624						LN		23		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- daughter say what she needs				false

		625						LN		23		8		false		               8   to say.				false

		626						LN		23		9		false		               9             MR. LONG:  Sure.				false

		627						LN		23		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Could you please make sure				false

		628						LN		23		11		false		              11   that your mother can hear you.				false

		629						LN		23		12		false		              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.				false

		630						LN		23		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  As you speak, and then we'll				false

		631						LN		23		14		false		              14   see where that takes us.				false

		632						LN		23		15		false		              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So she is going to allow me				false

		633						LN		23		16		false		              16   to speak for you.				false

		634						LN		23		17		false		              17             WITNESS MOTHER:  Right.  I can't hear.				false

		635						LN		23		18		false		              18             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  She is hoping that I speak				false

		636						LN		23		19		false		              19   loud enough that you can hear me.				false

		637						LN		23		20		false		              20             WITNESS MOTHER:  Oh, I'll try.				false

		638						LN		23		21		false		              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And then agree or disagree				false

		639						LN		23		22		false		              22   at any point that I don't speak within what you would				false

		640						LN		23		23		false		              23   testify on your own behalf.				false

		641						LN		23		24		false		              24             WITNESS MOTHER:  Okay.				false

		642						LN		23		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So pull that microphone right				false

		643						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		644						LN		24		1		false		               1   up to you.				false

		645						LN		24		2		false		               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  To me?				false

		646						LN		24		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Either way, yeah, either one,				false

		647						LN		24		4		false		               4   so that that should help your mom hear.				false

		648						LN		24		5		false		               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.				false

		649						LN		24		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  And speak nice and				false

		650						LN		24		7		false		               7   loud.				false

		651						LN		24		8		false		               8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) When did -- when did your				false

		652						LN		24		9		false		               9   mother first get notice that she was being charged				false

		653						LN		24		10		false		              10   standby fees?				false

		654						LN		24		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) Her first notice was not				false

		655						LN		24		12		false		              12   until March of 2014.				false

		656						LN		24		13		false		              13        Q.   Now, in that notice, when was she first				false

		657						LN		24		14		false		              14   actually charged standby fees?				false

		658						LN		24		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) The charges began September				false

		659						LN		24		16		false		              16   1st of 2013.				false

		660						LN		24		17		false		              17        Q.   Okay.  Do you recall receiving or -- okay.  I				false

		661						LN		24		18		false		              18   have here Ticaboo Utility Improvement District				false

		662						LN		24		19		false		              19   Resolution No. 2013-0017.				false

		663						LN		24		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		664						LN		24		21		false		              21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Do you recognize this				false

		665						LN		24		22		false		              22   document?				false

		666						LN		24		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  But I received this				false

		667						LN		24		24		false		              24   from --				false

		668						LN		24		25		false		              25        Q.   I am just asking if you --				false

		669						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		670						LN		25		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yeah, I recognize this.				false

		671						LN		25		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  And can you turn to the second page?				false

		672						LN		25		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		673						LN		25		4		false		               4        Q.   Do you see -- can you read the top line?				false

		674						LN		25		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) No. 1 or 2?				false

		675						LN		25		6		false		               6        Q.   No, the top line.				false

		676						LN		25		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh.  "Now, therefore, be it				false

		677						LN		25		8		false		               8   resolved by the legislative body of Ticaboo Utility				false

		678						LN		25		9		false		               9   Improvement District as follows."				false

		679						LN		25		10		false		              10        Q.   And can you read paragraph No. 2.				false

		680						LN		25		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) No. 2, the rules regarding				false

		681						LN		25		12		false		              12   the minimum --				false

		682						LN		25		13		false		              13        Q.   The new rules.				false

		683						LN		25		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) "The new rules regarding				false

		684						LN		25		15		false		              15   the minimum payment of standby fees for all services.				false

		685						LN		25		16		false		              16   If a customer is receiving, connected and/or tapped into				false

		686						LN		25		17		false		              17   any of the utility services provided; electric, water,				false

		687						LN		25		18		false		              18   waste water, solid waste, will be required and hereby				false

		688						LN		25		19		false		              19   approved by the district manager as authorized to file				false

		689						LN		25		20		false		              20   the rules, with such clerical changes as district				false

		690						LN		25		21		false		              21   manager deems reasonable and necessary to comply within				false

		691						LN		25		22		false		              22   Utah law and with the rules and regulations of the				false

		692						LN		25		23		false		              23   district."				false

		693						LN		25		24		false		              24        Q.   Can you read paragraph No. 3.				false

		694						LN		25		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Three.  "The new rates and				false

		695						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		696						LN		26		1		false		               1   rules shall become effective September 1st, 2013."				false

		697						LN		26		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  And is it signed?				false

		698						LN		26		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		699						LN		26		4		false		               4        Q.   By who?				false

		700						LN		26		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) It's a printed, Mr. Chip				false

		701						LN		26		6		false		               6   Shortreed and Justin Fischer, secretary with their seal.				false

		702						LN		26		7		false		               7        Q.   And then is it sealed?				false

		703						LN		26		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you want that document --				false

		704						LN		26		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.				false

		705						LN		26		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- in the record as an				false

		706						LN		26		11		false		              11   exhibit?  Any objection?				false

		707						LN		26		12		false		              12             MR. LONG:  No.				false

		708						LN		26		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		709						LN		26		14		false		              14             MR. LONG:  No.				false

		710						LN		26		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Permission to approach?				false

		711						LN		26		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah, go ahead.  So I am going				false

		712						LN		26		17		false		              17   to mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 1.				false

		713						LN		26		18		false		              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Amended?  Oh, okay.				false

		714						LN		26		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.				false

		715						LN		26		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  I just didn't want to confuse				false

		716						LN		26		21		false		              21   with all those other exhibits.				false

		717						LN		26		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, they are not really				false

		718						LN		26		23		false		              23   marked.				false

		719						LN		26		24		false		              24             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		720						LN		26		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  At least not particularly, not				false

		721						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		722						LN		27		1		false		               1   in a really clear order.				false

		723						LN		27		2		false		               2             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		724						LN		27		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  So we'll just mark everything				false

		725						LN		27		4		false		               4   today.  Exhibit 1.				false

		726						LN		27		5		false		               5             So let me just ask a couple of questions to				false

		727						LN		27		6		false		               6   deal with the evidentiary objection.  How, how do you				false

		728						LN		27		7		false		               7   know when the standby fees were first -- when your				false

		729						LN		27		8		false		               8   mother first received notice of the standby fees?				false

		730						LN		27		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  We're going to -- we're going to				false

		731						LN		27		10		false		              10   show that.				false

		732						LN		27		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		733						LN		27		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  We're going to show that.				false

		734						LN		27		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  And similarly, how do you know				false

		735						LN		27		14		false		              14   when the charges began?				false

		736						LN		27		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Absolutely.				false

		737						LN		27		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  If you are going to bring in				false

		738						LN		27		17		false		              17   some documentary evidence, that would be helpful.				false

		739						LN		27		18		false		              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Yeah.				false

		740						LN		27		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		741						LN		27		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		742						LN		27		21		false		              21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So what is your understanding				false

		743						LN		27		22		false		              22   of paragraph 2?				false

		744						LN		27		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) In No. 2 being receiving,				false

		745						LN		27		24		false		              24   connected or tapped, tapped being, my reference would be				false

		746						LN		27		25		false		              25   the meters.				false

		747						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		748						LN		28		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.  And is your understanding that if you				false

		749						LN		28		2		false		               2   were not receiving, connected or tapped on any of your				false

		750						LN		28		3		false		               3   properties, that you would or would not be charged the				false

		751						LN		28		4		false		               4   standby fee?				false

		752						LN		28		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Would not.				false

		753						LN		28		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  How many properties does your mother				false

		754						LN		28		7		false		               7   own in the district?				false

		755						LN		28		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) We have a total of eight.				false

		756						LN		28		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  As of September 1st, 2013, were all				false

		757						LN		28		10		false		              10   eight properties receiving, connected and/or tapped with				false

		758						LN		28		11		false		              11   any utilities?				false

		759						LN		28		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) At that time of September				false

		760						LN		28		13		false		              13   1st, we were only connected with one double-wide home.				false

		761						LN		28		14		false		              14        Q.   Just where --				false

		762						LN		28		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) One property.  Well, one				false

		763						LN		28		16		false		              16   and two, but they are considered one with being				false

		764						LN		28		17		false		              17   contiguous.				false

		765						LN		28		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  How many properties were not receiving,				false

		766						LN		28		19		false		              19   connected or tapped into with any type of utility at the				false

		767						LN		28		20		false		              20   time of September 1st?				false

		768						LN		28		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) Six.				false

		769						LN		28		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I have a document.  It says				false

		770						LN		28		23		false		              23   audit history.  It's for Account 1000 for Ticaboo				false

		771						LN		28		24		false		              24   Utility Improvement District.  For reference that is lot				false

		772						LN		28		25		false		              25   005.  And do you recognize this document?				false

		773						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		774						LN		29		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		775						LN		29		2		false		               2        Q.   Can you please -- can you please read the				false

		776						LN		29		3		false		               3   account number.				false

		777						LN		29		4		false		               4        A.   (Witness Daughter) Account 1000.				false

		778						LN		29		5		false		               5        Q.   And which lot is that for?				false

		779						LN		29		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) Lot 5.				false

		780						LN		29		7		false		               7        Q.   And in the -- well, is there a name at the top				false

		781						LN		29		8		false		               8   of it?				false

		782						LN		29		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons is our				false

		783						LN		29		10		false		              10   father and my mother's husband.				false

		784						LN		29		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  And so is this a -- this is an audit				false

		785						LN		29		12		false		              12   history of that lot, correct?				false

		786						LN		29		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  We received one				false

		787						LN		29		14		false		              14   for each property.				false

		788						LN		29		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Would the commission like a				false

		789						LN		29		16		false		              16   copy?				false

		790						LN		29		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.  It's, it's in -- it's in				false

		791						LN		29		18		false		              18   here, but let's go ahead and take a clean copy and mark				false

		792						LN		29		19		false		              19   it.				false

		793						LN		29		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Great.				false

		794						LN		29		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  So I am going to				false

		795						LN		29		22		false		              22   mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 2 unless there's an				false

		796						LN		29		23		false		              23   objection.  Mr. Long, any objection?				false

		797						LN		29		24		false		              24             MR. LONG:  Sorry.  Could you repeat that?				false

		798						LN		29		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am prepared to enter this				false

		799						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		800						LN		30		1		false		               1   into evidence and mark it as Complainant's Exhibit 2.				false

		801						LN		30		2		false		               2   Any objection?				false

		802						LN		30		3		false		               3             MR. LONG:  No objection.				false

		803						LN		30		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.				false

		804						LN		30		5		false		               5        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the first line of the				false

		805						LN		30		6		false		               6   audit, what's the date?				false

		806						LN		30		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, the first one is				false

		807						LN		30		8		false		               8   August 31st, 2012.				false

		808						LN		30		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  And does it show a balance?				false

		809						LN		30		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) It shows a previous balance				false

		810						LN		30		11		false		              11   of 758.06.				false

		811						LN		30		12		false		              12        Q.   Okay.  So just for background purposes, why is				false

		812						LN		30		13		false		              13   there a previous balance from that?				false

		813						LN		30		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) In the previous balance,				false

		814						LN		30		15		false		              15   it's a bill that Ticaboo states that we owe, yet				false

		815						LN		30		16		false		              16   under --				false

		816						LN		30		17		false		              17        Q.   Okay.  So it's a previous, an alleged previous				false

		817						LN		30		18		false		              18   balance that was carried over?				false

		818						LN		30		19		false		              19        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.				false

		819						LN		30		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  And then for the next month, so what				false

		820						LN		30		21		false		              21   does the next month say?				false

		821						LN		30		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, it goes down to 930,				false

		822						LN		30		23		false		              23   beginning balance of usage, but at the bottom of the				false

		823						LN		30		24		false		              24   page --				false

		824						LN		30		25		false		              25        Q.   No.  I'm asking questions here.				false

		825						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		826						LN		31		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, okay.				false

		827						LN		31		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  So the next month says what?				false

		828						LN		31		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) 9-30-2012.				false

		829						LN		31		4		false		               4        Q.   And what's the balance?				false

		830						LN		31		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) 758.06.				false

		831						LN		31		6		false		               6        Q.   So essentially it was the same balance as the				false

		832						LN		31		7		false		               7   month before, correct?				false

		833						LN		31		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.				false

		834						LN		31		9		false		               9             MR. LONG:  I object.  This is -- these				false

		835						LN		31		10		false		              10   balances are all water bills that were balances owed to				false

		836						LN		31		11		false		              11   TSSD before the two districts were combined to form what				false

		837						LN		31		12		false		              12   is now Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.  In the				false

		838						LN		31		13		false		              13   district's opinion any issues with water service are				false

		839						LN		31		14		false		              14   outside the commission's jurisdiction.				false

		840						LN		31		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's an excellent point, so				false

		841						LN		31		16		false		              16   we can talk about that in just a minute.  But look at				false

		842						LN		31		17		false		              17   the December 31st, 2012, line.				false

		843						LN		31		18		false		              18             MR. HOGELIN:  The water issue is not what				false

		844						LN		31		19		false		              19   we're using this for.				false

		845						LN		31		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  This is where we see some				false

		846						LN		31		21		false		              21   kilowatt hours.  So it looks like it does become both				false

		847						LN		31		22		false		              22   electricity and water.  At least that's how it appears.				false

		848						LN		31		23		false		              23   Is that correct?				false

		849						LN		31		24		false		              24             MR. LONG:  Yeah, that's correct.				false

		850						LN		31		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		851						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		852						LN		32		1		false		               1             MR. LONG:  And if we could simply move to the				false

		853						LN		32		2		false		               2   -- whatever issues they have with electric service.				false

		854						LN		32		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yeah, I am getting there.				false

		855						LN		32		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is it correct that up until				false

		856						LN		32		5		false		               5   December 31st, 2012, the charges are for water, not for				false

		857						LN		32		6		false		               6   electricity?  Is that your understanding?				false

		858						LN		32		7		false		               7             MR. HOGELIN:  For in -- yeah.  For whatever.				false

		859						LN		32		8		false		               8   Actually, these charges were carried over.  Okay?				false

		860						LN		32		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		861						LN		32		10		false		              10             MR. HOGELIN:  So what we're trying to show is				false

		862						LN		32		11		false		              11   that the billing is the same up until September of 2013.				false

		863						LN		32		12		false		              12   Okay?				false

		864						LN		32		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, okay.  So we have a				false

		865						LN		32		14		false		              14   carried-over balance.				false

		866						LN		32		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Right.				false

		867						LN		32		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  It begins -- this document				false

		868						LN		32		17		false		              17   begins to show that carryover as to electricity				false

		869						LN		32		18		false		              18   beginning December 31st, 2012.				false

		870						LN		32		19		false		              19             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.				false

		871						LN		32		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  No changes in that balance				false

		872						LN		32		21		false		              21   appear until --				false

		873						LN		32		22		false		              22             MR. HOGELIN:  September of 2013.				false

		874						LN		32		23		false		              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  At the bottom of the page,				false

		875						LN		32		24		false		              24   it shows 9-9-2013, and that began the standby fees				false

		876						LN		32		25		false		              25   implementation.				false

		877						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		878						LN		33		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  So I was just trying to get -- I				false

		879						LN		33		2		false		               2   was just trying to get the long way of giving a				false

		880						LN		33		3		false		               3   foundation for that.				false

		881						LN		33		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.  And you don't need				false

		882						LN		33		5		false		               5   to -- I am not going to require you to spend a lot of				false

		883						LN		33		6		false		               6   time on foundation unless you are going to consider that				false

		884						LN		33		7		false		               7   to be an error and appeal on that basis.				false

		885						LN		33		8		false		               8             MR. LONG:  No.  I am fine admitting this as				false

		886						LN		33		9		false		               9   evidence.				false

		887						LN		33		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		888						LN		33		11		false		              11             MR. LONG:  This is a document that was				false

		889						LN		33		12		false		              12   provided to them as part of what was ostensibly a GRAMA				false

		890						LN		33		13		false		              13   request.				false

		891						LN		33		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Right.  So go ahead				false

		892						LN		33		15		false		              15   and --				false

		893						LN		33		16		false		              16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So in September of 2013 --				false

		894						LN		33		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		895						LN		33		18		false		              18        Q.   -- what -- there was charges that were being				false

		896						LN		33		19		false		              19   put on that property, correct?				false

		897						LN		33		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Right.				false

		898						LN		33		21		false		              21        Q.   And what charges were those?				false

		899						LN		33		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) They were standby fees for				false

		900						LN		33		23		false		              23   tapped property.				false

		901						LN		33		24		false		              24        Q.   Now, prior to those charges being implemented,				false

		902						LN		33		25		false		              25   was Lot 5, for which this audit is specifically for, was				false

		903						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		904						LN		34		1		false		               1   it receiving, connected and/or tapped to any of the				false

		905						LN		34		2		false		               2   utility services?				false

		906						LN		34		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Meters were removed in				false

		907						LN		34		4		false		               4   2008.				false

		908						LN		34		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.				false

		909						LN		34		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just make a				false

		910						LN		34		7		false		               7   note of that.  So this -- where does this show what the				false

		911						LN		34		8		false		               8   property number is or the property identifier?				false

		912						LN		34		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, the 1000 is the account				false

		913						LN		34		10		false		              10   number.				false

		914						LN		34		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		915						LN		34		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  And that account number				false

		916						LN		34		13		false		              13   correlates, and based off the testimony of my client,				false

		917						LN		34		14		false		              14   that that coordinates with 005.  And again, this was				false

		918						LN		34		15		false		              15   provided by Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.				false

		919						LN		34		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So Account No. 1000 is				false

		920						LN		34		17		false		              17   for lot or plat number 005.				false

		921						LN		34		18		false		              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.  We, we -- my clients				false

		922						LN		34		19		false		              19   received a letter from TUIA and explaining that.  I				false

		923						LN		34		20		false		              20   didn't make copies.  But I do have --				false

		924						LN		34		21		false		              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It's submitted into the				false

		925						LN		34		22		false		              22   formal complaint.				false

		926						LN		34		23		false		              23             MR. HOGELIN:  It is in the formal complaint.				false

		927						LN		34		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Well, if we				false

		928						LN		34		25		false		              25   need to look for the documentary evidence, we can do				false

		929						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		930						LN		35		1		false		               1   that.  I just want to make sure that I understand what				false

		931						LN		35		2		false		               2   we're talking about.				false

		932						LN		35		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.				false

		933						LN		35		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  So it's your testimony that on				false

		934						LN		35		5		false		               5   this particular plat, Lot 005, there were no taps, that				false

		935						LN		35		6		false		               6   taps had been removed in 2008; is that right?				false

		936						LN		35		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Right.				false

		937						LN		35		8		false		               8             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.				false

		938						LN		35		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		939						LN		35		10		false		              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Can you turn to the				false

		940						LN		35		11		false		              11   second page of that audit.				false

		941						LN		35		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) This still says 1000.				false

		942						LN		35		13		false		              13        Q.   Just to the second page please.				false

		943						LN		35		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, sure.				false

		944						LN		35		15		false		              15        Q.   Okay.  Can you please read -- do you see where				false

		945						LN		35		16		false		              16   at March of 2014 the block is for?				false

		946						LN		35		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		947						LN		35		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  And what does it say at the bottom of				false

		948						LN		35		19		false		              19   the block?				false

		949						LN		35		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1946.25				false

		950						LN		35		21		false		              21   due on 4-21-2014.				false

		951						LN		35		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  Prior to March of 2014, is there				false

		952						LN		35		23		false		              23   anywhere on the audit history that shows that there was				false

		953						LN		35		24		false		              24   any notice printed or put forth to you?				false

		954						LN		35		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		955						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		956						LN		36		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.  And did your mother receive any notice				false

		957						LN		36		2		false		               2   of these charges prior to March of 2014?				false

		958						LN		36		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		959						LN		36		4		false		               4        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		960						LN		36		5		false		               5        Q.   Thank you.  Okay.  As for Lot 3 and 4, and is				false

		961						LN		36		6		false		               6   it your testimony that Lot 3 and 4 are Account No. 1115?				false

		962						LN		36		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		963						LN		36		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.				false

		964						LN		36		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.				false

		965						LN		36		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  What was the account number				false

		966						LN		36		11		false		              11   again?				false

		967						LN		36		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  1115.				false

		968						LN		36		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And that's Lots 3 and 4				false

		969						LN		36		14		false		              14   together, correct?				false

		970						LN		36		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.				false

		971						LN		36		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		972						LN		36		17		false		              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And for Account No. 1115,				false

		973						LN		36		18		false		              18   Lots 3 and 4, was there -- we're looking at a copy of				false

		974						LN		36		19		false		              19   audit history for Account 1115.  Is this the --				false

		975						LN		36		20		false		              20   basically look the same as the account for 1000 in the				false

		976						LN		36		21		false		              21   billing?				false

		977						LN		36		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, and the same --				false

		978						LN		36		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  And is this -- where did you get this				false

		979						LN		36		24		false		              24   from?				false

		980						LN		36		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) We GRAMA Act requested				false

		981						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		982						LN		37		1		false		               1   documents from the district and received them in October				false

		983						LN		37		2		false		               2   of 2015.				false

		984						LN		37		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.  And was there -- is there any billing				false

		985						LN		37		4		false		               4   shown on there prior to September of 2013?				false

		986						LN		37		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Okay.  At that time, no.				false

		987						LN		37		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  So was Lots 3 and 4, were they				false

		988						LN		37		7		false		               7   receiving, connected and/or tapped to any utilities				false

		989						LN		37		8		false		               8   prior to September of 2013?				false

		990						LN		37		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, they were.  To this				false

		991						LN		37		10		false		              10   lot there was.				false

		992						LN		37		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.				false

		993						LN		37		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) The meters were removed by				false

		994						LN		37		13		false		              13   the district in August of 2013.				false

		995						LN		37		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  So it had taps through August?				false

		996						LN		37		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Of 2013.				false

		997						LN		37		16		false		              16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, July 31st, and in				false

		998						LN		37		17		false		              17   August 1st of 2013 the district came and removed the				false

		999						LN		37		18		false		              18   meters.				false

		1000						LN		37		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Hang on.  Let me get				false

		1001						LN		37		20		false		              20   the dates down.				false

		1002						LN		37		21		false		              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.				false

		1003						LN		37		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Through July 31st, 2013.				false

		1004						LN		37		23		false		              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Uh-huh.				false

		1005						LN		37		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right?  And then taps were				false

		1006						LN		37		25		false		              25   removed on what date?  August?				false

		1007						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		1008						LN		38		1		false		               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  August of 2013.				false

		1009						LN		38		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  You don't know the				false

		1010						LN		38		3		false		               3   exact date?				false

		1011						LN		38		4		false		               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I went down there on the				false

		1012						LN		38		5		false		               5   15th of that month.				false

		1013						LN		38		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		1014						LN		38		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  But the -- our renters that				false

		1015						LN		38		8		false		               8   were there and had the taps called us at the first of				false

		1016						LN		38		9		false		               9   the month and reported to us that the district had came				false

		1017						LN		38		10		false		              10   and removed the meters.				false

		1018						LN		38		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1019						LN		38		12		false		              12             MR. LONG:  If I could add a point of				false

		1020						LN		38		13		false		              13   clarification.				false

		1021						LN		38		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Sure.				false

		1022						LN		38		15		false		              15             MR. LONG:  There seem to be some confusion				false

		1023						LN		38		16		false		              16   about meters versus taps versus connections.				false

		1024						LN		38		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1025						LN		38		18		false		              18             MR. LONG:  The district in my own words				false

		1026						LN		38		19		false		              19   defines taps as the presence of a utility connection at				false

		1027						LN		38		20		false		              20   the property line.  So in this case a -- in the case of				false

		1028						LN		38		21		false		              21   electricity a line drop.  Is that --				false

		1029						LN		38		22		false		              22             MR. SHORTREED:  A line extends to a meter.				false

		1030						LN		38		23		false		              23             MR. LONG:  So a power line of some sort				false

		1031						LN		38		24		false		              24   extends to the property.  Now, that's the tap as far as				false

		1032						LN		38		25		false		              25   the district is concerned.				false

		1033						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		1034						LN		39		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1035						LN		39		2		false		               2             MR. LONG:  Whether there's a meter connected				false

		1036						LN		39		3		false		               3   to that tap is another issue.				false

		1037						LN		39		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1038						LN		39		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  And obviously, the district owns				false

		1039						LN		39		6		false		               6   meters, and those are an expense.  And generally, if a				false

		1040						LN		39		7		false		               7   property is not receiving service, having a meter on it				false

		1041						LN		39		8		false		               8   is an expense the district tries to avoid.  So taps				false

		1042						LN		39		9		false		               9   versus -- taps are not the same as meters.				false

		1043						LN		39		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if meters were				false

		1044						LN		39		11		false		              11   removed, that doesn't necessarily mean that the taps				false

		1045						LN		39		12		false		              12   were removed.  Is that what you are saying?				false

		1046						LN		39		13		false		              13             MR. LONG:  Precisely.				false

		1047						LN		39		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  And as far as you know, the				false

		1048						LN		39		15		false		              15   meters were removed, but are you aware of whether or not				false

		1049						LN		39		16		false		              16   the line, the electrical line to the property was also				false

		1050						LN		39		17		false		              17   removed?				false

		1051						LN		39		18		false		              18             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Electrical line is to the				false

		1052						LN		39		19		false		              19   back of the property at the five foot variance.  It's				false

		1053						LN		39		20		false		              20   not actually on the property.				false

		1054						LN		39		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1055						LN		39		22		false		              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So once they remove the				false

		1056						LN		39		23		false		              23   meters, that is upon the property of the district at				false

		1057						LN		39		24		false		              24   their five foot variance.  To the property?  No?				false

		1058						LN		39		25		false		              25             VOICE:  It's your property.  It's just in an				false

		1059						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1060						LN		40		1		false		               1   easement.				false

		1061						LN		40		2		false		               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It's in an easement, but				false

		1062						LN		40		3		false		               3   it's still my property.  But it's -- the line is				false

		1063						LN		40		4		false		               4   lateral, once the meter is taken to the rear of the				false

		1064						LN		40		5		false		               5   property.				false

		1065						LN		40		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just -- let's				false

		1066						LN		40		7		false		               7   go at it from this angle.  The tenants, excuse me,				false

		1067						LN		40		8		false		               8   reported to you that the meters had been removed, right?				false

		1068						LN		40		9		false		               9             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Correct.				false

		1069						LN		40		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did they also report that they				false

		1070						LN		40		11		false		              11   were no longer receiving electricity?				false

		1071						LN		40		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  That is correct.				false

		1072						LN		40		13		false		              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  They were taken.  There's				false

		1073						LN		40		14		false		              14   no -- so there was nothing provided.				false

		1074						LN		40		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  No electricity being provided?				false

		1075						LN		40		16		false		              16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Or water, correct.				false

		1076						LN		40		17		false		              17             WITNESS MOTHER:  No power.				false

		1077						LN		40		18		false		              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Any utilities.				false

		1078						LN		40		19		false		              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Any utilities.				false

		1079						LN		40		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  So if there was a line there,				false

		1080						LN		40		21		false		              21   it wasn't being used to deliver --				false

		1081						LN		40		22		false		              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.				false

		1082						LN		40		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- utility service.  Okay.				false

		1083						LN		40		24		false		              24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And again, this -- was this				false

		1084						LN		40		25		false		              25   before September 1st, 2013?				false

		1085						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1086						LN		41		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1087						LN		41		2		false		               2        Q.   So looking at this audit history, are there				false

		1088						LN		41		3		false		               3   charges after September -- or beginning in September of				false

		1089						LN		41		4		false		               4   2013?				false

		1090						LN		41		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1091						LN		41		6		false		               6        Q.   And what charges are those?				false

		1092						LN		41		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Standby fees for utility				false

		1093						LN		41		8		false		               8   service.				false

		1094						LN		41		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  And then can you turn to -- can you				false

		1095						LN		41		10		false		              10   turn to page 2.  And do you see where the -- it				false

		1096						LN		41		11		false		              11   represents the billing for March of 2014?				false

		1097						LN		41		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  $1213.49.				false

		1098						LN		41		13		false		              13        Q.   What does it say at the bottom of that?				false

		1099						LN		41		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49				false

		1100						LN		41		15		false		              15   due on 4-21 of 2014.				false

		1101						LN		41		16		false		              16        Q.   For any of the other months was -- does it				false

		1102						LN		41		17		false		              17   show that there was any notices printed?				false

		1103						LN		41		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1104						LN		41		19		false		              19        Q.   Did your mother receive any notices prior to				false

		1105						LN		41		20		false		              20   March of 2014?				false

		1106						LN		41		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1107						LN		41		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1108						LN		41		23		false		              23        Q.   Thank you.				false

		1109						LN		41		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are you going to put that				false

		1110						LN		41		25		false		              25   audit history into evidence for those two lots?				false

		1111						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1112						LN		42		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  This is the original, right?				false

		1113						LN		42		2		false		               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is it my original?				false

		1114						LN		42		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.				false

		1115						LN		42		4		false		               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It doesn't matter.  I have				false

		1116						LN		42		5		false		               5   it on the computer with original filings.				false

		1117						LN		42		6		false		               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		1118						LN		42		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I have file docket so it's				false

		1119						LN		42		8		false		               8   fine.  I have the --				false

		1120						LN		42		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  But I printed it out.				false

		1121						LN		42		10		false		              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- zip drive.  That's fine.				false

		1122						LN		42		11		false		              11   I have the zip on it.				false

		1123						LN		42		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Long?				false

		1124						LN		42		13		false		              13             MR. LONG:  No objection.				false

		1125						LN		42		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1126						LN		42		15		false		              15        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So is it your testimony that				false

		1127						LN		42		16		false		              16   Lot 7 and 8 are --				false

		1128						LN		42		17		false		              17             MR. LONG:  Mr. Hogelin, do you have a copy for				false

		1129						LN		42		18		false		              18   me?				false

		1130						LN		42		19		false		              19             MR. HOGELIN:  I don't.				false

		1131						LN		42		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Just --				false

		1132						LN		42		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  I do of all the other ones.  I				false

		1133						LN		42		22		false		              22   don't know what happened to that one.				false

		1134						LN		42		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  We'll take a little break, and				false

		1135						LN		42		24		false		              24   I'll go run some copies.				false

		1136						LN		42		25		false		              25             MR. HOGELIN:  It's just that one.  Thank you.				false

		1137						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1138						LN		43		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Hold on just a minute.  Let's				false

		1139						LN		43		2		false		               2   just take a break, and we'll go.  How many did we need?				false

		1140						LN		43		3		false		               3   Two.  Let's make two copies.				false

		1141						LN		43		4		false		               4             (Discussion off the record.)				false

		1142						LN		43		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just so you know, I wrote on				false

		1143						LN		43		6		false		               6   your Exhibit No. 2.  Next to Account 1000, I put in				false

		1144						LN		43		7		false		               7   parenthesis Lot 005.				false

		1145						LN		43		8		false		               8             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.				false

		1146						LN		43		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  And on No. 3, I did the same				false

		1147						LN		43		10		false		              10   thing, put in parentheses Lots 003 and 004 to help me				false

		1148						LN		43		11		false		              11   keep it straight.				false

		1149						LN		43		12		false		              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Do you want the original				false

		1150						LN		43		13		false		              13   that shows the lots showing them?				false

		1151						LN		43		14		false		              14             MR. HOGELIN:  We don't have the copies, but				false

		1152						LN		43		15		false		              15   that is the letter from TUID that shows the accounts				false

		1153						LN		43		16		false		              16   with corresponding lots.				false

		1154						LN		43		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, any objection to this?				false

		1155						LN		43		18		false		              18             MR. LONG:  No objection.				false

		1156						LN		43		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We need copies of				false

		1157						LN		43		20		false		              20   this one as well?				false

		1158						LN		43		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Please.				false

		1159						LN		43		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Be right back.  We can				false

		1160						LN		43		23		false		              23   go off the record.				false

		1161						LN		43		24		false		              24             (Discussion off the record.)				false

		1162						LN		43		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  There are some people				false

		1163						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1164						LN		44		1		false		               1   who are listening to the hearing through our live				false

		1165						LN		44		2		false		               2   streaming service, and we just received notice that they				false

		1166						LN		44		3		false		               3   are having some difficulty hearing.  So if you would				false

		1167						LN		44		4		false		               4   pull those mics right up close and try to speak loudly,				false

		1168						LN		44		5		false		               5   that would be helpful.				false

		1169						LN		44		6		false		               6             Also, our court reporter has some -- has a				false

		1170						LN		44		7		false		               7   little device that shows the transcription coming up on				false

		1171						LN		44		8		false		               8   text as she captures what we do here today.  So				false

		1172						LN		44		9		false		               9   Ms. Seamons is looking at that now, and that might help				false

		1173						LN		44		10		false		              10   her to participate a little bit more and answer some				false

		1174						LN		44		11		false		              11   questions.				false

		1175						LN		44		12		false		              12             So Mrs. Seamons, can you see what I am saying?				false

		1176						LN		44		13		false		              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you see what --				false

		1177						LN		44		14		false		              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  I can read this.				false

		1178						LN		44		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1179						LN		44		16		false		              16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  But understanding it and				false

		1180						LN		44		17		false		              17   going through it, her eyesight isn't as great either.				false

		1181						LN		44		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.  These things				false

		1182						LN		44		19		false		              19   happen, and they will happen to all of us.				false

		1183						LN		44		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.				false

		1184						LN		44		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So --				false

		1185						LN		44		22		false		              22             WITNESS MOTHER:  I have to rely on my attorney				false

		1186						LN		44		23		false		              23   and my daughter.				false

		1187						LN		44		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.  I am going to				false

		1188						LN		44		25		false		              25   mark the letter that ties the lot numbers to the account				false

		1189						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1190						LN		45		1		false		               1   numbers as Complainant's Exhibit 4.  All right.  Are we				false

		1191						LN		45		2		false		               2   back on the record?				false

		1192						LN		45		3		false		               3             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.				false

		1193						LN		45		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Mr. Hogelin, go				false

		1194						LN		45		5		false		               5   ahead.				false

		1195						LN		45		6		false		               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So we were talking				false

		1196						LN		45		7		false		               7   about Lots 7 and 8.  And is it your understanding,				false

		1197						LN		45		8		false		               8   according to the letter from Ticaboo, that Lot 7 and 8				false

		1198						LN		45		9		false		               9   are also known as Account No. 1131?				false

		1199						LN		45		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1200						LN		45		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  I am handing you a document.  What does				false

		1201						LN		45		12		false		              12   it say at the very top?				false

		1202						LN		45		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Audit history.				false

		1203						LN		45		14		false		              14        Q.   And does it have an account number?				false

		1204						LN		45		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) 1131.				false

		1205						LN		45		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And in whose name is at the top of				false

		1206						LN		45		17		false		              17   that?				false

		1207						LN		45		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons.				false

		1208						LN		45		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  For 1131, does it -- when does				false

		1209						LN		45		20		false		              20   the billing start?				false

		1210						LN		45		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) 9-30-2013.				false

		1211						LN		45		22		false		              22        Q.   Was -- on Lot 7 and 8, was there -- were you				false

		1212						LN		45		23		false		              23   receiving, connected and/or tapped into any of the				false

		1213						LN		45		24		false		              24   utility services?				false

		1214						LN		45		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Vacant property.				false

		1215						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1216						LN		46		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.				false

		1217						LN		46		2		false		               2             MR. LONG:  Again, I would point out the				false

		1218						LN		46		3		false		               3   difference between meters and taps that we discussed				false

		1219						LN		46		4		false		               4   earlier.				false

		1220						LN		46		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  And I would				false

		1221						LN		46		6		false		               6   actually -- it would be really helpful if, when you				false

		1222						LN		46		7		false		               7   cross-examine or you bring your own witness, you could				false

		1223						LN		46		8		false		               8   go through these same accounts and same lots and give me				false

		1224						LN		46		9		false		               9   the utility's perspective of what was there.				false

		1225						LN		46		10		false		              10             MR. LONG:  Certainly.  I just wanted to make				false

		1226						LN		46		11		false		              11   sure everyone is on the same page until that point.				false

		1227						LN		46		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  So just				false

		1228						LN		46		13		false		              13   to reiterate that testimony, as to these lots, these				false

		1229						LN		46		14		false		              14   were vacant property, you said.				false

		1230						LN		46		15		false		              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Vacant property.				false

		1231						LN		46		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So are you aware that				false

		1232						LN		46		17		false		              17   there was an electrical line or electrical meter to				false

		1233						LN		46		18		false		              18   these properties?				false

		1234						LN		46		19		false		              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Again at the back of each				false

		1235						LN		46		20		false		              20   one --				false

		1236						LN		46		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		1237						LN		46		22		false		              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- when the mining district				false

		1238						LN		46		23		false		              23   created the community in 1978 that was infrastructured.				false

		1239						LN		46		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		1240						LN		46		25		false		              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And those lines or -- is at				false

		1241						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1242						LN		47		1		false		               1   the rear of every property.				false

		1243						LN		47		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  So there are lines running				false

		1244						LN		47		3		false		               3   through the utilities easement on every property?				false

		1245						LN		47		4		false		               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.				false

		1246						LN		47		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  As to whether there's a line				false

		1247						LN		47		6		false		               6   that runs off of that to the -- to a home or to a home				false

		1248						LN		47		7		false		               7   site, are you aware that there was any line?				false

		1249						LN		47		8		false		               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, I know that they are				false

		1250						LN		47		9		false		               9   available for hookup if you put something there, but				false

		1251						LN		47		10		false		              10   there's -- like, I mean.				false

		1252						LN		47		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1253						LN		47		12		false		              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  There's never been nothing				false

		1254						LN		47		13		false		              13   on there.				false

		1255						LN		47		14		false		              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  There had never been a				false

		1256						LN		47		15		false		              15   trailer or anything on that property.				false

		1257						LN		47		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.				false

		1258						LN		47		17		false		              17             WITNESS MOTHER:  There had never been any				false

		1259						LN		47		18		false		              18   power or water used on those vacant properties.				false

		1260						LN		47		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So there was no meter				false

		1261						LN		47		20		false		              20   there.				false

		1262						LN		47		21		false		              21             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.				false

		1263						LN		47		22		false		              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  And just to go back, so				false

		1264						LN		47		23		false		              23   based off the two other properties that we talked about,				false

		1265						LN		47		24		false		              24   Lots 3 and 4 and then Lots 5, the way that you answered				false

		1266						LN		47		25		false		              25   the commission's question, it's the same, same way,				false

		1267						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1268						LN		48		1		false		               1   correct?				false

		1269						LN		48		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Right.  Back at the 5 foot				false

		1270						LN		48		3		false		               3   variance from the back of the property easement would be				false

		1271						LN		48		4		false		               4   where the meters exist.				false

		1272						LN		48		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1273						LN		48		6		false		               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) But prior to this, there was				false

		1274						LN		48		7		false		               7   no charges anyways, correct?				false

		1275						LN		48		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We purchased the				false

		1276						LN		48		9		false		               9   properties in 2000.				false

		1277						LN		48		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.				false

		1278						LN		48		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) I have to maybe state,				false

		1279						LN		48		12		false		              12   2006.  We actually bought them from SITLA.				false

		1280						LN		48		13		false		              13        Q.   You are fine.  So these standby fee charges,				false

		1281						LN		48		14		false		              14   do they continue monthly?				false

		1282						LN		48		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1283						LN		48		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And then can you look down under the				false

		1284						LN		48		17		false		              17   charges of March of 2014.  What does the last item say?				false

		1285						LN		48		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for				false

		1286						LN		48		19		false		              19   $1213.49.  Due on 4-21 of 2014.				false

		1287						LN		48		20		false		              20        Q.   And is that statement provided in any of the				false

		1288						LN		48		21		false		              21   other months?				false

		1289						LN		48		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  We have never had any				false

		1290						LN		48		23		false		              23   statements before that.				false

		1291						LN		48		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  So it's your testimony that you				false

		1292						LN		48		25		false		              25   never -- you never received notice of these fees until				false

		1293						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1294						LN		49		1		false		               1   March of 2014, correct?				false

		1295						LN		49		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.				false

		1296						LN		49		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.				false

		1297						LN		49		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you want to have this				false

		1298						LN		49		5		false		               5   audit history marked?				false

		1299						LN		49		6		false		               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.  Can we please have that				false

		1300						LN		49		7		false		               7   marked as Exhibit 5, please.				false

		1301						LN		49		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Long?				false

		1302						LN		49		9		false		               9             MR. LONG:  No objection.				false

		1303						LN		49		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.				false

		1304						LN		49		11		false		              11        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Is it your testimony, based				false

		1305						LN		49		12		false		              12   off the representation by TUID in the letter that is				false

		1306						LN		49		13		false		              13   Exhibit 4, that Lot 8 is also known --				false

		1307						LN		49		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.				false

		1308						LN		49		15		false		              15        Q.   -- as Account No. 1132?				false

		1309						LN		49		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1310						LN		49		17		false		              17        Q.   Okay.  And would you submit that your				false

		1311						LN		49		18		false		              18   testimony for Lot 8 is the same as your testimony for				false

		1312						LN		49		19		false		              19   Lot 7 and 8.				false

		1313						LN		49		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.				false

		1314						LN		49		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.				false

		1315						LN		49		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  Let me get copies of this.				false

		1316						LN		49		23		false		              23             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yeah, I can hear him.				false

		1317						LN		49		24		false		              24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What is your understanding				false

		1318						LN		49		25		false		              25   for the purpose that TUID combined 7 and 8 for Account				false

		1319						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1320						LN		50		1		false		               1   No. 1131 and then also has a separate account for Lot 8				false

		1321						LN		50		2		false		               2   specifically?				false

		1322						LN		50		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) My understanding later upon				false

		1323						LN		50		4		false		               4   reading the tariff is that they are contijuous, if I say				false

		1324						LN		50		5		false		               5   that right.				false

		1325						LN		50		6		false		               6        Q.   Contiguous?				false

		1326						LN		50		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Contiguous, yes.				false

		1327						LN		50		8		false		               8   Contiguous.				false

		1328						LN		50		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  But again for Lot 8, Account 1132, it's				false

		1329						LN		50		10		false		              10   vacant?				false

		1330						LN		50		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1331						LN		50		12		false		              12        Q.   And there was no usage of any utilities prior				false

		1332						LN		50		13		false		              13   to September of 2013?				false

		1333						LN		50		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  No.				false

		1334						LN		50		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  We would like to have that as				false

		1335						LN		50		16		false		              16   Exhibit 6, please.				false

		1336						LN		50		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection?				false

		1337						LN		50		18		false		              18             MR. LONG:  No objection.				false

		1338						LN		50		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.				false

		1339						LN		50		20		false		              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  And referring to				false

		1340						LN		50		21		false		              21   Exhibit 4, the letter from TUID with regards to the				false

		1341						LN		50		22		false		              22   account numbers and lot numbers, is it your testimony				false

		1342						LN		50		23		false		              23   that Account No. 1133 is also known as Lot 98?				false

		1343						LN		50		24		false		              24        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1344						LN		50		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.				false

		1345						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1346						LN		51		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.  Could you please state what's at the				false

		1347						LN		51		2		false		               2   top of the page.				false

		1348						LN		51		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Beginning of usage, 9-30.				false

		1349						LN		51		4		false		               4   Oh, audit history, Sharon A. Seamons.				false

		1350						LN		51		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.				false

		1351						LN		51		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) 1133.				false

		1352						LN		51		7		false		               7        Q.   Is what, the account number?				false

		1353						LN		51		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Is Lot 98, Account No.				false

		1354						LN		51		9		false		               9   1133.				false

		1355						LN		51		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.				false

		1356						LN		51		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Mother) That's a vacant lot.  That's				false

		1357						LN		51		12		false		              12   that corner lot.				false

		1358						LN		51		13		false		              13        Q.   Does this audit history show any charges prior				false

		1359						LN		51		14		false		              14   to September of 2013?				false

		1360						LN		51		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1361						LN		51		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Mother)  No, it wasn't.				false

		1362						LN		51		17		false		              17        Q.   Was this Account Lot No. 98, was it receiving,				false

		1363						LN		51		18		false		              18   connected and/or tapped into any of the utilities				false

		1364						LN		51		19		false		              19   services prior to September of 2013?				false

		1365						LN		51		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) No, it's not.				false

		1366						LN		51		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1367						LN		51		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  Is it vacant?				false

		1368						LN		51		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, it's a vacant				false

		1369						LN		51		24		false		              24   property.				false

		1370						LN		51		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Mother)  It was vacant.				false

		1371						PG		52		0		false		page 52				false

		1372						LN		52		1		false		               1        Q.   And as of September of 2013, were there any				false

		1373						LN		52		2		false		               2   charges or billing?				false

		1374						LN		52		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Prior to September, no.				false

		1375						LN		52		4		false		               4        Q.   But in September, there was billing?				false

		1376						LN		52		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1377						LN		52		6		false		               6        Q.   Yes?				false

		1378						LN		52		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, on September they				false

		1379						LN		52		8		false		               8   started billing.				false

		1380						LN		52		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		1381						LN		52		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Prior no.				false

		1382						LN		52		11		false		              11        Q.   And what were -- what was the billing for?				false

		1383						LN		52		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Standby use of utilities.				false

		1384						LN		52		13		false		              13        Q.   Okay.  And those charges continued every				false

		1385						LN		52		14		false		              14   month, correct?				false

		1386						LN		52		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1387						LN		52		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And in March of 2014 on the audit				false

		1388						LN		52		17		false		              17   history, what does the bottom line state?				false

		1389						LN		52		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49				false

		1390						LN		52		19		false		              19   due on 4-21 of 2014.				false

		1391						LN		52		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.				false

		1392						LN		52		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.				false

		1393						LN		52		22		false		              22        Q.   And did -- was -- is that listed any -- under				false

		1394						LN		52		23		false		              23   any of the previous months on the audit history?				false

		1395						LN		52		24		false		              24        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1396						LN		52		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1397						PG		53		0		false		page 53				false

		1398						LN		53		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.  Did you receive any notice of these				false

		1399						LN		53		2		false		               2   fees prior to March of 2014?				false

		1400						LN		53		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1401						LN		53		4		false		               4        A.   (Witness Mother) No, we hadn't.				false

		1402						LN		53		5		false		               5             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  I would like to have that				false

		1403						LN		53		6		false		               6   as, is that Exhibit 7?				false

		1404						LN		53		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  It is.  Any objection?				false

		1405						LN		53		8		false		               8             MR. LONG:  No objection.				false

		1406						LN		53		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Did we -- did we already submit				false

		1407						LN		53		10		false		              10   the --				false

		1408						LN		53		11		false		              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.				false

		1409						LN		53		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  -- the resolution?  Is that				false

		1410						LN		53		13		false		              13   Exhibit 1?				false

		1411						LN		53		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.				false

		1412						LN		53		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		1413						LN		53		16		false		              16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) You, however -- you own other				false

		1414						LN		53		17		false		              17   properties in Ticaboo, correct?				false

		1415						LN		53		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) The ones that we have just				false

		1416						LN		53		19		false		              19   stated.  We had two --				false

		1417						LN		53		20		false		              20        Q.   Other than those?				false

		1418						LN		53		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) We had two that were sold				false

		1419						LN		53		22		false		              22   in 2012 that were listed on that.				false

		1420						LN		53		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.				false

		1421						LN		53		24		false		              24        A.   (Witness Daughter) It was --				false

		1422						LN		53		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So we have been through six				false

		1423						PG		54		0		false		page 54				false

		1424						LN		54		1		false		               1   properties by my count.				false

		1425						LN		54		2		false		               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So one and two were tapped				false

		1426						LN		54		3		false		               3   into.  That was the living residence where my mother				false

		1427						LN		54		4		false		               4   lived from 2000 to 2009, '10.				false

		1428						LN		54		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  So that's Lots 001 and 002?				false

		1429						LN		54		6		false		               6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Uh-huh, that is correct.				false

		1430						LN		54		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  And there's a residence on				false

		1431						LN		54		8		false		               8   those?				false

		1432						LN		54		9		false		               9             WITNESS MOTHER:  That's correct.				false

		1433						LN		54		10		false		              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And those taps existed in				false

		1434						LN		54		11		false		              11   September of 2013, September of 2013.				false

		1435						LN		54		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1436						LN		54		13		false		              13             MR. HOGELIN:  I'm sorry?				false

		1437						LN		54		14		false		              14             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We used that residence that				false

		1438						LN		54		15		false		              15   -- in one and two, Lot 1 and 2.				false

		1439						LN		54		16		false		              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Uh-huh.				false

		1440						LN		54		17		false		              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is where our residence is				false

		1441						LN		54		18		false		              18   that we have.				false

		1442						LN		54		19		false		              19             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay, great.				false

		1443						LN		54		20		false		              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- were tapped into and --				false

		1444						LN		54		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Right.				false

		1445						LN		54		22		false		              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And lived.				false

		1446						LN		54		23		false		              23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Now, it also shows on here				false

		1447						LN		54		24		false		              24   Account Nos. 5051, 505 -- and when I say shows here, I				false

		1448						LN		54		25		false		              25   am referring to Exhibit 3, the letter from TUID				false

		1449						PG		55		0		false		page 55				false

		1450						LN		55		1		false		               1   corresponding account numbers with lots.				false

		1451						LN		55		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's actually Exhibit 4.				false

		1452						LN		55		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Exhibit 4, excuse me.				false

		1453						LN		55		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's all right.				false

		1454						LN		55		5		false		               5        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) 5051, 5052, 5054, do you				false

		1455						LN		55		6		false		               6   currently own those properties?				false

		1456						LN		55		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Those were sold in				false

		1457						LN		55		8		false		               8   2012.				false

		1458						LN		55		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  So is it your testimony out of the --				false

		1459						LN		55		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, there's two, four,				false

		1460						LN		55		11		false		              11   six, eight.				false

		1461						LN		55		12		false		              12        Q.   -- those six account numbers going from 1000				false

		1462						LN		55		13		false		              13   to 1000 -- 1133, that only one of those properties as of				false

		1463						LN		55		14		false		              14   September of 2013 was using or -- utilities?				false

		1464						LN		55		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  Those were the				false

		1465						LN		55		16		false		              16   only ones out of the eight.  The other six did not have				false

		1466						LN		55		17		false		              17   meters.				false

		1467						LN		55		18		false		              18        Q.   And on the one -- and we're talking about Lot				false

		1468						LN		55		19		false		              19   1 and 2, Account No. 1002, what notice would you receive				false

		1469						LN		55		20		false		              20   of billing of --				false

		1470						LN		55		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Can I pause just a moment.				false

		1471						LN		55		22		false		              22   I'm sorry to interrupt.  So these three account numbers				false

		1472						LN		55		23		false		              23   which represent five properties, you say those				false

		1473						LN		55		24		false		              24   properties were all sold?				false

		1474						LN		55		25		false		              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.  I don't understand why				false

		1475						PG		56		0		false		page 56				false

		1476						LN		56		1		false		               1   5051 is listed as one and two, because it's also listed				false

		1477						LN		56		2		false		               2   as 0 -- 1002.				false

		1478						LN		56		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		1479						LN		56		4		false		               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So error correction on				false

		1480						LN		56		5		false		               5   that.  The only ones that were sold was Lot 5054.				false

		1481						LN		56		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, account.				false

		1482						LN		56		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Account, I'm sorry.  Lots				false

		1483						LN		56		8		false		               8   92 and 93 --				false

		1484						LN		56		9		false		               9             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yeah, 92 and 93.				false

		1485						LN		56		10		false		              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- were sold in 2012.				false

		1486						LN		56		11		false		              11   Excuse us.				false

		1487						LN		56		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  In 2012 okay.  Just a minute.				false

		1488						LN		56		13		false		              13   Lots 92, 93 were sold in --				false

		1489						LN		56		14		false		              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  That did not have a meter.				false

		1490						LN		56		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- 2012, okay.				false

		1491						LN		56		16		false		              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.				false

		1492						LN		56		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  And do you know why there are				false

		1493						LN		56		18		false		              18   two different account numbers for the combined Lots 1				false

		1494						LN		56		19		false		              19   and 2 and also two different account numbers for Lot 5?				false

		1495						LN		56		20		false		              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.  The residence on				false

		1496						LN		56		21		false		              21   5051, Lot 1 and 2 --				false

		1497						LN		56		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		1498						LN		56		23		false		              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- is our home occupant,				false

		1499						LN		56		24		false		              24   that we occupied.				false

		1500						LN		56		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand that.				false

		1501						PG		57		0		false		page 57				false

		1502						LN		57		1		false		               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And then Lot 5 --				false

		1503						LN		57		2		false		               2             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's a double-wide home.				false

		1504						LN		57		3		false		               3             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  5052 had the previous				false

		1505						LN		57		4		false		               4   balance that they state owed from the prior --				false

		1506						LN		57		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1507						LN		57		6		false		               6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- district.  Same with				false

		1508						LN		57		7		false		               7   5054.				false

		1509						LN		57		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.  But there are two				false

		1510						LN		57		9		false		               9   different account numbers for each of those properties.				false

		1511						LN		57		10		false		              10   Do you know why that is?				false

		1512						LN		57		11		false		              11             MR. HOGELIN:  You are referring to Lot 1 and				false

		1513						LN		57		12		false		              12   2, correct?				false

		1514						LN		57		13		false		              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't.  I think because				false

		1515						LN		57		14		false		              14   they existed before standby fees.				false

		1516						LN		57		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, maybe we'll have to have				false

		1517						LN		57		16		false		              16   Ticaboo Utility Improvement District explain that.				false

		1518						LN		57		17		false		              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.  I believe that's				false

		1519						LN		57		18		false		              18   before they existed before the standby fees.				false

		1520						LN		57		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  But you don't know.				false

		1521						LN		57		20		false		              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.				false

		1522						LN		57		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.  Sorry.				false

		1523						LN		57		22		false		              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So for Lot 1 and 2 was the				false

		1524						LN		57		23		false		              23   only lots that were using utilities at the time as of --				false

		1525						LN		57		24		false		              24   prior to September of 2013, what notice do you receive				false

		1526						LN		57		25		false		              25   for utilities generally?  Is it monthly?				false

		1527						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1528						LN		58		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Monthly.				false

		1529						LN		58		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  And so for Lot 1 and 2, you received				false

		1530						LN		58		3		false		               3   notice monthly of what was owed.  But for all the other				false

		1531						LN		58		4		false		               4   lots that start standby fees in September of 2013, you				false

		1532						LN		58		5		false		               5   didn't receive notice until March of 2014?				false

		1533						LN		58		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't understand that.				false

		1534						LN		58		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did you receive your				false

		1535						LN		58		8		false		               8   billing for Lot 1 and 2 and not the other ones prior to				false

		1536						LN		58		9		false		               9   that or up until March?				false

		1537						LN		58		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's rephrase it.  Can you				false

		1538						LN		58		11		false		              11   hear me, Mrs. Seamons?				false

		1539						LN		58		12		false		              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you hear the judge?				false

		1540						LN		58		13		false		              13             WITNESS MOTHER:  Now what?				false

		1541						LN		58		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So for the lot where				false

		1542						LN		58		15		false		              15   you have the double-wide home.				false

		1543						LN		58		16		false		              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.				false

		1544						LN		58		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you receive monthly bills				false

		1545						LN		58		18		false		              18   from TUID for the utilities?				false

		1546						LN		58		19		false		              19             WITNESS MOTHER:  I think so.  I kept those				false

		1547						LN		58		20		false		              20   current.				false

		1548						LN		58		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And then on the other				false

		1549						LN		58		22		false		              22   properties that you own that are vacant, did you receive				false

		1550						LN		58		23		false		              23   monthly billings from TUID, or did you receive a				false

		1551						LN		58		24		false		              24   combined billing for several months' worth of charges?				false

		1552						LN		58		25		false		              25             WITNESS MOTHER:  I received a combined				false

		1553						PG		59		0		false		page 59				false

		1554						LN		59		1		false		               1   billing.  But there were no charges on the vacant lots.				false

		1555						LN		59		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  I believe the records, the				false

		1556						LN		59		3		false		               3   records show that there were charges.  Did you mean to				false

		1557						LN		59		4		false		               4   say that nobody there was using any utilities?				false

		1558						LN		59		5		false		               5             WITNESS MOTHER:  I can't understand that.				false

		1559						LN		59		6		false		               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		1560						LN		59		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Can you help?				false

		1561						LN		59		8		false		               8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) The lots that you were				false

		1562						LN		59		9		false		               9   getting standby fees on, did you get monthly notice of				false

		1563						LN		59		10		false		              10   those bills?				false

		1564						LN		59		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Mother) Like this?				false

		1565						LN		59		12		false		              12        Q.   Just anything.				false

		1566						LN		59		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Mother) Did I get a combined notice				false

		1567						LN		59		14		false		              14   on that?				false

		1568						LN		59		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1569						LN		59		16		false		              16             MR. HOGELIN:  I believe she's already				false

		1570						LN		59		17		false		              17   testified that she didn't receive any notice of -- until				false

		1571						LN		59		18		false		              18   March.				false

		1572						LN		59		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's what the complaint				false

		1573						LN		59		20		false		              20   states.				false

		1574						LN		59		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  And I was just trying to show				false

		1575						LN		59		22		false		              22   there was -- on the ones that were being used she was				false

		1576						LN		59		23		false		              23   receiving monthly billing.  However, the ones where the				false

		1577						LN		59		24		false		              24   standby was being billed, that was not being given				false

		1578						LN		59		25		false		              25   notice or monthly bill but rather was a collection of				false

		1579						PG		60		0		false		page 60				false

		1580						LN		60		1		false		               1   months that were done periodically.				false

		1581						LN		60		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just ask you,				false

		1582						LN		60		3		false		               3   Mr. Long.  I don't think that we have --				false

		1583						LN		60		4		false		               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.				false

		1584						LN		60		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  I know, but I'm going over				false

		1585						LN		60		6		false		               6   here.  I don't think we have really clear testimony from				false

		1586						LN		60		7		false		               7   Mrs. Seamons.  I think we have a communication				false

		1587						LN		60		8		false		               8   breakdown.  But what counsel is asking me to accept into				false

		1588						LN		60		9		false		               9   the record is that TUID was sending out monthly billings				false

		1589						LN		60		10		false		              10   for those Lots 1 and 2 for the utilities that were				false

		1590						LN		60		11		false		              11   actually being used, but on the vacant lots it was not				false

		1591						LN		60		12		false		              12   sending out monthly billings for the standby fees.  Do				false

		1592						LN		60		13		false		              13   you contest that?				false

		1593						LN		60		14		false		              14             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  And I will have				false

		1594						LN		60		15		false		              15   Mr. Shortreed testify as to exactly how the billing				false

		1595						LN		60		16		false		              16   process works when it's his turn.				false

		1596						LN		60		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.				false

		1597						LN		60		18		false		              18             MR. LONG:  In effect, the bills sent out are				false

		1598						LN		60		19		false		              19   sent out on a group bill basis, so each bill has all of				false

		1599						LN		60		20		false		              20   the lots owned by a particular property owner.				false

		1600						LN		60		21		false		              21             MR. SHORTREED:  For Mrs. Seamons specifically,				false

		1601						LN		60		22		false		              22   in this case she gets a group billing.				false

		1602						LN		60		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  We'll				false

		1603						LN		60		24		false		              24   have -- Mr. Shortreed, until you are sworn in, if you				false

		1604						LN		60		25		false		              25   would let your counsel speak, that would, I think, be				false

		1605						PG		61		0		false		page 61				false

		1606						LN		61		1		false		               1   best for the record.				false

		1607						LN		61		2		false		               2             MR. SHORTREED:  Sorry.				false

		1608						LN		61		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's all right.				false

		1609						LN		61		4		false		               4             MR. LONG:  And I'll have Mr. Shortreed address				false

		1610						LN		61		5		false		               5   that question when he is speaking.				false

		1611						LN		61		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  And if we				false

		1612						LN		61		7		false		               7   feel like we need any follow up with Mrs. Seamons, we'll				false

		1613						LN		61		8		false		               8   give you that opportunity.				false

		1614						LN		61		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  If I could have one more shot				false

		1615						LN		61		10		false		              10   because I think this is very important to have on the				false

		1616						LN		61		11		false		              11   record.				false

		1617						LN		61		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.				false

		1618						LN		61		13		false		              13        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Seamons.				false

		1619						LN		61		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.				false

		1620						LN		61		15		false		              15        Q.   Did you receive any notice of any standby fees				false

		1621						LN		61		16		false		              16   prior to March of 2014?				false

		1622						LN		61		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  I did not.				false

		1623						LN		61		18		false		              18        Q.   So is it fair to say that you did not receive				false

		1624						LN		61		19		false		              19   a monthly bill for those standby fees?				false

		1625						LN		61		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  I didn't know there was				false

		1626						LN		61		21		false		              21   standby fees.  So I didn't receive a bill.				false

		1627						LN		61		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  So the bill that you did receive for				false

		1628						LN		61		23		false		              23   standby fees were for multiple months, correct?				false

		1629						LN		61		24		false		              24        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.				false

		1630						LN		61		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  And after March of 2014, on the				false

		1631						PG		62		0		false		page 62				false

		1632						LN		62		1		false		               1   properties that were being billed standby fees, did you				false

		1633						LN		62		2		false		               2   receive billing monthly for that?				false

		1634						LN		62		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1635						LN		62		4		false		               4        Q.   Okay.  And so that is it your testimony that				false

		1636						LN		62		5		false		               5   the properties with standby fees, you would only receive				false

		1637						LN		62		6		false		               6   bills periodically with multiple months?				false

		1638						LN		62		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.				false

		1639						LN		62		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		1640						LN		62		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.				false

		1641						LN		62		10		false		              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Was the issue of being				false

		1642						LN		62		11		false		              11   billed for standby fees on properties that were not				false

		1643						LN		62		12		false		              12   using utilities prior to September of 2013, was that				false

		1644						LN		62		13		false		              13   ever addressed with TUID?				false

		1645						LN		62		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) You will have to --				false

		1646						LN		62		15		false		              15        Q.   You can answer too.				false

		1647						LN		62		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) You will have to repeat				false

		1648						LN		62		17		false		              17   that, I'm sorry.				false

		1649						LN		62		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  Did -- did you address the fact that				false

		1650						LN		62		19		false		              19   you had not received any notice or any bills concerning				false

		1651						LN		62		20		false		              20   the standby fees starting in 2013, September of 2013,				false

		1652						LN		62		21		false		              21   with TUID?				false

		1653						LN		62		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Mother)  Yes.  I verbally addressed				false

		1654						LN		62		23		false		              23   that to Mr. Shortreed, and he said that if I paid those				false

		1655						LN		62		24		false		              24   fees, then I could abandon the properties.  But that was				false

		1656						LN		62		25		false		              25   an exorbitant amount of money because I only received				false

		1657						PG		63		0		false		page 63				false

		1658						LN		63		1		false		               1   $750 a month Social Security.  And I was relying on the				false

		1659						LN		63		2		false		               2   rental to keep my bills paid, and he pulled the meters				false

		1660						LN		63		3		false		               3   from my rental.  So I received no money from my rents.				false

		1661						LN		63		4		false		               4        Q.   When did you address with Mr. Reed (sic) that				false

		1662						LN		63		5		false		               5   you had been charged standby fees but hadn't received				false

		1663						LN		63		6		false		               6   notice until March of 2014?				false

		1664						LN		63		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Mother)  I went down for a meeting.				false

		1665						LN		63		8		false		               8   Was it the meeting?  I went to Ticaboo for the monthly				false

		1666						LN		63		9		false		               9   meeting.				false

		1667						LN		63		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.				false

		1668						LN		63		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Mother) And addressed that with				false

		1669						LN		63		12		false		              12   Mr. Shortreed at the meeting.				false

		1670						LN		63		13		false		              13        Q.   So was that the March 21st, 2014, meeting?				false

		1671						LN		63		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.  Correct.				false

		1672						LN		63		15		false		              15        Q.   And I believe it's already in the -- I know it				false

		1673						LN		63		16		false		              16   is.  It's already attached.  There are meeting minutes				false

		1674						LN		63		17		false		              17   from the TUID meeting on March 21st, 2014.				false

		1675						LN		63		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do I have that marked?				false

		1676						LN		63		19		false		              19             MR. HOGELIN:  That's already in with --				false

		1677						LN		63		20		false		              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Formal complaint.				false

		1678						LN		63		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  With the formal complaint.				false

		1679						LN		63		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  But it's not marked as an				false

		1680						LN		63		23		false		              23   exhibit here today.				false

		1681						LN		63		24		false		              24             MR. HOGELIN:  No, it's not.				false

		1682						LN		63		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's see if we could find				false

		1683						PG		64		0		false		page 64				false

		1684						LN		64		1		false		               1   that because I think that would be helpful.  Any idea				false

		1685						LN		64		2		false		               2   about where that is in this?				false

		1686						LN		64		3		false		               3             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Nearly to the end of the				false

		1687						LN		64		4		false		               4   filing.  I would say about 20 pages from the back.  It				false

		1688						LN		64		5		false		               5   -- none of the pages are actually marked on that filing				false

		1689						LN		64		6		false		               6   with the formal complaint in December.  We do have				false

		1690						LN		64		7		false		               7   available if we need copies, but it is submitted.				false

		1691						LN		64		8		false		               8             MR. HOGELIN:  So it's the -- it starts with --				false

		1692						LN		64		9		false		               9   the meeting minutes that was filed with the commission				false

		1693						LN		64		10		false		              10   starts with April 11th, 2013, and then goes chronically				false

		1694						LN		64		11		false		              11   to -- or chronologically to the March 21st, 2014,				false

		1695						LN		64		12		false		              12   meeting minutes.				false

		1696						LN		64		13		false		              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  They should be filed by				false

		1697						LN		64		14		false		              14   monthly order, I believe, is the way we received them.				false

		1698						LN		64		15		false		              15             MR. LONG:  If I may interject.  We have these				false

		1699						LN		64		16		false		              16   same meeting minutes as one of the -- one of the				false

		1700						LN		64		17		false		              17   exhibits we'll introduce as well if that's --				false

		1701						LN		64		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Want to just do that right				false

		1702						LN		64		19		false		              19   now?  We'll --				false

		1703						LN		64		20		false		              20             MR. LONG:  If that's helpful.  I have -- I				false

		1704						LN		64		21		false		              21   have whole binders put together if I could pass those				false

		1705						LN		64		22		false		              22   out now, and that might save us some time.				false

		1706						LN		64		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's go ahead and do that				false

		1707						LN		64		24		false		              24   then.  I think that would be helpful.				false

		1708						LN		64		25		false		              25             MR. LONG:  Here is a commission binder that				false

		1709						PG		65		0		false		page 65				false

		1710						LN		65		1		false		               1   has electronic versions too, if that's helpful.				false

		1711						LN		65		2		false		               2             MR. SHORTREED:  Do you know which number that				false

		1712						LN		65		3		false		               3   is?				false

		1713						LN		65		4		false		               4             (Discussion off the record.)				false

		1714						LN		65		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  The commission has a CD of				false

		1715						LN		65		6		false		               6   electronic versions too.				false

		1716						LN		65		7		false		               7             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you, Mr. Long.  It looks				false

		1717						LN		65		8		false		               8   like it's under No. 15, index No. 15 of the trial				false

		1718						LN		65		9		false		               9   binder, of TUID's trial binder.				false

		1719						LN		65		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  And so I take it you have no				false

		1720						LN		65		11		false		              11   objection.				false

		1721						LN		65		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection.				false

		1722						LN		65		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I will leave you the				false

		1723						LN		65		14		false		              14   option to object to anything that you find in, in this				false

		1724						LN		65		15		false		              15   binder as we go through, but for now I am just going to				false

		1725						LN		65		16		false		              16   consider these as marked, and then we'll see if, if as				false

		1726						LN		65		17		false		              17   we use them there's any evidentiary issues that you want				false

		1727						LN		65		18		false		              18   to make me aware of.				false

		1728						LN		65		19		false		              19             So this is TUID's Exhibit No. 16.  And go				false

		1729						LN		65		20		false		              20   ahead.				false

		1730						LN		65		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Fifteen.				false

		1731						LN		65		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Excuse me.  Thank you.  No.				false

		1732						LN		65		23		false		              23   15.  All right.  Go ahead.				false

		1733						LN		65		24		false		              24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) On the third page -- you can				false

		1734						LN		65		25		false		              25   go ahead.  Was it state -- can you read the second				false

		1735						PG		66		0		false		page 66				false

		1736						LN		66		1		false		               1   paragraph.				false

		1737						LN		66		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, in this one it says,				false

		1738						LN		66		3		false		               3   "Resolution 2014-0011 was introduced by Mr. Shortreed.				false

		1739						LN		66		4		false		               4   The resolution amends Resolution 2014-005, the policies				false

		1740						LN		66		5		false		               5   about the abandonment of utilities.				false

		1741						LN		66		6		false		               6             "Mrs. Seamons asked about leeway that the				false

		1742						LN		66		7		false		               7   district might extend to those with few means.				false

		1743						LN		66		8		false		               8   Mr. Shortreed describes why utilities in Ticaboo are so				false

		1744						LN		66		9		false		               9   expensive and why fees must be high.  He noted that				false

		1745						LN		66		10		false		              10   standby fees were never intended to be perpetual.				false

		1746						LN		66		11		false		              11   Mrs. Seamons expressed her concerns for those with --				false

		1747						LN		66		12		false		              12   those on fixed incomes."				false

		1748						LN		66		13		false		              13        Q.   So Ms. Seamons, is this when you addressed the				false

		1749						LN		66		14		false		              14   billing of the standby fees for the months from				false

		1750						LN		66		15		false		              15   September to March of 2014?				false

		1751						LN		66		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct, yes.				false

		1752						LN		66		17		false		              17        Q.   And what was their response to your bringing				false

		1753						LN		66		18		false		              18   up the issue?				false

		1754						LN		66		19		false		              19        A.   He said he didn't care.				false

		1755						LN		66		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.				false

		1756						LN		66		21		false		              21             MR. LONG:  That's hearsay, and the meeting				false

		1757						LN		66		22		false		              22   minutes don't reflect that.				false

		1758						LN		66		23		false		              23             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's the truth.				false

		1759						LN		66		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.  It's not -- it's not				false

		1760						LN		66		25		false		              25   relevant what his personal feelings were, so that's				false

		1761						PG		67		0		false		page 67				false

		1762						LN		67		1		false		               1   fine.				false

		1763						LN		67		2		false		               2        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  And then can you read				false

		1764						LN		67		3		false		               3   this paragraph right here.  Oh.  Yeah, go ahead and read				false

		1765						LN		67		4		false		               4   that.  Can you please read, it looks like two paragraphs				false

		1766						LN		67		5		false		               5   up from the bottom.				false

		1767						LN		67		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Daughter)  "Mrs. Seamons asked a				false

		1768						LN		67		7		false		               7   hypothetical question about a situation of nonpayment.				false

		1769						LN		67		8		false		               8   Mr. Shortreed noted that she would have the right to				false

		1770						LN		67		9		false		               9   terminate the lease.  She said that terminating the				false

		1771						LN		67		10		false		              10   lease is very difficult in the state of Utah."				false

		1772						LN		67		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  So when you addressed this standby fee				false

		1773						LN		67		12		false		              12   bill with TUID, what was your feeling of how they				false

		1774						LN		67		13		false		              13   addressed it, or how would you state that they -- it was				false

		1775						LN		67		14		false		              14   addressed by them?				false

		1776						LN		67		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Mother)  The standby fees?				false

		1777						LN		67		16		false		              16        Q.   Uh-huh, or your concerns regarding the fees?				false

		1778						LN		67		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother) It looked to me like I was				false

		1779						LN		67		18		false		              18   being charged for the services.				false

		1780						LN		67		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.				false

		1781						LN		67		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Mother) It didn't look like standby				false

		1782						LN		67		21		false		              21   fees at all.				false

		1783						LN		67		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.				false

		1784						LN		67		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Mother) I was being charged for				false

		1785						LN		67		24		false		              24   power, water, sewer and garbage.				false

		1786						LN		67		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.				false

		1787						PG		68		0		false		page 68				false

		1788						LN		68		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Mother) Which I did not use.				false

		1789						LN		68		2		false		               2        Q.   Did they try to meet with you individually to				false

		1790						LN		68		3		false		               3   resolve your concerns?				false

		1791						LN		68		4		false		               4        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't hear you.				false

		1792						LN		68		5		false		               5        Q.   Did they try to meet with you individually to				false

		1793						LN		68		6		false		               6   resolve your concerns?				false

		1794						LN		68		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1795						LN		68		8		false		               8        Q.   No.  Did they offer to try to meet with you at				false

		1796						LN		68		9		false		               9   all?				false

		1797						LN		68		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.  I tried to meet with				false

		1798						LN		68		11		false		              11   him the next day.  I went to the office, and he said he				false

		1799						LN		68		12		false		              12   was on the phone and closed the door.  I have never been				false

		1800						LN		68		13		false		              13   in the office.				false

		1801						LN		68		14		false		              14        Q.   Okay.  And since then, at any time that you				false

		1802						LN		68		15		false		              15   have tried to address the billing, have they been				false

		1803						LN		68		16		false		              16   cooperative with you at all?				false

		1804						LN		68		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  Since we have been				false

		1805						LN		68		18		false		              18   there, my daughter Mary and Rick have been helping me				false

		1806						LN		68		19		false		              19   with everything.  And they have tried, and my other				false

		1807						LN		68		20		false		              20   daughters have tried to talk with Mr. Shortreed and with				false

		1808						LN		68		21		false		              21   no results.				false

		1809						LN		68		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		1810						LN		68		23		false		              23             MR. HOGELIN:  So I believe we have addressed				false

		1811						LN		68		24		false		              24   the issue that the commission has provided -- or set				false

		1812						LN		68		25		false		              25   with regards to this hearing for No. 4.				false

		1813						PG		69		0		false		page 69				false

		1814						LN		69		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		1815						LN		69		2		false		               2             MR. HOGELIN:  With regards to beginning of the				false

		1816						LN		69		3		false		               3   charges of the standby fees.				false

		1817						LN		69		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1818						LN		69		5		false		               5             MR. HOGELIN:  We would like to move on to the				false

		1819						LN		69		6		false		               6   issue of tenants and just would like to ask my client.				false

		1820						LN		69		7		false		               7        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Are you aware of any tenants				false

		1821						LN		69		8		false		               8   that have contracts with TUID presently?				false

		1822						LN		69		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Daughter)  The motel, the resort				false

		1823						LN		69		10		false		              10   carries the tenant contracts for SITLA.				false

		1824						LN		69		11		false		              11        Q.   So who is the owner of the property?				false

		1825						LN		69		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) The Utah State School Trust				false

		1826						LN		69		13		false		              13   Lands.				false

		1827						LN		69		14		false		              14        Q.   Which is also known as?				false

		1828						LN		69		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) SITLA.				false

		1829						LN		69		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And however, the contracts with TUID,				false

		1830						LN		69		17		false		              17   are they with SITLA or through the tenant of SITLA's?				false

		1831						LN		69		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Through the tenant.				false

		1832						LN		69		19		false		              19        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.				false

		1833						LN		69		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  Have your tenants been entitled to the				false

		1834						LN		69		21		false		              21   same consideration as SITLA's?				false

		1835						LN		69		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1836						LN		69		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1837						LN		69		24		false		              24        Q.   Have -- and what has been the response from				false

		1838						LN		69		25		false		              25   TUID regarding any concerns with regards to your tenants				false

		1839						PG		70		0		false		page 70				false

		1840						LN		70		1		false		               1   having contracts with TUID directly?				false

		1841						LN		70		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) That the property owner has				false

		1842						LN		70		3		false		               3   to carry the contract with the district.				false

		1843						LN		70		4		false		               4        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.				false

		1844						LN		70		5		false		               5        Q.   Do you think it's fair that you aren't				false

		1845						LN		70		6		false		               6   receiving the same considerations as another property				false

		1846						LN		70		7		false		               7   owner in Ticaboo?				false

		1847						LN		70		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We have to assume				false

		1848						LN		70		9		false		               9   their utilities after they leave upon a contract.				false

		1849						LN		70		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.				false

		1850						LN		70		11		false		              11             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  I believe that resolves				false

		1851						LN		70		12		false		              12   the issue No. 5 or, well, not resolves, but --				false

		1852						LN		70		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.				false

		1853						LN		70		14		false		              14             MR. HOGELIN:  I'm sorry.  One second.				false

		1854						LN		70		15		false		              15             (Discussion off the record.)				false

		1855						LN		70		16		false		              16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So have you had tenants on				false

		1856						LN		70		17		false		              17   the property, or any of your properties?				false

		1857						LN		70		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1858						LN		70		19		false		              19        Q.   You have never had any tenants?				false

		1859						LN		70		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, we had tenants.  The				false

		1860						LN		70		21		false		              21   tenants --				false

		1861						LN		70		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		1862						LN		70		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) -- have not resided there				false

		1863						LN		70		24		false		              24   since --				false

		1864						LN		70		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  So you have had tenants on your				false

		1865						PG		71		0		false		page 71				false

		1866						LN		71		1		false		               1   property, correct?				false

		1867						LN		71		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		1868						LN		71		3		false		               3        Q.   And when the tenants moved away from the				false

		1869						LN		71		4		false		               4   property, were you able to stop the charges for the				false

		1870						LN		71		5		false		               5   utilities?				false

		1871						LN		71		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1872						LN		71		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  We continue to pay them.				false

		1873						LN		71		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.  So you had to continue to pay them?				false

		1874						LN		71		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Mother) I had to pay them.				false

		1875						LN		71		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  All right.				false

		1876						LN		71		11		false		              11             MR. HOGELIN:  I believe that we have addressed				false

		1877						LN		71		12		false		              12   No.  5.  All right.  With regards to item No. 6 that the				false

		1878						LN		71		13		false		              13   commission had asked for evidence to be proffered,				false

		1879						LN		71		14		false		              14   obviously I just would like to make a note, it's kind of				false

		1880						LN		71		15		false		              15   hard to provide evidence of nothing.  But I will still				false

		1881						LN		71		16		false		              16   ask my clients for their testimony.  Excuse me.				false

		1882						LN		71		17		false		              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any				false

		1883						LN		71		18		false		              18   information pamphlets from TUID?				false

		1884						LN		71		19		false		              19             MR. HOGELIN:  Can we -- can we take a short				false

		1885						LN		71		20		false		              20   recess for restroom break?				false

		1886						LN		71		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  We'll take a				false

		1887						LN		71		22		false		              22   break, go off the record for about 10 minutes.  Come				false

		1888						LN		71		23		false		              23   back at about 10:30.				false

		1889						LN		71		24		false		              24             (Recess from 10:21 a.m. to 10:32 a.m.)				false

		1890						LN		71		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We'll go back on				false

		1891						PG		72		0		false		page 72				false

		1892						LN		72		1		false		               1   the record.  We left off, we were just about to start				false

		1893						LN		72		2		false		               2   talking about the customer information pamphlet.				false

		1894						LN		72		3		false		               3        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any				false

		1895						LN		72		4		false		               4   customer information pamphlet?  Did you receive a				false

		1896						LN		72		5		false		               5   customer information pamphlet from TUID?				false

		1897						LN		72		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't hear that correctly.				false

		1898						LN		72		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did you receive a customer				false

		1899						LN		72		8		false		               8   information pamphlet?				false

		1900						LN		72		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1901						LN		72		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.				false

		1902						LN		72		11		false		              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Sorry.				false

		1903						LN		72		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I did not.				false

		1904						LN		72		13		false		              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did it work?				false

		1905						LN		72		14		false		              14             MR. HOGELIN:  Hit the button.				false

		1906						LN		72		15		false		              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It shows on.  Oh, there we				false

		1907						LN		72		16		false		              16   go.  Sorry.				false

		1908						LN		72		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I did not.				false

		1909						LN		72		18		false		              18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Thank you.  Have you				false

		1910						LN		72		19		false		              19   received any -- a copy of the statement of customer				false

		1911						LN		72		20		false		              20   rights and responsibilities from TUID ever?				false

		1912						LN		72		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1913						LN		72		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  Have you received any notices from TUID				false

		1914						LN		72		23		false		              23   through any type of pamphlet?				false

		1915						LN		72		24		false		              24             MR. LONG:  Did you receive a pamphlet?				false

		1916						LN		72		25		false		              25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Mary, are you aware of any?				false

		1917						PG		73		0		false		page 73				false

		1918						LN		73		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, we received a pamphlet				false

		1919						LN		73		2		false		               2   February 20th, 2015.				false

		1920						LN		73		3		false		               3        Q.   And what was that pamphlet concerning?				false

		1921						LN		73		4		false		               4        A.   Meter tampering.				false

		1922						LN		73		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  But nothing with regards to tariff or				false

		1923						LN		73		6		false		               6   your rights or your responsibilities under the tariff?				false

		1924						LN		73		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) I didn't read completely				false

		1925						LN		73		8		false		               8   through it, but I -- it was meter tampering and new				false

		1926						LN		73		9		false		               9   rates of February.				false

		1927						LN		73		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Mother) There it is right there.				false

		1928						LN		73		11		false		              11   Yeah, that's correct.				false

		1929						LN		73		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  New rates as of February 2015?				false

		1930						LN		73		13		false		              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  2015, February 20th, 2015.				false

		1931						LN		73		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		1932						LN		73		15		false		              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  '16.  This year.  Sorry.				false

		1933						LN		73		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  '16.				false

		1934						LN		73		17		false		              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah, just barely, we just				false

		1935						LN		73		18		false		              18   barely got it.				false

		1936						LN		73		19		false		              19        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Did you receive any pamphlets				false

		1937						LN		73		20		false		              20   prior to that?				false

		1938						LN		73		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		1939						LN		73		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.				false

		1940						LN		73		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  I'd like to go on to the last issue,				false

		1941						LN		73		24		false		              24   and that's regarding the removal of taps from				false

		1942						LN		73		25		false		              25   Ms. Seamons' property.  Ms. Seamons, have you -- has				false

		1943						PG		74		0		false		page 74				false

		1944						LN		74		1		false		               1   TUID removed the taps from your property, or taps or				false

		1945						LN		74		2		false		               2   meters from your property?				false

		1946						LN		74		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes, he has.				false

		1947						LN		74		4		false		               4        Q.   Okay.  How many times has that happened?				false

		1948						LN		74		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Mother) At least twice.				false

		1949						LN		74		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  So let's talk about the two, the two				false

		1950						LN		74		7		false		               7   times.  On either -- well, on either of those times were				false

		1951						LN		74		8		false		               8   you given any prior notice to the taps or meters being				false

		1952						LN		74		9		false		               9   removed?				false

		1953						LN		74		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Mother)  No, I did not.				false

		1954						LN		74		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  I just need to clarify a				false

		1955						LN		74		12		false		              12   little bit.  Are we talking about a single property?				false

		1956						LN		74		13		false		              13   Are we talking about --				false

		1957						LN		74		14		false		              14             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.				false

		1958						LN		74		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- one and two?				false

		1959						LN		74		16		false		              16             MR. HOGELIN:  We are talking about a lot.				false

		1960						LN		74		17		false		              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Three and four.				false

		1961						LN		74		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Lots 3 and 4?				false

		1962						LN		74		19		false		              19             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.				false

		1963						LN		74		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  And twice something was				false

		1964						LN		74		21		false		              21   removed from Lots 3 and 4?				false

		1965						LN		74		22		false		              22             WITNESS MOTHER:  Right, yes.				false

		1966						LN		74		23		false		              23             MR. HOGELIN:  So it was the same lots?				false

		1967						LN		74		24		false		              24             WITNESS MOTHER:  Same lots.				false

		1968						LN		74		25		false		              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Both properties.				false

		1969						PG		75		0		false		page 75				false

		1970						LN		75		1		false		               1             (Talking at once.)				false

		1971						LN		75		2		false		               2             COURT REPORT:  Sorry.  I'm having trouble with				false

		1972						LN		75		3		false		               3   four people talking at once, just a little confusing.				false

		1973						LN		75		4		false		               4        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So just to recap, Lots				false

		1974						LN		75		5		false		               5   3 and 4 are the lots at issue, and those are both --				false

		1975						LN		75		6		false		               6   those are the lots for both incidents?				false

		1976						LN		75		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what's on those				false

		1977						LN		75		8		false		               8   lots?  Is it a home?				false

		1978						LN		75		9		false		               9             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Double-wide home.				false

		1979						LN		75		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  A double-wide home?				false

		1980						LN		75		11		false		              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Trailer home.				false

		1981						LN		75		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Double-wide trailer home,				false

		1982						LN		75		13		false		              13   okay.				false

		1983						LN		75		14		false		              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  Four bedroom home.				false

		1984						LN		75		15		false		              15        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So let's talk about				false

		1985						LN		75		16		false		              16   the first incident.  When about was the first incident?				false

		1986						LN		75		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother) The first time the taps, the				false

		1987						LN		75		18		false		              18   meters were removed, I had a renter, and the renter				false

		1988						LN		75		19		false		              19   called and said that they got a --				false

		1989						LN		75		20		false		              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  That they --				false

		1990						LN		75		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Mother)  That they pulled the meters				false

		1991						LN		75		22		false		              22   on them because they, they had their own generator.  And				false

		1992						LN		75		23		false		              23   they had pulled the meters, and they had no water and no				false

		1993						LN		75		24		false		              24   power, and they had to move.				false

		1994						LN		75		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  So the renters, did they notify TUID?				false

		1995						PG		76		0		false		page 76				false

		1996						LN		76		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.				false

		1997						LN		76		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  How did they notify TUID?				false

		1998						LN		76		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Mother) They called me on the phone.				false

		1999						LN		76		4		false		               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No, T-U-I-D.				false

		2000						LN		76		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Mother) Oh, T-U-I-D?				false

		2001						LN		76		6		false		               6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.  How did Jim and Val				false

		2002						LN		76		7		false		               7   Hill in 2013?  Remember we GRAMA Acted.  Did you --				false

		2003						LN		76		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't understand the				false

		2004						LN		76		9		false		               9   question properly.				false

		2005						LN		76		10		false		              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  In what form did your				false

		2006						LN		76		11		false		              11   tenants inform TUID that they -- now, which utility were				false

		2007						LN		76		12		false		              12   they requesting to discontinue?				false

		2008						LN		76		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Mother) How did they contacted				false

		2009						LN		76		14		false		              14   T-U-I-D?				false

		2010						LN		76		15		false		              15        Q.   Which utility were they asking TUID to				false

		2011						LN		76		16		false		              16   discontinue?				false

		2012						LN		76		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother) They were receiving their				false

		2013						LN		76		18		false		              18   water and power.				false

		2014						LN		76		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  And what were they asking to be				false

		2015						LN		76		20		false		              20   discontinued?				false

		2016						LN		76		21		false		              21             MR. LONG:  I'd just like to note a hearsay				false

		2017						LN		76		22		false		              22   objection here.  We are talking about what someone else				false

		2018						LN		76		23		false		              23   allegedly asked the district to do three-plus years ago.				false

		2019						LN		76		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Understood.  Thank you.				false

		2020						LN		76		25		false		              25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What did -- okay.  What did				false

		2021						PG		77		0		false		page 77				false

		2022						LN		77		1		false		               1   your tenants tell you that they wanted disconnected?				false

		2023						LN		77		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Mother) The tenants said they had no				false

		2024						LN		77		3		false		               3   water or no power, and they couldn't stay.  They had a				false

		2025						LN		77		4		false		               4   business there.				false

		2026						LN		77		5		false		               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.  So --				false

		2027						LN		77		6		false		               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What did they tell you that				false

		2028						LN		77		7		false		               7   they wanted?  What utility did they tell you they wanted				false

		2029						LN		77		8		false		               8   disconnected?  Did they want electric disconnected?  Did				false

		2030						LN		77		9		false		               9   they want water disconnected?  Did they want all of it				false

		2031						LN		77		10		false		              10   disconnected?				false

		2032						LN		77		11		false		              11        A.   They didn't want anything disconnected.				false

		2033						LN		77		12		false		              12        Q.   Okay.  Mary, can you testify?				false

		2034						LN		77		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Okay.				false

		2035						LN		77		14		false		              14        Q.   Mary, to your knowledge, did the tenants				false

		2036						LN		77		15		false		              15   inform your mom that they wanted any utility				false

		2037						LN		77		16		false		              16   disconnected?				false

		2038						LN		77		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Daughter) They informed me.  I went				false

		2039						LN		77		18		false		              18   down in August of 2013, on the 15th of that month, and				false

		2040						LN		77		19		false		              19   was informed by them that they had requested to not have				false

		2041						LN		77		20		false		              20   power, that they wanted to run a generator.				false

		2042						LN		77		21		false		              21        Q.   My question to you is, what did they tell you				false

		2043						LN		77		22		false		              22   that they wanted disconnected?				false

		2044						LN		77		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Their power.				false

		2045						LN		77		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  Did they want the water disconnected as				false

		2046						LN		77		25		false		              25   well?				false

		2047						PG		78		0		false		page 78				false

		2048						LN		78		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		2049						LN		78		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  Did, did you or your mother inform TUID				false

		2050						LN		78		3		false		               3   that -- or request that the power service be				false

		2051						LN		78		4		false		               4   disconnected?				false

		2052						LN		78		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.				false

		2053						LN		78		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.				false

		2054						LN		78		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct.				false

		2055						LN		78		8		false		               8        Q.   All right.  And did TUID disconnect the power?				false

		2056						LN		78		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) They took the meters, both				false

		2057						LN		78		10		false		              10   water and power.				false

		2058						LN		78		11		false		              11        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct, they did.				false

		2059						LN		78		12		false		              12        Q.   So they -- even though the tenants informed				false

		2060						LN		78		13		false		              13   you that they only wanted the power disconnected, TUID				false

		2061						LN		78		14		false		              14   came out and disconnected all of the utilities, correct?				false

		2062						LN		78		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.				false

		2063						LN		78		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.				false

		2064						LN		78		17		false		              17        Q.   Okay.				false

		2065						LN		78		18		false		              18             MR. LONG:  Again, objection that anything				false

		2066						LN		78		19		false		              19   beyond electric service is beyond the commission's				false

		2067						LN		78		20		false		              20   jurisdiction, I think beyond the scope of this hearing.				false

		2068						LN		78		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.				false

		2069						LN		78		22		false		              22             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		2070						LN		78		23		false		              23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Was there any notice provided				false

		2071						LN		78		24		false		              24   that all of the utilities would be disconnected?				false

		2072						LN		78		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.				false

		2073						PG		79		0		false		page 79				false

		2074						LN		79		1		false		               1        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.				false

		2075						LN		79		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  Was there any notice of what day or				false

		2076						LN		79		3		false		               3   time that even the electrical utility would be				false

		2077						LN		79		4		false		               4   disconnected?				false

		2078						LN		79		5		false		               5        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.				false

		2079						LN		79		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, there -- the second				false

		2080						LN		79		7		false		               7   incident that you referred to --				false

		2081						LN		79		8		false		               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you put that in as				false

		2082						LN		79		9		false		               9   exhibit?				false

		2083						LN		79		10		false		              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Mary, Mary.				false

		2084						LN		79		11		false		              11             WITNESS MOTHER:  That just recently?				false

		2085						LN		79		12		false		              12        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So the -- let's talk				false

		2086						LN		79		13		false		              13   about the second incident.  Mary, you were involved in				false

		2087						LN		79		14		false		              14   that.  What -- can you please describe the second				false

		2088						LN		79		15		false		              15   incident with regards to the taps or meters being				false

		2089						LN		79		16		false		              16   removed from those lots.				false

		2090						LN		79		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Daughter) We went down to the meeting				false

		2091						LN		79		18		false		              18   on April 28th, on a Thursday.  We stated our home --				false

		2092						LN		79		19		false		              19        Q.   Sorry.  What year?				false

		2093						LN		79		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  What year?				false

		2094						LN		79		21		false		              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  2016.				false

		2095						LN		79		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I need you to tell me what				false

		2096						LN		79		23		false		              23   happened between.  Did the utility service get				false

		2097						LN		79		24		false		              24   reinstated?				false

		2098						LN		79		25		false		              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.				false

		2099						PG		80		0		false		page 80				false

		2100						LN		80		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  Oh, you are talking from 2013?				false

		2101						LN		80		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		2102						LN		80		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		2103						LN		80		4		false		               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So in 2000 -- after 2013,				false

		2104						LN		80		5		false		               5   no renters, no meters replaced until August of 2014.  At				false

		2105						LN		80		6		false		               6   that time we were required to pay an $1875 fee for				false

		2106						LN		80		7		false		               7   standby fees during the year the meter was removed in				false

		2107						LN		80		8		false		               8   order for the meters to put back on.				false

		2108						LN		80		9		false		               9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the meters were removed in				false

		2109						LN		80		10		false		              10   August of 2013, but you were charged standby fees until				false

		2110						LN		80		11		false		              11   August of 2014?				false

		2111						LN		80		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  With the meters				false

		2112						LN		80		13		false		              13   removed.				false

		2113						LN		80		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.				false

		2114						LN		80		15		false		              15        Q.   And when did the tenants move in?				false

		2115						LN		80		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you -- did you pay that?				false

		2116						LN		80		17		false		              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.				false

		2117						LN		80		18		false		              18             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes, we did.				false

		2118						LN		80		19		false		              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  For our tenants, for new				false

		2119						LN		80		20		false		              20   tenants to come in so that we could have a renter base.				false

		2120						LN		80		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		2121						LN		80		22		false		              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the tenants that had				false

		2122						LN		80		23		false		              23   requested for the electric to be removed, did they stay				false

		2123						LN		80		24		false		              24   on the property for that year?				false

		2124						LN		80		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  They moved out of				false

		2125						PG		81		0		false		page 81				false

		2126						LN		81		1		false		               1   state.  They had to move.				false

		2127						LN		81		2		false		               2        Q.   Why did they have to move?				false

		2128						LN		81		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Their -- it shut down their				false

		2129						LN		81		4		false		               4   business, and there was no service.				false

		2130						LN		81		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  Again hearsay.  We're going to				false

		2131						LN		81		6		false		               6   someone else's motivations.				false

		2132						LN		81		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Oh, well, there was no --				false

		2133						LN		81		8		false		               8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) To the best of your				false

		2134						LN		81		9		false		               9   understanding.				false

		2135						LN		81		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) They told me they could not				false

		2136						LN		81		11		false		              11   stay and with that -- and with no meters, no service				false

		2137						LN		81		12		false		              12   with utilities.				false

		2138						LN		81		13		false		              13        Q.   Okay.				false

		2139						LN		81		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  But the fact is, they moved.				false

		2140						LN		81		15		false		              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.				false

		2141						LN		81		16		false		              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  They didn't have any water or				false

		2142						LN		81		17		false		              17   power.				false

		2143						LN		81		18		false		              18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So the second incident				false

		2144						LN		81		19		false		              19   so --				false

		2145						LN		81		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Mother) Oh.				false

		2146						LN		81		21		false		              21        Q.   You testified that the meters were put back in				false

		2147						LN		81		22		false		              22   August of 2014; is that correct?				false

		2148						LN		81		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.				false

		2149						LN		81		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.				false

		2150						LN		81		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) In 2016, April 28th, we				false

		2151						PG		82		0		false		page 82				false

		2152						LN		82		1		false		               1   went down.  We stayed at the house for four days and				false

		2153						LN		82		2		false		               2   left on Sunday, May 1st.  May 2nd, upon returning,				false

		2154						LN		82		3		false		               3   received an e-mail from Ticaboo that they had removed				false

		2155						LN		82		4		false		               4   our meter.				false

		2156						LN		82		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.				false

		2157						LN		82		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  This is still on --				false

		2158						LN		82		7		false		               7             WITNESS MOTHER:  On three and four.				false

		2159						LN		82		8		false		               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  This is three and four.				false

		2160						LN		82		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  So you personally stayed there				false

		2161						LN		82		10		false		              10   for 10 days?				false

		2162						LN		82		11		false		              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.  We stayed there for				false

		2163						LN		82		12		false		              12   three -- four days.				false

		2164						LN		82		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  For four days.				false

		2165						LN		82		14		false		              14             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We stayed in our home, but				false

		2166						LN		82		15		false		              15   we were over there cleaning and fixing it for new				false

		2167						LN		82		16		false		              16   renters.				false

		2168						LN		82		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I see, okay.  And so you				false

		2169						LN		82		18		false		              18   worked in the house for four days.				false

		2170						LN		82		19		false		              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We worked in the house,				false

		2171						LN		82		20		false		              20   uh-huh.				false

		2172						LN		82		21		false		              21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Now, let's go back to				false

		2173						LN		82		22		false		              22   February.				false

		2174						LN		82		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) But we can go back to				false

		2175						LN		82		24		false		              24   February.				false

		2176						LN		82		25		false		              25        Q.   So in February, was there an issue regarding				false

		2177						PG		83		0		false		page 83				false

		2178						LN		83		1		false		               1   utilities in Ticaboo?				false

		2179						LN		83		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  On February 18th				false

		2180						LN		83		3		false		               3   there was a meeting.  And as we arrived to the meeting,				false

		2181						LN		83		4		false		               4   it was stated that if anyone touched the meters or did				false

		2182						LN		83		5		false		               5   any tampering, that they would have a thousand dollar				false

		2183						LN		83		6		false		               6   tampering fee charge.  And they -- the meeting was in				false

		2184						LN		83		7		false		               7   regards to changing the rates for tampering.				false

		2185						LN		83		8		false		               8        Q.   And had you -- had you had any contact with				false

		2186						LN		83		9		false		               9   the meters?				false

		2187						LN		83		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  We didn't know that				false

		2188						LN		83		11		false		              11   you could not touch the meters, so during the winter				false

		2189						LN		83		12		false		              12   months we turned them off.  And so when we came down				false

		2190						LN		83		13		false		              13   there after being gone for the coldest months, November,				false

		2191						LN		83		14		false		              14   December, and January, we turned them on.  Make sure				false

		2192						LN		83		15		false		              15   there was no frozen pipes and then went over to -- and				false

		2193						LN		83		16		false		              16   we had to use water, so we turned on.				false

		2194						LN		83		17		false		              17             And then we went over to the meeting.  During				false

		2195						LN		83		18		false		              18   the meeting we informed --				false

		2196						LN		83		19		false		              19        Q.   So what was the purpose of turning them off				false

		2197						LN		83		20		false		              20   during the winter?  What were you trying -- what was the				false

		2198						LN		83		21		false		              21   purpose of it?				false

		2199						LN		83		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter)  So no pipes would break.				false

		2200						LN		83		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct.				false

		2201						LN		83		24		false		              24        Q.   And so in February you went to the meeting,				false

		2202						LN		83		25		false		              25   and you were -- were you given a warning or anything for				false

		2203						PG		84		0		false		page 84				false

		2204						LN		84		1		false		               1   doing that?				false

		2205						LN		84		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) During the meeting, as we				false

		2206						LN		84		3		false		               3   informed the district, we informed them that we had				false

		2207						LN		84		4		false		               4   turned the meters on.  And so Mr. Shortreed and the				false

		2208						LN		84		5		false		               5   board members informed us that that was our warning.				false

		2209						LN		84		6		false		               6   Upon returning home, we received the pamphlet.				false

		2210						LN		84		7		false		               7        Q.   When you say -- okay.  In February?				false

		2211						LN		84		8		false		               8        A.   February 20th.				false

		2212						LN		84		9		false		               9             MR. LONG:  I am going to object here.  This is				false

		2213						LN		84		10		false		              10   well beyond the scope of the commission's questions and				false

		2214						LN		84		11		false		              11   what I understand to be the scope of this hearing.  If				false

		2215						LN		84		12		false		              12   it needs addressed, I'd suggest that we do it in --				false

		2216						LN		84		13		false		              13             MR. HOGELIN:  Your Honor, we would ask --				false

		2217						LN		84		14		false		              14             MR. LONG:  -- filings after this hearing or at				false

		2218						LN		84		15		false		              15   least give Ticaboo the opportunity to respond.				false

		2219						LN		84		16		false		              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Can I respond to the objection?				false

		2220						LN		84		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I'm trying to understand the				false

		2221						LN		84		18		false		              18   circumstances under which taps were removed.  They were				false

		2222						LN		84		19		false		              19   saying taps were removed or meters shut down or some				false

		2223						LN		84		20		false		              20   sort of action taken by Ticaboo to discontinue service				false

		2224						LN		84		21		false		              21   on two occasions.				false

		2225						LN		84		22		false		              22             The first occasion was in connection with a				false

		2226						LN		84		23		false		              23   tenant who had a generator.  The second occasion was in				false

		2227						LN		84		24		false		              24   connection with their trying to prepare the property for				false

		2228						LN		84		25		false		              25   new tenants to move in, correct?				false

		2229						PG		85		0		false		page 85				false

		2230						LN		85		1		false		               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.				false

		2231						LN		85		2		false		               2             WITNESS MOTHER:  Correct.				false

		2232						LN		85		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I am a little bit confused				false

		2233						LN		85		4		false		               4   about dates.  So the second incident you said was this				false

		2234						LN		85		5		false		               5   year, right?				false

		2235						LN		85		6		false		               6             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.				false

		2236						LN		85		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  April of 2016?				false

		2237						LN		85		8		false		               8             WITNESS MOTHER:  Correct.				false

		2238						LN		85		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  So the February meeting, was				false

		2239						LN		85		10		false		              10   that also of this year, 2016?				false

		2240						LN		85		11		false		              11             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.				false

		2241						LN		85		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And so the meeting that				false

		2242						LN		85		13		false		              13   you went to was dealing with tampering charges.  When				false

		2243						LN		85		14		false		              14   you had turned off the meters, that was to water,				false

		2244						LN		85		15		false		              15   correct?				false

		2245						LN		85		16		false		              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  The water was already on.				false

		2246						LN		85		17		false		              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.				false

		2247						LN		85		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you turn off the meters				false

		2248						LN		85		19		false		              19   for the electricity at any time?				false

		2249						LN		85		20		false		              20             WITNESS MOTHER:  Never.				false

		2250						LN		85		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what does the --				false

		2251						LN		85		22		false		              22   does their taking action with the meter on the water				false

		2252						LN		85		23		false		              23   have anything to do with electricity?  Is there going to				false

		2253						LN		85		24		false		              24   be a tie-in?				false

		2254						LN		85		25		false		              25             MR. HOGELIN:  That's where I am going with the				false

		2255						PG		86		0		false		page 86				false

		2256						LN		86		1		false		               1   testimony, yes.				false

		2257						LN		86		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So your objection is				false

		2258						LN		86		3		false		               3   noted, but I do need to hear the rest of this, and at				false

		2259						LN		86		4		false		               4   that point I'll be able to tell if it's relevant or not.				false

		2260						LN		86		5		false		               5   Go ahead.				false

		2261						LN		86		6		false		               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  So to go back, you were				false

		2262						LN		86		7		false		               7   given a warning in February about doing any action with				false

		2263						LN		86		8		false		               8   the meters, correct?				false

		2264						LN		86		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.				false

		2265						LN		86		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  After February and you were given that				false

		2266						LN		86		11		false		              11   warning, did you take any actions or do anything with				false

		2267						LN		86		12		false		              12   regards to the meters?				false

		2268						LN		86		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		2269						LN		86		14		false		              14        Q.   Okay.  You testified in April that you visited				false

		2270						LN		86		15		false		              15   the property and you were there for three days, correct?				false

		2271						LN		86		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.				false

		2272						LN		86		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.				false

		2273						LN		86		18		false		              18        Q.   And while you were visiting the property, did				false

		2274						LN		86		19		false		              19   you do anything with the meters, whether electrical,				false

		2275						LN		86		20		false		              20   water or whatever, turning anything on or off?				false

		2276						LN		86		21		false		              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		2277						LN		86		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.				false

		2278						LN		86		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  And then what was the -- so you left				false

		2279						LN		86		24		false		              24   the property on what date?				false

		2280						LN		86		25		false		              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) May 1st.				false

		2281						PG		87		0		false		page 87				false

		2282						LN		87		1		false		               1        Q.   May 1st.  And after May 1st, you -- did you				false

		2283						LN		87		2		false		               2   receive any correspondence from TUID?				false

		2284						LN		87		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) On May 2nd we received an				false

		2285						LN		87		4		false		               4   e-mail that our meters -- meter had been removed, water				false

		2286						LN		87		5		false		               5   meter had been removed from our property.				false

		2287						LN		87		6		false		               6        Q.   Was your electrical meter removed?				false

		2288						LN		87		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) I had -- did not check				false

		2289						LN		87		8		false		               8   that.				false

		2290						LN		87		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.				false

		2291						LN		87		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) I turned off the power with				false

		2292						LN		87		11		false		              11   the box, our power box, our main box.				false

		2293						LN		87		12		false		              12        Q.   But there wasn't any notice given prior to the				false

		2294						LN		87		13		false		              13   removal of the meter?				false

		2295						LN		87		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) No contact from the				false

		2296						LN		87		15		false		              15   district in regards.				false

		2297						LN		87		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So the question was,				false

		2298						LN		87		17		false		              17   was anything done to electricity, and you don't know,				false

		2299						LN		87		18		false		              18   right?				false

		2300						LN		87		19		false		              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.  I did not go				false

		2301						LN		87		20		false		              20   out and check that.				false

		2302						LN		87		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So do you have renters				false

		2303						LN		87		22		false		              22   in that property now?				false

		2304						LN		87		23		false		              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We cannot.  They cannot use				false

		2305						LN		87		24		false		              24   water.				false

		2306						LN		87		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		2307						PG		88		0		false		page 88				false

		2308						LN		88		1		false		               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't even know power.				false

		2309						LN		88		2		false		               2   At that point we knew that there wasn't a viable.  We				false

		2310						LN		88		3		false		               3   had renters ready to move in at that time.  That's why				false

		2311						LN		88		4		false		               4   we were preparing that home, seasonal workers were				false

		2312						LN		88		5		false		               5   there.				false

		2313						LN		88		6		false		               6             WITNESS MOTHER:  They had gone back to pick up				false

		2314						LN		88		7		false		               7   their things to move in.  We had the rent -- we had it				false

		2315						LN		88		8		false		               8   rented.				false

		2316						LN		88		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Anything more,				false

		2317						LN		88		10		false		              10   Mr. Hogelin?				false

		2318						LN		88		11		false		              11             MR. HOGELIN:  We rest, your Honor.				false

		2319						LN		88		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Mr. Long, are you ready?				false

		2320						LN		88		13		false		              13             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  I just have a few questions				false

		2321						LN		88		14		false		              14   for cross-examination.  And I guess the particular				false

		2322						LN		88		15		false		              15   person answering them, we will take answers from whoever				false

		2323						LN		88		16		false		              16   can give them.				false

		2324						LN		88		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		2325						LN		88		18		false		              18                       CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		2326						LN		88		19		false		              19   BY MR. LONG:				false

		2327						LN		88		20		false		              20        Q.   So Ms. Seamons, I just have a handful of				false

		2328						LN		88		21		false		              21   questions.				false

		2329						LN		88		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) If you ask questions, I'll				false

		2330						LN		88		23		false		              23   try to answer or if she can't hear.				false

		2331						LN		88		24		false		              24        Q.   Sure.  And if I need to restate anything or				false

		2332						LN		88		25		false		              25   speak louder, please let me know.  As I understand your				false

		2333						PG		89		0		false		page 89				false

		2334						LN		89		1		false		               1   testimony, and this is simply for the -- for my benefit,				false

		2335						LN		89		2		false		               2   you claim that you had no notice of standby fees between				false

		2336						LN		89		3		false		               3   September 2013, when the district first started charging				false

		2337						LN		89		4		false		               4   standby fees, and March of 2014?				false

		2338						LN		89		5		false		               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So he is asking, did you				false

		2339						LN		89		6		false		               6   have any notice on the standby fees from '13 until --				false

		2340						LN		89		7		false		               7        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I never had a bill until				false

		2341						LN		89		8		false		               8   March.				false

		2342						LN		89		9		false		               9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And again, by way of				false

		2343						LN		89		10		false		              10   clarification, I think, and please correct me if I am				false

		2344						LN		89		11		false		              11   wrong, that you testified that you had been receiving				false

		2345						LN		89		12		false		              12   bills for the house on Lot 1 and 2.  The house --				false

		2346						LN		89		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Can I specify --				false

		2347						LN		89		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Mother) I'm not sure.				false

		2348						LN		89		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) -- an answer for that for				false

		2349						LN		89		16		false		              16   her?				false

		2350						LN		89		17		false		              17        Q.   Certainly.				false

		2351						LN		89		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) So during the course before				false

		2352						LN		89		19		false		              19   September 2013, any property that we had rented or sold				false

		2353						LN		89		20		false		              20   was held, a contract to the district to pay the				false

		2354						LN		89		21		false		              21   utilities.  So we weren't receiving any bills prior to				false

		2355						LN		89		22		false		              22   that.  And after 2000 -- that 2013, standby fees were				false

		2356						LN		89		23		false		              23   implemented, we did not receive one.  We received it for				false

		2357						LN		89		24		false		              24   one and two, the only lot, the house that we resided in.				false

		2358						LN		89		25		false		              25        Q.   And at that time, the house that's built or				false

		2359						PG		90		0		false		page 90				false

		2360						LN		90		1		false		               1   located on Lot 1 and 2 was occupied?				false

		2361						LN		90		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) We visit it.  We do not --				false

		2362						LN		90		3		false		               3   we are not full-time residents.  We go down and				false

		2363						LN		90		4		false		               4   seasonally visit.				false

		2364						LN		90		5		false		               5        Q.   Sorry.  Maybe more clearly, the house was				false

		2365						LN		90		6		false		               6   actively receiving service, as in when you turn on the				false

		2366						LN		90		7		false		               7   tap, water comes out?				false

		2367						LN		90		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct, on one and two.				false

		2368						LN		90		9		false		               9        Q.   Light switches, lights go on?				false

		2369						LN		90		10		false		              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		2370						LN		90		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  And the other ones were either				false

		2371						LN		90		12		false		              12   undeveloped properties or not occupied?				false

		2372						LN		90		13		false		              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  The tenants had				false

		2373						LN		90		14		false		              14   left on three and four.				false

		2374						LN		90		15		false		              15        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  Thank you, just by way of				false

		2375						LN		90		16		false		              16   clarification.				false

		2376						LN		90		17		false		              17        A.   (Witness Mother)  Yeah, that's correct.				false

		2377						LN		90		18		false		              18        Q.   You brought up a few different issues of				false

		2378						LN		90		19		false		              19   notice or claim that you didn't have notice of various				false

		2379						LN		90		20		false		              20   actions that the district was taking.  Are you familiar				false

		2380						LN		90		21		false		              21   with what's referred to as the Utah Public Notice				false

		2381						LN		90		22		false		              22   Website?				false

		2382						LN		90		23		false		              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  Actually, last night				false

		2383						LN		90		24		false		              24   I received an alert that there's a meeting tomorrow				false

		2384						LN		90		25		false		              25   night.				false

		2385						PG		91		0		false		page 91				false

		2386						LN		91		1		false		               1        Q.   And have you subscribed to that?				false

		2387						LN		91		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Just in November.				false

		2388						LN		91		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.				false

		2389						LN		91		4		false		               4        A.   (Witness Daughter) I wasn't aware of it prior.				false

		2390						LN		91		5		false		               5        Q.   And are you aware of the commission's website				false

		2391						LN		91		6		false		               6   that contains filings from the district as far as they				false

		2392						LN		91		7		false		               7   regard electrical service?				false

		2393						LN		91		8		false		               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) I went in and tried to				false

		2394						LN		91		9		false		               9   locate that before, but TSSD and TUID were very confused				false

		2395						LN		91		10		false		              10   within that.  And I wasn't aware of TUID being.  So I				false

		2396						LN		91		11		false		              11   tried to.  I did subscribe to the Public Services				false

		2397						LN		91		12		false		              12   Commission's, but they eliminated their alerts, I want				false

		2398						LN		91		13		false		              13   to say in April.  I got a notice that they no longer				false

		2399						LN		91		14		false		              14   would serve alerts in regards to filings or anything				false

		2400						LN		91		15		false		              15   with districts.				false

		2401						LN		91		16		false		              16        Q.   So since -- after March of 2014, and again,				false

		2402						LN		91		17		false		              17   this is -- maybe I'm a little confused because this has				false

		2403						LN		91		18		false		              18   been sort of a hectic hearing.  Have you been receiving				false

		2404						LN		91		19		false		              19   bills for all of the properties?				false

		2405						LN		91		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		2406						LN		91		21		false		              21        Q.   Okay.				false

		2407						LN		91		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) So as of 2014 in March, we				false

		2408						LN		91		23		false		              23   started to receive combined billing statements for all				false

		2409						LN		91		24		false		              24   properties.				false

		2410						LN		91		25		false		              25        Q.   And those combined billing statements, again				false

		2411						PG		92		0		false		page 92				false

		2412						LN		92		1		false		               1   just for the commission's benefit, this is one bill that				false

		2413						LN		92		2		false		               2   has, has charges for all eight lots that you own?				false

		2414						LN		92		3		false		               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Let me look at the billings				false

		2415						LN		92		4		false		               4   that I have.				false

		2416						LN		92		5		false		               5             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's just right there.  You				false

		2417						LN		92		6		false		               6   just had it there.				false

		2418						LN		92		7		false		               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I have current ones.  I had				false

		2419						LN		92		8		false		               8   the current ones.				false

		2420						LN		92		9		false		               9             WITNESS MOTHER:  It is for all properties.				false

		2421						LN		92		10		false		              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, I don't know if they				false

		2422						LN		92		11		false		              11   are combining seven and eight or if it's separate.				false

		2423						LN		92		12		false		              12             WITNESS MOTHER:  Oh, I didn't know that				false

		2424						LN		92		13		false		              13   either.  I think it's separate.				false

		2425						LN		92		14		false		              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Seven and eight are				false

		2426						LN		92		15		false		              15   combined, so they are not -- they are separate.  But on				false

		2427						LN		92		16		false		              16   our property taxes, they are separate.				false

		2428						LN		92		17		false		              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Sure.				false

		2429						LN		92		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Utility fees.				false

		2430						LN		92		19		false		              19        Q.   We have discussed a little bit the difference				false

		2431						LN		92		20		false		              20   between taps and meters or connections.  Again, just to				false

		2432						LN		92		21		false		              21   clarify, understanding the district definition of a tap				false

		2433						LN		92		22		false		              22   is having utility service, in this case electrical				false

		2434						LN		92		23		false		              23   service, available at the property line, so at any edge				false

		2435						LN		92		24		false		              24   of the property, do all of the lots that you own in				false

		2436						LN		92		25		false		              25   Ticaboo have electrical service or electrical lines				false

		2437						PG		93		0		false		page 93				false

		2438						LN		93		1		false		               1   available at the edge of the property?				false

		2439						LN		93		2		false		               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		2440						LN		93		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Just to clarify, thank you.				false

		2441						LN		93		4		false		               4        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Well, I am not sure.				false

		2442						LN		93		5		false		               5   Maybe they are and they are not.  I don't know if				false

		2443						LN		93		6		false		               6   there's electrical really cable.  How would I know?				false

		2444						LN		93		7		false		               7   It's buried.  There's pedestals.				false

		2445						LN		93		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.				false

		2446						LN		93		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) But I don't know what --				false

		2447						LN		93		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  That's sufficient.  Can you				false

		2448						LN		93		11		false		              11   describe current tenants, if any, that you have?				false

		2449						LN		93		12		false		              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) None.				false

		2450						LN		93		13		false		              13        Q.   Okay.  In your opinion, would you be able to				false

		2451						LN		93		14		false		              14   rent any of these properties without utility service; in				false

		2452						LN		93		15		false		              15   particular, electrical service?				false

		2453						LN		93		16		false		              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Utility?  Did you say				false

		2454						LN		93		17		false		              17   power?  With solar, I could, yes.				false

		2455						LN		93		18		false		              18        Q.   Do any of your properties have essentially				false

		2456						LN		93		19		false		              19   off-the-grid capable solar systems?				false

		2457						LN		93		20		false		              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.				false

		2458						LN		93		21		false		              21        Q.   Okay.				false

		2459						LN		93		22		false		              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) But I could purchase a				false

		2460						LN		93		23		false		              23   generator.				false

		2461						LN		93		24		false		              24             MR. LONG:  I have no further questions.				false

		2462						LN		93		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any				false

		2463						PG		94		0		false		page 94				false

		2464						LN		94		1		false		               1   follow-up?				false

		2465						LN		94		2		false		               2                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		2466						LN		94		3		false		               3   BY MR. HOGELIN:				false

		2467						LN		94		4		false		               4        Q.   Have you looked into using alternative				false

		2468						LN		94		5		false		               5   electrical services such as solar or generators?				false

		2469						LN		94		6		false		               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.				false

		2470						LN		94		7		false		               7        Q.   And have you notified TUID that you are				false

		2471						LN		94		8		false		               8   interested in using alternative services?				false

		2472						LN		94		9		false		               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  We have spoke with				false

		2473						LN		94		10		false		              10   Tom Hill and Mr. Shortreed.				false

		2474						LN		94		11		false		              11        Q.   And did they -- were -- were you told, or is				false

		2475						LN		94		12		false		              12   it your understanding that if you use alternative				false

		2476						LN		94		13		false		              13   electrical services, that you will no longer have any				false

		2477						LN		94		14		false		              14   fees from TUID with regards to electrical?				false

		2478						LN		94		15		false		              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We would still be				false

		2479						LN		94		16		false		              16   charged a standby fee.				false

		2480						LN		94		17		false		              17             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.  That's all.				false

		2481						LN		94		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Any recross?				false

		2482						LN		94		19		false		              19             MR. LONG:  No.				false

		2483						LN		94		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.  You want to				false

		2484						LN		94		21		false		              21   call Mr. Shortreed?				false

		2485						LN		94		22		false		              22             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  I'd like to discuss one				false

		2486						LN		94		23		false		              23   issue with the commission.				false

		2487						LN		94		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		2488						LN		94		25		false		              25             MR. LONG:  And I alluded to this earlier.				false

		2489						PG		95		0		false		page 95				false

		2490						LN		95		1		false		               1   Again, the district has come prepared to answer the				false

		2491						LN		95		2		false		               2   commission's questions, and those questions in				false

		2492						LN		95		3		false		               3   particular involve Dockets 13-2508-T01 and 15-2508-T01.				false

		2493						LN		95		4		false		               4   I'd like to point out to the commission at this point in				false

		2494						LN		95		5		false		               5   the proceeding that neither of those dockets involve the				false

		2495						LN		95		6		false		               6   implementation of standby fees.				false

		2496						LN		95		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  It was my understanding that				false

		2497						LN		95		8		false		               8   Docket 13 is where standby fees were first introduced.				false

		2498						LN		95		9		false		               9   Is that not correct?				false

		2499						LN		95		10		false		              10             MR. LONG:  Docket 13-2508-T02 is the docket				false

		2500						LN		95		11		false		              11   where standby fee -- the new tariff including standby				false

		2501						LN		95		12		false		              12   fees was filed with the commission.				false

		2502						LN		95		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Well, perhaps I made a				false

		2503						LN		95		14		false		              14   mistake.  I took the docket number, I believe, straight				false

		2504						LN		95		15		false		              15   out of your response.				false

		2505						LN		95		16		false		              16             MR. LONG:  And I am not promising we made no				false

		2506						LN		95		17		false		              17   typos.  We are prepared to address it on a very				false

		2507						LN		95		18		false		              18   preliminary basis here.  We would ask that anything				false

		2508						LN		95		19		false		              19   regarding the legality of standby fees or the notice				false

		2509						LN		95		20		false		              20   provided be --				false

		2510						LN		95		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  The commission has already				false

		2511						LN		95		22		false		              22   stated that standby fees are legal.  The question is				false

		2512						LN		95		23		false		              23   whether you have a valid tariff that includes standby				false

		2513						LN		95		24		false		              24   fees.  That's the question.  And if you did not comply				false

		2514						LN		95		25		false		              25   with the statutory notice requirement to customers and				false

		2515						PG		96		0		false		page 96				false

		2516						LN		96		1		false		               1   to the commission in the docket where you created and				false

		2517						LN		96		2		false		               2   first imposed those standby fees, then you do not have a				false

		2518						LN		96		3		false		               3   valid tariff.  And that's what we're trying to figure				false

		2519						LN		96		4		false		               4   out today.				false

		2520						LN		96		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  I understand the commission's				false

		2521						LN		96		6		false		               6   position.  I'd like to request the opportunity to				false

		2522						LN		96		7		false		               7   complete some sort of posthearing brief or filing as the				false

		2523						LN		96		8		false		               8   commission feels it necessary.  As based on our readings				false

		2524						LN		96		9		false		               9   of the questions --				false

		2525						LN		96		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  So let me just figure this				false

		2526						LN		96		11		false		              11   out.  What's the docket number where you first created				false

		2527						LN		96		12		false		              12   standby fees?				false

		2528						LN		96		13		false		              13             MR. LONG:  That's 13-2508-T02.				false

		2529						LN		96		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  So what was the purpose of				false

		2530						LN		96		15		false		              15   T01?				false

		2531						LN		96		16		false		              16             MR. LONG:  T01 made overall changes to the				false

		2532						LN		96		17		false		              17   rate structure.  It set forth different, I guess we				false

		2533						LN		96		18		false		              18   would call them, blocked billing schedules.  Essentially				false

		2534						LN		96		19		false		              19   changed the way that customers could pay for electrical				false

		2535						LN		96		20		false		              20   service.				false

		2536						LN		96		21		false		              21             And again, we're prepared to address --				false

		2537						LN		96		22		false		              22   address the district's compliance with the requirements				false

		2538						LN		96		23		false		              23   as far as Docket 13-2508-T02.  But that hasn't been the				false

		2539						LN		96		24		false		              24   top of our preparation.  And understanding that was				false

		2540						LN		96		25		false		              25   perhaps a typo or miscommunication by us in the				false

		2541						PG		97		0		false		page 97				false

		2542						LN		97		1		false		               1   beginning, we would simply like the opportunity to file				false

		2543						LN		97		2		false		               2   a posthearing brief if we feel it necessary.				false

		2544						LN		97		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Point of clarification.  So is				false

		2545						LN		97		4		false		               4   the commission asking when tariff -- the standby fees				false

		2546						LN		97		5		false		               5   were introduced?				false

		2547						LN		97		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct, into the tariff.				false

		2548						LN		97		7		false		               7             MR. HOGELIN:  Although, I think it's not				false

		2549						LN		97		8		false		               8   disputed that in the 2015 tariff it's also included,				false

		2550						LN		97		9		false		               9   correct?				false

		2551						LN		97		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's included in the 2015				false

		2552						LN		97		11		false		              11   tariff, yes.				false

		2553						LN		97		12		false		              12             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.  I just wanted to --				false

		2554						LN		97		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  The question is whether -- is				false

		2555						LN		97		14		false		              14   where they were very first introduced.				false

		2556						LN		97		15		false		              15             MR. LONG:  So if it's helpful to the				false

		2557						LN		97		16		false		              16   commission, in our binder of exhibits, we have the				false

		2558						LN		97		17		false		              17   action request response in Docket 13-2508-T02.				false

		2559						LN		97		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		2560						LN		97		19		false		              19             MR. LONG:  From the Division of Public				false

		2561						LN		97		20		false		              20   Utilities that describes essentially the changes that				false

		2562						LN		97		21		false		              21   were made in that tariff filing.				false

		2563						LN		97		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Where is that?				false

		2564						LN		97		23		false		              23             MR. LONG:  That's Exhibit 24.				false

		2565						LN		97		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's see.  Okay.  The				false

		2566						LN		97		25		false		              25   implementation of standby fees for all services provided				false

		2567						PG		98		0		false		page 98				false

		2568						LN		98		1		false		               1   by district.  That's on page 2 of that exhibit.  Any				false

		2569						LN		98		2		false		               2   objection, Mr. Hogelin, to this Exhibit No. 24?				false

		2570						LN		98		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection, your Honor.  I'm				false

		2571						LN		98		4		false		               4   sorry.  You were referring to page 2 with regards to --				false

		2572						LN		98		5		false		               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is there an action number,				false

		2573						LN		98		6		false		               6   did you say?				false

		2574						LN		98		7		false		               7             MR. HOGELIN:  No, no, just...				false

		2575						LN		98		8		false		               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  This says one.  How come				false

		2576						LN		98		9		false		               9   that one says two?				false

		2577						LN		98		10		false		              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Just, Mary, please.				false

		2578						LN		98		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We'll do the best				false

		2579						LN		98		12		false		              12   we can and see where it takes us, and if we need				false

		2580						LN		98		13		false		              13   posthearing briefing, we'll put together a schedule for				false

		2581						LN		98		14		false		              14   that.  Go ahead.				false

		2582						LN		98		15		false		              15             MR. LONG:  Okay.  Understood.  Mr. Shortreed				false

		2583						LN		98		16		false		              16   has prepared a written statement that he would like to				false

		2584						LN		98		17		false		              17   read, as has typically been commission practice.  The				false

		2585						LN		98		18		false		              18   hope is that the statement will both set forth the				false

		2586						LN		98		19		false		              19   district responses to the commission's seven questions,				false

		2587						LN		98		20		false		              20   as well as introduce this entire binder full of				false

		2588						LN		98		21		false		              21   exhibits.				false

		2589						LN		98		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead and have him sworn.				false

		2590						LN		98		23		false		              23                        CHIP SHORTREED,				false

		2591						LN		98		24		false		              24   called as a witness at the instance of the Ticaboo				false

		2592						LN		98		25		false		              25   Utility Improvement District, having been first duly				false

		2593						PG		99		0		false		page 99				false

		2594						LN		99		1		false		               1   sworn, was examined and testified as follows:				false

		2595						LN		99		2		false		               2             MR. LONG:  Would you like Mr. Shortreed here?				false

		2596						LN		99		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.				false

		2597						LN		99		4		false		               4             MR. LONG:  That acceptable?				false

		2598						LN		99		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		2599						LN		99		6		false		               6             THE WITNESS:  Good morning.  My name is Chip				false

		2600						LN		99		7		false		               7   Shortreed.  I am the district manager for the Ticaboo				false

		2601						LN		99		8		false		               8   Utility Improvement District.  I have been involved with				false

		2602						LN		99		9		false		               9   TUID for a number of years.  With the guidance of the				false

		2603						LN		99		10		false		              10   board of trustees, I am responsible for day-to-day				false

		2604						LN		99		11		false		              11   operations of TUID and its facilities, including				false

		2605						LN		99		12		false		              12   operations and maintenance, billing and finances,				false

		2606						LN		99		13		false		              13   customer relations and all other aspects of TUID.  I am				false

		2607						LN		99		14		false		              14   the sole full-time employee of TUID.  I am also a				false

		2608						LN		99		15		false		              15   resident of Ticaboo and a TUID customer.				false

		2609						LN		99		16		false		              16             The major issue in these proceedings has been				false

		2610						LN		99		17		false		              17   standby fees charged by TUID.  TUID adopted its standby				false

		2611						LN		99		18		false		              18   fees in 2013, and the corresponding tariff changes were				false

		2612						LN		99		19		false		              19   filed and acknowledged by the commission on December 6,				false

		2613						LN		99		20		false		              20   2013 in commission Docket 13-2508-T02.				false

		2614						LN		99		21		false		              21             This docket is not a topic for this hearing				false

		2615						LN		99		22		false		              22   per the commission.  Nevertheless, it is important to				false

		2616						LN		99		23		false		              23   note that TUID provided the required notice to customers				false

		2617						LN		99		24		false		              24   and to the commission of the proposed changes and that				false

		2618						LN		99		25		false		              25   the standby fees were acknowledged by the commission.				false

		2619						PG		100		0		false		page 100				false

		2620						LN		100		1		false		               1   Could I just say, as a side-bar, this was written before				false

		2621						LN		100		2		false		               2   what we have talked about today.				false

		2622						LN		100		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.				false

		2623						LN		100		4		false		               4             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you.  Although the				false

		2624						LN		100		5		false		               5   commission has dismissed all aspects of Mrs. Seamons'				false

		2625						LN		100		6		false		               6   complaint as it relates to standby fees, I want to make				false

		2626						LN		100		7		false		               7   a brief statement on the record about the necessity of				false

		2627						LN		100		8		false		               8   standby fees.				false

		2628						LN		100		9		false		               9             TUID's standby fees are the method by which				false

		2629						LN		100		10		false		              10   the costs of keeping and maintaining TUID's utility				false

		2630						LN		100		11		false		              11   infrastructure are fairly allocated among the customers				false

		2631						LN		100		12		false		              12   that are actively receiving utility service and those				false

		2632						LN		100		13		false		              13   property owners to which service is available upon				false

		2633						LN		100		14		false		              14   request.  Standby fees as charged by TUID are legal,				false

		2634						LN		100		15		false		              15   just, and reasonable.				false

		2635						LN		100		16		false		              16             TUID is authorized to charge standby fees,				false

		2636						LN		100		17		false		              17   both as an improvement district and as a public utility.				false

		2637						LN		100		18		false		              18   Without standby fees, the active customers of TUID would				false

		2638						LN		100		19		false		              19   be forced to subsidize the owners of undeveloped				false

		2639						LN		100		20		false		              20   properties in Ticaboo.				false

		2640						LN		100		21		false		              21             TUID stands ready to provide utility service				false

		2641						LN		100		22		false		              22   upon request to a number of yet-to-be-developed				false

		2642						LN		100		23		false		              23   properties in Ticaboo, the only full service community				false

		2643						LN		100		24		false		              24   within 60 miles.  The fact that utility services are				false

		2644						LN		100		25		false		              25   available upon request means that properties in Ticaboo				false

		2645						PG		101		0		false		page 101				false

		2646						LN		101		1		false		               1   can be developed.  Without available utility services,				false

		2647						LN		101		2		false		               2   platted lots in Ticaboo would be worth no more than				false

		2648						LN		101		3		false		               3   barren, undeveloped and unimproved land in the desert.				false

		2649						LN		101		4		false		               4             TUID -- excuse me, TUID incurs expenses to				false

		2650						LN		101		5		false		               5   keep these services available, and standby fees simply				false

		2651						LN		101		6		false		               6   allocate these expenses according to those who benefit.				false

		2652						LN		101		7		false		               7   The commission has very clearly stated that TUID's				false

		2653						LN		101		8		false		               8   standby fees are legal.  In the order issued in this				false

		2654						LN		101		9		false		               9   docket on July 6, 2016, the commission stated, "TUID is				false

		2655						LN		101		10		false		              10   correct that standby fees are legal.  The commission has				false

		2656						LN		101		11		false		              11   regularly approved and required standby fees in the				false

		2657						LN		101		12		false		              12   tariffs of regulated utilities."				false

		2658						LN		101		13		false		              13             Further, Utah code, 17B-1-1032J allows a local				false

		2659						LN		101		14		false		              14   district to charge, quote, fees or other charges for				false

		2660						LN		101		15		false		              15   commodities, services or facilities provided that the				false

		2661						LN		101		16		false		              16   district -- provided by the district, end quote.  While				false

		2662						LN		101		17		false		              17   the statute does not use the specific term, quote,				false

		2663						LN		101		18		false		              18   standby fee, a tap is a facility for which a fee may be				false

		2664						LN		101		19		false		              19   charged.				false

		2665						LN		101		20		false		              20             The commission has dismissed Ms. Seamons'				false

		2666						LN		101		21		false		              21   allegation as to legality in general of the standby fees				false

		2667						LN		101		22		false		              22   and as to the legality of the specific rates and				false

		2668						LN		101		23		false		              23   policies set forth in TUID's tariff.  That means the				false

		2669						LN		101		24		false		              24   standby fees are not at issue today, and I will not				false

		2670						LN		101		25		false		              25   address them any further in my statement.				false

		2671						PG		102		0		false		page 102				false

		2672						LN		102		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  Objection.				false

		2673						LN		102		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Sustained.  Go ahead.				false

		2674						LN		102		3		false		               3             THE WITNESS:  May I proceed?				false

		2675						LN		102		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		2676						LN		102		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  In the order in this docket				false

		2677						LN		102		6		false		               6   dated July 6, 2016, the commission listed seven				false

		2678						LN		102		7		false		               7   questions to be answered at this hearing.  I will now				false

		2679						LN		102		8		false		               8   take a few minutes and address each of those questions				false

		2680						LN		102		9		false		               9   in turn.				false

		2681						LN		102		10		false		              10             TUID has provided the commission and the other				false

		2682						LN		102		11		false		              11   parties with a binder of exhibits that are relevant to				false

		2683						LN		102		12		false		              12   the commission's questions, and I ask that those				false

		2684						LN		102		13		false		              13   documents be admitted into evidence at the conclusion of				false

		2685						LN		102		14		false		              14   my statements.  Footnote:  They already have been, I				false

		2686						LN		102		15		false		              15   guess.				false

		2687						LN		102		16		false		              16             No. 1, when the commission approved the joint				false

		2688						LN		102		17		false		              17   settlement stipulation in Docket No. 15-2508-T01, TUID				false

		2689						LN		102		18		false		              18   was ordered to hold a board meeting within 30 days of				false

		2690						LN		102		19		false		              19   September 10, 2015, or no later than Saturday, October				false

		2691						LN		102		20		false		              20   10th, 2015.  Did TUID comply with that order?				false

		2692						LN		102		21		false		              21             Our response:  The stipulated step -- excuse				false

		2693						LN		102		22		false		              22   me, the stipulated settlement in question was submitted				false

		2694						LN		102		23		false		              23   by the division on August 20th, 2015, with a proposed				false

		2695						LN		102		24		false		              24   settlement stipulation.  The division also filed revised				false

		2696						LN		102		25		false		              25   tariff sheets to reflect the terms of the stipulated				false

		2697						PG		103		0		false		page 103				false

		2698						LN		103		1		false		               1   settlement.				false

		2699						LN		103		2		false		               2             On August 27, 2015, TUID had a publicly and				false

		2700						LN		103		3		false		               3   properly noticed board meeting to approve the settlement				false

		2701						LN		103		4		false		               4   and the revised tariff sheets, although this was prior				false

		2702						LN		103		5		false		               5   to the issuance of the order from the commission on				false

		2703						LN		103		6		false		               6   September 10th, 2015, approving the settlement,				false

		2704						LN		103		7		false		               7   stipulated settlement.  TUID took board action prior to				false

		2705						LN		103		8		false		               8   the issuance of the actual order as the board was				false

		2706						LN		103		9		false		               9   confident that the commission would approve the				false

		2707						LN		103		10		false		              10   settlement as requested by the division.				false

		2708						LN		103		11		false		              11             On November 18, 2015, Justin Jetter, one of				false

		2709						LN		103		12		false		              12   the attorneys for the division, e-mailed TUID's attorney				false

		2710						LN		103		13		false		              13   to check if the required board meeting had been held to				false

		2711						LN		103		14		false		              14   adopt the changes in the stipulated settlement.  On that				false

		2712						LN		103		15		false		              15   same day TUID's attorney replied to Mr. Jetter and sent				false

		2713						LN		103		16		false		              16   him the resolution approving the changes, as well as the				false

		2714						LN		103		17		false		              17   minutes from that meeting.				false

		2715						LN		103		18		false		              18             The stipulated settlement is marked as Exhibit				false

		2716						LN		103		19		false		              19   TUID-001.  The red-lined revised tariff sheets submitted				false

		2717						LN		103		20		false		              20   by the division are marked as Exhibit TUID-002.				false

		2718						LN		103		21		false		              21   Resolution 2015-0019 approving the tariff changes is				false

		2719						LN		103		22		false		              22   marked as Exhibit TUID-003.				false

		2720						LN		103		23		false		              23             The minutes of the August 27, 2015, meeting				false

		2721						LN		103		24		false		              24   are marked as Exhibit TUID-004.  The e-mail				false

		2722						LN		103		25		false		              25   correspondence between Mr. Jetter and TUID's attorney is				false

		2723						PG		104		0		false		page 104				false

		2724						LN		104		1		false		               1   marked as Exhibit TUID-005.  The notice of the August				false

		2725						LN		104		2		false		               2   27th meeting posted on the public notice website is				false

		2726						LN		104		3		false		               3   marked as Exhibit TUID-006.  The agenda for the August				false

		2727						LN		104		4		false		               4   27th meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-007.				false

		2728						LN		104		5		false		               5             No. 2, if TUID held the board meeting as				false

		2729						LN		104		6		false		               6   ordered in Docket No. 15-2058-T01, did it also file its				false

		2730						LN		104		7		false		               7   revised tariff with the commission within the ensuing 15				false

		2731						LN		104		8		false		               8   days?  Through an unfortunate oversight, TUID did not				false

		2732						LN		104		9		false		               9   file the revised tariff with the commission within 15				false

		2733						LN		104		10		false		              10   days of the board meeting.				false

		2734						LN		104		11		false		              11             Please note that the board meeting				false

		2735						LN		104		12		false		              12   contemplated by the commission had already happened by				false

		2736						LN		104		13		false		              13   the time this order was issued.  To meet the special				false

		2737						LN		104		14		false		              14   15-day requirement as set by the commission in this				false

		2738						LN		104		15		false		              15   unique case, TUID would have needed to file the revised				false

		2739						LN		104		16		false		              16   tariff within two days of the order.  TUID should have				false

		2740						LN		104		17		false		              17   completed that file, but mistakenly failed to do so.				false

		2741						LN		104		18		false		              18             The changes in this update tariff are				false

		2742						LN		104		19		false		              19   relatively minor and deal with tampering fees and some				false

		2743						LN		104		20		false		              20   details regarding service to tenant-occupied properties.				false

		2744						LN		104		21		false		              21   I am sorry, tenant, hyphen, occupied properties.  From				false

		2745						LN		104		22		false		              22   TUID's perspective, this -- these changes do not have				false

		2746						LN		104		23		false		              23   any material effect on Ms. Seamons' claims that are				false

		2747						LN		104		24		false		              24   currently at issue.				false

		2748						LN		104		25		false		              25             Notice was given of the board meeting by				false

		2749						PG		105		0		false		page 105				false

		2750						LN		105		1		false		               1   public notice website.  See footnotes.  You can see that				false

		2751						LN		105		2		false		               2   in our footnotes from our previous response, and posted				false

		2752						LN		105		3		false		               3   at the meeting location in compliance with the Utah Open				false

		2753						LN		105		4		false		               4   and Public Meetings Act, thus giving notice of the				false

		2754						LN		105		5		false		               5   pending changes to any interested parties.				false

		2755						LN		105		6		false		               6             The fact that TUID mistakenly failed to file				false

		2756						LN		105		7		false		               7   its revised tariff sheets did not disadvantage				false

		2757						LN		105		8		false		               8   Mrs. Seamons, as all of the changes to be made to the				false

		2758						LN		105		9		false		               9   tariff were discussed in the stipulated settlement and				false

		2759						LN		105		10		false		              10   were also shown on the tariff sheets the division filed				false

		2760						LN		105		11		false		              11   along with the stipulated settlement on August 21st,				false

		2761						LN		105		12		false		              12   2015.				false

		2762						LN		105		13		false		              13             TUID did file, including the changes as agreed				false

		2763						LN		105		14		false		              14   to in the stipulated settlement, on March 1st, 2016, in				false

		2764						LN		105		15		false		              15   Docket 16-2508-T01.  The division reviewed those changes				false

		2765						LN		105		16		false		              16   and recommended that the commission acknowledge the				false

		2766						LN		105		17		false		              17   changes on March 30th, 2016.  On April 20th, 2016, the				false

		2767						LN		105		18		false		              18   commission issued a letter acknowledging the changes on				false

		2768						LN		105		19		false		              19   March 31st, 2016.				false

		2769						LN		105		20		false		              20             No. 3, did TUID hold public meetings for				false

		2770						LN		105		21		false		              21   customers as required under Utah Code 17B-2A-406,				false

		2771						LN		105		22		false		              22   (6)(A)(iii), both as to Docket 13-2508-T01 and as to				false

		2772						LN		105		23		false		              23   Docket No. 15-2508-T01?  If so, was Mrs. Seamons				false

		2773						LN		105		24		false		              24   properly notified of the public meetings pursuant to				false

		2774						LN		105		25		false		              25   Utah code 17B-2A-406, (6)(A)(iii).				false

		2775						PG		106		0		false		page 106				false

		2776						LN		106		1		false		               1             Some background is useful in this case to				false

		2777						LN		106		2		false		               2   understand the tariff changes filed with the commission				false

		2778						LN		106		3		false		               3   in these two dockets.  The tariff changes filed with the				false

		2779						LN		106		4		false		               4   commission, Docket 13-2508-T01, set up a variety of				false

		2780						LN		106		5		false		               5   different electric service schedules designed to meet				false

		2781						LN		106		6		false		               6   customers needs and provide predictable revenue to TUID				false

		2782						LN		106		7		false		               7   and set an enrollment period for these different service				false

		2783						LN		106		8		false		               8   schedules.				false

		2784						LN		106		9		false		               9             These changes are described in the division's				false

		2785						LN		106		10		false		              10   action response dated May 30th, 2013, which is marked as				false

		2786						LN		106		11		false		              11   Exhibit TUID-026.  Docket 15-2508-T01 changed certain				false

		2787						LN		106		12		false		              12   definitions, required landlords to be responsible for				false

		2788						LN		106		13		false		              13   utilities instead of tenants, clarified the ability of				false

		2789						LN		106		14		false		              14   property owners to fully abandon the taps on their				false

		2790						LN		106		15		false		              15   properties, and made other changes.				false

		2791						LN		106		16		false		              16             The division's action request response				false

		2792						LN		106		17		false		              17   describing these changes is marked as Exhibit TUID-027.				false

		2793						LN		106		18		false		              18   In that docket TUID and the division disagreed on				false

		2794						LN		106		19		false		              19   several issues.  However, those issues were eventually				false

		2795						LN		106		20		false		              20   resolved, and TUID and the division agreed to a				false

		2796						LN		106		21		false		              21   settlement that was approved by the commission.				false

		2797						LN		106		22		false		              22             As part of that stipulation, TUID agreed to				false

		2798						LN		106		23		false		              23   make certain changes to its tariff, including reducing				false

		2799						LN		106		24		false		              24   the charges for tampering or unauthorized connections,				false

		2800						LN		106		25		false		              25   clarifying that a landlord can have separate accounts				false

		2801						PG		107		0		false		page 107				false

		2802						LN		107		1		false		               1   for multiple rental properties, and made it clear that				false

		2803						LN		107		2		false		               2   tenants may request the status of the landlord's				false

		2804						LN		107		3		false		               3   utilities account for that particular property.  As				false

		2805						LN		107		4		false		               4   noted previously, the stipulation is marked as Exhibit				false

		2806						LN		107		5		false		               5   TUID-001.				false

		2807						LN		107		6		false		               6             As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a regular				false

		2808						LN		107		7		false		               7   meeting of the board -- of the TUID board on April 11,				false

		2809						LN		107		8		false		               8   2013, the board discussed proposed changes to TUID's				false

		2810						LN		107		9		false		               9   electric rates and rules and scheduled a public hearing				false

		2811						LN		107		10		false		              10   on the changes for April 29th, 2013.				false

		2812						LN		107		11		false		              11             Customers were notified at that meeting by a				false

		2813						LN		107		12		false		              12   U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website,				false

		2814						LN		107		13		false		              13   publication of notice in the local newspaper on April				false

		2815						LN		107		14		false		              14   18th and 25th, and posting notice of the hearing on				false

		2816						LN		107		15		false		              15   TUID's community bulletin board located by the community				false

		2817						LN		107		16		false		              16   mailboxes on Ticaboo Drive.  I, personally mailed the				false

		2818						LN		107		17		false		              17   notices and posted the notice on the TUID community				false

		2819						LN		107		18		false		              18   bulletin board.				false

		2820						LN		107		19		false		              19             The agenda and minutes of the April 11th				false

		2821						LN		107		20		false		              20   meeting are marked as Exhibit TUID-008.  The notice of				false

		2822						LN		107		21		false		              21   the April 29th meeting, as posted on the public notice				false

		2823						LN		107		22		false		              22   website is marked as Exhibit TUID-009.  The published				false

		2824						LN		107		23		false		              23   notice of the April 29th meeting is marked as Exhibit				false

		2825						LN		107		24		false		              24   TUID-010.				false

		2826						LN		107		25		false		              25             That public hearing was indeed held on April				false

		2827						PG		108		0		false		page 108				false

		2828						LN		108		1		false		               1   29, 2013.  On that same day the proposed rate changes				false

		2829						LN		108		2		false		               2   were approved by Resolution 2013-0008.  The other tariff				false

		2830						LN		108		3		false		               3   changes were approved by Resolution 2013-0009.  TUID				false

		2831						LN		108		4		false		               4   then submitted the tariff changes in Docket 13-2508-T01,				false

		2832						LN		108		5		false		               5   and the commission issued its letter acknowledging the				false

		2833						LN		108		6		false		               6   tariff on June 14th, 2013.  Mrs. Seamons did not provide				false

		2834						LN		108		7		false		               7   comments or otherwise involve herself in the TUID board				false

		2835						LN		108		8		false		               8   meetings or in the related commission docket.				false

		2836						LN		108		9		false		               9             The minutes of the April 29th meeting are				false

		2837						LN		108		10		false		              10   marked as Exhibit TUID-011.  Resolution 2013-008 is				false

		2838						LN		108		11		false		              11   marked as Exhibit TUID-012.  Resolution 2013-009 -- I'm				false

		2839						LN		108		12		false		              12   sorry, 0009, is marked as Exhibit TUID-013.  The				false

		2840						LN		108		13		false		              13   commission's tariff acknowledgement letter in Docket				false

		2841						LN		108		14		false		              14   13-2508-T01 is marked as Exhibit TUID-014.				false

		2842						LN		108		15		false		              15             As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a public and				false

		2843						LN		108		16		false		              16   properly noticed board meeting held on March 21st, 2014,				false

		2844						LN		108		17		false		              17   the TUI -- TUID board made changes to rules regarding				false

		2845						LN		108		18		false		              18   the abandonment of taps and imposing an increased				false

		2846						LN		108		19		false		              19   penalty charge for unauthorized connection or tampering.				false

		2847						LN		108		20		false		              20             Customers were notified of this meeting by				false

		2848						LN		108		21		false		              21   U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website, posting				false

		2849						LN		108		22		false		              22   of notice on the TUID community bulletin board, and I,				false

		2850						LN		108		23		false		              23   personally mailed the notices and made the posting on				false

		2851						LN		108		24		false		              24   the public notice website and on the community bulletin				false

		2852						LN		108		25		false		              25   board.				false

		2853						PG		109		0		false		page 109				false

		2854						LN		109		1		false		               1             Mrs. Seamons was in attendance at this				false

		2855						LN		109		2		false		               2   meeting, and her attendance is noted in the meeting				false

		2856						LN		109		3		false		               3   minutes.  Mrs. Seamons was provided with actual notice				false

		2857						LN		109		4		false		               4   of this meeting, as is shown by her attendance.  Note				false

		2858						LN		109		5		false		               5   that the tampering fees that were adopted at this				false

		2859						LN		109		6		false		               6   meeting were later decreased as part of the settlement				false

		2860						LN		109		7		false		               7   stipulation that I mentioned earlier.				false

		2861						LN		109		8		false		               8             The minutes of the March 21st meeting are				false

		2862						LN		109		9		false		               9   marked as Exhibit TUID-015.  The agenda for the March				false

		2863						LN		109		10		false		              10   21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-016.  The notice				false

		2864						LN		109		11		false		              11   of the March 21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-017.				false

		2865						LN		109		12		false		              12             No. 4, when did TUID first begin to charge				false

		2866						LN		109		13		false		              13   Mrs. Seamons' standby fees?  TUID first began charging				false

		2867						LN		109		14		false		              14   standby fees to Mrs. Seamons and other property owners				false

		2868						LN		109		15		false		              15   on August 1st -- excuse me, correct that.  October 1st,				false

		2869						LN		109		16		false		              16   2013.  As I noted previously, the standby fees were				false

		2870						LN		109		17		false		              17   implemented with the tariff changes filed with the				false

		2871						LN		109		18		false		              18   commission in Docket 13-2508-T02.				false

		2872						LN		109		19		false		              19             The division reviewed the proposed changes and				false

		2873						LN		109		20		false		              20   recommended that the commission acknowledge the tariff				false

		2874						LN		109		21		false		              21   changes in the letter dated November 19th, 2013.  The				false

		2875						LN		109		22		false		              22   commission acknowledged the changes on December 6th,				false

		2876						LN		109		23		false		              23   2013.  The changes were effective on September 1st,				false

		2877						LN		109		24		false		              24   2013, and the charges for standby fees began October 1st				false

		2878						LN		109		25		false		              25   of 2013.				false

		2879						PG		110		0		false		page 110				false

		2880						LN		110		1		false		               1             The division's recommendation letter in Docket				false

		2881						LN		110		2		false		               2   13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-018.  The				false

		2882						LN		110		3		false		               3   commission's acknowledgement letter in Docket				false

		2883						LN		110		4		false		               4   13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-019.				false

		2884						LN		110		5		false		               5             No. 5, does TUID allow contracts with tenants?				false

		2885						LN		110		6		false		               6   If so, are Mrs. Seamons' tenants entitled to similar				false

		2886						LN		110		7		false		               7   consideration?  Excuse me.				false

		2887						LN		110		8		false		               8             TUID is required to follow its tariff.  In				false

		2888						LN		110		9		false		               9   accordance with the tariff, TUID does not -- excuse me,				false

		2889						LN		110		10		false		              10   TUID generally does not allow for contracts directly				false

		2890						LN		110		11		false		              11   with tenants.  The tariff allows for exceptions in the				false

		2891						LN		110		12		false		              12   case of long-term existing tenants that are TUID				false

		2892						LN		110		13		false		              13   customers in good standing.  Even if such an exception				false

		2893						LN		110		14		false		              14   is granted, if service is disconnected and then later				false

		2894						LN		110		15		false		              15   reconnected, the landlord will be responsible for				false

		2895						LN		110		16		false		              16   utility services in accordance with the general rule.				false

		2896						LN		110		17		false		              17             As far as TUID is aware, none of the tenants				false

		2897						LN		110		18		false		              18   in Mrs. Seamons' properties would qualify for this				false

		2898						LN		110		19		false		              19   exception.  If Mrs. Seamons has long-term tenants that				false

		2899						LN		110		20		false		              20   may fit this exception, TUID will of course discuss this				false

		2900						LN		110		21		false		              21   issue with her.				false

		2901						LN		110		22		false		              22             Simply stated, the purpose of this rule is to				false

		2902						LN		110		23		false		              23   make sure that TUID is paid for the services it				false

		2903						LN		110		24		false		              24   provides.  Ticaboo generally has a large number of				false

		2904						LN		110		25		false		              25   seasonal, temporary residents, and TUID has found that				false

		2905						PG		111		0		false		page 111				false

		2906						LN		111		1		false		               1   collecting past-due fees from former tenants of rental				false

		2907						LN		111		2		false		               2   properties is often difficult.				false

		2908						LN		111		3		false		               3             Once a tenant moves away from Ticaboo, the				false

		2909						LN		111		4		false		               4   only way for TUID to collect those fees is to sue the				false

		2910						LN		111		5		false		               5   former tenant, obtain a judgment against that tenant,				false

		2911						LN		111		6		false		               6   and collect on that judgment.  Suing a former tenant for				false

		2912						LN		111		7		false		               7   a few hundred or even a few thousand dollars in unpaid				false

		2913						LN		111		8		false		               8   fees is generally not cost effective.  And even once a				false

		2914						LN		111		9		false		               9   judgment is obtained, collecting on a judgment is often				false

		2915						LN		111		10		false		              10   impossible.				false

		2916						LN		111		11		false		              11             In the end, when a tenant moves away without				false

		2917						LN		111		12		false		              12   paying their utility bills, TUID is simply unable to				false

		2918						LN		111		13		false		              13   collect.  Since TUID is a governmental -- local				false

		2919						LN		111		14		false		              14   governmental entity, TUID relies completely on revenues				false

		2920						LN		111		15		false		              15   from utility services to pay its expenses.  When a				false

		2921						LN		111		16		false		              16   customer does not pay and TUID is unable to collect, the				false

		2922						LN		111		17		false		              17   funds to cover the services that customer received must				false

		2923						LN		111		18		false		              18   necessarily come from the remaining TUID customers.				false

		2924						LN		111		19		false		              19             TUID believes that is not fair for those other				false

		2925						LN		111		20		false		              20   customers to pay more than their fair share.  For many				false

		2926						LN		111		21		false		              21   larger utilities a few nonpaying customers may not be a				false

		2927						LN		111		22		false		              22   serious issue.  However, for TUID, the matter of a few				false

		2928						LN		111		23		false		              23   thousand dollars in unpaid fees is a serious issue, and				false

		2929						LN		111		24		false		              24   those costs eventually must be paid by the remaining				false

		2930						LN		111		25		false		              25   customers.				false

		2931						PG		112		0		false		page 112				false

		2932						LN		112		1		false		               1             By making landlords responsible for utility				false

		2933						LN		112		2		false		               2   services, TUID increases the likelihood that it will				false

		2934						LN		112		3		false		               3   actually receive payment for those services it provides.				false

		2935						LN		112		4		false		               4   A tenant in a given property must pay for utility				false

		2936						LN		112		5		false		               5   services.  Whether that tenant pays for those services				false

		2937						LN		112		6		false		               6   as part of the rent to the landlord or directly to TUID				false

		2938						LN		112		7		false		               7   as a customer is really irrelevant as the amounts due				false

		2939						LN		112		8		false		               8   for the services are the same.				false

		2940						LN		112		9		false		               9             Requiring that landlords are responsible for				false

		2941						LN		112		10		false		              10   the utilities makes sense as the landlord is the person				false

		2942						LN		112		11		false		              11   screening and selecting tenants that are likely to pay				false

		2943						LN		112		12		false		              12   their bills.  There is no premium to be charged or added				false

		2944						LN		112		13		false		              13   expense in requiring that landlords be responsible for				false

		2945						LN		112		14		false		              14   utilities, and the tenants are no worse off.  The policy				false

		2946						LN		112		15		false		              15   simply increases the ability of TUID to collect the				false

		2947						LN		112		16		false		              16   amounts it is owed.				false

		2948						LN		112		17		false		              17             No. 6, has TUID mailed a customer information				false

		2949						LN		112		18		false		              18   pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons as required under the tariff				false

		2950						LN		112		19		false		              19   and by commission rule?				false

		2951						LN		112		20		false		              20             TUID has mailed the customer information				false

		2952						LN		112		21		false		              21   pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons.  I mailed the pamphlets every				false

		2953						LN		112		22		false		              22   year myself to the addresses on file with TUID in				false

		2954						LN		112		23		false		              23   September or October with the monthly bills.  TUID does				false

		2955						LN		112		24		false		              24   not obtain proof of delivery of these mailings, as				false

		2956						LN		112		25		false		              25   mailing those notices via certified mail or some similar				false

		2957						PG		113		0		false		page 113				false

		2958						LN		113		1		false		               1   method would be an unnecessary expense and an unneeded				false

		2959						LN		113		2		false		               2   strain on an already very tight budget.				false

		2960						LN		113		3		false		               3             The customer information pamphlet is available				false

		2961						LN		113		4		false		               4   on the TUID website as well, along with a variety of				false

		2962						LN		113		5		false		               5   other documents and information.  The current version of				false

		2963						LN		113		6		false		               6   the -- the current version of the pamphlet is marked as				false

		2964						LN		113		7		false		               7   Exhibit TUID-028.				false

		2965						LN		113		8		false		               8             No. 7, has TUID removed taps from				false

		2966						LN		113		9		false		               9   Mrs. Seamons' properties or property?  If so, what were				false

		2967						LN		113		10		false		              10   the circumstances under which the taps were removed?				false

		2968						LN		113		11		false		              11             TUID has not physically removed any of the				false

		2969						LN		113		12		false		              12   taps from any of Mrs. Seamons' multiple properties.				false

		2970						LN		113		13		false		              13   Note that, quote, taps are the physical connections to a				false

		2971						LN		113		14		false		              14   particular property for a particular service, such as				false

		2972						LN		113		15		false		              15   service laterals for water and sewer service or a power				false

		2973						LN		113		16		false		              16   line terminating on the property.				false

		2974						LN		113		17		false		              17             I also wish to offer my testimony as to				false

		2975						LN		113		18		false		              18   several other minor matters not covered by the				false

		2976						LN		113		19		false		              19   commission's specific list of questions.  TUID has				false

		2977						LN		113		20		false		              20   mailed the annual customer information pamphlet --				false

		2978						LN		113		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Objection, your Honor.  He has				false

		2979						LN		113		22		false		              22   already admitted to the fact that he is going to be --				false

		2980						LN		113		23		false		              23   I'm sorry.  Objection.  He's stating that he's going to				false

		2981						LN		113		24		false		              24   be making statements outside of the scope of what the				false

		2982						LN		113		25		false		              25   commission has requested to be presented today.				false

		2983						PG		114		0		false		page 114				false

		2984						LN		114		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Response?				false

		2985						LN		114		2		false		               2             MR. LONG:  I believe the hearing to this point				false

		2986						LN		114		3		false		               3   has been in large part outside of the bounds of those				false

		2987						LN		114		4		false		               4   seven questions, particularly anything regarding Docket				false

		2988						LN		114		5		false		               5   13-2508-T02 is technically outside the bounds of those				false

		2989						LN		114		6		false		               6   questions as written.  I understand that that may have				false

		2990						LN		114		7		false		               7   been a typo or miscommunication somewhere along the				false

		2991						LN		114		8		false		               8   line, but an objection now seems unfounded.				false

		2992						LN		114		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, if -- you know, counsel is				false

		2993						LN		114		10		false		              10   raising that one issue.  I mean, but he's stating that				false

		2994						LN		114		11		false		              11   he's going to go outside the scope on a number of				false

		2995						LN		114		12		false		              12   issues.				false

		2996						LN		114		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  What issues do you want to				false

		2997						LN		114		14		false		              14   address, Mr. Shortreed?				false

		2998						LN		114		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  Ma'am, I'm addressing the				false

		2999						LN		114		16		false		              16   customer information pamphlet and addressing standby				false

		3000						LN		114		17		false		              17   fees as they relate to Docket 13-2508-T02.				false

		3001						LN		114		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  I do need information about				false

		3002						LN		114		19		false		              19   Docket 13-T02.  If we can deal with it here, that would				false

		3003						LN		114		20		false		              20   be great.  I would hate to have to continue this hearing				false

		3004						LN		114		21		false		              21   and call you all back from the south of the state.  It				false

		3005						LN		114		22		false		              22   is unfortunate that we didn't get the correct docket				false

		3006						LN		114		23		false		              23   number.  That well could be my mistake, so I'd like to				false

		3007						LN		114		24		false		              24   do what we can on that docket.				false

		3008						LN		114		25		false		              25             MR. LONG:  And if I may, the topics that				false

		3009						PG		115		0		false		page 115				false

		3010						LN		115		1		false		               1   Mr. Shortreed is going to address in the last little bit				false

		3011						LN		115		2		false		               2   of his statement are topics that have been raised by				false

		3012						LN		115		3		false		               3   Ms. Seamons in various filings, you know, perhaps				false

		3013						LN		115		4		false		               4   outside of those seven questions.				false

		3014						LN		115		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Let's go ahead and hear				false

		3015						LN		115		6		false		               6   what you have to say, Mr. Shortreed.				false

		3016						LN		115		7		false		               7             THE WITNESS:  I also wish to offer my				false

		3017						LN		115		8		false		               8   testimony as to several other minor matters not covered				false

		3018						LN		115		9		false		               9   by the commission's specific list of questions.  TUID				false

		3019						LN		115		10		false		              10   has mailed the annual customer information pamphlets				false

		3020						LN		115		11		false		              11   every year as required by its tariff and the				false

		3021						LN		115		12		false		              12   commission's rules.				false

		3022						LN		115		13		false		              13             Mrs. Seamons alleges that she has not received				false

		3023						LN		115		14		false		              14   this pamphlet.  While TUID does not have any information				false

		3024						LN		115		15		false		              15   about whether Mrs. Seamons actually received the				false

		3025						LN		115		16		false		              16   pamphlet, I did send out these pamphlets every year as				false

		3026						LN		115		17		false		              17   required by the tariff.				false

		3027						LN		115		18		false		              18             Mrs. Seamons also alleges that the tariff is				false

		3028						LN		115		19		false		              19   not publicly available in the TUID office and that the				false

		3029						LN		115		20		false		              20   required notice is not posted in the office.  Based on				false

		3030						LN		115		21		false		              21   my own personal knowledge as district manager and the				false

		3031						LN		115		22		false		              22   sole full-time employee of TUID, the tariff is indeed				false

		3032						LN		115		23		false		              23   available for public inspection, and the notice is				false

		3033						LN		115		24		false		              24   posted in the office stating that the rate schedules are				false

		3034						LN		115		25		false		              25   available for inspection.				false

		3035						PG		116		0		false		page 116				false

		3036						LN		116		1		false		               1             TUID also posts a variety of information on				false

		3037						LN		116		2		false		               2   its basic website, and all tariff filings are available				false

		3038						LN		116		3		false		               3   on the commission's website.				false

		3039						LN		116		4		false		               4             MR. LONG:  If I may interrupt Mr. Shortreed, I				false

		3040						LN		116		5		false		               5   think now would be a time to discuss briefly				false

		3041						LN		116		6		false		               6   13-2508-T02, even though we had assumed it was outside				false

		3042						LN		116		7		false		               7   the bounds of this hearing.  If that's acceptable to the				false

		3043						LN		116		8		false		               8   commission, Mr. Shortreed has prepared a very short				false

		3044						LN		116		9		false		               9   statement on that.				false

		3045						LN		116		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Please go ahead.				false

		3046						LN		116		11		false		              11             THE WITNESS:  Standby fees were proposed in a				false

		3047						LN		116		12		false		              12   regular TUID board meeting on August 8th, 2013.  TUID				false

		3048						LN		116		13		false		              13   mailed notice to all customers of the proposed rate				false

		3049						LN		116		14		false		              14   changes and hearing, published notice in the newspaper				false

		3050						LN		116		15		false		              15   of the proposed rate increase and hearing on August				false

		3051						LN		116		16		false		              16   15th, 2013, and posted a similar notice on the TUID				false

		3052						LN		116		17		false		              17   community bulletin board.				false

		3053						LN		116		18		false		              18             I, personally mailed those notices.  The				false

		3054						LN		116		19		false		              19   public hearing and public meeting to adopt the proposed				false

		3055						LN		116		20		false		              20   standby fees was held on August 29, 2013, as scheduled.				false

		3056						LN		116		21		false		              21   TUID adopted the standby fees with Resolution 2013-0017				false

		3057						LN		116		22		false		              22   on August 29th, 2013, and the rate went into effect				false

		3058						LN		116		23		false		              23   September 1st, 2013.				false

		3059						LN		116		24		false		              24             TUID filed its revised tariff sheet with the				false

		3060						LN		116		25		false		              25   commission on October 16th, 2013.  The division				false

		3061						PG		117		0		false		page 117				false

		3062						LN		117		1		false		               1   recommended that the commission acknowledge the revised				false

		3063						LN		117		2		false		               2   tariff sheets on November 19th, 2013.  The commission				false

		3064						LN		117		3		false		               3   acknowledged the revised tariff sheets on December 6th,				false

		3065						LN		117		4		false		               4   2013.				false

		3066						LN		117		5		false		               5             In addition to the notices required prior to				false

		3067						LN		117		6		false		               6   adopting the standby fees, TUID also mailed information				false

		3068						LN		117		7		false		               7   brochures to all customers explaining the necessity of				false

		3069						LN		117		8		false		               8   the standby fees and answering common questions about				false

		3070						LN		117		9		false		               9   the standby fees.				false

		3071						LN		117		10		false		              10             August 8th, 2013, meeting minutes are Exhibit				false

		3072						LN		117		11		false		              11   TUID-020.  The published notice of the proposed rate				false

		3073						LN		117		12		false		              12   change and public hearing is marked as Exhibit TUID-021.				false

		3074						LN		117		13		false		              13   August 29, 2013, meeting minutes are marked as Exhibit				false

		3075						LN		117		14		false		              14   TUID-022.  Resolution 2013-0017 is marked as Exhibit				false

		3076						LN		117		15		false		              15   TUID-023.  The division recommendation is marked as				false

		3077						LN		117		16		false		              16   Exhibit TUID-024.  And the commission's acknowledgement				false

		3078						LN		117		17		false		              17   letter is marked as Exhibit TUID-025.				false

		3079						LN		117		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just ask you				false

		3080						LN		117		19		false		              19   some questions.  On Docket 13-T02, what was the date				false

		3081						LN		117		20		false		              20   that you mailed out the customer notices?				false

		3082						LN		117		21		false		              21             THE WITNESS:  It was the same day that I				false

		3083						LN		117		22		false		              22   published the notices.				false

		3084						LN		117		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  So what date was that?				false

		3085						LN		117		24		false		              24             THE WITNESS:  Prior to August -- prior or on				false

		3086						LN		117		25		false		              25   to August 15th, immediately following the board meeting.				false

		3087						PG		118		0		false		page 118				false

		3088						LN		118		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So on August 15th you				false

		3089						LN		118		2		false		               2   mailed out a notice as to an August 29th, 2013, meeting?				false

		3090						LN		118		3		false		               3             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3091						LN		118		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you have a copy of that				false

		3092						LN		118		5		false		               5   notice for me?				false

		3093						LN		118		6		false		               6             THE WITNESS:  Not here, no, ma'am, and I don't				false

		3094						LN		118		7		false		               7   know if I have one.  I can't readily state that right				false

		3095						LN		118		8		false		               8   now.				false

		3096						LN		118		9		false		               9             MR. LONG:  We do have a copy of the published				false

		3097						LN		118		10		false		              10   notice that made it in the newspaper marked as one of				false

		3098						LN		118		11		false		              11   our exhibits.  Perhaps Mr. Shortreed can testify the				false

		3099						LN		118		12		false		              12   notice mailed out was substantially the same as that				false

		3100						LN		118		13		false		              13   notice.				false

		3101						LN		118		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, here's the difficulty.				false

		3102						LN		118		15		false		              15   Under the statute, the statute does not acknowledge a				false

		3103						LN		118		16		false		              16   website notice or a newspaper notice.  The only thing				false

		3104						LN		118		17		false		              17   that qualifies you for exemption from commission				false

		3105						LN		118		18		false		              18   oversight of your tariff is if you mail a notice at				false

		3106						LN		118		19		false		              19   least 10 days ahead of the date on which you hold the				false

		3107						LN		118		20		false		              20   public meeting.				false

		3108						LN		118		21		false		              21             So that's what I am trying to figure out, is				false

		3109						LN		118		22		false		              22   where is that public notice and when was it mailed.  So				false

		3110						LN		118		23		false		              23   I believe that is your burden to demonstrate, and if all				false

		3111						LN		118		24		false		              24   we have got is a customer testimony saying, "Never got				false

		3112						LN		118		25		false		              25   one," and you saying, "I am absolutely sure I mailed				false

		3113						PG		119		0		false		page 119				false

		3114						LN		119		1		false		               1   that," then this gets decided on the burden of proof.				false

		3115						LN		119		2		false		               2   And it's your burden.				false

		3116						LN		119		3		false		               3             MR. LONG:  Understood and, you know, had we				false

		3117						LN		119		4		false		               4   known this docket was coming three years later, we				false

		3118						LN		119		5		false		               5   perhaps would have sent those in some sort of trackable				false

		3119						LN		119		6		false		               6   format.  Barring that, Mr. Shortreed can testify that he				false

		3120						LN		119		7		false		               7   mailed the notices, to the contents of the notices and				false

		3121						LN		119		8		false		               8   can also testify as to the standard practice and				false

		3122						LN		119		9		false		               9   procedures of the district.				false

		3123						LN		119		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's look then at				false

		3124						LN		119		11		false		              11   the August 29th, 2013, public meeting, in which the				false

		3125						LN		119		12		false		              12   changes that included the introduction of standby fees				false

		3126						LN		119		13		false		              13   were to be proposed and discussed.  I -- we have in the				false

		3127						LN		119		14		false		              14   record a printout of your website, your public notices				false

		3128						LN		119		15		false		              15   website.  Where on that website is this August 29th,				false

		3129						LN		119		16		false		              16   2013, meeting noticed?				false

		3130						LN		119		17		false		              17             Here is what I see.  I see a post on February				false

		3131						LN		119		18		false		              18   6, 2016, of a meeting that occurred prior to that, on				false

		3132						LN		119		19		false		              19   January 28th, 2016.  I see a post on February 6th, 2016.				false

		3133						LN		119		20		false		              20   Then a post on May 20th, 2015, again as to a meeting				false

		3134						LN		119		21		false		              21   that took place previously on April 23rd, 2015.  And				false

		3135						LN		119		22		false		              22   notice of a public meeting for June 11th, 2015.				false

		3136						LN		119		23		false		              23             There is a post on May 20th, 2015, a post on				false

		3137						LN		119		24		false		              24   November 11th, 2013, and then a post on April 20th,				false

		3138						LN		119		25		false		              25   2013.  As I have gone through here, I don't see anything				false

		3139						PG		120		0		false		page 120				false

		3140						LN		120		1		false		               1   on your website that talks about an August 29th, 2013,				false

		3141						LN		120		2		false		               2   meeting.  Am I missing that?				false

		3142						LN		120		3		false		               3             MR. LONG:  Without looking at the public				false

		3143						LN		120		4		false		               4   notice website, I'm not sure we can speak to that.				false

		3144						LN		120		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Here is the printout.  Would				false

		3145						LN		120		6		false		               6   you like a minute to look it over?				false

		3146						LN		120		7		false		               7             MR. LONG:  If that would be helpful to the				false

		3147						LN		120		8		false		               8   commission, certainly.				false

		3148						LN		120		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  That would be great.  Let's go				false

		3149						LN		120		10		false		              10   off the record for about 10 minutes.				false

		3150						LN		120		11		false		              11             (Recess from 11:35 a.m. to 11:46 a.m.)				false

		3151						LN		120		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.  Help me				false

		3152						LN		120		13		false		              13   out with the August 29th, 2013 meeting, if you can, and				false

		3153						LN		120		14		false		              14   if you can't today, then we'll figure out how to deal				false

		3154						LN		120		15		false		              15   with that.				false

		3155						LN		120		16		false		              16             MR. LONG:  And I think it may be the latter.				false

		3156						LN		120		17		false		              17   I am looking at this right here, and this is a printout				false

		3157						LN		120		18		false		              18   from Ticaboo's own website?				false

		3158						LN		120		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.				false

		3159						LN		120		20		false		              20             MR. LONG:  Not the public notice website.				false

		3160						LN		120		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.				false

		3161						LN		120		22		false		              22             MR. LONG:  And off the top of my head the				false

		3162						LN		120		23		false		              23   district is not required to provide electronic notice on				false

		3163						LN		120		24		false		              24   its own website of public meetings.				false

		3164						LN		120		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.				false

		3165						PG		121		0		false		page 121				false

		3166						LN		121		1		false		               1             MR. LONG:  And again, just off the top of my				false

		3167						LN		121		2		false		               2   head, and again, this may be better addressed in a				false

		3168						LN		121		3		false		               3   written filing, unless we are all very up to speed on				false

		3169						LN		121		4		false		               4   our Open and Public Meeting Act's requirements.				false

		3170						LN		121		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am pretty up to speed.  But				false

		3171						LN		121		6		false		               6   what -- I am not concerned about whether you complied				false

		3172						LN		121		7		false		               7   with the Open and Public Meetings Act.				false

		3173						LN		121		8		false		               8             MR. LONG:  Okay.				false

		3174						LN		121		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am concerned with whether				false

		3175						LN		121		10		false		              10   you complied with 17B, which requires mailed notice of				false

		3176						LN		121		11		false		              11   the August 29th, 2013, meeting to customers at least 10				false

		3177						LN		121		12		false		              12   days ahead of that date.  And that's, that's really the				false

		3178						LN		121		13		false		              13   critical issue in this case, is whether that notice was				false

		3179						LN		121		14		false		              14   mailed out.				false

		3180						LN		121		15		false		              15             So, I mean, if I were running a small utility				false

		3181						LN		121		16		false		              16   like this, and I were trying to be sure that I stayed				false

		3182						LN		121		17		false		              17   within my exemption, I would have a copy of that notice.				false

		3183						LN		121		18		false		              18   I would -- you have got 80-some customers.  I would				false

		3184						LN		121		19		false		              19   maybe even photocopy a few of the envelopes to keep in				false

		3185						LN		121		20		false		              20   my files as evidence that they were in fact mailed.				false

		3186						LN		121		21		false		              21             That's up to you, of course, how you handle				false

		3187						LN		121		22		false		              22   that.  But I, I need to see whatever you have got to				false

		3188						LN		121		23		false		              23   demonstrate that you mailed out a notice at least on --				false

		3189						LN		121		24		false		              24   what's 10 days before the 29th?  August 19th, 2013.  And				false

		3190						LN		121		25		false		              25   perhaps we'd have to deal with that after the hearing.				false

		3191						PG		122		0		false		page 122				false

		3192						LN		122		1		false		               1             MR. LONG:  And that may be true.				false

		3193						LN		122		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.				false

		3194						LN		122		3		false		               3             MR. LONG:  We don't have any evidence of a --				false

		3195						LN		122		4		false		               4   we don't have a photocopy of that mailing or something				false

		3196						LN		122		5		false		               5   to that extent.				false

		3197						LN		122		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I have some				false

		3198						LN		122		7		false		               7   additional questions.  Of your 80-some-odd customers,				false

		3199						LN		122		8		false		               8   how many of those lots -- or 80-some-odd lots that you				false

		3200						LN		122		9		false		               9   are either serving or standing ready to serve, how many				false

		3201						LN		122		10		false		              10   of those are standby properties for electricity?  Do you				false

		3202						LN		122		11		false		              11   know?  Even an estimate would be helpful.				false

		3203						LN		122		12		false		              12             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  I'd like to				false

		3204						LN		122		13		false		              13   correct, though, that it's approximately 124 customers				false

		3205						LN		122		14		false		              14   that are billed for active or standby services.				false

		3206						LN		122		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3207						LN		122		16		false		              16             THE WITNESS:  As a rough estimate of that, I				false

		3208						LN		122		17		false		              17   would say that on a guess, probably 60 of those.				false

		3209						LN		122		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  About half -- almost half, not				false

		3210						LN		122		19		false		              19   quite half.				false

		3211						LN		122		20		false		              20             THE WITNESS:  That would be my best guess,				false

		3212						LN		122		21		false		              21   yes, ma'am.				false

		3213						LN		122		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are standbys, okay.  And of				false

		3214						LN		122		23		false		              23   those, do you -- again, do you know -- and you might				false

		3215						LN		122		24		false		              24   not.  Of those 60, how many have structures on the				false

		3216						LN		122		25		false		              25   premises where, you know, upon notice to you, you can do				false

		3217						PG		123		0		false		page 123				false

		3218						LN		123		1		false		               1   something in your computer, and they can flick the				false

		3219						LN		123		2		false		               2   switch and the lights come on?  Versus how many are				false

		3220						LN		123		3		false		               3   vacant lots with nothing built?				false

		3221						LN		123		4		false		               4             THE WITNESS:  Well, I can't give you a				false

		3222						LN		123		5		false		               5   specific number, ma'am.  I can say a majority are vacant				false

		3223						LN		123		6		false		               6   lots with nothing built on them.				false

		3224						LN		123		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Majority are vacant, okay.  So				false

		3225						LN		123		8		false		               8   of those that are vacant, how many are liened for unpaid				false

		3226						LN		123		9		false		               9   standby fees?				false

		3227						LN		123		10		false		              10             THE WITNESS:  I believe at my last				false

		3228						LN		123		11		false		              11   certification with the Garfield County treasurer, we				false

		3229						LN		123		12		false		              12   were at 13.				false

		3230						LN		123		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thirteen liens, 13 liened				false

		3231						LN		123		14		false		              14   properties.  Have you foreclosed?				false

		3232						LN		123		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.				false

		3233						LN		123		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I need to understand				false

		3234						LN		123		17		false		              17   what you consider to be -- mean that you are ready,				false

		3235						LN		123		18		false		              18   willing and able to deliver service to a vacant lot.				false

		3236						LN		123		19		false		              19             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3237						LN		123		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Does that mean simply that you				false

		3238						LN		123		21		false		              21   have your main supply line running through your utility				false

		3239						LN		123		22		false		              22   easement on the property?  Or does that mean that you				false

		3240						LN		123		23		false		              23   have a direct drop line from your supply line to a point				false

		3241						LN		123		24		false		              24   on the property where a structure might be built?				false

		3242						LN		123		25		false		              25             THE WITNESS:  To a point on the property where				false

		3243						PG		124		0		false		page 124				false

		3244						LN		124		1		false		               1   the structure might be built for all utility services.				false

		3245						LN		124		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  So there is a line outside of				false

		3246						LN		124		3		false		               3   the utility easement onto a potential building site on				false

		3247						LN		124		4		false		               4   the property?				false

		3248						LN		124		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		3249						LN		124		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  In every case?				false

		3250						LN		124		7		false		               7             THE WITNESS:  No.				false

		3251						LN		124		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So do you charge --				false

		3252						LN		124		9		false		               9             THE WITNESS:  In every -- I'm sorry, ma'am.				false

		3253						LN		124		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you charge a standby fee				false

		3254						LN		124		11		false		              11   even where you don't have a drop line to a building site				false

		3255						LN		124		12		false		              12   or a potential building site?				false

		3256						LN		124		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  Can I have a moment?				false

		3257						LN		124		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		3258						LN		124		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, ma'am.  Ticaboo is a				false

		3259						LN		124		16		false		              16   very difficult situation when it comes to the				false

		3260						LN		124		17		false		              17   infrastructure because it was constructed in two				false

		3261						LN		124		18		false		              18   primarily different ways.  In the mobile home park,				false

		3262						LN		124		19		false		              19   where Mrs. Seamons' property -- Mrs. Seamons' properties				false

		3263						LN		124		20		false		              20   are, all of the utility electric lines are run to the				false

		3264						LN		124		21		false		              21   perimeter or to the property on the back side of the				false

		3265						LN		124		22		false		              22   property, where there is a ped in place for the customer				false

		3266						LN		124		23		false		              23   to be able to connect from the home to the ped.				false

		3267						LN		124		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		3268						LN		124		25		false		              25             THE WITNESS:  Now, in the estates it's a				false

		3269						PG		125		0		false		page 125				false

		3270						LN		125		1		false		               1   little bit different, which is another platted section				false

		3271						LN		125		2		false		               2   of the -- of Ticaboo, where the lines run parallel to				false

		3272						LN		125		3		false		               3   the property on the property line.  But because the lots				false

		3273						LN		125		4		false		               4   are vacant, there may not be a connection to a customer				false

		3274						LN		125		5		false		               5   home because there is no lot -- no home there.				false

		3275						LN		125		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's, let's talk				false

		3276						LN		125		7		false		               7   about the mobile home sites.  And correct me if I am				false

		3277						LN		125		8		false		               8   wrong.  Does -- is that what all of these properties				false

		3278						LN		125		9		false		               9   are?  They are all within a mobile home park?				false

		3279						LN		125		10		false		              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.				false

		3280						LN		125		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if Ms. Seamons had a				false

		3281						LN		125		12		false		              12   tenant bring in a mobile home and site it on her				false

		3282						LN		125		13		false		              13   property, how long would it take for you to deliver				false

		3283						LN		125		14		false		              14   electricity to that mobile home?				false

		3284						LN		125		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  In accordance with our rules and				false

		3285						LN		125		16		false		              16   regulations, it would be immediate.  Only the customer				false

		3286						LN		125		17		false		              17   would have to extend the customer service from the home				false

		3287						LN		125		18		false		              18   to the ped.				false

		3288						LN		125		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So there's a drop line				false

		3289						LN		125		20		false		              20   available --				false

		3290						LN		125		21		false		              21             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3291						LN		125		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- to each of those.  Okay.				false

		3292						LN		125		23		false		              23             THE WITNESS:  One second.  Yeah, there's a ped				false

		3293						LN		125		24		false		              24   on every mobile home lot except for maybe one or two.				false

		3294						LN		125		25		false		              25   In Mrs. Seamons' case, they are all there.				false

		3295						PG		126		0		false		page 126				false

		3296						LN		126		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So these properties				false

		3297						LN		126		2		false		               2   were all purchased prior to the date on which you first				false

		3298						LN		126		3		false		               3   imposed standby fees.  So -- and you have got maybe a				false

		3299						LN		126		4		false		               4   third of your customers who, who own vacant lots not				false

		3300						LN		126		5		false		               5   paying the standby fees.  And yet you have made the				false

		3301						LN		126		6		false		               6   argument that these fees are necessary to the health and				false

		3302						LN		126		7		false		               7   the ongoing operations of the company.				false

		3303						LN		126		8		false		               8             So my question is, how were you functioning				false

		3304						LN		126		9		false		               9   before 2013 without them?  And how are you continuing to				false

		3305						LN		126		10		false		              10   function where at least a third of your standby				false

		3306						LN		126		11		false		              11   customers are not paying?				false

		3307						LN		126		12		false		              12             THE WITNESS:  Do you want me to be blunt and				false

		3308						LN		126		13		false		              13   frank?				false

		3309						LN		126		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes, I do.				false

		3310						LN		126		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So prior to the				false

		3311						LN		126		16		false		              16   implementation of the standby fees, we were operating				false

		3312						LN		126		17		false		              17   dramatically in the red as a utility district, as an				false

		3313						LN		126		18		false		              18   improvement district, barely making enough money to be				false

		3314						LN		126		19		false		              19   able to pay for fuel through usage fees and everything				false

		3315						LN		126		20		false		              20   else.  Oftentimes problems were dealt with in the best				false

		3316						LN		126		21		false		              21   way that we could, given the finances that we had at the				false

		3317						LN		126		22		false		              22   time, which unfortunately was how the utilities were				false

		3318						LN		126		23		false		              23   handled in the town of Ticaboo for 35 years prior to the				false

		3319						LN		126		24		false		              24   Ticaboo Electric Improvement District Coming into				false

		3320						LN		126		25		false		              25   existence in 2009, and going into operations in 2010.				false

		3321						PG		127		0		false		page 127				false

		3322						LN		127		1		false		               1             At that time, the board of trustees realized				false

		3323						LN		127		2		false		               2   that we had to do something in order to be able to				false

		3324						LN		127		3		false		               3   ensure that we could deliver reliable service on demand				false

		3325						LN		127		4		false		               4   to our customers, in an effort to be able to improve				false

		3326						LN		127		5		false		               5   those customer relations.  And also while it is not our				false

		3327						LN		127		6		false		               6   responsibility to promote economic development, but to				false

		3328						LN		127		7		false		               7   be able to support it if economic development were to				false

		3329						LN		127		8		false		               8   happen.				false

		3330						LN		127		9		false		               9             So 2013 was a very tumultuous year in that				false

		3331						LN		127		10		false		              10   regards.  Is that me that keeps knocking this with my				false

		3332						LN		127		11		false		              11   voice?				false

		3333						LN		127		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.				false

		3334						LN		127		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  I apologize.				false

		3335						LN		127		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's all right.				false

		3336						LN		127		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  In 2013 was a very involved year				false

		3337						LN		127		16		false		              16   because we got involved in so many different things to				false

		3338						LN		127		17		false		              17   fix.  We started fixing the things that needed to be				false

		3339						LN		127		18		false		              18   fixed in town to be able to ensure we could deliver that				false

		3340						LN		127		19		false		              19   service when required.				false

		3341						LN		127		20		false		              20             MR. LONG:  And I think it may be worth noting				false

		3342						LN		127		21		false		              21   that at this point nobody was getting paid for any of				false

		3343						LN		127		22		false		              22   this work.				false

		3344						LN		127		23		false		              23             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  There were no				false

		3345						LN		127		24		false		              24   paid staff members for much of that time.				false

		3346						LN		127		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  So let's				false

		3347						PG		128		0		false		page 128				false

		3348						LN		128		1		false		               1   turn to the tariff itself.  I read through it very				false

		3349						LN		128		2		false		               2   carefully.  Where is the language that says that the				false

		3350						LN		128		3		false		               3   restriction against the tenant contract is waived or				false

		3351						LN		128		4		false		               4   lifted if we're dealing with a long-term tenant?				false

		3352						LN		128		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  Ma'am, I don't have that in				false

		3353						LN		128		6		false		               6   front of me, but I believe it's in Section 8, if I				false

		3354						LN		128		7		false		               7   remember right.  It may be 8.02.  But I don't have that				false

		3355						LN		128		8		false		               8   in front of me, but it does state in there an exception				false

		3356						LN		128		9		false		               9   paragraph.				false

		3357						LN		128		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3358						LN		128		11		false		              11             THE WITNESS:  An exception paragraph does				false

		3359						LN		128		12		false		              12   stipulate that -- I'd like to say, ma'am, that we				false

		3360						LN		128		13		false		              13   actually instituted that exception based upon public				false

		3361						LN		128		14		false		              14   comment and concerns.				false

		3362						LN		128		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		3363						LN		128		16		false		              16             THE WITNESS:  Primarily because of SITLA				false

		3364						LN		128		17		false		              17   properties.				false

		3365						LN		128		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		3366						LN		128		19		false		              19             THE WITNESS:  So we understood those concerns,				false

		3367						LN		128		20		false		              20   and by putting that exception in place, we were able to				false

		3368						LN		128		21		false		              21   ensure that none of the existing SITLA tenants were -- I				false

		3369						LN		128		22		false		              22   hate to be harsh -- but summarily evicted because SITLA				false

		3370						LN		128		23		false		              23   won't be responsible for utility bills, just as a part				false

		3371						LN		128		24		false		              24   of their policy.				false

		3372						LN		128		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So have you allowed a				false

		3373						PG		129		0		false		page 129				false

		3374						LN		129		1		false		               1   long-term tenant contract under any owner other than				false

		3375						LN		129		2		false		               2   SITLA?				false

		3376						LN		129		3		false		               3             THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		3377						LN		129		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3378						LN		129		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  Me, for example.  I am a renter				false

		3379						LN		129		6		false		               6   in Ticaboo, ma'am.  And I was a long-time customer prior				false

		3380						LN		129		7		false		               7   to this rule being put in place.				false

		3381						LN		129		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  So on the 2015 T docket where				false

		3382						LN		129		9		false		               9   you entered into the stipulation with the division, it				false

		3383						LN		129		10		false		              10   was sometime later that the commission issued the order				false

		3384						LN		129		11		false		              11   approving the stipulation.  During that period of time				false

		3385						LN		129		12		false		              12   that passed, you held a public meeting.				false

		3386						LN		129		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3387						LN		129		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, excuse me.  You held a				false

		3388						LN		129		15		false		              15   board meeting.  And in the statement that you have read,				false

		3389						LN		129		16		false		              16   you have identified exhibits where that board meeting --				false

		3390						LN		129		17		false		              17   where the board meeting minutes are and so on, correct?				false

		3391						LN		129		18		false		              18             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3392						LN		129		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you also hold a public				false

		3393						LN		129		20		false		              20   meeting?				false

		3394						LN		129		21		false		              21             THE WITNESS:  All of our board meetings are				false

		3395						LN		129		22		false		              22   public, ma'am.				false

		3396						LN		129		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you send out a mailed				false

		3397						LN		129		24		false		              24   customer notice of a public meeting with regard to the				false

		3398						LN		129		25		false		              25   tariff changes?				false

		3399						PG		130		0		false		page 130				false

		3400						LN		130		1		false		               1             THE WITNESS:  I would have to admittingly say				false

		3401						LN		130		2		false		               2   where the tariff changes were concerned, no, ma'am,				false

		3402						LN		130		3		false		               3   because we weren't instituting any rate changes.				false

		3403						LN		130		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3404						LN		130		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  It was just agreeing to the				false

		3405						LN		130		6		false		               6   settlement stipulation that Mr. Jetter had drafted and				false

		3406						LN		130		7		false		               7   sent forward as part of that T docket.				false

		3407						LN		130		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  But it did include,				false

		3408						LN		130		9		false		               9   though, a penalty fee for tampering.  You had proposed a				false

		3409						LN		130		10		false		              10   thousand dollars per day.  But then you agreed with the				false

		3410						LN		130		11		false		              11   division to take it down to a hundred dollars per day.				false

		3411						LN		130		12		false		              12   So this was a new tariff charge.				false

		3412						LN		130		13		false		              13             And my question is whether you noticed within				false

		3413						LN		130		14		false		              14   10 days of a public meeting, sent a notice to customers				false

		3414						LN		130		15		false		              15   within 10 days prior to the public meeting saying,				false

		3415						LN		130		16		false		              16   "We're putting a new fee in our tariff.  It's been				false

		3416						LN		130		17		false		              17   approved by the board, or it's going to be approved by				false

		3417						LN		130		18		false		              18   the board, and here is our public meeting for customers				false

		3418						LN		130		19		false		              19   to come and talk to us about this."				false

		3419						LN		130		20		false		              20             THE WITNESS:  Factually, ma'am, that				false

		3420						LN		130		21		false		              21   particular tampering rate was already in place, and				false

		3421						LN		130		22		false		              22   during this particular T docket it was brought up as a				false

		3422						LN		130		23		false		              23   point of concern or contention.				false

		3423						LN		130		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		3424						LN		130		25		false		              25             THE WITNESS:  And was then settled upon				false

		3425						PG		131		0		false		page 131				false

		3426						LN		131		1		false		               1   because I believe, if memory serves me right, our				false

		3427						LN		131		2		false		               2   original charge was a thousand dollars per incident per				false

		3428						LN		131		3		false		               3   day.				false

		3429						LN		131		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		3430						LN		131		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  And then through the settlement				false

		3431						LN		131		6		false		               6   stipulation with the division, we changed it to a				false

		3432						LN		131		7		false		               7   thousand dollars per incident, a hundred dollars per				false

		3433						LN		131		8		false		               8   day.  Now, having said that, I cannot sit here in front				false

		3434						LN		131		9		false		               9   of you and tell you that I sent out a notice for a				false

		3435						LN		131		10		false		              10   reduction in a fee.  I have no recollection of sending				false

		3436						LN		131		11		false		              11   such a notice out to my customers.				false

		3437						LN		131		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am going to have				false

		3438						LN		131		13		false		              13   to -- I am going to have to check again the records of				false

		3439						LN		131		14		false		              14   that because my, my sense is that the tampering fine was				false

		3440						LN		131		15		false		              15   brand-new in the tariff in that 2015 docket.  You think				false

		3441						LN		131		16		false		              16   you had a tampering fine in place prior to that?				false

		3442						LN		131		17		false		              17             MR. LONG:  I can maybe shed a little bit of				false

		3443						LN		131		18		false		              18   light without looking at the details.				false

		3444						LN		131		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Great.				false

		3445						LN		131		20		false		              20             MR. LONG:  The tampering fee has in recent				false

		3446						LN		131		21		false		              21   memory always been $1,000 per incident.  In the very				false

		3447						LN		131		22		false		              22   beginning of that docket, 15-2508-T01, that fee was				false

		3448						LN		131		23		false		              23   increased to $1,000 per incident plus a $1,000 per-day				false

		3449						LN		131		24		false		              24   tampering fee.				false

		3450						LN		131		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Per day, okay.				false

		3451						PG		132		0		false		page 132				false

		3452						LN		132		1		false		               1             MR. LONG:  Going off the top of my head, I				false

		3453						LN		132		2		false		               2   believe the district complied with all the notice				false

		3454						LN		132		3		false		               3   requirements for that initial change.  At that point,				false

		3455						LN		132		4		false		               4   when those -- when those changes were filed with the				false

		3456						LN		132		5		false		               5   commission, the division had some objections to them.				false

		3457						LN		132		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		3458						LN		132		7		false		               7             MR. LONG:  And this was a situation where the				false

		3459						LN		132		8		false		               8   district and the division have some -- and probably				false

		3460						LN		132		9		false		               9   still have some disagreement about how far the				false

		3461						LN		132		10		false		              10   commission's jurisdiction extends.				false

		3462						LN		132		11		false		              11             At any rate, in the settlement stipulation				false

		3463						LN		132		12		false		              12   that we have introduced as Exhibit TUID-001, we				false

		3464						LN		132		13		false		              13   essentially came to a conclusion on the points the				false

		3465						LN		132		14		false		              14   division had problems with.				false

		3466						LN		132		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		3467						LN		132		16		false		              16             MR. LONG:  And that tampering fee was reduced,				false

		3468						LN		132		17		false		              17   so -- in the district.  And the tampering fee was				false

		3469						LN		132		18		false		              18   effective upon filing with the commission.				false

		3470						LN		132		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  So wait.  But you just said				false

		3471						LN		132		20		false		              20   that prior to the 2015 docket, the tampering fee was a				false

		3472						LN		132		21		false		              21   thousand dollars per incident, no per-day fine, correct?				false

		3473						LN		132		22		false		              22             MR. LONG:  Correct.				false

		3474						LN		132		23		false		              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  So through the 2015 docket you				false

		3475						LN		132		24		false		              24   implemented a per-day fine.				false

		3476						LN		132		25		false		              25             MR. LONG:  Uh-huh.				false

		3477						PG		133		0		false		page 133				false

		3478						LN		133		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  And the dispute between the				false

		3479						LN		133		2		false		               2   district and the division was what the number would be,				false

		3480						LN		133		3		false		               3   correct?				false

		3481						LN		133		4		false		               4             MR. LONG:  Correct, and perhaps it's useful to				false

		3482						LN		133		5		false		               5   think of that 2015 docket as two separate tariff				false

		3483						LN		133		6		false		               6   changes.  We had the initial tariff changes done by the				false

		3484						LN		133		7		false		               7   district on -- I'd have to go look at the docket.  At				false

		3485						LN		133		8		false		               8   any rate, at the very beginning of that docket, that				false

		3486						LN		133		9		false		               9   docket started -- that docket started after the district				false

		3487						LN		133		10		false		              10   had adopted those changes, and following the				false

		3488						LN		133		11		false		              11   requirements, the district is required to file the				false

		3489						LN		133		12		false		              12   tariff with the commission.				false

		3490						LN		133		13		false		              13             So at that point, from the district's				false

		3491						LN		133		14		false		              14   perspective, the tariff was effective.				false

		3492						LN		133		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  So here is my question.  Did				false

		3493						LN		133		16		false		              16   you mail out a notice of a public meeting that included				false

		3494						LN		133		17		false		              17   discussion of a per-day tampering fine, whatever the				false

		3495						LN		133		18		false		              18   amount was?				false

		3496						LN		133		19		false		              19             MR. LONG:  I'd have to defer to Mr. Shortreed,				false

		3497						LN		133		20		false		              20   and perhaps this is something that needs looked at,				false

		3498						LN		133		21		false		              21   but --				false

		3499						LN		133		22		false		              22             THE WITNESS:  I would have to go back and				false

		3500						LN		133		23		false		              23   check my records on that, ma'am.				false

		3501						LN		133		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3502						LN		133		25		false		              25             MR. LONG:  But Mr. Shortreed perhaps can tell				false

		3503						PG		134		0		false		page 134				false

		3504						LN		134		1		false		               1   us if it's the district's policy to mail out notice of				false

		3505						LN		134		2		false		               2   any rate increases or any increases that would cause				false

		3506						LN		134		3		false		               3   dollars paid by customers to go up.				false

		3507						LN		134		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I think that's what the				false

		3508						LN		134		5		false		               5   statute requires.				false

		3509						LN		134		6		false		               6             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, and that is also				false

		3510						LN		134		7		false		               7   what we follow.				false

		3511						LN		134		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3512						LN		134		9		false		               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Just for the record, we do have				false

		3513						LN		134		10		false		              10   a copy of the tariff that was effective, and this is				false

		3514						LN		134		11		false		              11   redlined, July 25th.  Or I'm sorry, March 21st of				false

		3515						LN		134		12		false		              12   2000 -- I'm sorry.  Never mind.  I withdraw.				false

		3516						LN		134		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  So we have				false

		3517						LN		134		14		false		              14   Ms. Seamons' testimony that the district removed meters				false

		3518						LN		134		15		false		              15   from a rental property twice.  And your -- in your				false

		3519						LN		134		16		false		              16   statement that you read, it seemed to me that you were				false

		3520						LN		134		17		false		              17   stating that that's simply not true.  Well, you said no				false

		3521						LN		134		18		false		              18   taps were removed.				false

		3522						LN		134		19		false		              19             So this is what I want to know.  Is a tap in				false

		3523						LN		134		20		false		              20   your mind equivalent with a drop line?  Is that the same				false

		3524						LN		134		21		false		              21   thing?				false

		3525						LN		134		22		false		              22             THE WITNESS:  What is your definition of a				false

		3526						LN		134		23		false		              23   drop line, ma'am?				false

		3527						LN		134		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  A drop line is dedicated line				false

		3528						LN		134		25		false		              25   from your main supply source that runs through your				false

		3529						PG		135		0		false		page 135				false

		3530						LN		135		1		false		               1   easement, to the property.  So here is your main --				false

		3531						LN		135		2		false		               2             THE WITNESS:  Saying electric pedestal, ma'am?				false

		3532						LN		135		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  I don't know what an electric				false

		3533						LN		135		4		false		               4   pedestal is.  Here is your supply line that runs through				false

		3534						LN		135		5		false		               5   your easement.  Here is the property.  Here is your drop				false

		3535						LN		135		6		false		               6   line right there.  Where is -- what is the tap?				false

		3536						LN		135		7		false		               7             THE WITNESS:  The tap is anything from the				false

		3537						LN		135		8		false		               8   main line to service on the property.				false

		3538						LN		135		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3539						LN		135		10		false		              10             THE WITNESS:  To a pedestal, to a meter.				false

		3540						LN		135		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So you have never				false

		3541						LN		135		12		false		              12   pulled the drop line?				false

		3542						LN		135		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.				false

		3543						LN		135		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  You have never pulled the tap.				false

		3544						LN		135		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.				false

		3545						LN		135		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Have you pulled a				false

		3546						LN		135		17		false		              17   meter?				false

		3547						LN		135		18		false		              18             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3548						LN		135		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Did you comply with the				false

		3549						LN		135		20		false		              20   commission's rules for notice to the customer before				false

		3550						LN		135		21		false		              21   pulling that meter?				false

		3551						LN		135		22		false		              22             THE WITNESS:  I would have complied with those				false

		3552						LN		135		23		false		              23   rules, ma'am, if I were terminating the service.  But				false

		3553						LN		135		24		false		              24   the service was requested to be terminated by the				false

		3554						LN		135		25		false		              25   tenant.				false

		3555						PG		136		0		false		page 136				false

		3556						LN		136		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Say that again.				false

		3557						LN		136		2		false		               2             THE WITNESS:  Had I enforced a termination				false

		3558						LN		136		3		false		               3   rule in accordance with the rules, I would have had to				false

		3559						LN		136		4		false		               4   have properly noticed.				false

		3560						LN		136		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  What do you consider to				false

		3561						LN		136		6		false		               6   be termination of electrical service?				false

		3562						LN		136		7		false		               7             THE WITNESS:  Something as -- of an adverse				false

		3563						LN		136		8		false		               8   nature, such as no payment on the bill.				false

		3564						LN		136		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, that would be grounds				false

		3565						LN		136		10		false		              10   for termination.  From the customer's point of view, if				false

		3566						LN		136		11		false		              11   I flip the switch and it doesn't come on, the				false

		3567						LN		136		12		false		              12   electricity doesn't come on, have I been terminated?				false

		3568						LN		136		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  But in this				false

		3569						LN		136		14		false		              14   particular circumstance, it was cited by Mrs. Seamons.				false

		3570						LN		136		15		false		              15   The customer at the time, who was a tenant of				false

		3571						LN		136		16		false		              16   Mrs. Seamons, requested the service in writing to be				false

		3572						LN		136		17		false		              17   turned off.				false

		3573						LN		136		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3574						LN		136		19		false		              19             THE WITNESS:  They made that request of us.				false

		3575						LN		136		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3576						LN		136		21		false		              21             THE WITNESS:  As a matter of fact that --				false

		3577						LN		136		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is that in the record?  Is				false

		3578						LN		136		23		false		              23   that written request in the record?				false

		3579						LN		136		24		false		              24             THE WITNESS:  I do not believe that it is,				false

		3580						LN		136		25		false		              25   ma'am.				false

		3581						PG		137		0		false		page 137				false

		3582						LN		137		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  We have a copy of it.				false

		3583						LN		137		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3584						LN		137		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, it's the original but...				false

		3585						LN		137		4		false		               4             THE WITNESS:  And that should be a letter from				false

		3586						LN		137		5		false		               5   Jim and Valerie Hills, ma'am.				false

		3587						LN		137		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what action did you				false

		3588						LN		137		7		false		               7   take on receiving this letter?  Shall we put this in the				false

		3589						LN		137		8		false		               8   record?  Let's do.  Let's make this Complainant's				false

		3590						LN		137		9		false		               9   Exhibit 8.  Will you go run a couple copies of this?				false

		3591						LN		137		10		false		              10             So what action did you take on receiving that				false

		3592						LN		137		11		false		              11   letter?				false

		3593						LN		137		12		false		              12             THE WITNESS:  Correct me if I'm wrong, ma'am,				false

		3594						LN		137		13		false		              13   but the rules state that at least three days of notice				false

		3595						LN		137		14		false		              14   have to be given for the turning on or turning off of a				false

		3596						LN		137		15		false		              15   service, and arrangements were made with Mr. and				false

		3597						LN		137		16		false		              16   Mrs. Hills to turn off the service after they had				false

		3598						LN		137		17		false		              17   vacated the property.				false

		3599						LN		137		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So were the tenants				false

		3600						LN		137		19		false		              19   your customers?  Did they have an account with you?				false

		3601						LN		137		20		false		              20             THE WITNESS:  At that time, yes, ma'am.				false

		3602						LN		137		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  They did at that time.				false

		3603						LN		137		22		false		              22             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, because that was				false

		3604						LN		137		23		false		              23   prior to that rule change.				false

		3605						LN		137		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And then when you				false

		3606						LN		137		25		false		              25   pulled the meter and discontinued their service, you				false

		3607						PG		138		0		false		page 138				false

		3608						LN		138		1		false		               1   also began charging standby fees to the owner.  Is that				false

		3609						LN		138		2		false		               2   correct?				false

		3610						LN		138		3		false		               3             THE WITNESS:  I don't know how that timeline				false

		3611						LN		138		4		false		               4   falls, ma'am.  I would have to go back and check that.				false

		3612						LN		138		5		false		               5             MR. HOGELIN:  Your Honor, let the accounts				false

		3613						LN		138		6		false		               6   that we admitted as exhibits show that the standby fees				false

		3614						LN		138		7		false		               7   did take effect after that.				false

		3615						LN		138		8		false		               8             THE WITNESS:  That's 1115.				false

		3616						LN		138		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.				false

		3617						LN		138		10		false		              10             THE WITNESS:  Actually, ma'am, in answer to				false

		3618						LN		138		11		false		              11   your question, at the time that Mr. and Mrs. Hills				false

		3619						LN		138		12		false		              12   vacated the premises just so happened to be at the time				false

		3620						LN		138		13		false		              13   the standby fees were adopted by the board and made part				false

		3621						LN		138		14		false		              14   of the resolution -- or part of the tariff.  So that				false

		3622						LN		138		15		false		              15   following month the standby fees would have started to				false

		3623						LN		138		16		false		              16   be charged, yes, ma'am.				false

		3624						LN		138		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if the tenant had				false

		3625						LN		138		18		false		              18   requested to permanently abandon service, what would				false

		3626						LN		138		19		false		              19   have been your response?				false

		3627						LN		138		20		false		              20             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.  That has to come				false

		3628						LN		138		21		false		              21   from a property owner per our rules.				false

		3629						LN		138		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Property owner.				false

		3630						LN		138		23		false		              23             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3631						LN		138		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Any				false

		3632						LN		138		25		false		              25   cross-examination?				false

		3633						PG		139		0		false		page 139				false

		3634						LN		139		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.				false

		3635						LN		139		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.				false

		3636						LN		139		3		false		               3                       CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		3637						LN		139		4		false		               4   BY MR. HOGELIN:				false

		3638						LN		139		5		false		               5        Q.   Mr. Shortreed, in your epilog, you stated that				false

		3639						LN		139		6		false		               6   the standby fees started in October of 2013?				false

		3640						LN		139		7		false		               7        A.   Yes, sir.  That's when they were billed with				false

		3641						LN		139		8		false		               8   the October 1st billing that went out, which was for the				false

		3642						LN		139		9		false		               9   month of September.				false

		3643						LN		139		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  So there has been a number of exhibits				false

		3644						LN		139		11		false		              11   submitted today with -- of account summaries provided by				false

		3645						LN		139		12		false		              12   your office and possibly by you to Ms. Seamons that				false

		3646						LN		139		13		false		              13   reflects the standby fees actually started in September.				false

		3647						LN		139		14		false		              14   Why does your testimony conflict with the account audit				false

		3648						LN		139		15		false		              15   histories that you provided to Ms. Seamons?				false

		3649						LN		139		16		false		              16        A.   They don't conflict, sir.  Our billing date is				false

		3650						LN		139		17		false		              17   October 1st for the month, September, that was billed				false

		3651						LN		139		18		false		              18   for.				false

		3652						LN		139		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  But you --				false

		3653						LN		139		20		false		              20        A.   So they were billed October 1st for the				false

		3654						LN		139		21		false		              21   standby fees.				false

		3655						LN		139		22		false		              22        Q.   But they were filled for September?				false

		3656						LN		139		23		false		              23        A.   For September services, yes, sir.				false

		3657						LN		139		24		false		              24        Q.   All right.  So just a clarification there.				false

		3658						LN		139		25		false		              25   You also testified that you were granted an exception as				false

		3659						PG		140		0		false		page 140				false

		3660						LN		140		1		false		               1   a long-term resident to the owner.  Who granted that				false

		3661						LN		140		2		false		               2   exception?				false

		3662						LN		140		3		false		               3        A.   The, the board did.				false

		3663						LN		140		4		false		               4        Q.   Okay.  And you applied for that exception?				false

		3664						LN		140		5		false		               5        A.   There's no application process.  It's taken as				false

		3665						LN		140		6		false		               6   a case-by-case basis on --				false

		3666						LN		140		7		false		               7        Q.   So when were you granted exception to that?				false

		3667						LN		140		8		false		               8        A.   At the same time that the other residents were				false

		3668						LN		140		9		false		               9   granted exception under that rule.				false

		3669						LN		140		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  So you were specifically -- they				false

		3670						LN		140		11		false		              11   specifically gave you that exception?  Or was that just				false

		3671						LN		140		12		false		              12   something that just kind of, everybody kind of went				false

		3672						LN		140		13		false		              13   about their way and assumed that it was there?				false

		3673						LN		140		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is it in the meeting minutes?				false

		3674						LN		140		15		false		              15             MR. LONG:  I think this is perhaps a little				false

		3675						LN		140		16		false		              16   bit more of a leading question than I would like.  Maybe				false

		3676						LN		140		17		false		              17   I can explain, and Mr. Shortreed can confirm.				false

		3677						LN		140		18		false		              18             The exception to the tenant rules, it				false

		3678						LN		140		19		false		              19   essentially allows status quo to stay the same, that if				false

		3679						LN		140		20		false		              20   a tenant is there and stays there, that tenant's account				false

		3680						LN		140		21		false		              21   with the district for utility services stays as it was.				false

		3681						LN		140		22		false		              22   If that tenant were to move out and hypothetically move				false

		3682						LN		140		23		false		              23   back in or if a new tenant moves back in after these				false

		3683						LN		140		24		false		              24   rules are implemented, the landlord would then be				false

		3684						LN		140		25		false		              25   responsible for that utility account.				false

		3685						PG		141		0		false		page 141				false

		3686						LN		141		1		false		               1             Is that a correct statement of the rules,				false

		3687						LN		141		2		false		               2   Mr. Shortreed?				false

		3688						LN		141		3		false		               3             THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		3689						LN		141		4		false		               4        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  What I am asking				false

		3690						LN		141		5		false		               5   though, is who determines that?				false

		3691						LN		141		6		false		               6        A.   The district manager does.				false

		3692						LN		141		7		false		               7        Q.   So you determined for yourself to have the				false

		3693						LN		141		8		false		               8   exception apply?				false

		3694						LN		141		9		false		               9             MR. LONG:  Object.  I think we made it clear,				false

		3695						LN		141		10		false		              10   there's no determination that's required.  Simply if no				false

		3696						LN		141		11		false		              11   change is made, no change is required to be made				false

		3697						LN		141		12		false		              12   according to rules of the tariff.				false

		3698						LN		141		13		false		              13             MR. HOGELIN:  The rules -- his testimony said				false

		3699						LN		141		14		false		              14   that exceptions can be applied.				false

		3700						LN		141		15		false		              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  So --				false

		3701						LN		141		16		false		              16             MR. HOGELIN:  So what I am trying to find out				false

		3702						LN		141		17		false		              17   is what's -- how does that happen?  Who has the				false

		3703						LN		141		18		false		              18   discretion?  So I am asking Mr. Shortreed, "Who has				false

		3704						LN		141		19		false		              19   discretion?"  And I am doing it by applying his own				false

		3705						LN		141		20		false		              20   situation which he testified that he was granted this				false

		3706						LN		141		21		false		              21   exception.				false

		3707						LN		141		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, and I think it is a				false

		3708						LN		141		23		false		              23   relevant point.  I want to see the tariff provision that				false

		3709						LN		141		24		false		              24   sets out that exemption, and I would like to see how the				false

		3710						LN		141		25		false		              25   tariff says it works.  If it doesn't say how it works,				false

		3711						PG		142		0		false		page 142				false

		3712						LN		142		1		false		               1   then we potentially have a problem.				false

		3713						LN		142		2		false		               2        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So my point is,				false

		3714						LN		142		3		false		               3   Mr. Shortreed, you testified that there were others.				false

		3715						LN		142		4		false		               4   You included yourself, and so I am just trying to find				false

		3716						LN		142		5		false		               5   out when and how that exception was applied and in what				false

		3717						LN		142		6		false		               6   -- if it was done formally or informally.  So that's a				false

		3718						LN		142		7		false		               7   compound question.  So let me rephrase that.				false

		3719						LN		142		8		false		               8             Was your exception applied formally or				false

		3720						LN		142		9		false		               9   informally?				false

		3721						LN		142		10		false		              10        A.   I don't understand what you mean by formally				false

		3722						LN		142		11		false		              11   or informally.				false

		3723						LN		142		12		false		              12        Q.   So it's your testimony that you didn't apply				false

		3724						LN		142		13		false		              13   for the exception, correct?				false

		3725						LN		142		14		false		              14        A.   We don't have an application process for the				false

		3726						LN		142		15		false		              15   exception, no.				false

		3727						LN		142		16		false		              16        Q.   So was your exception presented to the board,				false

		3728						LN		142		17		false		              17   your specific exception?				false

		3729						LN		142		18		false		              18        A.   No.				false

		3730						LN		142		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  So the board never -- so no one ever				false

		3731						LN		142		20		false		              20   really approved your exception?				false

		3732						LN		142		21		false		              21             MR. LONG:  I object to that leading question.				false

		3733						LN		142		22		false		              22   Perhaps Mr. Hogelin could simply ask Mr. Shortreed what				false

		3734						LN		142		23		false		              23   the process is.				false

		3735						LN		142		24		false		              24             MR. HOGELIN:  I can ask leading questions.				false

		3736						LN		142		25		false		              25   This is cross-examination.				false

		3737						PG		143		0		false		page 143				false

		3738						LN		143		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, these rules don't apply.				false

		3739						LN		143		2		false		               2   We are in an administrative proceeding, so let's -- this				false

		3740						LN		143		3		false		               3   is what -- this is what I need to know.  These long-term				false

		3741						LN		143		4		false		               4   customers, including yourself, including some tenants of				false

		3742						LN		143		5		false		               5   SITLA, including at least, well --				false

		3743						LN		143		6		false		               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, that's where I want to go.				false

		3744						LN		143		7		false		               7        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Is there any other long-term				false

		3745						LN		143		8		false		               8   tenants that have been granted this exception besides				false

		3746						LN		143		9		false		               9   yourself or the -- associated with SITLA?				false

		3747						LN		143		10		false		              10        A.   No.  Because the long-term tenants, as they				false

		3748						LN		143		11		false		              11   are defined, are those people.  There have been no other				false

		3749						LN		143		12		false		              12   long-term tenants in good standing with the district.				false

		3750						LN		143		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So here is the				false

		3751						LN		143		14		false		              14   question.				false

		3752						LN		143		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  And if I -- I'm sorry, ma'am.				false

		3753						LN		143		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did the tenants have to come				false

		3754						LN		143		17		false		              17   to you and say, "I am a long-term tenant.  I want to				false

		3755						LN		143		18		false		              18   be -- I want to have the contract with you"?  Were they				false

		3756						LN		143		19		false		              19   required to do that?				false

		3757						LN		143		20		false		              20             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.				false

		3758						LN		143		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Was the property owner				false

		3759						LN		143		22		false		              22   required to come to you and say, "I have long-term				false

		3760						LN		143		23		false		              23   tenants.  I want your contract to be with my tenant not				false

		3761						LN		143		24		false		              24   with me"?				false

		3762						LN		143		25		false		              25             THE WITNESS:  Not required, no, ma'am.				false

		3763						PG		144		0		false		page 144				false

		3764						LN		144		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Did -- so how did you				false

		3765						LN		144		2		false		               2   decide who the long-term tenants were?				false

		3766						LN		144		3		false		               3             THE WITNESS:  Because I know everybody in				false

		3767						LN		144		4		false		               4   Ticaboo, ma'am, because there's a whopping 40 people who				false

		3768						LN		144		5		false		               5   live there.				false

		3769						LN		144		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  So you just did this on your				false

		3770						LN		144		7		false		               7   own.  You went through your accounts and you said,				false

		3771						LN		144		8		false		               8   "Okay.  This is one with a tenant, but this is a				false

		3772						LN		144		9		false		               9   long-term tenant, so we're going to keep the account				false

		3773						LN		144		10		false		              10   with the tenant."				false

		3774						LN		144		11		false		              11             THE WITNESS:  In accordance with the rule that				false

		3775						LN		144		12		false		              12   we set forth, I identified those customers who would				false

		3776						LN		144		13		false		              13   have fit the exception, yes.				false

		3777						LN		144		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3778						LN		144		15		false		              15             MR. LONG:  I think the perhaps the point is				false

		3779						LN		144		16		false		              16   that the rule doesn't require any changes to the				false

		3780						LN		144		17		false		              17   situation as it existed when that rule was implemented.				false

		3781						LN		144		18		false		              18   If a tenant had an account at that time, that tenant				false

		3782						LN		144		19		false		              19   could continue.  And if a new tenant moved in after				false

		3783						LN		144		20		false		              20   that, the owner would then be responsible for the				false

		3784						LN		144		21		false		              21   account.				false

		3785						LN		144		22		false		              22             THE WITNESS:  And I don't -- I apologize,				false

		3786						LN		144		23		false		              23   ma'am.  I don't have a copy of my tariff in front of me,				false

		3787						LN		144		24		false		              24   and I must say that I don't know this particular section				false

		3788						LN		144		25		false		              25   verbatim.				false

		3789						PG		145		0		false		page 145				false

		3790						LN		145		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.				false

		3791						LN		145		2		false		               2             THE WITNESS:  But if memory serves me right, I				false

		3792						LN		145		3		false		               3   believe there was a one-year stipulation in that				false

		3793						LN		145		4		false		               4   exception that said, so long as the tenant was a				false

		3794						LN		145		5		false		               5   customer, a long-term customer of one year or more in				false

		3795						LN		145		6		false		               6   good standing with the district, then they would qualify				false

		3796						LN		145		7		false		               7   for the exception rule.				false

		3797						LN		145		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And that's what I want				false

		3798						LN		145		9		false		               9   to see is the tariff language so --				false

		3799						LN		145		10		false		              10             THE WITNESS:  I apologize, I don't have that.				false

		3800						LN		145		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I'll look for it.  But I'm				false

		3801						LN		145		12		false		              12   probably going to order you to submit posthearing briefs				false

		3802						LN		145		13		false		              13   that deal with some of these things.				false

		3803						LN		145		14		false		              14             MR. LONG:  Certainly, and we're happy to do				false

		3804						LN		145		15		false		              15   that.				false

		3805						LN		145		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.				false

		3806						LN		145		17		false		              17   Mr. Hogelin, go ahead.				false

		3807						LN		145		18		false		              18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) I guess that was my next				false

		3808						LN		145		19		false		              19   question is because SITLA, their tenants came in about				false

		3809						LN		145		20		false		              20   2013, correct?				false

		3810						LN		145		21		false		              21        A.   No.  There are some -- there are some people				false

		3811						LN		145		22		false		              22   in Ticaboo who have been tenants of SITLA for a number				false

		3812						LN		145		23		false		              23   of years, beyond 2013.				false

		3813						LN		145		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  But you are including the resort in				false

		3814						LN		145		25		false		              25   these discussion, right?				false

		3815						PG		146		0		false		page 146				false

		3816						LN		146		1		false		               1        A.   No, I am not.				false

		3817						LN		146		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  So the resort isn't powered by TUID?				false

		3818						LN		146		3		false		               3        A.   By TUID, powered by TUID?				false

		3819						LN		146		4		false		               4        Q.   Yeah.				false

		3820						LN		146		5		false		               5        A.   We do provide them with power, yes, sir.				false

		3821						LN		146		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  And they are owned by SITLA, correct?				false

		3822						LN		146		7		false		               7        A.   No, they are not.				false

		3823						LN		146		8		false		               8        Q.   Who are they owned by?				false

		3824						LN		146		9		false		               9        A.   Themselves, sir.  They are their own				false

		3825						LN		146		10		false		              10   organization.  They own their own land.				false

		3826						LN		146		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  The resort does, the resort				false

		3827						LN		146		12		false		              12   owns the lands?				false

		3828						LN		146		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		3829						LN		146		14		false		              14             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.				false

		3830						LN		146		15		false		              15        A.   I will offer this, though.  They are a master				false

		3831						LN		146		16		false		              16   development lease holder of SITLA.				false

		3832						LN		146		17		false		              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) They are what?				false

		3833						LN		146		18		false		              18        A.   A master development lease holder.				false

		3834						LN		146		19		false		              19             MS. BROADBENT:  So they lease the other				false

		3835						LN		146		20		false		              20   property.				false

		3836						LN		146		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Mary, please.				false

		3837						LN		146		22		false		              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So -- but they own the				false

		3838						LN		146		23		false		              23   property.				false

		3839						LN		146		24		false		              24        A.   Not where they are the master development				false

		3840						LN		146		25		false		              25   lease holder, no.				false

		3841						PG		147		0		false		page 147				false

		3842						LN		147		1		false		               1        Q.   Who does?				false

		3843						LN		147		2		false		               2        A.   SITLA does.				false

		3844						LN		147		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.				false

		3845						LN		147		4		false		               4        A.   In that particular case.				false

		3846						LN		147		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  So how much of the property do they				false

		3847						LN		147		6		false		               6   own?				false

		3848						LN		147		7		false		               7        A.   SITLA?				false

		3849						LN		147		8		false		               8        Q.   No, the resort.				false

		3850						LN		147		9		false		               9        A.   They own all the commercial property and				false

		3851						LN		147		10		false		              10   approximately one, two, three -- four or five				false

		3852						LN		147		11		false		              11   residential properties.				false

		3853						LN		147		12		false		              12        Q.   So but they are the master -- I'm sorry,				false

		3854						LN		147		13		false		              13   designer on --				false

		3855						LN		147		14		false		              14        A.   Master development lease holder, sir, yes.				false

		3856						LN		147		15		false		              15        Q.   For a property that's owned by SITLA, and are				false

		3857						LN		147		16		false		              16   there standby fees charged on that?				false

		3858						LN		147		17		false		              17        A.   No, because SITLA abandoned all of the taps in				false

		3859						LN		147		18		false		              18   2014.				false

		3860						LN		147		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  And so prior to 2014 -- or I mean, so				false

		3861						LN		147		20		false		              20   -- but there was a -- why wouldn't there be a standby				false

		3862						LN		147		21		false		              21   fee then?				false

		3863						LN		147		22		false		              22        A.   Our abandonment rule allows that if a customer				false

		3864						LN		147		23		false		              23   applies for abandonment of their taps, once that				false

		3865						LN		147		24		false		              24   application has been approved and processed, then they				false

		3866						LN		147		25		false		              25   are no longer responsible for paying standby fees.  And				false

		3867						PG		148		0		false		page 148				false

		3868						LN		148		1		false		               1   that abandonment application in turn gets recorded on to				false

		3869						LN		148		2		false		               2   the property records with Garfield County.				false

		3870						LN		148		3		false		               3        Q.   So the abandonment process, doesn't that				false

		3871						LN		148		4		false		               4   include a fee?				false

		3872						LN		148		5		false		               5        A.   An application fee, yes, sir.				false

		3873						LN		148		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  And how much is the application fee?				false

		3874						LN		148		7		false		               7        A.   $75.				false

		3875						LN		148		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.  And that's the only fee that's				false

		3876						LN		148		9		false		               9   associated with abandonment?				false

		3877						LN		148		10		false		              10        A.   Yes, sir.				false

		3878						LN		148		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  And the -- but they would have to pay				false

		3879						LN		148		12		false		              12   other fees to get -- to be rehooked back up, correct?				false

		3880						LN		148		13		false		              13        A.   To be hooked back up, yes, sir.  If they				false

		3881						LN		148		14		false		              14   abandon the taps, they essentially would have to pay				false

		3882						LN		148		15		false		              15   fees as if the taps didn't exist.				false

		3883						LN		148		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.				false

		3884						LN		148		17		false		              17        A.   To have those taps re -- reinitiated.				false

		3885						LN		148		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.				false

		3886						LN		148		19		false		              19        A.   Or removed from abandonment status, if you				false

		3887						LN		148		20		false		              20   will.				false

		3888						LN		148		21		false		              21        Q.   And that abandonment status was pursuant to				false

		3889						LN		148		22		false		              22   the 2013 docket or tariff?				false

		3890						LN		148		23		false		              23        A.   I believe that it was, but without having it				false

		3891						LN		148		24		false		              24   in front of me, I can't say for sure.				false

		3892						LN		148		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.				false

		3893						PG		149		0		false		page 149				false

		3894						LN		149		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  But a property owner is not				false

		3895						LN		149		2		false		               2   allowed to abandon if you consider that they have a				false

		3896						LN		149		3		false		               3   delinquent account.				false

		3897						LN		149		4		false		               4             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  Their account				false

		3898						LN		149		5		false		               5   has to be in good standing.				false

		3899						LN		149		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  And they have to continue to				false

		3900						LN		149		7		false		               7   pay, at a minimum, standby fees until and unless you				false

		3901						LN		149		8		false		               8   approve the abandonment application.				false

		3902						LN		149		9		false		               9             THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		3903						LN		149		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  And there is no -- there is no				false

		3904						LN		149		11		false		              11   requirement in the tariff that would actually state that				false

		3905						LN		149		12		false		              12   you have to approve the abandonment.				false

		3906						LN		149		13		false		              13             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, the standby fees are two				false

		3907						LN		149		14		false		              14   years.				false

		3908						LN		149		15		false		              15             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  Actually, there is				false

		3909						LN		149		16		false		              16   in the tariff.  It does stipulate in the tariff what the				false

		3910						LN		149		17		false		              17   requirements for abandonment are.				false

		3911						LN		149		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  For the customer.  But it				false

		3912						LN		149		19		false		              19   doesn't put any obligation on you to approve it.  As I				false

		3913						LN		149		20		false		              20   read the tariff, it looks like you could just simply				false

		3914						LN		149		21		false		              21   decline to approve an application for abandonment and				false

		3915						LN		149		22		false		              22   continue to require the customer to pay standby fees				false

		3916						LN		149		23		false		              23   into perpetuity.				false

		3917						LN		149		24		false		              24             MR. LONG:  I don't think that's the				false

		3918						LN		149		25		false		              25   understanding of the district.  If it's written that				false

		3919						PG		150		0		false		page 150				false

		3920						LN		150		1		false		               1   way, perhaps it needs revised.				false

		3921						LN		150		2		false		               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  There's a fair bit in the				false

		3922						LN		150		3		false		               3   tariff that I think could use a good hard edit.  Just				false

		3923						LN		150		4		false		               4   throw that out.				false

		3924						LN		150		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  Sure, and if there are things the				false

		3925						LN		150		6		false		               6   commission would like to see changed, we will certainly				false

		3926						LN		150		7		false		               7   consider that.  I mean, the district is working with				false

		3927						LN		150		8		false		               8   very, very, very, very limited resources.  Most of this				false

		3928						LN		150		9		false		               9   was frankly done by Mr. Shortreed on an unpaid basis for				false

		3929						LN		150		10		false		              10   years.				false

		3930						LN		150		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		3931						LN		150		12		false		              12             MR. LONG:  So recognize the district is in a				false

		3932						LN		150		13		false		              13   tough situation all around.				false

		3933						LN		150		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Mr. Hogelin?				false

		3934						LN		150		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes, and we did -- Mr. Shortreed				false

		3935						LN		150		16		false		              16   was correct.  Under Section 8.02 of the tariff, it does				false

		3936						LN		150		17		false		              17   provide the exceptions.				false

		3937						LN		150		18		false		              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		3938						LN		150		19		false		              19             MR. HOGELIN:  For that.				false

		3939						LN		150		20		false		              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) It does state that it is at				false

		3940						LN		150		21		false		              21   the sole discretion of the district, as long as these				false

		3941						LN		150		22		false		              22   conditions apply, meaning that just because you qualify,				false

		3942						LN		150		23		false		              23   you still -- correct me if I am wrong, you still are the				false

		3943						LN		150		24		false		              24   one that makes that determination, correct?				false

		3944						LN		150		25		false		              25        A.   Based upon the rules, yes.				false

		3945						PG		151		0		false		page 151				false

		3946						LN		151		1		false		               1        Q.   Well, it says here, at your sole discretion.				false

		3947						LN		151		2		false		               2   So if they qualify, you could still reject them,				false

		3948						LN		151		3		false		               3   correct?				false

		3949						LN		151		4		false		               4        A.   I suppose that it could be perceived that way,				false

		3950						LN		151		5		false		               5   yes.				false

		3951						LN		151		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.				false

		3952						LN		151		7		false		               7        A.   But as your Honor just pointed out, we seem to				false

		3953						LN		151		8		false		               8   have some things we need to edit in our tariff.				false

		3954						LN		151		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  Well, to me it seems pretty clear that				false

		3955						LN		151		10		false		              10   what this is stating, though, that the sole discretion				false

		3956						LN		151		11		false		              11   of the district under the following conditions.  And				false

		3957						LN		151		12		false		              12   this is something -- and I just want to be real clear.				false

		3958						LN		151		13		false		              13   This isn't something that the board agrees on.  This is				false

		3959						LN		151		14		false		              14   something that -- when it says "the district," is that				false

		3960						LN		151		15		false		              15   just you or is that the board?				false

		3961						LN		151		16		false		              16        A.   By the authority given to me by the board, I				false

		3962						LN		151		17		false		              17   follow the rules that they approve.				false

		3963						LN		151		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  And who makes up the board?				false

		3964						LN		151		19		false		              19        A.   What do you mean, sir?				false

		3965						LN		151		20		false		              20        Q.   Who makes up the board?  How is the board				false

		3966						LN		151		21		false		              21   created?				false

		3967						LN		151		22		false		              22        A.   The board is created by appointment from the				false

		3968						LN		151		23		false		              23   Garfield County Commission.				false

		3969						LN		151		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  And how many board members are there?				false

		3970						LN		151		25		false		              25        A.   Five.				false

		3971						PG		152		0		false		page 152				false

		3972						LN		152		1		false		               1        Q.   And is there any training that the board goes				false

		3973						LN		152		2		false		               2   through?				false

		3974						LN		152		3		false		               3        A.   Yes, there is required training in accordance				false

		3975						LN		152		4		false		               4   with the Open and Public Meetings Act, as well as a				false

		3976						LN		152		5		false		               5   special service district.				false

		3977						LN		152		6		false		               6        Q.   So in August of 2015, was there a -- was the				false

		3978						LN		152		7		false		               7   board meeting that was -- that you have testified was				false

		3979						LN		152		8		false		               8   also a public meeting, was that a training meeting for				false

		3980						LN		152		9		false		               9   the board?				false

		3981						LN		152		10		false		              10        A.   Yes, as a matter of fact it was.  The first				false

		3982						LN		152		11		false		              11   half of the meeting was set as an executive session				false

		3983						LN		152		12		false		              12   where LeGrand Bitter from the UASD came down and				false

		3984						LN		152		13		false		              13   provided the board with their annual training.				false

		3985						LN		152		14		false		              14        Q.   So first, you trained them the first half of				false

		3986						LN		152		15		false		              15   the part, and then the second half of the part addressed				false

		3987						LN		152		16		false		              16   the tariff; is that correct?				false

		3988						LN		152		17		false		              17        A.   I believe it is, if you are speaking to the				false

		3989						LN		152		18		false		              18   joint settlement stipulation.				false

		3990						LN		152		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  So prior to that meeting, did the board				false

		3991						LN		152		20		false		              20   have any knowledge of the tariff?				false

		3992						LN		152		21		false		              21        A.   Did the board members have any knowledge of				false

		3993						LN		152		22		false		              22   the tariff?  Absolutely.				false

		3994						LN		152		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  They just hadn't been trained.				false

		3995						LN		152		24		false		              24             (Discussion off the record.)				false

		3996						LN		152		25		false		              25             MR. LONG:  The training that Mr. Shortreed and				false

		3997						PG		153		0		false		page 153				false

		3998						LN		153		1		false		               1   I think Mr. Hogelin is referring to is simply the annual				false

		3999						LN		153		2		false		               2   required training by the Utah Open -- required by the				false

		4000						LN		153		3		false		               3   Utah Open and Public Meetings Act.				false

		4001						LN		153		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		4002						LN		153		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  We unfortunately don't have an				false

		4003						LN		153		6		false		               6   expert in running an electric district coming to train				false

		4004						LN		153		7		false		               7   the board members.  There are unfortunately a severe				false

		4005						LN		153		8		false		               8   lack of those.				false

		4006						LN		153		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.				false

		4007						LN		153		10		false		              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Mr. Shortreed, are you aware				false

		4008						LN		153		11		false		              11   of how many property owners reside full time in Ticaboo?				false

		4009						LN		153		12		false		              12        A.   I can estimate pretty closely, yes.				false

		4010						LN		153		13		false		              13        Q.   How many would that be?				false

		4011						LN		153		14		false		              14        A.   Thirty to 40, depending upon how many stay				false

		4012						LN		153		15		false		              15   during the off season.				false

		4013						LN		153		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.				false

		4014						LN		153		17		false		              17        A.   That's full-time, year-round residents.				false

		4015						LN		153		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  30 to 40?				false

		4016						LN		153		19		false		              19        A.   Yes, sir.				false

		4017						LN		153		20		false		              20        Q.   Now, is -- so from the briefings you had				false

		4018						LN		153		21		false		              21   stated that the office and your house are kind of the				false

		4019						LN		153		22		false		              22   same; is that correct?				false

		4020						LN		153		23		false		              23        A.   That is correct.  The district doesn't have				false

		4021						LN		153		24		false		              24   the budget to be able to build an office.				false

		4022						LN		153		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  And so --				false

		4023						PG		154		0		false		page 154				false

		4024						LN		154		1		false		               1             MR. LONG:  I'd like to point out, this is well				false

		4025						LN		154		2		false		               2   beyond the scope of what this hearing was intended to				false

		4026						LN		154		3		false		               3   be, based on the commission's order.				false

		4027						LN		154		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Where are you headed,				false

		4028						LN		154		5		false		               5   Mr. Hogelin?				false

		4029						LN		154		6		false		               6             MR. HOGELIN:  I am just going off what he				false

		4030						LN		154		7		false		               7   testified.  He was talking about -- he testified today				false

		4031						LN		154		8		false		               8   at the hearing that he makes the tariff visible, so I				false

		4032						LN		154		9		false		               9   just wanted to ask him a question about it.				false

		4033						LN		154		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, okay.  Where is it?				false

		4034						LN		154		11		false		              11             MR. HOGELIN:  He opened the door so...				false

		4035						LN		154		12		false		              12        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So in your testimony you said				false

		4036						LN		154		13		false		              13   that you make the tariff, upon request.  But is the				false

		4037						LN		154		14		false		              14   tariff visible to people who come into that office,				false

		4038						LN		154		15		false		              15   slash, home?				false

		4039						LN		154		16		false		              16        A.   The notice is visible.  The tariff is				false

		4040						LN		154		17		false		              17   available for inspection.  The tariff is actually kept				false

		4041						LN		154		18		false		              18   in a three ring binder with all revisions as they were				false

		4042						LN		154		19		false		              19   filed with the commission.				false

		4043						LN		154		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  So no -- it's impossible for anybody to				false

		4044						LN		154		21		false		              21   look at the tariff without your presence; is that				false

		4045						LN		154		22		false		              22   correct?				false

		4046						LN		154		23		false		              23        A.   No, not necessarily.  They can look at our				false

		4047						LN		154		24		false		              24   tariff online at the Public Service Commission's				false

		4048						LN		154		25		false		              25   website.				false

		4049						PG		155		0		false		page 155				false

		4050						LN		155		1		false		               1        Q.   Well, but that's electronically.  I'm talking				false

		4051						LN		155		2		false		               2   about the one that's located at the office.				false

		4052						LN		155		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just tell me.  If I come knock				false

		4053						LN		155		4		false		               4   on your door and say, "I want to see the tariff," what				false

		4054						LN		155		5		false		               5   happens next?				false

		4055						LN		155		6		false		               6             THE WITNESS:  We schedule an appointment for				false

		4056						LN		155		7		false		               7   you to come in and see the tariff.				false

		4057						LN		155		8		false		               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4058						LN		155		9		false		               9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you ever refused to make				false

		4059						LN		155		10		false		              10   the tariff available to Ms. Seamons or anyone acting on				false

		4060						LN		155		11		false		              11   Ms. Seamons' behalf?				false

		4061						LN		155		12		false		              12        A.   No.				false

		4062						LN		155		13		false		              13        Q.   Okay.  Have you ever refused -- have you ever				false

		4063						LN		155		14		false		              14   -- on February 18th, do you recall Ms. Seamons'				false

		4064						LN		155		15		false		              15   daughter, Mary Broadbent, requesting the availability of				false

		4065						LN		155		16		false		              16   the tariff at a public meeting?				false

		4066						LN		155		17		false		              17        A.   No.  I don't recall it, but that doesn't mean				false

		4067						LN		155		18		false		              18   it didn't happen.  I would have to go back and check the				false

		4068						LN		155		19		false		              19   meeting minutes.				false

		4069						LN		155		20		false		              20        Q.   So if you don't recall that, I mean, do you				false

		4070						LN		155		21		false		              21   recall rejecting her request to make an appointment to				false

		4071						LN		155		22		false		              22   come and view the tariff?				false

		4072						LN		155		23		false		              23        A.   No.  I don't recall that because I wouldn't				false

		4073						LN		155		24		false		              24   reject a request for an appointment.				false

		4074						LN		155		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  So you don't recall that.  You -- okay.				false
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		4076						LN		156		1		false		               1   I think we have already -- I think the commission				false

		4077						LN		156		2		false		               2   already discussed the date that the notices were sent				false

		4078						LN		156		3		false		               3   out.				false

		4079						LN		156		4		false		               4             We don't -- do we have a date on when the				false

		4080						LN		156		5		false		               5   notices were sent out in the March -- let's see, in				false

		4081						LN		156		6		false		               6   April for the April meeting of 2013, when they were				false

		4082						LN		156		7		false		               7   mailed?				false

		4083						LN		156		8		false		               8        A.   We don't -- yeah.  We don't have -- I'm sorry.				false

		4084						LN		156		9		false		               9   We don't have a specific date.				false

		4085						LN		156		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  You had testified that there was a				false

		4086						LN		156		11		false		              11   meeting in 2013 where you addressed the standby fees, a				false

		4087						LN		156		12		false		              12   public meeting.  Do you recall that?				false

		4088						LN		156		13		false		              13        A.   Yes.				false

		4089						LN		156		14		false		              14        Q.   And then you said that Ms. Seamons did not				false

		4090						LN		156		15		false		              15   provide any comments.  Do you know if Ms. Seamons was at				false

		4091						LN		156		16		false		              16   that meeting?				false

		4092						LN		156		17		false		              17        A.   I would have to go back and double-check the				false

		4093						LN		156		18		false		              18   records.  But to the best of my recollection, she was				false

		4094						LN		156		19		false		              19   not present.				false

		4095						LN		156		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.				false

		4096						LN		156		21		false		              21             MR. LONG:  I'd like to make a clarification.				false

		4097						LN		156		22		false		              22   I think Mr. Shortreed's testimony was as to a meeting in				false

		4098						LN		156		23		false		              23   Docket 13-2508-T01, which, as discussed previously, was				false

		4099						LN		156		24		false		              24   the docket where the district implemented different				false

		4100						LN		156		25		false		              25   electric service rate schedules.				false

		4101						PG		157		0		false		page 157				false

		4102						LN		157		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  I was just trying to -- he made				false

		4103						LN		157		2		false		               2   the statement that she didn't make any statements.  I				false

		4104						LN		157		3		false		               3   was just trying to see if he recollect that she was even				false

		4105						LN		157		4		false		               4   there.				false

		4106						LN		157		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4107						LN		157		6		false		               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) You had testified that you				false

		4108						LN		157		7		false		               7   recall doing the mailings yourself.				false

		4109						LN		157		8		false		               8        A.   That is correct.				false

		4110						LN		157		9		false		               9        Q.   Do you recall specifically doing a mailing to				false

		4111						LN		157		10		false		              10   Ms. Seamons?				false

		4112						LN		157		11		false		              11        A.   Yes, to all customers.				false

		4113						LN		157		12		false		              12        Q.   Okay.  And that you recall doing that for each				false

		4114						LN		157		13		false		              13   year?				false

		4115						LN		157		14		false		              14        A.   Yes.				false

		4116						LN		157		15		false		              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  That's all my questions.				false

		4117						LN		157		16		false		              16   Thank you.				false

		4118						LN		157		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So it's after noon, and				false

		4119						LN		157		18		false		              18   I'd like to try to wrap up, and we can -- I'll certainly				false

		4120						LN		157		19		false		              19   give you time to do closing argument if you want to.				false

		4121						LN		157		20		false		              20   But since, I think, we are going to be some posthearing				false

		4122						LN		157		21		false		              21   briefing, we can maybe do closing argument as part of				false

		4123						LN		157		22		false		              22   that.  But I'll leave it to counsel as to what you would				false

		4124						LN		157		23		false		              23   prefer.				false

		4125						LN		157		24		false		              24             MR. LONG:  I am happy to leave that into a				false

		4126						LN		157		25		false		              25   posthearing brief.  I think we have some issues that				false
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		4128						LN		158		1		false		               1   need, need more discussion.  I do have a couple more				false

		4129						LN		158		2		false		               2   redirect questions.				false

		4130						LN		158		3		false		               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Some redirect.  Go ahead.				false

		4131						LN		158		4		false		               4             MR. LONG:  But I expect to be very short.				false

		4132						LN		158		5		false		               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.				false

		4133						LN		158		6		false		               6                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		4134						LN		158		7		false		               7   BY MR. LONG:				false

		4135						LN		158		8		false		               8        Q.   Mr. Shortreed, can you describe the process				false

		4136						LN		158		9		false		               9   for sending utility bills every month.  Just describe				false

		4137						LN		158		10		false		              10   the process that you go through in order to send out				false

		4138						LN		158		11		false		              11   utility bills.				false

		4139						LN		158		12		false		              12        A.   Meter readings are entered into a utility				false

		4140						LN		158		13		false		              13   billing system that we have, and then those readings are				false

		4141						LN		158		14		false		              14   printed out onto either three-by-five postcards that go				false

		4142						LN		158		15		false		              15   out to the customers, or in some cases we have several				false

		4143						LN		158		16		false		              16   customers who receive what's called group billing, which				false

		4144						LN		158		17		false		              17   is an eight and a half by 11 sheets of paper.				false

		4145						LN		158		18		false		              18             One page summarizes all of the accounts that				false

		4146						LN		158		19		false		              19   are being billed in the group billing, in the group, and				false

		4147						LN		158		20		false		              20   then following pages that itemize and individualize each				false

		4148						LN		158		21		false		              21   one of those accounts.				false

		4149						LN		158		22		false		              22        Q.   So your testimony is that you send a bill out				false

		4150						LN		158		23		false		              23   every month for every account?				false

		4151						LN		158		24		false		              24        A.   That is correct.				false

		4152						LN		158		25		false		              25        Q.   In the various audit history reports				false

		4153						PG		159		0		false		page 159				false

		4154						LN		159		1		false		               1   introduced by Ms. Seamons; you know, for example, I am				false

		4155						LN		159		2		false		               2   looking at the one that's marked Exhibit 7.  There is a				false

		4156						LN		159		3		false		               3   line item on some dates that says "notice printed for,"				false

		4157						LN		159		4		false		               4   and then a certain amount and a due on date.  Can you				false

		4158						LN		159		5		false		               5   describe what that, what that entry on the audit history				false

		4159						LN		159		6		false		               6   means?				false

		4160						LN		159		7		false		               7        A.   That's a system-generated notice in the				false

		4161						LN		159		8		false		               8   billing software that notifies the customer on a				false

		4162						LN		159		9		false		               9   separate piece of paper, which is eight and a half by				false

		4163						LN		159		10		false		              10   11, that their account is past due and what the amount				false

		4164						LN		159		11		false		              11   past due is.				false

		4165						LN		159		12		false		              12             In some applicable circumstances, it will also				false

		4166						LN		159		13		false		              13   have a termination notice of typically 20 or 21 days,				false

		4167						LN		159		14		false		              14   notifying the customer, if they don't pay the bill				false

		4168						LN		159		15		false		              15   within that time, then their service will be turned off.				false

		4169						LN		159		16		false		              16        Q.   So to summarize, if we look at the audit				false

		4170						LN		159		17		false		              17   history for a given account, the customer receives a				false

		4171						LN		159		18		false		              18   bill for each monthly -- each set of monthly charges,				false

		4172						LN		159		19		false		              19   and the notice lines are simply an extraordinary notice				false

		4173						LN		159		20		false		              20   saying the account is past due or has some other issue?				false

		4174						LN		159		21		false		              21        A.   Yes.  There will be a line on the bill that				false

		4175						LN		159		22		false		              22   says the account is past due.				false

		4176						LN		159		23		false		              23        Q.   But the sending of a regular monthly bill				false

		4177						LN		159		24		false		              24   doesn't generate an entry on the audit history?				false

		4178						LN		159		25		false		              25        A.   No.  That is the audit history.				false
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		4180						LN		160		1		false		               1        Q.   Have -- Mr. Hogelin asked you some questions				false

		4181						LN		160		2		false		               2   about, about the approval of longtime tenants to keep a				false

		4182						LN		160		3		false		               3   tenant's utility account.  In your previous testimony				false

		4183						LN		160		4		false		               4   you mentioned that you were one of those tenants.				false

		4184						LN		160		5		false		               5   Mr. Hogelin implied from reading the tariff that the				false

		4185						LN		160		6		false		               6   district had sole discretion in determining that.				false

		4186						LN		160		7		false		               7             I guess, is any particular action required by				false

		4187						LN		160		8		false		               8   the district?  If we have a long-term tenant, and				false

		4188						LN		160		9		false		               9   nothing is changed, that tenant is still present, does				false

		4189						LN		160		10		false		              10   the district take any action?  Or does the district need				false

		4190						LN		160		11		false		              11   to take any action to keep that -- the tenant's account?				false

		4191						LN		160		12		false		              12        A.   No.  It just stays current.				false

		4192						LN		160		13		false		              13        Q.   We also talked about the abandonment				false

		4193						LN		160		14		false		              14   application, and as I understand it, when a person				false

		4194						LN		160		15		false		              15   abandons their utility taps, it essentially returns the				false

		4195						LN		160		16		false		              16   property to an undeveloped state as far as the district				false

		4196						LN		160		17		false		              17   is concerned and relieves the district of any obligation				false

		4197						LN		160		18		false		              18   to provide utility service.  Is that -- is that a fair				false

		4198						LN		160		19		false		              19   description?				false

		4199						LN		160		20		false		              20        A.   Yes.				false

		4200						LN		160		21		false		              21        Q.   And thereby relieving the district of any				false

		4201						LN		160		22		false		              22   costs that it would incur to, say, for example, make				false

		4202						LN		160		23		false		              23   sure the district's generators have sufficient capacity				false

		4203						LN		160		24		false		              24   to serve those properties?				false

		4204						LN		160		25		false		              25        A.   That is correct.				false
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		4206						LN		161		1		false		               1        Q.   And for the abandonment application,				false

		4207						LN		161		2		false		               2   Mr. Hogelin asked some questions about the process.  Has				false

		4208						LN		161		3		false		               3   the district ever denied an abandonment application for				false

		4209						LN		161		4		false		               4   a property owner that has met the requirements set forth				false

		4210						LN		161		5		false		               5   in the tariff?				false

		4211						LN		161		6		false		               6        A.   No.				false

		4212						LN		161		7		false		               7        Q.   And I guess one final question as to the				false

		4213						LN		161		8		false		               8   billing process.  Has the billing process you described				false

		4214						LN		161		9		false		               9   been the same since, say, January of 2013?				false

		4215						LN		161		10		false		              10        A.   Yes.				false

		4216						LN		161		11		false		              11             MR. LONG:  I have no further questions.				false

		4217						LN		161		12		false		              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am sorry to drag this				false

		4218						LN		161		13		false		              13   out further, but you have mentioned some things that				false

		4219						LN		161		14		false		              14   reminded me of some questions.  On the -- we have the				false

		4220						LN		161		15		false		              15   letter from the Hills who were the tenants requesting				false

		4221						LN		161		16		false		              16   discontinuance of service.  And then we have testimony				false

		4222						LN		161		17		false		              17   from Mrs. Seamons that they brought the account current				false

		4223						LN		161		18		false		              18   sometime later in order to reestablish service, but it				false

		4224						LN		161		19		false		              19   was once again discontinued by the district and on the				false

		4225						LN		161		20		false		              20   district's decision.				false
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		4233						LN		162		2		false		               2             THE WITNESS:  At the time that they wanted to				false

		4234						LN		162		3		false		               3   reinstate service.				false

		4235						LN		162		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		4236						LN		162		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  Thus turn it back on.				false

		4237						LN		162		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		4238						LN		162		7		false		               7             THE WITNESS:  Fees had accrued that had not				false

		4239						LN		162		8		false		               8   been paid.				false

		4240						LN		162		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		4241						LN		162		10		false		              10             THE WITNESS:  And then of course, there were				false

		4242						LN		162		11		false		              11   turn-on, turn-off fees that were associated with that as				false

		4243						LN		162		12		false		              12   well.				false

		4244						LN		162		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4245						LN		162		14		false		              14             THE WITNESS:  In that particular circumstance,				false

		4246						LN		162		15		false		              15   the tenants at the time actually paid the unpaid fees.				false

		4247						LN		162		16		false		              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4248						LN		162		17		false		              17             THE WITNESS:  Directly to the district, and				false

		4249						LN		162		18		false		              18   then service was reinstated obviously, at the customer's				false

		4250						LN		162		19		false		              19   request, which is the property owner's request.				false

		4251						LN		162		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4252						LN		162		21		false		              21             THE WITNESS:  Under a specific rate schedule.				false

		4253						LN		162		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4254						LN		162		23		false		              23             THE WITNESS:  Of which there was an				false

		4255						LN		162		24		false		              24   application or an e-mail or both that was done for that.				false

		4256						LN		162		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4257						PG		163		0		false		page 163				false

		4258						LN		163		1		false		               1             THE WITNESS:  And then the -- that particular				false

		4259						LN		163		2		false		               2   tenant then vacated the property, the one that we had				false

		4260						LN		163		3		false		               3   turned it on for, ma'am.				false

		4261						LN		163		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  After how long?				false

		4262						LN		163		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  Oh, I think they were there a				false

		4263						LN		163		6		false		               6   year, ma'am.  I think it was about a year.  They vacated				false

		4264						LN		163		7		false		               7   the property.  During an inspection and audit of our				false

		4265						LN		163		8		false		               8   meters in February of this year, we sent out a number of				false

		4266						LN		163		9		false		               9   notices to customers advising them of our findings in				false

		4267						LN		163		10		false		              10   the inspection and during the audit, things such as				false

		4268						LN		163		11		false		              11   meters that were previously turned on were now turned				false

		4269						LN		163		12		false		              12   off.				false

		4270						LN		163		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right, okay.				false

		4271						LN		163		14		false		              14             THE WITNESS:  And other elementary				false

		4272						LN		163		15		false		              15   inspections, like accessibility to the meter to be able				false

		4273						LN		163		16		false		              16   to read it or things like that.  We then notified the				false

		4274						LN		163		17		false		              17   customers of our findings, and in cases where tampering				false

		4275						LN		163		18		false		              18   was witnessed -- and we did take photographs and				false

		4276						LN		163		19		false		              19   provided those photographs to the customers in the				false

		4277						LN		163		20		false		              20   inspection reports -- we notified the customer that this				false

		4278						LN		163		21		false		              21   was a warning.				false

		4279						LN		163		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		4280						LN		163		23		false		              23             THE WITNESS:  We were not going to impose a				false

		4281						LN		163		24		false		              24   tampering fee right away.  We just wanted to make sure				false

		4282						LN		163		25		false		              25   that they were aware that we found this problem.  If				false

		4283						PG		164		0		false		page 164				false

		4284						LN		164		1		false		               1   they need their service turned back on, they need to				false

		4285						LN		164		2		false		               2   notify the district and schedule that turn-on service at				false

		4286						LN		164		3		false		               3   the meter.				false

		4287						LN		164		4		false		               4             Shortly following, sometime in April, I				false

		4288						LN		164		5		false		               5   believe it was, a meter started to show usage that was				false

		4289						LN		164		6		false		               6   previously recorded as having been turned off.				false

		4290						LN		164		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are we talking all about				false

		4291						LN		164		8		false		               8   water?				false

		4292						LN		164		9		false		               9             THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		4293						LN		164		10		false		              10             MS. BROADBENT:  Yes.				false

		4294						LN		164		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Never mind.  All right.				false

		4295						LN		164		12		false		              12   Thanks.				false

		4296						LN		164		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		4297						LN		164		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So any recross,				false

		4298						LN		164		15		false		              15   Mr. Hogelin?				false

		4299						LN		164		16		false		              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Nothing relevant.				false

		4300						LN		164		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So again, I apologize				false

		4301						LN		164		18		false		              18   to everyone for the error in the docket number.  The				false

		4302						LN		164		19		false		              19   docket number that I need some help with is the 2013-T02				false

		4303						LN		164		20		false		              20   docket.  And what I need there is information as to when				false

		4304						LN		164		21		false		              21   the public meeting was held in which the standby fees				false

		4305						LN		164		22		false		              22   were explained and introduced to customers.				false

		4306						LN		164		23		false		              23             I also need information about how that meeting				false

		4307						LN		164		24		false		              24   was noticed to customers.  It would be very helpful to				false

		4308						LN		164		25		false		              25   me to see the monthly bills that were sent to				false

		4309						PG		165		0		false		page 165				false

		4310						LN		165		1		false		               1   Ms. Seamons.  I don't know if either party has that or				false

		4311						LN		165		2		false		               2   has the ability to --				false

		4312						LN		165		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  We have -- we have some monthly				false

		4313						LN		165		4		false		               4   bills that were sent.				false

		4314						LN		165		5		false		               5             MS. BROADBENT:  Right now?				false

		4315						LN		165		6		false		               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, we'll provide it.				false

		4316						LN		165		7		false		               7             MS. BROADBENT:  Yes, we have current ones.				false

		4317						LN		165		8		false		               8             MR. HOGELIN:  Shhh.				false

		4318						LN		165		9		false		               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am also interested as				false

		4319						LN		165		10		false		              10   to the 15-T01 docket that was subject to settlement, I				false

		4320						LN		165		11		false		              11   am interested in the parties clarifying whether a				false

		4321						LN		165		12		false		              12   per-day tampering charge was introduced in that docket.				false

		4322						LN		165		13		false		              13   And I am interested in better understanding whether a				false

		4323						LN		165		14		false		              14   public meeting was noticed and held to present and				false

		4324						LN		165		15		false		              15   explain to customers a per-day tampering charge.				false

		4325						LN		165		16		false		              16             The commission does not regulate TUID's				false

		4326						LN		165		17		false		              17   provision of water, so to the extent that the testimony				false

		4327						LN		165		18		false		              18   today has dealt with standby fees as to water service or				false

		4328						LN		165		19		false		              19   discontinuation of water service, the order will not go,				false

		4329						LN		165		20		false		              20   go into that.				false

		4330						LN		165		21		false		              21             And then of course, the parties are welcome to				false

		4331						LN		165		22		false		              22   provide closing argument as to the testimony and the				false

		4332						LN		165		23		false		              23   evidence that's been provided today.  How long do you				false

		4333						LN		165		24		false		              24   want to file these briefs?				false

		4334						LN		165		25		false		              25             MR. LONG:  I would suggest 30 days.				false

		4335						PG		166		0		false		page 166				false

		4336						LN		166		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Filed simultaneously?				false

		4337						LN		166		2		false		               2             MR. LONG:  That's fine.				false

		4338						LN		166		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  That's fine.				false

		4339						LN		166		4		false		               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.				false

		4340						LN		166		5		false		               5             MR. LONG:  Maybe as a point of				false

		4341						LN		166		6		false		               6   clarification --				false

		4342						LN		166		7		false		               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		4343						LN		166		8		false		               8             MR. LONG:  Are you planning on issuing an				false

		4344						LN		166		9		false		               9   order setting out these questions that you would like to				false

		4345						LN		166		10		false		              10   see additional information on?				false

		4346						LN		166		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Would that be helpful?				false

		4347						LN		166		12		false		              12             MR. LONG:  Yes, I think it would be.				false

		4348						LN		166		13		false		              13             MR. HOGELIN:  Very much.				false

		4349						LN		166		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So I'll do that				false

		4350						LN		166		15		false		              15   today.				false

		4351						LN		166		16		false		              16             MR. LONG:  And while I'm --				false

		4352						LN		166		17		false		              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  And have I missed anything?				false

		4353						LN		166		18		false		              18   Is there anything else that you feel like needs to be				false

		4354						LN		166		19		false		              19   addressed or that you want to address?				false

		4355						LN		166		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, I would like to address				false

		4356						LN		166		21		false		              21   one thing that's been brought up by TUID.  It's my				false

		4357						LN		166		22		false		              22   understanding that what's been represented to the				false

		4358						LN		166		23		false		              23   commission is that they had an August 27th meeting which				false

		4359						LN		166		24		false		              24   supposedly fit the requirement of the -- of the				false

		4360						LN		166		25		false		              25   mandated --				false

		4361						PG		167		0		false		page 167				false

		4362						LN		167		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  The stipulation and the order				false

		4363						LN		167		2		false		               2   approving the stipulation.				false

		4364						LN		167		3		false		               3             MR. HOGELIN:  -- for the board meeting that				false

		4365						LN		167		4		false		               4   was supposed to happen between September 10th and				false

		4366						LN		167		5		false		               5   October 10th.				false

		4367						LN		167		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		4368						LN		167		7		false		               7             MR. HOGELIN:  I just want to make a statement				false

		4369						LN		167		8		false		               8   regarding that, because one -- in the response from the				false

		4370						LN		167		9		false		               9   commission, you know, it's been made very clear that,				false

		4371						LN		167		10		false		              10   based upon that meeting, that sets a deadline, a 30 day				false

		4372						LN		167		11		false		              11   deadline for a rehearing with regards to any issues				false

		4373						LN		167		12		false		              12   concerning the tariff.				false

		4374						LN		167		13		false		              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		4375						LN		167		14		false		              14             MR. HOGELIN:  And I, I don't quite understand				false

		4376						LN		167		15		false		              15   the argument that August 27th meeting could replace the				false

		4377						LN		167		16		false		              16   other meeting, just by e-mails being made between				false

		4378						LN		167		17		false		              17   individuals without there being a due process of that 30				false

		4379						LN		167		18		false		              18   days for any and all --				false

		4380						LN		167		19		false		              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.				false

		4381						LN		167		20		false		              20             MR. HOGELIN:  -- people of interest.				false

		4382						LN		167		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I'll just tell you some of				false

		4383						LN		167		22		false		              22   the things that I would anticipate discussing with the				false

		4384						LN		167		23		false		              23   commission, is whether the board meeting that was held				false

		4385						LN		167		24		false		              24   prior to the date the commission approved the				false

		4386						LN		167		25		false		              25   stipulation is, is of concern to them or whether they				false

		4387						PG		168		0		false		page 168				false

		4388						LN		168		1		false		               1   feel like that board meeting is okay.  And also whether				false

		4389						LN		168		2		false		               2   they consider that there needed to be a public meeting				false

		4390						LN		168		3		false		               3   noticed at some point.				false

		4391						LN		168		4		false		               4             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, my concern goes farther				false

		4392						LN		168		5		false		               5   than that.				false

		4393						LN		168		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.				false

		4394						LN		168		7		false		               7             MR. HOGELIN:  Because if the commission says,				false

		4395						LN		168		8		false		               8   "Okay.  The August 27th fulfilled the requirement that				false

		4396						LN		168		9		false		               9   was supposed to be in those."				false

		4397						LN		168		10		false		              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		4398						LN		168		11		false		              11             MR. HOGELIN:  How in the world are -- was				false

		4399						LN		168		12		false		              12   Ms. Seamons supposed to know that that then started the				false

		4400						LN		168		13		false		              13   30 day time limit to a request for rehearing?				false

		4401						LN		168		14		false		              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I'm not sure that we				false

		4402						LN		168		15		false		              15   actually have anything on that issue in the record.  The				false

		4403						LN		168		16		false		              16   30 day -- the 30 day notice -- are you talking about the				false

		4404						LN		168		17		false		              17   30 day request for rehearing before the commission?				false

		4405						LN		168		18		false		              18             MR. HOGELIN:  In the December 29th, 2015,				false

		4406						LN		168		19		false		              19   memorandum to the original complaint that had been				false

		4407						LN		168		20		false		              20   filed --				false

		4408						LN		168		21		false		              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		4409						LN		168		22		false		              22             MR. HOGELIN:  -- from the division to the				false

		4410						LN		168		23		false		              23   commission, it was brought up that the order --				false

		4411						LN		168		24		false		              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  She didn't intervene, right?				false

		4412						LN		168		25		false		              25   We're talking about --				false

		4413						PG		169		0		false		page 169				false

		4414						LN		169		1		false		               1             MR. HOGELIN:  For review of rehearing for 30				false

		4415						LN		169		2		false		               2   days after the issuance, but none was requested by any				false

		4416						LN		169		3		false		               3   party.  In other words, what was brought to light or				false

		4417						LN		169		4		false		               4   what was argued is that after September 10th, there was				false

		4418						LN		169		5		false		               5   30 days to which the request should have or could have				false

		4419						LN		169		6		false		               6   been made with regards to consultation of the tariff.				false

		4420						LN		169		7		false		               7   And because that wasn't done, you know, Ms. Seamons'				false

		4421						LN		169		8		false		               8   formal complaint was moot.				false

		4422						LN		169		9		false		               9             And so I am just saying that that's another				false

		4423						LN		169		10		false		              10   issue.  Based off the testimony -- and I appreciate that				false

		4424						LN		169		11		false		              11   it may not be an issue that's been brought up or has				false

		4425						LN		169		12		false		              12   been contemplated by the order.  But I don't think it's				false

		4426						LN		169		13		false		              13   something that can be neglected.				false

		4427						LN		169		14		false		              14             If it is determined that the timeline was				false

		4428						LN		169		15		false		              15   changed, then I think the commission does need to take				false

		4429						LN		169		16		false		              16   into consideration, how would that 30 day objection be,				false

		4430						LN		169		17		false		              17   you know, administered if, you know, the parties of				false

		4431						LN		169		18		false		              18   interest didn't realize that the August 27th meeting was				false

		4432						LN		169		19		false		              19   the one --				false

		4433						LN		169		20		false		              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  I see.				false

		4434						LN		169		21		false		              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Because not everybody, not all				false

		4435						LN		169		22		false		              22   the property owners were involved, from my				false

		4436						LN		169		23		false		              23   understanding, in these e-mails that were saying that				false

		4437						LN		169		24		false		              24   this August 27th meeting was okay.				false

		4438						LN		169		25		false		              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I understand.				false

		4439						PG		170		0		false		page 170				false

		4440						LN		170		1		false		               1             MR. LONG:  I -- perhaps you can clarify for				false

		4441						LN		170		2		false		               2   me.  I'm not sure I understand.  Is it an issue that				false

		4442						LN		170		3		false		               3   Ms. Seamons would have requested review or rehearing of				false

		4443						LN		170		4		false		               4   the commission's September 10th order had some date been				false

		4444						LN		170		5		false		               5   different?				false

		4445						LN		170		6		false		               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I -- the question is, if				false

		4446						LN		170		7		false		               7   a customer had read that order and had interpreted it as				false

		4447						LN		170		8		false		               8   requiring a meeting to be held between September 30th				false

		4448						LN		170		9		false		               9   and October 30th; or is that right?				false

		4449						LN		170		10		false		              10             MR. HOGELIN:  10th.				false

		4450						LN		170		11		false		              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  September 10th and October				false

		4451						LN		170		12		false		              12   10th and saw no meeting scheduled or held there, would				false

		4452						LN		170		13		false		              13   that customer reasonably have assumed that there was no				false

		4453						LN		170		14		false		              14   need to request rehearing or reconsideration because the				false

		4454						LN		170		15		false		              15   stipulation had not been complied with, and the order				false

		4455						LN		170		16		false		              16   had not been complied with?				false

		4456						LN		170		17		false		              17             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.  You put it very				false

		4457						LN		170		18		false		              18   succinctly.				false

		4458						LN		170		19		false		              19             MR. LONG:  I do have one evidentiary point.				false

		4459						LN		170		20		false		              20   Everyone has this very large binder of exhibits from the				false

		4460						LN		170		21		false		              21   district.				false

		4461						LN		170		22		false		              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.				false

		4462						LN		170		23		false		              23             MR. LONG:  Can that be admitted into evidence?				false

		4463						LN		170		24		false		              24   I believe Mr. Shortreed spoke to each of those in his				false

		4464						LN		170		25		false		              25   prepared statement.				false

		4465						PG		171		0		false		page 171				false

		4466						LN		171		1		false		               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Hogelin?				false

		4467						LN		171		2		false		               2             MR. HOGELIN:  Can I use that post briefing?				false

		4468						LN		171		3		false		               3   And the reason being is, Mr. Shortreed did use them, but				false

		4469						LN		171		4		false		               4   he did go through them rather quickly.  It was hard to				false
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               1   March 17, 2016                               9:00 a.m.



               2                     P R O C E E D I N G S



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  And for the record, today is



               4   Wednesday, July 27th 2016.  It's nine o'clock in the



               5   morning.  This is the date and time set for the hearing



               6   in the matter of Marian L. Seamons.  She has filed a



               7   formal complaint against Ticaboo Utility Improvement



               8   District.



               9             This is Docket No. 15-2508-01.  Let's go ahead



              10   and put appearances on the record.  For Ms. Seamons?



              11             MR. HOGELIN:  Jon Hogelin, and Ms. Seamons is



              12   present.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  And for Ticaboo?



              14             MR. LONG:  Adam Long and Chip Shortreed, the



              15   district manager, is also present.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Very good.



              17             MR. HOGELIN:  I don't think my mic was on



              18   before.  Do you want me to repeat?



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  I think -- have you got



              20   everything so far?



              21             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  And I'll try



              23   again.  Is there anyone on the line this morning?



              24   Anyone on the phone this morning?



              25             (Silence.)
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  I had a notice that Tom Hill



               2   was going to be calling in.  If he is not going to do



               3   that, I'm going to hang up the phone.



               4             MR. LONG:  If we could maybe give him a few



               5   minutes.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Okay.



               7             MS. BROADBENT:  Can we turn the speaker up so



               8   she can hear?



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  I think we're as loud as we



              10   can go.



              11             MS. BROADBENT:  Okay.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  There is one item I wanted to



              13   discuss with counsel.  This is considered a formal



              14   complaint because it's gone through the informal process



              15   that the division of public utilities uses to try to



              16   help parties resolve complaints.  However, that does not



              17   necessarily mean that this hearing needs to be conducted



              18   as a formal adjudication under UAPA.



              19             So basically, if we conduct this as a formal



              20   adjudication and the parties determine subsequently to



              21   take the matter to court, it goes to the Court of



              22   Appeals, and it's reviewed for commission error or abuse



              23   of discretion.  If we convert this to an informal



              24   proceeding and the parties take it to court, it goes to



              25   District Court as a de novo trial.
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               1             My inclination is to convert it to informal.



               2   I think there are some issues that the commission can't



               3   necessarily address that are -- that would be of



               4   importance to the parties and potentially of interest to



               5   the court.  And I think that it would be more useful to



               6   the parties to be able to take those issues on the



               7   merits to district court, rather than having to simply



               8   argue whether or not the commission correctly identified



               9   the boundaries of its jurisdiction.



              10             Any objection to my converting this to an



              11   informal proceeding?



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  May I discuss with my client



              13   real quick?



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              15             MR. LONG:  Same request.



              16             (Discussion off the record.)



              17             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection from complainant.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.



              19             MR. LONG:  The district prefers to keep this



              20   as a formal, a formal adjudication.  We have been



              21   through the entire formal complaint process, and it



              22   seems to us to derail it now would be not beneficial.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Why do you consider it to be a



              24   derailing?  It doesn't change anything that happens



              25   here.  It simply changes your position if you go to
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               1   court.



               2             MR. LONG:  And I recognize that.  I think we



               3   would nonetheless prefer to keep it as a formal



               4   adjudication here.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I'll take the objection



               6   then as part of the record.  It is the commission's



               7   determination whether to convert it.  The standard of



               8   the -- under the statute is whether converting is in the



               9   public interest and whether it poses a hardship or an



              10   unfair burden on any party.



              11             Do you want to address those standards,



              12   Mr. Long?



              13             MR. LONG:  I think we'll leave it up to the



              14   commission's discretion.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.



              16             MR. LONG:  Our objection is noted and --



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  All right then.



              18   Are there any other housekeeping items that the parties



              19   want to address before we go to opening statements?



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  No.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  It doesn't appear that there



              22   is.  All right then.  Ms. Seamons is the complainant, so



              23   we'll go to opening statement from her.



              24             MR. HOGELIN:  Would you prefer for me just to



              25   stay here or --
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's -- yeah, do because



               2   there's no microphone up here.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  I noticed that.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.



               5             MR. HOGELIN:  Obviously, the commission has



               6   made a ruling on part of the issues that were presented.



               7   Although we don't agree with the commission, we respect



               8   the commission's ruling.  And we also recognize that the



               9   commission has set aside today to address a couple



              10   issues which the commission has provided very



              11   succinctly.



              12             Essentially, Ms. Seamons is a resident -- or



              13   well, she doesn't reside in Ticaboo, but she owns



              14   property in Ticaboo.  She had this property prior to the



              15   formation of the district.  When I say district, I am



              16   referring to TUID.  And with the creation of TUID, there



              17   has been obviously some changes with regards to power



              18   and water and what we would normally refer to as



              19   essential utilities.



              20             It has been very concerning, the limitations



              21   and the financial burden that's been assessed to



              22   Ms. Seamons in regards to the creation of the district.



              23   But what's more troubling is the conduct of the district



              24   in creating its tariff and enforcing its tariff or lack



              25   thereof.
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               1             Ms. Seamons filed the complaint based off the



               2   premise that she felt there was injustice being carried



               3   on by the district, in particular, with how her property



               4   is being liened up with certain financial burdens that



               5   seem completely unfair and outside the scope of the



               6   tariff.



               7             In regards to what the commission has set



               8   provided to be addressed today, we plan to show that



               9   it's our understanding that TUID has not complied with



              10   the commission regulations with regards to being in



              11   compliance with regards to setting forth its own tariff.



              12             We also would like to show the tariff (sic)



              13   today that the district doesn't follow its own tariff



              14   and that -- and in particularly with certain fees and



              15   with the implementation of standby fees, that the



              16   standby fees were not implemented in accordance with



              17   either a resolution or the tariff set forth by the



              18   district and more particular the district manager, and



              19   that they have continuously charged Ms. Seamons



              20   inappropriately and unjustly.



              21             And when Ms. Seamons has tried to resolve the



              22   issue, that there has been absolutely zero cooperation



              23   from the district in trying to find a resolve to this,



              24   which was a product of us bringing this before the



              25   commission.  It shouldn't have to be that way.
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               1             Also, there seems to be some unfairness with



               2   regards to the enforcement of the tariff with regards to



               3   how tenants are treated.  Obviously, not all the



               4   implementation of the tariff is being enforced with all



               5   tenants or owners with regards to said tenants having



               6   contracts with TUID.



               7             And I think a more dire issue is the amount of



               8   notice and information that's being provided by the



               9   district that its tariff demands and that those



              10   commission rules demand.  And we also plan to show today



              11   the violation of Ms. Seamons' due process with regards



              12   to utilities and more specifically with taps.



              13             I am not sure what TUID's incentive is with



              14   regards to just running roughshod around its own tariffs



              15   and around the commission's rules.  Believe me, Ms.



              16   Seamons would rather not be here today.  She would



              17   rather not have had to file a complaint.



              18             She feels akin to Ticaboo, having the --



              19   coming from a long line of mining family and having, you



              20   know, that property down there.  It's a sentimental



              21   issue for them, not a financial or economical issue.



              22   However, the district is making it solely a financial



              23   and economical issue, and it's making it impossible for



              24   Ms. Seamons to continue to have that property.



              25             And the bottom line is, not only is it making
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               1   it impossible for her to have the property; it's making



               2   it impossible for her and others to sell their property.



               3             So we really don't know what the end game is



               4   here for the district where it just doesn't seem like



               5   the feasibility of how the -- it structures its policies



               6   and tariffs with regards to utilities, how it's going to



               7   continue, given the fact that it doesn't -- it's not



               8   affordable, especially with Ms. Seamons, who is a



               9   retired lady and doesn't have the income to do all these



              10   things.



              11             Now, I know that's not before the commission



              12   today, but we just felt that it was important to let the



              13   commission know that, that this is, again, a no-win



              14   situation for Ms. Seamons and likely other property



              15   owners that are in Ticaboo.  And so we appreciate the



              16   commission allowing us to be here today to raise these



              17   concerns, to address these concerns, to make it public.



              18             Again, we feel strongly that Ms. Seamons is



              19   not the only one that has these concerns but has the



              20   wherewithal to try to stand up to the district and to



              21   bring forth these issues to find resolve and hopefully



              22   resolve for all property owners down in Ticaboo.  With



              23   that, does the commission have any questions?



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  I don't think I have any



              25   questions.  I'll just make a couple of points on the
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               1   record.  First of all, we don't have any mechanism to



               2   entertain a sort of class action complaint.  We have



               3   received some additional complaints against TUID that



               4   raise similar issues.  And we will have to deal with



               5   those one on one.



               6             Whatever order is issued here, if it grants



               7   relief to Ms. Seamons, that might be used as evidence by



               8   subsequent complainants, but likely would not extend to



               9   provide relief to them as well.



              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Mr. Long,



              12   your opening.



              13             MR. LONG:  Thank you.  In Mr. Hogelin's



              14   opening statement he seems to have taken a few steps



              15   backwards.  I'd like to point out that the commission's



              16   order of July 6, 2016, in this docket disposes of the



              17   standby fee issue in its entirety.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's not correct.  It says



              19   that standby fees are legal generally.  It does not say



              20   that the current standby fees may be imposed or



              21   collected against Ms. Seamons.  The question is whether



              22   it has properly noticed and held the meetings that it



              23   had to notice and hold in order to assess standby fees.



              24             If it has not done that, then its tariffs are



              25   not necessarily valid, and if it does not have valid
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               1   tariffs, it cannot enforce them.



               2             MR. LONG:  True.  Without being argumentative,



               3   can I perhaps clarify our understanding?



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Please.



               5             MR. LONG:  Reading from the order, the



               6   commission says, "We dismissed Ms. Seamons' allegations



               7   as to the legality in general of standby fees and as to



               8   legality of the specific rates and policies set forth in



               9   TUID's tariff."



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.



              11             MR. LONG:  And goes on to list seven questions



              12   which are the topic of this hearing day.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.



              14             MR. LONG:  And Ticaboo is prepared to address



              15   those seven questions.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Excellent.  So the fact that



              17   the specific rates and fees are legal does not



              18   necessarily mean that they are also currently



              19   enforceable.  That's the distinction.



              20             MR. LONG:  Okay.  And I would like to point



              21   out that the dockets referenced in these questions are



              22   not the docket in which standby fees were implemented.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand that, but there



              24   is a question on point No. 3 as to whether, in the 2013



              25   docket, where standby fees were first imposed, if there
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               1   was notice and a public meeting.  So we're going to be



               2   looking at both those dockets today.  Okay.  Go ahead



               3   with your opening.



               4             MR. LONG:  The issue of standby fees, which



               5   again the district doesn't feel needs any substantive



               6   justification, is simply a matter of fairly allocating



               7   costs to those property owners that bear the ben -- you



               8   know, that receive the benefits of the service provided



               9   by the district.



              10             You know, whether a house is occupied and



              11   receiving utility service so actually having electricity



              12   and water flowing to it, or the house is vacant or even



              13   if it's an undeveloped lot for which the district is



              14   ready to provide service essentially on a moment's



              15   notice, the district incurs costs.



              16             And those are simple -- simple realities of a



              17   utility, you know, to maintain power lines in this case



              18   or to maintain generator, simply to keep the



              19   infrastructure in place so service can be provided upon



              20   request.  And standby fees simply fairly allocate those



              21   costs to those who receive the benefits of it.



              22             As I noted previously, the district is



              23   prepared to address the commission's questions as set



              24   forth in the July 16th order, and to the extent that



              25   that discussion today goes beyond those questions, I
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               1   would ask that we have the opportunity to file



               2   post-hearing briefs or some other sort of -- other sort



               3   of response after the hearing today.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's certainly an option.



               5             MR. LONG:  Thank you.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We potentially



               7   have an issue with burden of proof in this case.  As to



               8   the commission's specific questions that are set forth,



               9   I am not sure, I don't think, that Ms. Seamons has the



              10   burden to demonstrate whether TUID did or did not hold a



              11   board meeting within 30 days of the commission's



              12   September 10th, 2015, order approving the stipulation.



              13   I believe that that really is Ticaboo's burden.



              14             Do the parties disagree?



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  We don't disagree.  However, we



              16   would be -- if the commission will allow, we would like



              17   to have on record Ms. Seamons' knowledge of those.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  Why don't we go



              19   ahead and go with that.



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Would you like to have her



              22   sworn then?



              23             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Will you go ahead



              25   and take care of that.
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               1             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.  Ma'am, would you



               2   raise your right hand and be sworn?



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Actually, what I would like to



               4   request is that, this is her daughter, Mary Broadbent,



               5   who has power of attorney and is the executor of



               6   Ms. Seamons.  And I would request that she be sworn in



               7   to testify in Ms. Seamons' behalf.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  Why don't you



               9   both raise your hands.  Go ahead.



              10              MARY BROADBENT (Witness Daughter),



              11             and MARIAN SEAMONS (Witness Mother),



              12   called as witnesses at the instance of the complainant,



              13   having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified



              14   as follows:



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you, and we'd also ask for



              16   a little patience.  Ms. Seamons has some hearing --



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand and that's fine.



              18             MR. HOGELIN:  It may take a second to get



              19   questions across.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  We will accommodate her as



              21   best we can.



              22                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



              23   BY MR. HOGELIN:



              24        Q.   Mary, I'm going to direct these questions to



              25   you.  Were you or was your mother aware of the joint
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               1   settlement stipulation of Docket 15-2508-T01?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  I am not.  And neither



               3   one of us at that time.



               4        Q.   At what time?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter)  In September.  In October



               6   we enacted upon trying to go to meetings.  On October



               7   5th we called to --



               8        Q.   Okay.  So you didn't -- you weren't aware of a



               9   meeting in September --



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, no.



              11        Q.   -- or October, okay.



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Nothing prior.



              13        Q.   And then did -- were you aware of any board



              14   meeting that was held by TUID between the dates of



              15   September 30th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?



              16        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.



              17        Q.   Did you reach out to TUID to try to --



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just a minute, Mr. Hogelin.



              19   Did you mean September 10th?  I believe you said



              20   September 30th.



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  You are right.  I did.  I was



              22   looking at the 30 days.  I apologize.



              23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)   So September 10th of 2015



              24   and October 10, 2015, were you aware of any board



              25   meeting that was held?
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               1        A.   (Witness Daughter)  An October 5th board



               2   meeting was to be held.  I called and talked to



               3   Mr. Shortreed.  Well, my husband called, and we had it



               4   on voice speaker.  And it was canceled, he told us.



               5        Q.   Okay.  So there was no meeting that you are



               6   aware of that was held by the board for TUID between



               7   September 10th, 2015, and October 10, 2015?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Right, no --



               9        Q.   Okay.



              10        A.   -- board meeting.



              11        Q.   With regards to the -- are you aware of any



              12   revised tariff that was filed with the commission on



              13   Docket No. 15-2508-T01 within 15 days after October



              14   10th, 2015?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.



              16        Q.   Okay.  Did you make any -- did you take any



              17   action to try to ascertain whether or not that had



              18   happened?



              19        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Yes.  I spoke with the



              20   commission office, Erika Tedder and another one.  I am



              21   trying to think of her name, and asked if there was a



              22   tariff filing for TUID, and they said that there was



              23   not.



              24        Q.   Okay.  Now, regarding the tariff also known as



              25   Docket No. 15-2508-T01, were you given any notice of any
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               1   public meetings regarding that tariff?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter)  I was not involved in that



               3   time, so my mother would have to then respond to that.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.



               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Do you know anything of the



               6   2013 meeting to the tariff filing or -- in 2013?



               7             WITNESS MOTHER:  Which, which?



               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Any month, for meetings



               9   held in 2013.  Were you alerted of meetings?



              10             MR. HOGELIN:  For the tariff.



              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No, you were not living



              12   there.  But were you aware of any meetings that were to



              13   be held --



              14             THE WITNESS:  No.



              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER: -- in 2013?



              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  No, I was not.



              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Were you informed of



              18   meetings?



              19             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.



              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given any notice



              21   regarding any public meetings concerning Docket



              22   15-2508-T01?



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Now, were we given -- say



              24   that one more time.  I'm sorry.



              25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Were you given notice of any
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               1   public meetings that were to be held on court docket in



               2   2015, for the tariff in 2015?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



               4        Q.   How did you find out about the 2015 docket



               5   regarding the tariff?



               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) At September of 2015,



               7   started to look at ways that they were posting



               8   information towards meetings.  Searched the Internet,



               9   found TSSD, and then started to find out county



              10   newspaper, located Garfield County, and was informed of



              11   meetings under Garfield County newspaper.



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  And I believe that is our -- my



              13   client's responses to the first three questions.  If you



              14   want to hold there or go forward.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's keep going.



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  So I am going to ask



              17   Ms. Broadbent to testify on behalf of her mother, even



              18   though her mother is the one that has the actual



              19   knowledge.



              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Broadbent, when did --



              21   when did -- when was your mother first notified that she



              22   was going to be charged standby fees?



              23             MR. LONG:  I'd like to note an objection.  I'd



              24   like to note an objection.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.
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               1             MR. LONG:  I understand we are not bound by



               2   the rules of evidence here, but on a hearsay basis, I --



               3   we would prefer to hear directly from Ms. Seamons.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I am going to ahead and



               5   let her --



               6             MR. LONG:  -- difficulties.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- daughter say what she needs



               8   to say.



               9             MR. LONG:  Sure.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Could you please make sure



              11   that your mother can hear you.



              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  As you speak, and then we'll



              14   see where that takes us.



              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So she is going to allow me



              16   to speak for you.



              17             WITNESS MOTHER:  Right.  I can't hear.



              18             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  She is hoping that I speak



              19   loud enough that you can hear me.



              20             WITNESS MOTHER:  Oh, I'll try.



              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And then agree or disagree



              22   at any point that I don't speak within what you would



              23   testify on your own behalf.



              24             WITNESS MOTHER:  Okay.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So pull that microphone right
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               1   up to you.



               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  To me?



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Either way, yeah, either one,



               4   so that that should help your mom hear.



               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  And speak nice and



               7   loud.



               8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) When did -- when did your



               9   mother first get notice that she was being charged



              10   standby fees?



              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) Her first notice was not



              12   until March of 2014.



              13        Q.   Now, in that notice, when was she first



              14   actually charged standby fees?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) The charges began September



              16   1st of 2013.



              17        Q.   Okay.  Do you recall receiving or -- okay.  I



              18   have here Ticaboo Utility Improvement District



              19   Resolution No. 2013-0017.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Do you recognize this



              22   document?



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  But I received this



              24   from --



              25        Q.   I am just asking if you --



                                                                        24

�













               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yeah, I recognize this.



               2        Q.   Okay.  And can you turn to the second page?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               4        Q.   Do you see -- can you read the top line?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) No. 1 or 2?



               6        Q.   No, the top line.



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh.  "Now, therefore, be it



               8   resolved by the legislative body of Ticaboo Utility



               9   Improvement District as follows."



              10        Q.   And can you read paragraph No. 2.



              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) No. 2, the rules regarding



              12   the minimum --



              13        Q.   The new rules.



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) "The new rules regarding



              15   the minimum payment of standby fees for all services.



              16   If a customer is receiving, connected and/or tapped into



              17   any of the utility services provided; electric, water,



              18   waste water, solid waste, will be required and hereby



              19   approved by the district manager as authorized to file



              20   the rules, with such clerical changes as district



              21   manager deems reasonable and necessary to comply within



              22   Utah law and with the rules and regulations of the



              23   district."



              24        Q.   Can you read paragraph No. 3.



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Three.  "The new rates and



                                                                        25

�













               1   rules shall become effective September 1st, 2013."



               2        Q.   Okay.  And is it signed?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               4        Q.   By who?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) It's a printed, Mr. Chip



               6   Shortreed and Justin Fischer, secretary with their seal.



               7        Q.   And then is it sealed?



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you want that document --



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- in the record as an



              11   exhibit?  Any objection?



              12             MR. LONG:  No.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              14             MR. LONG:  No.



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Permission to approach?



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah, go ahead.  So I am going



              17   to mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 1.



              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Amended?  Oh, okay.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  I just didn't want to confuse



              21   with all those other exhibits.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, they are not really



              23   marked.



              24             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  At least not particularly, not
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               1   in a really clear order.



               2             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  So we'll just mark everything



               4   today.  Exhibit 1.



               5             So let me just ask a couple of questions to



               6   deal with the evidentiary objection.  How, how do you



               7   know when the standby fees were first -- when your



               8   mother first received notice of the standby fees?



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  We're going to -- we're going to



              10   show that.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  We're going to show that.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  And similarly, how do you know



              14   when the charges began?



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Absolutely.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  If you are going to bring in



              17   some documentary evidence, that would be helpful.



              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Yeah.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



              21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So what is your understanding



              22   of paragraph 2?



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) In No. 2 being receiving,



              24   connected or tapped, tapped being, my reference would be



              25   the meters.
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               1        Q.   Okay.  And is your understanding that if you



               2   were not receiving, connected or tapped on any of your



               3   properties, that you would or would not be charged the



               4   standby fee?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Would not.



               6        Q.   Okay.  How many properties does your mother



               7   own in the district?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) We have a total of eight.



               9        Q.   Okay.  As of September 1st, 2013, were all



              10   eight properties receiving, connected and/or tapped with



              11   any utilities?



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) At that time of September



              13   1st, we were only connected with one double-wide home.



              14        Q.   Just where --



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) One property.  Well, one



              16   and two, but they are considered one with being



              17   contiguous.



              18        Q.   Okay.  How many properties were not receiving,



              19   connected or tapped into with any type of utility at the



              20   time of September 1st?



              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) Six.



              22        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I have a document.  It says



              23   audit history.  It's for Account 1000 for Ticaboo



              24   Utility Improvement District.  For reference that is lot



              25   005.  And do you recognize this document?
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               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               2        Q.   Can you please -- can you please read the



               3   account number.



               4        A.   (Witness Daughter) Account 1000.



               5        Q.   And which lot is that for?



               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) Lot 5.



               7        Q.   And in the -- well, is there a name at the top



               8   of it?



               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons is our



              10   father and my mother's husband.



              11        Q.   Okay.  And so is this a -- this is an audit



              12   history of that lot, correct?



              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  We received one



              14   for each property.



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Would the commission like a



              16   copy?



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.  It's, it's in -- it's in



              18   here, but let's go ahead and take a clean copy and mark



              19   it.



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Great.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.  So I am going to



              22   mark this as Complainant's Exhibit 2 unless there's an



              23   objection.  Mr. Long, any objection?



              24             MR. LONG:  Sorry.  Could you repeat that?



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am prepared to enter this
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               1   into evidence and mark it as Complainant's Exhibit 2.



               2   Any objection?



               3             MR. LONG:  No objection.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.



               5        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the first line of the



               6   audit, what's the date?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, the first one is



               8   August 31st, 2012.



               9        Q.   Okay.  And does it show a balance?



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) It shows a previous balance



              11   of 758.06.



              12        Q.   Okay.  So just for background purposes, why is



              13   there a previous balance from that?



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) In the previous balance,



              15   it's a bill that Ticaboo states that we owe, yet



              16   under --



              17        Q.   Okay.  So it's a previous, an alleged previous



              18   balance that was carried over?



              19        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.



              20        Q.   Okay.  And then for the next month, so what



              21   does the next month say?



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, it goes down to 930,



              23   beginning balance of usage, but at the bottom of the



              24   page --



              25        Q.   No.  I'm asking questions here.
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               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, okay.



               2        Q.   Okay.  So the next month says what?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) 9-30-2012.



               4        Q.   And what's the balance?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) 758.06.



               6        Q.   So essentially it was the same balance as the



               7   month before, correct?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.



               9             MR. LONG:  I object.  This is -- these



              10   balances are all water bills that were balances owed to



              11   TSSD before the two districts were combined to form what



              12   is now Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.  In the



              13   district's opinion any issues with water service are



              14   outside the commission's jurisdiction.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's an excellent point, so



              16   we can talk about that in just a minute.  But look at



              17   the December 31st, 2012, line.



              18             MR. HOGELIN:  The water issue is not what



              19   we're using this for.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  This is where we see some



              21   kilowatt hours.  So it looks like it does become both



              22   electricity and water.  At least that's how it appears.



              23   Is that correct?



              24             MR. LONG:  Yeah, that's correct.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.
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               1             MR. LONG:  And if we could simply move to the



               2   -- whatever issues they have with electric service.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yeah, I am getting there.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is it correct that up until



               5   December 31st, 2012, the charges are for water, not for



               6   electricity?  Is that your understanding?



               7             MR. HOGELIN:  For in -- yeah.  For whatever.



               8   Actually, these charges were carried over.  Okay?



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              10             MR. HOGELIN:  So what we're trying to show is



              11   that the billing is the same up until September of 2013.



              12   Okay?



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, okay.  So we have a



              14   carried-over balance.



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Right.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  It begins -- this document



              17   begins to show that carryover as to electricity



              18   beginning December 31st, 2012.



              19             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  No changes in that balance



              21   appear until --



              22             MR. HOGELIN:  September of 2013.



              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  At the bottom of the page,



              24   it shows 9-9-2013, and that began the standby fees



              25   implementation.
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  So I was just trying to get -- I



               2   was just trying to get the long way of giving a



               3   foundation for that.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.  And you don't need



               5   to -- I am not going to require you to spend a lot of



               6   time on foundation unless you are going to consider that



               7   to be an error and appeal on that basis.



               8             MR. LONG:  No.  I am fine admitting this as



               9   evidence.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              11             MR. LONG:  This is a document that was



              12   provided to them as part of what was ostensibly a GRAMA



              13   request.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Right.  So go ahead



              15   and --



              16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So in September of 2013 --



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              18        Q.   -- what -- there was charges that were being



              19   put on that property, correct?



              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Right.



              21        Q.   And what charges were those?



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) They were standby fees for



              23   tapped property.



              24        Q.   Now, prior to those charges being implemented,



              25   was Lot 5, for which this audit is specifically for, was
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               1   it receiving, connected and/or tapped to any of the



               2   utility services?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Meters were removed in



               4   2008.



               5        Q.   Okay.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just make a



               7   note of that.  So this -- where does this show what the



               8   property number is or the property identifier?



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, the 1000 is the account



              10   number.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  And that account number



              13   correlates, and based off the testimony of my client,



              14   that that coordinates with 005.  And again, this was



              15   provided by Ticaboo Utility Improvement District.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So Account No. 1000 is



              17   for lot or plat number 005.



              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.  We, we -- my clients



              19   received a letter from TUIA and explaining that.  I



              20   didn't make copies.  But I do have --



              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It's submitted into the



              22   formal complaint.



              23             MR. HOGELIN:  It is in the formal complaint.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  Well, if we



              25   need to look for the documentary evidence, we can do
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               1   that.  I just want to make sure that I understand what



               2   we're talking about.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  So it's your testimony that on



               5   this particular plat, Lot 005, there were no taps, that



               6   taps had been removed in 2008; is that right?



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Right.



               8             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Can you turn to the



              11   second page of that audit.



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) This still says 1000.



              13        Q.   Just to the second page please.



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, sure.



              15        Q.   Okay.  Can you please read -- do you see where



              16   at March of 2014 the block is for?



              17        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              18        Q.   Okay.  And what does it say at the bottom of



              19   the block?



              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1946.25



              21   due on 4-21-2014.



              22        Q.   Okay.  Prior to March of 2014, is there



              23   anywhere on the audit history that shows that there was



              24   any notice printed or put forth to you?



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.
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               1        Q.   Okay.  And did your mother receive any notice



               2   of these charges prior to March of 2014?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



               4        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



               5        Q.   Thank you.  Okay.  As for Lot 3 and 4, and is



               6   it your testimony that Lot 3 and 4 are Account No. 1115?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               8        Q.   Okay.



               9        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  What was the account number



              11   again?



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  1115.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And that's Lots 3 and 4



              14   together, correct?



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Correct.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And for Account No. 1115,



              18   Lots 3 and 4, was there -- we're looking at a copy of



              19   audit history for Account 1115.  Is this the --



              20   basically look the same as the account for 1000 in the



              21   billing?



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, and the same --



              23        Q.   Okay.  And is this -- where did you get this



              24   from?



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) We GRAMA Act requested



                                                                        36

�













               1   documents from the district and received them in October



               2   of 2015.



               3        Q.   Okay.  And was there -- is there any billing



               4   shown on there prior to September of 2013?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Okay.  At that time, no.



               6        Q.   Okay.  So was Lots 3 and 4, were they



               7   receiving, connected and/or tapped to any utilities



               8   prior to September of 2013?



               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, they were.  To this



              10   lot there was.



              11        Q.   Okay.



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) The meters were removed by



              13   the district in August of 2013.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  So it had taps through August?



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Of 2013.



              16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, July 31st, and in



              17   August 1st of 2013 the district came and removed the



              18   meters.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Hang on.  Let me get



              20   the dates down.



              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Through July 31st, 2013.



              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Uh-huh.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right?  And then taps were



              25   removed on what date?  August?
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               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  August of 2013.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  You don't know the



               3   exact date?



               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I went down there on the



               5   15th of that month.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  But the -- our renters that



               8   were there and had the taps called us at the first of



               9   the month and reported to us that the district had came



              10   and removed the meters.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              12             MR. LONG:  If I could add a point of



              13   clarification.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Sure.



              15             MR. LONG:  There seem to be some confusion



              16   about meters versus taps versus connections.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              18             MR. LONG:  The district in my own words



              19   defines taps as the presence of a utility connection at



              20   the property line.  So in this case a -- in the case of



              21   electricity a line drop.  Is that --



              22             MR. SHORTREED:  A line extends to a meter.



              23             MR. LONG:  So a power line of some sort



              24   extends to the property.  Now, that's the tap as far as



              25   the district is concerned.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               2             MR. LONG:  Whether there's a meter connected



               3   to that tap is another issue.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               5             MR. LONG:  And obviously, the district owns



               6   meters, and those are an expense.  And generally, if a



               7   property is not receiving service, having a meter on it



               8   is an expense the district tries to avoid.  So taps



               9   versus -- taps are not the same as meters.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if meters were



              11   removed, that doesn't necessarily mean that the taps



              12   were removed.  Is that what you are saying?



              13             MR. LONG:  Precisely.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  And as far as you know, the



              15   meters were removed, but are you aware of whether or not



              16   the line, the electrical line to the property was also



              17   removed?



              18             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Electrical line is to the



              19   back of the property at the five foot variance.  It's



              20   not actually on the property.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So once they remove the



              23   meters, that is upon the property of the district at



              24   their five foot variance.  To the property?  No?



              25             VOICE:  It's your property.  It's just in an
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               1   easement.



               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It's in an easement, but



               3   it's still my property.  But it's -- the line is



               4   lateral, once the meter is taken to the rear of the



               5   property.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just -- let's



               7   go at it from this angle.  The tenants, excuse me,



               8   reported to you that the meters had been removed, right?



               9             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Correct.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did they also report that they



              11   were no longer receiving electricity?



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  That is correct.



              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  They were taken.  There's



              14   no -- so there was nothing provided.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  No electricity being provided?



              16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Or water, correct.



              17             WITNESS MOTHER:  No power.



              18             MR. HOGELIN:  Any utilities.



              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Any utilities.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  So if there was a line there,



              21   it wasn't being used to deliver --



              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- utility service.  Okay.



              24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And again, this -- was this



              25   before September 1st, 2013?
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               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               2        Q.   So looking at this audit history, are there



               3   charges after September -- or beginning in September of



               4   2013?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               6        Q.   And what charges are those?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Standby fees for utility



               8   service.



               9        Q.   Okay.  And then can you turn to -- can you



              10   turn to page 2.  And do you see where the -- it



              11   represents the billing for March of 2014?



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  $1213.49.



              13        Q.   What does it say at the bottom of that?



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49



              15   due on 4-21 of 2014.



              16        Q.   For any of the other months was -- does it



              17   show that there was any notices printed?



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              19        Q.   Did your mother receive any notices prior to



              20   March of 2014?



              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



              23        Q.   Thank you.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are you going to put that



              25   audit history into evidence for those two lots?
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  This is the original, right?



               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is it my original?



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It doesn't matter.  I have



               5   it on the computer with original filings.



               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I have file docket so it's



               8   fine.  I have the --



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  But I printed it out.



              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- zip drive.  That's fine.



              11   I have the zip on it.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Long?



              13             MR. LONG:  No objection.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              15        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So is it your testimony that



              16   Lot 7 and 8 are --



              17             MR. LONG:  Mr. Hogelin, do you have a copy for



              18   me?



              19             MR. HOGELIN:  I don't.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Just --



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  I do of all the other ones.  I



              22   don't know what happened to that one.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  We'll take a little break, and



              24   I'll go run some copies.



              25             MR. HOGELIN:  It's just that one.  Thank you.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Hold on just a minute.  Let's



               2   just take a break, and we'll go.  How many did we need?



               3   Two.  Let's make two copies.



               4             (Discussion off the record.)



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just so you know, I wrote on



               6   your Exhibit No. 2.  Next to Account 1000, I put in



               7   parenthesis Lot 005.



               8             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  And on No. 3, I did the same



              10   thing, put in parentheses Lots 003 and 004 to help me



              11   keep it straight.



              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Do you want the original



              13   that shows the lots showing them?



              14             MR. HOGELIN:  We don't have the copies, but



              15   that is the letter from TUID that shows the accounts



              16   with corresponding lots.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, any objection to this?



              18             MR. LONG:  No objection.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We need copies of



              20   this one as well?



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Please.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Be right back.  We can



              23   go off the record.



              24             (Discussion off the record.)



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  There are some people
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               1   who are listening to the hearing through our live



               2   streaming service, and we just received notice that they



               3   are having some difficulty hearing.  So if you would



               4   pull those mics right up close and try to speak loudly,



               5   that would be helpful.



               6             Also, our court reporter has some -- has a



               7   little device that shows the transcription coming up on



               8   text as she captures what we do here today.  So



               9   Ms. Seamons is looking at that now, and that might help



              10   her to participate a little bit more and answer some



              11   questions.



              12             So Mrs. Seamons, can you see what I am saying?



              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you see what --



              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  I can read this.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              16             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  But understanding it and



              17   going through it, her eyesight isn't as great either.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.  These things



              19   happen, and they will happen to all of us.



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So --



              22             WITNESS MOTHER:  I have to rely on my attorney



              23   and my daughter.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.  I am going to



              25   mark the letter that ties the lot numbers to the account
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               1   numbers as Complainant's Exhibit 4.  All right.  Are we



               2   back on the record?



               3             COURT REPORTER:  Uh-huh.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Mr. Hogelin, go



               5   ahead.



               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So we were talking



               7   about Lots 7 and 8.  And is it your understanding,



               8   according to the letter from Ticaboo, that Lot 7 and 8



               9   are also known as Account No. 1131?



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              11        Q.   Okay.  I am handing you a document.  What does



              12   it say at the very top?



              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Audit history.



              14        Q.   And does it have an account number?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) 1131.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And in whose name is at the top of



              17   that?



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Sharon A. Seamons.



              19        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  For 1131, does it -- when does



              20   the billing start?



              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) 9-30-2013.



              22        Q.   Was -- on Lot 7 and 8, was there -- were you



              23   receiving, connected and/or tapped into any of the



              24   utility services?



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Vacant property.
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               1        Q.   Okay.



               2             MR. LONG:  Again, I would point out the



               3   difference between meters and taps that we discussed



               4   earlier.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  And I would



               6   actually -- it would be really helpful if, when you



               7   cross-examine or you bring your own witness, you could



               8   go through these same accounts and same lots and give me



               9   the utility's perspective of what was there.



              10             MR. LONG:  Certainly.  I just wanted to make



              11   sure everyone is on the same page until that point.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  So just



              13   to reiterate that testimony, as to these lots, these



              14   were vacant property, you said.



              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Vacant property.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So are you aware that



              17   there was an electrical line or electrical meter to



              18   these properties?



              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Again at the back of each



              20   one --



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- when the mining district



              23   created the community in 1978 that was infrastructured.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And those lines or -- is at
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               1   the rear of every property.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  So there are lines running



               3   through the utilities easement on every property?



               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  As to whether there's a line



               6   that runs off of that to the -- to a home or to a home



               7   site, are you aware that there was any line?



               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, I know that they are



               9   available for hookup if you put something there, but



              10   there's -- like, I mean.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  There's never been nothing



              13   on there.



              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  There had never been a



              15   trailer or anything on that property.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.



              17             WITNESS MOTHER:  There had never been any



              18   power or water used on those vacant properties.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So there was no meter



              20   there.



              21             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.



              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  And just to go back, so



              23   based off the two other properties that we talked about,



              24   Lots 3 and 4 and then Lots 5, the way that you answered



              25   the commission's question, it's the same, same way,
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               1   correct?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Right.  Back at the 5 foot



               3   variance from the back of the property easement would be



               4   where the meters exist.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) But prior to this, there was



               7   no charges anyways, correct?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We purchased the



               9   properties in 2000.



              10        Q.   Okay.



              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) I have to maybe state,



              12   2006.  We actually bought them from SITLA.



              13        Q.   You are fine.  So these standby fee charges,



              14   do they continue monthly?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And then can you look down under the



              17   charges of March of 2014.  What does the last item say?



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for



              19   $1213.49.  Due on 4-21 of 2014.



              20        Q.   And is that statement provided in any of the



              21   other months?



              22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  We have never had any



              23   statements before that.



              24        Q.   Okay.  So it's your testimony that you



              25   never -- you never received notice of these fees until
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               1   March of 2014, correct?



               2        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.



               3        Q.   Okay.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you want to have this



               5   audit history marked?



               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.  Can we please have that



               7   marked as Exhibit 5, please.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Long?



               9             MR. LONG:  No objection.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.



              11        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Is it your testimony, based



              12   off the representation by TUID in the letter that is



              13   Exhibit 4, that Lot 8 is also known --



              14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.



              15        Q.   -- as Account No. 1132?



              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              17        Q.   Okay.  And would you submit that your



              18   testimony for Lot 8 is the same as your testimony for



              19   Lot 7 and 8.



              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.



              21        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.



              22        Q.   Okay.  Let me get copies of this.



              23             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yeah, I can hear him.



              24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What is your understanding



              25   for the purpose that TUID combined 7 and 8 for Account
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               1   No. 1131 and then also has a separate account for Lot 8



               2   specifically?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) My understanding later upon



               4   reading the tariff is that they are contijuous, if I say



               5   that right.



               6        Q.   Contiguous?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Contiguous, yes.



               8   Contiguous.



               9        Q.   Okay.  But again for Lot 8, Account 1132, it's



              10   vacant?



              11        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              12        Q.   And there was no usage of any utilities prior



              13   to September of 2013?



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  No.



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  We would like to have that as



              16   Exhibit 6, please.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection?



              18             MR. LONG:  No objection.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.



              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  And referring to



              21   Exhibit 4, the letter from TUID with regards to the



              22   account numbers and lot numbers, is it your testimony



              23   that Account No. 1133 is also known as Lot 98?



              24        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              25        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.
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               1        Q.   Okay.  Could you please state what's at the



               2   top of the page.



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Beginning of usage, 9-30.



               4   Oh, audit history, Sharon A. Seamons.



               5        Q.   Okay.



               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) 1133.



               7        Q.   Is what, the account number?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Is Lot 98, Account No.



               9   1133.



              10        Q.   Okay.



              11        A.   (Witness Mother) That's a vacant lot.  That's



              12   that corner lot.



              13        Q.   Does this audit history show any charges prior



              14   to September of 2013?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              16        A.   (Witness Mother)  No, it wasn't.



              17        Q.   Was this Account Lot No. 98, was it receiving,



              18   connected and/or tapped into any of the utilities



              19   services prior to September of 2013?



              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) No, it's not.



              21        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



              22        Q.   Okay.  Is it vacant?



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, it's a vacant



              24   property.



              25        A.   (Witness Mother)  It was vacant.
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               1        Q.   And as of September of 2013, were there any



               2   charges or billing?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Prior to September, no.



               4        Q.   But in September, there was billing?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



               6        Q.   Yes?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) Oh, on September they



               8   started billing.



               9        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Prior no.



              11        Q.   And what were -- what was the billing for?



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Standby use of utilities.



              13        Q.   Okay.  And those charges continued every



              14   month, correct?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And in March of 2014 on the audit



              17   history, what does the bottom line state?



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Notice printed for $1213.49



              19   due on 4-21 of 2014.



              20        Q.   Okay.



              21        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.



              22        Q.   And did -- was -- is that listed any -- under



              23   any of the previous months on the audit history?



              24        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              25        A.   (Witness Mother) No.
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               1        Q.   Okay.  Did you receive any notice of these



               2   fees prior to March of 2014?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



               4        A.   (Witness Mother) No, we hadn't.



               5             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  I would like to have that



               6   as, is that Exhibit 7?



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  It is.  Any objection?



               8             MR. LONG:  No objection.



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Did we -- did we already submit



              10   the --



              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  -- the resolution?  Is that



              13   Exhibit 1?



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  Thank you.



              16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) You, however -- you own other



              17   properties in Ticaboo, correct?



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) The ones that we have just



              19   stated.  We had two --



              20        Q.   Other than those?



              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) We had two that were sold



              22   in 2012 that were listed on that.



              23        Q.   Okay.



              24        A.   (Witness Daughter) It was --



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So we have been through six
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               1   properties by my count.



               2             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So one and two were tapped



               3   into.  That was the living residence where my mother



               4   lived from 2000 to 2009, '10.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  So that's Lots 001 and 002?



               6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Uh-huh, that is correct.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  And there's a residence on



               8   those?



               9             WITNESS MOTHER:  That's correct.



              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And those taps existed in



              11   September of 2013, September of 2013.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              13             MR. HOGELIN:  I'm sorry?



              14             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We used that residence that



              15   -- in one and two, Lot 1 and 2.



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Uh-huh.



              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is where our residence is



              18   that we have.



              19             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay, great.



              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- were tapped into and --



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Right.



              22             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And lived.



              23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Now, it also shows on here



              24   Account Nos. 5051, 505 -- and when I say shows here, I



              25   am referring to Exhibit 3, the letter from TUID
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               1   corresponding account numbers with lots.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's actually Exhibit 4.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Exhibit 4, excuse me.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's all right.



               5        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) 5051, 5052, 5054, do you



               6   currently own those properties?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Those were sold in



               8   2012.



               9        Q.   Okay.  So is it your testimony out of the --



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, there's two, four,



              11   six, eight.



              12        Q.   -- those six account numbers going from 1000



              13   to 1000 -- 1133, that only one of those properties as of



              14   September of 2013 was using or -- utilities?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  Those were the



              16   only ones out of the eight.  The other six did not have



              17   meters.



              18        Q.   And on the one -- and we're talking about Lot



              19   1 and 2, Account No. 1002, what notice would you receive



              20   of billing of --



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Can I pause just a moment.



              22   I'm sorry to interrupt.  So these three account numbers



              23   which represent five properties, you say those



              24   properties were all sold?



              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.  I don't understand why
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               1   5051 is listed as one and two, because it's also listed



               2   as 0 -- 1002.



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So error correction on



               5   that.  The only ones that were sold was Lot 5054.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, account.



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Account, I'm sorry.  Lots



               8   92 and 93 --



               9             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yeah, 92 and 93.



              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- were sold in 2012.



              11   Excuse us.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  In 2012 okay.  Just a minute.



              13   Lots 92, 93 were sold in --



              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  That did not have a meter.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- 2012, okay.



              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  No.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  And do you know why there are



              18   two different account numbers for the combined Lots 1



              19   and 2 and also two different account numbers for Lot 5?



              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.  The residence on



              21   5051, Lot 1 and 2 --



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- is our home occupant,



              24   that we occupied.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand that.
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               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  And then Lot 5 --



               2             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's a double-wide home.



               3             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  5052 had the previous



               4   balance that they state owed from the prior --



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  -- district.  Same with



               7   5054.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.  But there are two



               9   different account numbers for each of those properties.



              10   Do you know why that is?



              11             MR. HOGELIN:  You are referring to Lot 1 and



              12   2, correct?



              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't.  I think because



              14   they existed before standby fees.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, maybe we'll have to have



              16   Ticaboo Utility Improvement District explain that.



              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah.  I believe that's



              18   before they existed before the standby fees.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  But you don't know.



              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.  Sorry.



              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So for Lot 1 and 2 was the



              23   only lots that were using utilities at the time as of --



              24   prior to September of 2013, what notice do you receive



              25   for utilities generally?  Is it monthly?
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               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Monthly.



               2        Q.   Okay.  And so for Lot 1 and 2, you received



               3   notice monthly of what was owed.  But for all the other



               4   lots that start standby fees in September of 2013, you



               5   didn't receive notice until March of 2014?



               6        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't understand that.



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did you receive your



               8   billing for Lot 1 and 2 and not the other ones prior to



               9   that or up until March?



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's rephrase it.  Can you



              11   hear me, Mrs. Seamons?



              12             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you hear the judge?



              13             WITNESS MOTHER:  Now what?



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So for the lot where



              15   you have the double-wide home.



              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you receive monthly bills



              18   from TUID for the utilities?



              19             WITNESS MOTHER:  I think so.  I kept those



              20   current.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And then on the other



              22   properties that you own that are vacant, did you receive



              23   monthly billings from TUID, or did you receive a



              24   combined billing for several months' worth of charges?



              25             WITNESS MOTHER:  I received a combined
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               1   billing.  But there were no charges on the vacant lots.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  I believe the records, the



               3   records show that there were charges.  Did you mean to



               4   say that nobody there was using any utilities?



               5             WITNESS MOTHER:  I can't understand that.



               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Can you help?



               8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) The lots that you were



               9   getting standby fees on, did you get monthly notice of



              10   those bills?



              11        A.   (Witness Mother) Like this?



              12        Q.   Just anything.



              13        A.   (Witness Mother) Did I get a combined notice



              14   on that?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  I believe she's already



              17   testified that she didn't receive any notice of -- until



              18   March.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's what the complaint



              20   states.



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  And I was just trying to show



              22   there was -- on the ones that were being used she was



              23   receiving monthly billing.  However, the ones where the



              24   standby was being billed, that was not being given



              25   notice or monthly bill but rather was a collection of
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               1   months that were done periodically.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just ask you,



               3   Mr. Long.  I don't think that we have --



               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  I know, but I'm going over



               6   here.  I don't think we have really clear testimony from



               7   Mrs. Seamons.  I think we have a communication



               8   breakdown.  But what counsel is asking me to accept into



               9   the record is that TUID was sending out monthly billings



              10   for those Lots 1 and 2 for the utilities that were



              11   actually being used, but on the vacant lots it was not



              12   sending out monthly billings for the standby fees.  Do



              13   you contest that?



              14             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  And I will have



              15   Mr. Shortreed testify as to exactly how the billing



              16   process works when it's his turn.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.



              18             MR. LONG:  In effect, the bills sent out are



              19   sent out on a group bill basis, so each bill has all of



              20   the lots owned by a particular property owner.



              21             MR. SHORTREED:  For Mrs. Seamons specifically,



              22   in this case she gets a group billing.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  We'll



              24   have -- Mr. Shortreed, until you are sworn in, if you



              25   would let your counsel speak, that would, I think, be
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               1   best for the record.



               2             MR. SHORTREED:  Sorry.



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's all right.



               4             MR. LONG:  And I'll have Mr. Shortreed address



               5   that question when he is speaking.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  That's fine.  And if we



               7   feel like we need any follow up with Mrs. Seamons, we'll



               8   give you that opportunity.



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  If I could have one more shot



              10   because I think this is very important to have on the



              11   record.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.



              13        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Ms. Seamons.



              14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.



              15        Q.   Did you receive any notice of any standby fees



              16   prior to March of 2014?



              17        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  I did not.



              18        Q.   So is it fair to say that you did not receive



              19   a monthly bill for those standby fees?



              20        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  I didn't know there was



              21   standby fees.  So I didn't receive a bill.



              22        Q.   Okay.  So the bill that you did receive for



              23   standby fees were for multiple months, correct?



              24        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.



              25        Q.   Okay.  And after March of 2014, on the
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               1   properties that were being billed standby fees, did you



               2   receive billing monthly for that?



               3        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



               4        Q.   Okay.  And so that is it your testimony that



               5   the properties with standby fees, you would only receive



               6   bills periodically with multiple months?



               7        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.



               8        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.



              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Was the issue of being



              11   billed for standby fees on properties that were not



              12   using utilities prior to September of 2013, was that



              13   ever addressed with TUID?



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) You will have to --



              15        Q.   You can answer too.



              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) You will have to repeat



              17   that, I'm sorry.



              18        Q.   Okay.  Did -- did you address the fact that



              19   you had not received any notice or any bills concerning



              20   the standby fees starting in 2013, September of 2013,



              21   with TUID?



              22        A.   (Witness Mother)  Yes.  I verbally addressed



              23   that to Mr. Shortreed, and he said that if I paid those



              24   fees, then I could abandon the properties.  But that was



              25   an exorbitant amount of money because I only received
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               1   $750 a month Social Security.  And I was relying on the



               2   rental to keep my bills paid, and he pulled the meters



               3   from my rental.  So I received no money from my rents.



               4        Q.   When did you address with Mr. Reed (sic) that



               5   you had been charged standby fees but hadn't received



               6   notice until March of 2014?



               7        A.   (Witness Mother)  I went down for a meeting.



               8   Was it the meeting?  I went to Ticaboo for the monthly



               9   meeting.



              10        Q.   Okay.



              11        A.   (Witness Mother) And addressed that with



              12   Mr. Shortreed at the meeting.



              13        Q.   So was that the March 21st, 2014, meeting?



              14        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.  Correct.



              15        Q.   And I believe it's already in the -- I know it



              16   is.  It's already attached.  There are meeting minutes



              17   from the TUID meeting on March 21st, 2014.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do I have that marked?



              19             MR. HOGELIN:  That's already in with --



              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Formal complaint.



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  With the formal complaint.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  But it's not marked as an



              23   exhibit here today.



              24             MR. HOGELIN:  No, it's not.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's see if we could find
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               1   that because I think that would be helpful.  Any idea



               2   about where that is in this?



               3             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Nearly to the end of the



               4   filing.  I would say about 20 pages from the back.  It



               5   -- none of the pages are actually marked on that filing



               6   with the formal complaint in December.  We do have



               7   available if we need copies, but it is submitted.



               8             MR. HOGELIN:  So it's the -- it starts with --



               9   the meeting minutes that was filed with the commission



              10   starts with April 11th, 2013, and then goes chronically



              11   to -- or chronologically to the March 21st, 2014,



              12   meeting minutes.



              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  They should be filed by



              14   monthly order, I believe, is the way we received them.



              15             MR. LONG:  If I may interject.  We have these



              16   same meeting minutes as one of the -- one of the



              17   exhibits we'll introduce as well if that's --



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Want to just do that right



              19   now?  We'll --



              20             MR. LONG:  If that's helpful.  I have -- I



              21   have whole binders put together if I could pass those



              22   out now, and that might save us some time.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's go ahead and do that



              24   then.  I think that would be helpful.



              25             MR. LONG:  Here is a commission binder that
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               1   has electronic versions too, if that's helpful.



               2             MR. SHORTREED:  Do you know which number that



               3   is?



               4             (Discussion off the record.)



               5             MR. LONG:  The commission has a CD of



               6   electronic versions too.



               7             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you, Mr. Long.  It looks



               8   like it's under No. 15, index No. 15 of the trial



               9   binder, of TUID's trial binder.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  And so I take it you have no



              11   objection.



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I will leave you the



              14   option to object to anything that you find in, in this



              15   binder as we go through, but for now I am just going to



              16   consider these as marked, and then we'll see if, if as



              17   we use them there's any evidentiary issues that you want



              18   to make me aware of.



              19             So this is TUID's Exhibit No. 16.  And go



              20   ahead.



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Fifteen.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Excuse me.  Thank you.  No.



              23   15.  All right.  Go ahead.



              24        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) On the third page -- you can



              25   go ahead.  Was it state -- can you read the second
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               1   paragraph.



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, in this one it says,



               3   "Resolution 2014-0011 was introduced by Mr. Shortreed.



               4   The resolution amends Resolution 2014-005, the policies



               5   about the abandonment of utilities.



               6             "Mrs. Seamons asked about leeway that the



               7   district might extend to those with few means.



               8   Mr. Shortreed describes why utilities in Ticaboo are so



               9   expensive and why fees must be high.  He noted that



              10   standby fees were never intended to be perpetual.



              11   Mrs. Seamons expressed her concerns for those with --



              12   those on fixed incomes."



              13        Q.   So Ms. Seamons, is this when you addressed the



              14   billing of the standby fees for the months from



              15   September to March of 2014?



              16        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct, yes.



              17        Q.   And what was their response to your bringing



              18   up the issue?



              19        A.   He said he didn't care.



              20        Q.   Okay.



              21             MR. LONG:  That's hearsay, and the meeting



              22   minutes don't reflect that.



              23             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's the truth.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.  It's not -- it's not



              25   relevant what his personal feelings were, so that's
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               1   fine.



               2        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  And then can you read



               3   this paragraph right here.  Oh.  Yeah, go ahead and read



               4   that.  Can you please read, it looks like two paragraphs



               5   up from the bottom.



               6        A.   (Witness Daughter)  "Mrs. Seamons asked a



               7   hypothetical question about a situation of nonpayment.



               8   Mr. Shortreed noted that she would have the right to



               9   terminate the lease.  She said that terminating the



              10   lease is very difficult in the state of Utah."



              11        Q.   Okay.  So when you addressed this standby fee



              12   bill with TUID, what was your feeling of how they



              13   addressed it, or how would you state that they -- it was



              14   addressed by them?



              15        A.   (Witness Mother)  The standby fees?



              16        Q.   Uh-huh, or your concerns regarding the fees?



              17        A.   (Witness Mother) It looked to me like I was



              18   being charged for the services.



              19        Q.   Okay.



              20        A.   (Witness Mother) It didn't look like standby



              21   fees at all.



              22        Q.   Okay.



              23        A.   (Witness Mother) I was being charged for



              24   power, water, sewer and garbage.



              25        Q.   Okay.
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               1        A.   (Witness Mother) Which I did not use.



               2        Q.   Did they try to meet with you individually to



               3   resolve your concerns?



               4        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't hear you.



               5        Q.   Did they try to meet with you individually to



               6   resolve your concerns?



               7        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



               8        Q.   No.  Did they offer to try to meet with you at



               9   all?



              10        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.  I tried to meet with



              11   him the next day.  I went to the office, and he said he



              12   was on the phone and closed the door.  I have never been



              13   in the office.



              14        Q.   Okay.  And since then, at any time that you



              15   have tried to address the billing, have they been



              16   cooperative with you at all?



              17        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  Since we have been



              18   there, my daughter Mary and Rick have been helping me



              19   with everything.  And they have tried, and my other



              20   daughters have tried to talk with Mr. Shortreed and with



              21   no results.



              22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



              23             MR. HOGELIN:  So I believe we have addressed



              24   the issue that the commission has provided -- or set



              25   with regards to this hearing for No. 4.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               2             MR. HOGELIN:  With regards to beginning of the



               3   charges of the standby fees.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               5             MR. HOGELIN:  We would like to move on to the



               6   issue of tenants and just would like to ask my client.



               7        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Are you aware of any tenants



               8   that have contracts with TUID presently?



               9        A.   (Witness Daughter)  The motel, the resort



              10   carries the tenant contracts for SITLA.



              11        Q.   So who is the owner of the property?



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) The Utah State School Trust



              13   Lands.



              14        Q.   Which is also known as?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) SITLA.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And however, the contracts with TUID,



              17   are they with SITLA or through the tenant of SITLA's?



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Through the tenant.



              19        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.



              20        Q.   Okay.  Have your tenants been entitled to the



              21   same consideration as SITLA's?



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              23        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



              24        Q.   Have -- and what has been the response from



              25   TUID regarding any concerns with regards to your tenants
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               1   having contracts with TUID directly?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) That the property owner has



               3   to carry the contract with the district.



               4        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.



               5        Q.   Do you think it's fair that you aren't



               6   receiving the same considerations as another property



               7   owner in Ticaboo?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We have to assume



               9   their utilities after they leave upon a contract.



              10        A.   (Witness Mother) That's correct.



              11             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  I believe that resolves



              12   the issue No. 5 or, well, not resolves, but --



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.



              14             MR. HOGELIN:  I'm sorry.  One second.



              15             (Discussion off the record.)



              16        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So have you had tenants on



              17   the property, or any of your properties?



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              19        Q.   You have never had any tenants?



              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Well, we had tenants.  The



              21   tenants --



              22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) -- have not resided there



              24   since --



              25        Q.   Okay.  So you have had tenants on your
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               1   property, correct?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               3        Q.   And when the tenants moved away from the



               4   property, were you able to stop the charges for the



               5   utilities?



               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



               7        A.   (Witness Mother) No.  We continue to pay them.



               8        Q.   Okay.  So you had to continue to pay them?



               9        A.   (Witness Mother) I had to pay them.



              10        Q.   Okay.  All right.



              11             MR. HOGELIN:  I believe that we have addressed



              12   No.  5.  All right.  With regards to item No. 6 that the



              13   commission had asked for evidence to be proffered,



              14   obviously I just would like to make a note, it's kind of



              15   hard to provide evidence of nothing.  But I will still



              16   ask my clients for their testimony.  Excuse me.



              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any



              18   information pamphlets from TUID?



              19             MR. HOGELIN:  Can we -- can we take a short



              20   recess for restroom break?



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.  We'll take a



              22   break, go off the record for about 10 minutes.  Come



              23   back at about 10:30.



              24             (Recess from 10:21 a.m. to 10:32 a.m.)



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We'll go back on
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               1   the record.  We left off, we were just about to start



               2   talking about the customer information pamphlet.



               3        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you received any



               4   customer information pamphlet?  Did you receive a



               5   customer information pamphlet from TUID?



               6        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't hear that correctly.



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did you receive a customer



               8   information pamphlet?



               9        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



              10        Q.   Okay.



              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Sorry.



              12        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I did not.



              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Did it work?



              14             MR. HOGELIN:  Hit the button.



              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  It shows on.  Oh, there we



              16   go.  Sorry.



              17        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I did not.



              18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  Thank you.  Have you



              19   received any -- a copy of the statement of customer



              20   rights and responsibilities from TUID ever?



              21        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



              22        Q.   Okay.  Have you received any notices from TUID



              23   through any type of pamphlet?



              24             MR. LONG:  Did you receive a pamphlet?



              25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Mary, are you aware of any?
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               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes, we received a pamphlet



               2   February 20th, 2015.



               3        Q.   And what was that pamphlet concerning?



               4        A.   Meter tampering.



               5        Q.   Okay.  But nothing with regards to tariff or



               6   your rights or your responsibilities under the tariff?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) I didn't read completely



               8   through it, but I -- it was meter tampering and new



               9   rates of February.



              10        A.   (Witness Mother) There it is right there.



              11   Yeah, that's correct.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  New rates as of February 2015?



              13             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  2015, February 20th, 2015.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  '16.  This year.  Sorry.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  '16.



              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yeah, just barely, we just



              18   barely got it.



              19        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Did you receive any pamphlets



              20   prior to that?



              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              22        A.   (Witness Mother) No.



              23        Q.   Okay.  I'd like to go on to the last issue,



              24   and that's regarding the removal of taps from



              25   Ms. Seamons' property.  Ms. Seamons, have you -- has
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               1   TUID removed the taps from your property, or taps or



               2   meters from your property?



               3        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes, he has.



               4        Q.   Okay.  How many times has that happened?



               5        A.   (Witness Mother) At least twice.



               6        Q.   Okay.  So let's talk about the two, the two



               7   times.  On either -- well, on either of those times were



               8   you given any prior notice to the taps or meters being



               9   removed?



              10        A.   (Witness Mother)  No, I did not.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  I just need to clarify a



              12   little bit.  Are we talking about a single property?



              13   Are we talking about --



              14             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- one and two?



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  We are talking about a lot.



              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Three and four.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Lots 3 and 4?



              19             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  And twice something was



              21   removed from Lots 3 and 4?



              22             WITNESS MOTHER:  Right, yes.



              23             MR. HOGELIN:  So it was the same lots?



              24             WITNESS MOTHER:  Same lots.



              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Both properties.
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               1             (Talking at once.)



               2             COURT REPORT:  Sorry.  I'm having trouble with



               3   four people talking at once, just a little confusing.



               4        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So just to recap, Lots



               5   3 and 4 are the lots at issue, and those are both --



               6   those are the lots for both incidents?



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what's on those



               8   lots?  Is it a home?



               9             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Double-wide home.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  A double-wide home?



              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Trailer home.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Double-wide trailer home,



              13   okay.



              14             WITNESS MOTHER:  Four bedroom home.



              15        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So let's talk about



              16   the first incident.  When about was the first incident?



              17        A.   (Witness Mother) The first time the taps, the



              18   meters were removed, I had a renter, and the renter



              19   called and said that they got a --



              20             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  That they --



              21        A.   (Witness Mother)  That they pulled the meters



              22   on them because they, they had their own generator.  And



              23   they had pulled the meters, and they had no water and no



              24   power, and they had to move.



              25        Q.   Okay.  So the renters, did they notify TUID?
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               1        A.   (Witness Mother) Yes.



               2        Q.   Okay.  How did they notify TUID?



               3        A.   (Witness Mother) They called me on the phone.



               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No, T-U-I-D.



               5        A.   (Witness Mother) Oh, T-U-I-D?



               6             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.  How did Jim and Val



               7   Hill in 2013?  Remember we GRAMA Acted.  Did you --



               8        A.   (Witness Mother) I didn't understand the



               9   question properly.



              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  In what form did your



              11   tenants inform TUID that they -- now, which utility were



              12   they requesting to discontinue?



              13        A.   (Witness Mother) How did they contacted



              14   T-U-I-D?



              15        Q.   Which utility were they asking TUID to



              16   discontinue?



              17        A.   (Witness Mother) They were receiving their



              18   water and power.



              19        Q.   Okay.  And what were they asking to be



              20   discontinued?



              21             MR. LONG:  I'd just like to note a hearsay



              22   objection here.  We are talking about what someone else



              23   allegedly asked the district to do three-plus years ago.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Understood.  Thank you.



              25        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What did -- okay.  What did
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               1   your tenants tell you that they wanted disconnected?



               2        A.   (Witness Mother) The tenants said they had no



               3   water or no power, and they couldn't stay.  They had a



               4   business there.



               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.  So --



               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) What did they tell you that



               7   they wanted?  What utility did they tell you they wanted



               8   disconnected?  Did they want electric disconnected?  Did



               9   they want water disconnected?  Did they want all of it



              10   disconnected?



              11        A.   They didn't want anything disconnected.



              12        Q.   Okay.  Mary, can you testify?



              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Okay.



              14        Q.   Mary, to your knowledge, did the tenants



              15   inform your mom that they wanted any utility



              16   disconnected?



              17        A.   (Witness Daughter) They informed me.  I went



              18   down in August of 2013, on the 15th of that month, and



              19   was informed by them that they had requested to not have



              20   power, that they wanted to run a generator.



              21        Q.   My question to you is, what did they tell you



              22   that they wanted disconnected?



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Their power.



              24        Q.   Okay.  Did they want the water disconnected as



              25   well?
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               1        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



               2        Q.   Okay.  Did, did you or your mother inform TUID



               3   that -- or request that the power service be



               4   disconnected?



               5        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.



               6        Q.   Okay.



               7        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct.



               8        Q.   All right.  And did TUID disconnect the power?



               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) They took the meters, both



              10   water and power.



              11        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct, they did.



              12        Q.   So they -- even though the tenants informed



              13   you that they only wanted the power disconnected, TUID



              14   came out and disconnected all of the utilities, correct?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.



              16        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.



              17        Q.   Okay.



              18             MR. LONG:  Again, objection that anything



              19   beyond electric service is beyond the commission's



              20   jurisdiction, I think beyond the scope of this hearing.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thank you.



              22             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



              23        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Was there any notice provided



              24   that all of the utilities would be disconnected?



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter)  No.
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               1        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.



               2        Q.   Okay.  Was there any notice of what day or



               3   time that even the electrical utility would be



               4   disconnected?



               5        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.



               6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, there -- the second



               7   incident that you referred to --



               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Can you put that in as



               9   exhibit?



              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Mary, Mary.



              11             WITNESS MOTHER:  That just recently?



              12        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So the -- let's talk



              13   about the second incident.  Mary, you were involved in



              14   that.  What -- can you please describe the second



              15   incident with regards to the taps or meters being



              16   removed from those lots.



              17        A.   (Witness Daughter) We went down to the meeting



              18   on April 28th, on a Thursday.  We stated our home --



              19        Q.   Sorry.  What year?



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  What year?



              21             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  2016.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I need you to tell me what



              23   happened between.  Did the utility service get



              24   reinstated?



              25             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Okay.
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  Oh, you are talking from 2013?



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



               4             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So in 2000 -- after 2013,



               5   no renters, no meters replaced until August of 2014.  At



               6   that time we were required to pay an $1875 fee for



               7   standby fees during the year the meter was removed in



               8   order for the meters to put back on.



               9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the meters were removed in



              10   August of 2013, but you were charged standby fees until



              11   August of 2014?



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  With the meters



              13   removed.



              14        A.   (Witness Mother)  Correct.



              15        Q.   And when did the tenants move in?



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you -- did you pay that?



              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.



              18             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes, we did.



              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  For our tenants, for new



              20   tenants to come in so that we could have a renter base.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So the tenants that had



              23   requested for the electric to be removed, did they stay



              24   on the property for that year?



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  They moved out of
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               1   state.  They had to move.



               2        Q.   Why did they have to move?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Their -- it shut down their



               4   business, and there was no service.



               5             MR. LONG:  Again hearsay.  We're going to



               6   someone else's motivations.



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Oh, well, there was no --



               8        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) To the best of your



               9   understanding.



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) They told me they could not



              11   stay and with that -- and with no meters, no service



              12   with utilities.



              13        Q.   Okay.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  But the fact is, they moved.



              15             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.



              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  They didn't have any water or



              17   power.



              18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  So the second incident



              19   so --



              20        A.   (Witness Mother) Oh.



              21        Q.   You testified that the meters were put back in



              22   August of 2014; is that correct?



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.



              24        Q.   Okay.



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) In 2016, April 28th, we
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               1   went down.  We stayed at the house for four days and



               2   left on Sunday, May 1st.  May 2nd, upon returning,



               3   received an e-mail from Ticaboo that they had removed



               4   our meter.



               5        Q.   Okay.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  This is still on --



               7             WITNESS MOTHER:  On three and four.



               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  This is three and four.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  So you personally stayed there



              10   for 10 days?



              11             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.  We stayed there for



              12   three -- four days.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  For four days.



              14             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We stayed in our home, but



              15   we were over there cleaning and fixing it for new



              16   renters.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I see, okay.  And so you



              18   worked in the house for four days.



              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We worked in the house,



              20   uh-huh.



              21        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Now, let's go back to



              22   February.



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) But we can go back to



              24   February.



              25        Q.   So in February, was there an issue regarding
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               1   utilities in Ticaboo?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  On February 18th



               3   there was a meeting.  And as we arrived to the meeting,



               4   it was stated that if anyone touched the meters or did



               5   any tampering, that they would have a thousand dollar



               6   tampering fee charge.  And they -- the meeting was in



               7   regards to changing the rates for tampering.



               8        Q.   And had you -- had you had any contact with



               9   the meters?



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  We didn't know that



              11   you could not touch the meters, so during the winter



              12   months we turned them off.  And so when we came down



              13   there after being gone for the coldest months, November,



              14   December, and January, we turned them on.  Make sure



              15   there was no frozen pipes and then went over to -- and



              16   we had to use water, so we turned on.



              17             And then we went over to the meeting.  During



              18   the meeting we informed --



              19        Q.   So what was the purpose of turning them off



              20   during the winter?  What were you trying -- what was the



              21   purpose of it?



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter)  So no pipes would break.



              23        A.   (Witness Mother)  That's correct.



              24        Q.   And so in February you went to the meeting,



              25   and you were -- were you given a warning or anything for
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               1   doing that?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) During the meeting, as we



               3   informed the district, we informed them that we had



               4   turned the meters on.  And so Mr. Shortreed and the



               5   board members informed us that that was our warning.



               6   Upon returning home, we received the pamphlet.



               7        Q.   When you say -- okay.  In February?



               8        A.   February 20th.



               9             MR. LONG:  I am going to object here.  This is



              10   well beyond the scope of the commission's questions and



              11   what I understand to be the scope of this hearing.  If



              12   it needs addressed, I'd suggest that we do it in --



              13             MR. HOGELIN:  Your Honor, we would ask --



              14             MR. LONG:  -- filings after this hearing or at



              15   least give Ticaboo the opportunity to respond.



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Can I respond to the objection?



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  I'm trying to understand the



              18   circumstances under which taps were removed.  They were



              19   saying taps were removed or meters shut down or some



              20   sort of action taken by Ticaboo to discontinue service



              21   on two occasions.



              22             The first occasion was in connection with a



              23   tenant who had a generator.  The second occasion was in



              24   connection with their trying to prepare the property for



              25   new tenants to move in, correct?
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               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Yes.



               2             WITNESS MOTHER:  Correct.



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I am a little bit confused



               4   about dates.  So the second incident you said was this



               5   year, right?



               6             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  April of 2016?



               8             WITNESS MOTHER:  Correct.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  So the February meeting, was



              10   that also of this year, 2016?



              11             WITNESS MOTHER:  Yes.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And so the meeting that



              13   you went to was dealing with tampering charges.  When



              14   you had turned off the meters, that was to water,



              15   correct?



              16             WITNESS MOTHER:  The water was already on.



              17             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  No.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you turn off the meters



              19   for the electricity at any time?



              20             WITNESS MOTHER:  Never.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what does the --



              22   does their taking action with the meter on the water



              23   have anything to do with electricity?  Is there going to



              24   be a tie-in?



              25             MR. HOGELIN:  That's where I am going with the
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               1   testimony, yes.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So your objection is



               3   noted, but I do need to hear the rest of this, and at



               4   that point I'll be able to tell if it's relevant or not.



               5   Go ahead.



               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin)  So to go back, you were



               7   given a warning in February about doing any action with



               8   the meters, correct?



               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.



              10        Q.   Okay.  After February and you were given that



              11   warning, did you take any actions or do anything with



              12   regards to the meters?



              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              14        Q.   Okay.  You testified in April that you visited



              15   the property and you were there for three days, correct?



              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.



              17        A.   (Witness Mother) Correct.



              18        Q.   And while you were visiting the property, did



              19   you do anything with the meters, whether electrical,



              20   water or whatever, turning anything on or off?



              21        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              22        A.   (Witness Mother)  No.



              23        Q.   Okay.  And then what was the -- so you left



              24   the property on what date?



              25        A.   (Witness Daughter) May 1st.
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               1        Q.   May 1st.  And after May 1st, you -- did you



               2   receive any correspondence from TUID?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) On May 2nd we received an



               4   e-mail that our meters -- meter had been removed, water



               5   meter had been removed from our property.



               6        Q.   Was your electrical meter removed?



               7        A.   (Witness Daughter) I had -- did not check



               8   that.



               9        Q.   Okay.



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) I turned off the power with



              11   the box, our power box, our main box.



              12        Q.   But there wasn't any notice given prior to the



              13   removal of the meter?



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) No contact from the



              15   district in regards.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So the question was,



              17   was anything done to electricity, and you don't know,



              18   right?



              19             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't know.  I did not go



              20   out and check that.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So do you have renters



              22   in that property now?



              23             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  We cannot.  They cannot use



              24   water.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.
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               1             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I don't even know power.



               2   At that point we knew that there wasn't a viable.  We



               3   had renters ready to move in at that time.  That's why



               4   we were preparing that home, seasonal workers were



               5   there.



               6             WITNESS MOTHER:  They had gone back to pick up



               7   their things to move in.  We had the rent -- we had it



               8   rented.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Anything more,



              10   Mr. Hogelin?



              11             MR. HOGELIN:  We rest, your Honor.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Mr. Long, are you ready?



              13             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  I just have a few questions



              14   for cross-examination.  And I guess the particular



              15   person answering them, we will take answers from whoever



              16   can give them.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.



              18                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



              19   BY MR. LONG:



              20        Q.   So Ms. Seamons, I just have a handful of



              21   questions.



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) If you ask questions, I'll



              23   try to answer or if she can't hear.



              24        Q.   Sure.  And if I need to restate anything or



              25   speak louder, please let me know.  As I understand your
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               1   testimony, and this is simply for the -- for my benefit,



               2   you claim that you had no notice of standby fees between



               3   September 2013, when the district first started charging



               4   standby fees, and March of 2014?



               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  So he is asking, did you



               6   have any notice on the standby fees from '13 until --



               7        A.   (Witness Mother) No, I never had a bill until



               8   March.



               9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) And again, by way of



              10   clarification, I think, and please correct me if I am



              11   wrong, that you testified that you had been receiving



              12   bills for the house on Lot 1 and 2.  The house --



              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Can I specify --



              14        A.   (Witness Mother) I'm not sure.



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) -- an answer for that for



              16   her?



              17        Q.   Certainly.



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) So during the course before



              19   September 2013, any property that we had rented or sold



              20   was held, a contract to the district to pay the



              21   utilities.  So we weren't receiving any bills prior to



              22   that.  And after 2000 -- that 2013, standby fees were



              23   implemented, we did not receive one.  We received it for



              24   one and two, the only lot, the house that we resided in.



              25        Q.   And at that time, the house that's built or
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               1   located on Lot 1 and 2 was occupied?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) We visit it.  We do not --



               3   we are not full-time residents.  We go down and



               4   seasonally visit.



               5        Q.   Sorry.  Maybe more clearly, the house was



               6   actively receiving service, as in when you turn on the



               7   tap, water comes out?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct, on one and two.



               9        Q.   Light switches, lights go on?



              10        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              11        Q.   Okay.  And the other ones were either



              12   undeveloped properties or not occupied?



              13        A.   (Witness Daughter) Correct.  The tenants had



              14   left on three and four.



              15        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  Thank you, just by way of



              16   clarification.



              17        A.   (Witness Mother)  Yeah, that's correct.



              18        Q.   You brought up a few different issues of



              19   notice or claim that you didn't have notice of various



              20   actions that the district was taking.  Are you familiar



              21   with what's referred to as the Utah Public Notice



              22   Website?



              23        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  Actually, last night



              24   I received an alert that there's a meeting tomorrow



              25   night.
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               1        Q.   And have you subscribed to that?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Just in November.



               3        Q.   Okay.



               4        A.   (Witness Daughter) I wasn't aware of it prior.



               5        Q.   And are you aware of the commission's website



               6   that contains filings from the district as far as they



               7   regard electrical service?



               8        A.   (Witness Daughter) I went in and tried to



               9   locate that before, but TSSD and TUID were very confused



              10   within that.  And I wasn't aware of TUID being.  So I



              11   tried to.  I did subscribe to the Public Services



              12   Commission's, but they eliminated their alerts, I want



              13   to say in April.  I got a notice that they no longer



              14   would serve alerts in regards to filings or anything



              15   with districts.



              16        Q.   So since -- after March of 2014, and again,



              17   this is -- maybe I'm a little confused because this has



              18   been sort of a hectic hearing.  Have you been receiving



              19   bills for all of the properties?



              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



              21        Q.   Okay.



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) So as of 2014 in March, we



              23   started to receive combined billing statements for all



              24   properties.



              25        Q.   And those combined billing statements, again
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               1   just for the commission's benefit, this is one bill that



               2   has, has charges for all eight lots that you own?



               3        A.   (Witness Daughter) Let me look at the billings



               4   that I have.



               5             WITNESS MOTHER:  It's just right there.  You



               6   just had it there.



               7             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  I have current ones.  I had



               8   the current ones.



               9             WITNESS MOTHER:  It is for all properties.



              10             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Well, I don't know if they



              11   are combining seven and eight or if it's separate.



              12             WITNESS MOTHER:  Oh, I didn't know that



              13   either.  I think it's separate.



              14        A.   (Witness Daughter) Seven and eight are



              15   combined, so they are not -- they are separate.  But on



              16   our property taxes, they are separate.



              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Sure.



              18        A.   (Witness Daughter) Utility fees.



              19        Q.   We have discussed a little bit the difference



              20   between taps and meters or connections.  Again, just to



              21   clarify, understanding the district definition of a tap



              22   is having utility service, in this case electrical



              23   service, available at the property line, so at any edge



              24   of the property, do all of the lots that you own in



              25   Ticaboo have electrical service or electrical lines
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               1   available at the edge of the property?



               2        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               3        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Just to clarify, thank you.



               4        A.   (Witness Daughter)  Well, I am not sure.



               5   Maybe they are and they are not.  I don't know if



               6   there's electrical really cable.  How would I know?



               7   It's buried.  There's pedestals.



               8        Q.   Okay.



               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) But I don't know what --



              10        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  That's sufficient.  Can you



              11   describe current tenants, if any, that you have?



              12        A.   (Witness Daughter) None.



              13        Q.   Okay.  In your opinion, would you be able to



              14   rent any of these properties without utility service; in



              15   particular, electrical service?



              16        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  Utility?  Did you say



              17   power?  With solar, I could, yes.



              18        Q.   Do any of your properties have essentially



              19   off-the-grid capable solar systems?



              20        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.



              21        Q.   Okay.



              22        A.   (Witness Daughter) But I could purchase a



              23   generator.



              24             MR. LONG:  I have no further questions.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any
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               1   follow-up?



               2                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION



               3   BY MR. HOGELIN:



               4        Q.   Have you looked into using alternative



               5   electrical services such as solar or generators?



               6        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.



               7        Q.   And have you notified TUID that you are



               8   interested in using alternative services?



               9        A.   (Witness Daughter) Yes.  We have spoke with



              10   Tom Hill and Mr. Shortreed.



              11        Q.   And did they -- were -- were you told, or is



              12   it your understanding that if you use alternative



              13   electrical services, that you will no longer have any



              14   fees from TUID with regards to electrical?



              15        A.   (Witness Daughter) No.  We would still be



              16   charged a standby fee.



              17             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.  That's all.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Any recross?



              19             MR. LONG:  No.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.  You want to



              21   call Mr. Shortreed?



              22             MR. LONG:  Yeah.  I'd like to discuss one



              23   issue with the commission.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              25             MR. LONG:  And I alluded to this earlier.
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               1   Again, the district has come prepared to answer the



               2   commission's questions, and those questions in



               3   particular involve Dockets 13-2508-T01 and 15-2508-T01.



               4   I'd like to point out to the commission at this point in



               5   the proceeding that neither of those dockets involve the



               6   implementation of standby fees.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  It was my understanding that



               8   Docket 13 is where standby fees were first introduced.



               9   Is that not correct?



              10             MR. LONG:  Docket 13-2508-T02 is the docket



              11   where standby fee -- the new tariff including standby



              12   fees was filed with the commission.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Well, perhaps I made a



              14   mistake.  I took the docket number, I believe, straight



              15   out of your response.



              16             MR. LONG:  And I am not promising we made no



              17   typos.  We are prepared to address it on a very



              18   preliminary basis here.  We would ask that anything



              19   regarding the legality of standby fees or the notice



              20   provided be --



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  The commission has already



              22   stated that standby fees are legal.  The question is



              23   whether you have a valid tariff that includes standby



              24   fees.  That's the question.  And if you did not comply



              25   with the statutory notice requirement to customers and
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               1   to the commission in the docket where you created and



               2   first imposed those standby fees, then you do not have a



               3   valid tariff.  And that's what we're trying to figure



               4   out today.



               5             MR. LONG:  I understand the commission's



               6   position.  I'd like to request the opportunity to



               7   complete some sort of posthearing brief or filing as the



               8   commission feels it necessary.  As based on our readings



               9   of the questions --



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  So let me just figure this



              11   out.  What's the docket number where you first created



              12   standby fees?



              13             MR. LONG:  That's 13-2508-T02.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  So what was the purpose of



              15   T01?



              16             MR. LONG:  T01 made overall changes to the



              17   rate structure.  It set forth different, I guess we



              18   would call them, blocked billing schedules.  Essentially



              19   changed the way that customers could pay for electrical



              20   service.



              21             And again, we're prepared to address --



              22   address the district's compliance with the requirements



              23   as far as Docket 13-2508-T02.  But that hasn't been the



              24   top of our preparation.  And understanding that was



              25   perhaps a typo or miscommunication by us in the
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               1   beginning, we would simply like the opportunity to file



               2   a posthearing brief if we feel it necessary.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Point of clarification.  So is



               4   the commission asking when tariff -- the standby fees



               5   were introduced?



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct, into the tariff.



               7             MR. HOGELIN:  Although, I think it's not



               8   disputed that in the 2015 tariff it's also included,



               9   correct?



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  It's included in the 2015



              11   tariff, yes.



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.  I just wanted to --



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  The question is whether -- is



              14   where they were very first introduced.



              15             MR. LONG:  So if it's helpful to the



              16   commission, in our binder of exhibits, we have the



              17   action request response in Docket 13-2508-T02.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              19             MR. LONG:  From the Division of Public



              20   Utilities that describes essentially the changes that



              21   were made in that tariff filing.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Where is that?



              23             MR. LONG:  That's Exhibit 24.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Let's see.  Okay.  The



              25   implementation of standby fees for all services provided
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               1   by district.  That's on page 2 of that exhibit.  Any



               2   objection, Mr. Hogelin, to this Exhibit No. 24?



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  No objection, your Honor.  I'm



               4   sorry.  You were referring to page 2 with regards to --



               5             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  Is there an action number,



               6   did you say?



               7             MR. HOGELIN:  No, no, just...



               8             WITNESS DAUGHTER:  This says one.  How come



               9   that one says two?



              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Just, Mary, please.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  We'll do the best



              12   we can and see where it takes us, and if we need



              13   posthearing briefing, we'll put together a schedule for



              14   that.  Go ahead.



              15             MR. LONG:  Okay.  Understood.  Mr. Shortreed



              16   has prepared a written statement that he would like to



              17   read, as has typically been commission practice.  The



              18   hope is that the statement will both set forth the



              19   district responses to the commission's seven questions,



              20   as well as introduce this entire binder full of



              21   exhibits.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead and have him sworn.



              23                        CHIP SHORTREED,



              24   called as a witness at the instance of the Ticaboo



              25   Utility Improvement District, having been first duly
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               1   sworn, was examined and testified as follows:



               2             MR. LONG:  Would you like Mr. Shortreed here?



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.



               4             MR. LONG:  That acceptable?



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



               6             THE WITNESS:  Good morning.  My name is Chip



               7   Shortreed.  I am the district manager for the Ticaboo



               8   Utility Improvement District.  I have been involved with



               9   TUID for a number of years.  With the guidance of the



              10   board of trustees, I am responsible for day-to-day



              11   operations of TUID and its facilities, including



              12   operations and maintenance, billing and finances,



              13   customer relations and all other aspects of TUID.  I am



              14   the sole full-time employee of TUID.  I am also a



              15   resident of Ticaboo and a TUID customer.



              16             The major issue in these proceedings has been



              17   standby fees charged by TUID.  TUID adopted its standby



              18   fees in 2013, and the corresponding tariff changes were



              19   filed and acknowledged by the commission on December 6,



              20   2013 in commission Docket 13-2508-T02.



              21             This docket is not a topic for this hearing



              22   per the commission.  Nevertheless, it is important to



              23   note that TUID provided the required notice to customers



              24   and to the commission of the proposed changes and that



              25   the standby fees were acknowledged by the commission.
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               1   Could I just say, as a side-bar, this was written before



               2   what we have talked about today.



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  I understand.



               4             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you.  Although the



               5   commission has dismissed all aspects of Mrs. Seamons'



               6   complaint as it relates to standby fees, I want to make



               7   a brief statement on the record about the necessity of



               8   standby fees.



               9             TUID's standby fees are the method by which



              10   the costs of keeping and maintaining TUID's utility



              11   infrastructure are fairly allocated among the customers



              12   that are actively receiving utility service and those



              13   property owners to which service is available upon



              14   request.  Standby fees as charged by TUID are legal,



              15   just, and reasonable.



              16             TUID is authorized to charge standby fees,



              17   both as an improvement district and as a public utility.



              18   Without standby fees, the active customers of TUID would



              19   be forced to subsidize the owners of undeveloped



              20   properties in Ticaboo.



              21             TUID stands ready to provide utility service



              22   upon request to a number of yet-to-be-developed



              23   properties in Ticaboo, the only full service community



              24   within 60 miles.  The fact that utility services are



              25   available upon request means that properties in Ticaboo
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               1   can be developed.  Without available utility services,



               2   platted lots in Ticaboo would be worth no more than



               3   barren, undeveloped and unimproved land in the desert.



               4             TUID -- excuse me, TUID incurs expenses to



               5   keep these services available, and standby fees simply



               6   allocate these expenses according to those who benefit.



               7   The commission has very clearly stated that TUID's



               8   standby fees are legal.  In the order issued in this



               9   docket on July 6, 2016, the commission stated, "TUID is



              10   correct that standby fees are legal.  The commission has



              11   regularly approved and required standby fees in the



              12   tariffs of regulated utilities."



              13             Further, Utah code, 17B-1-1032J allows a local



              14   district to charge, quote, fees or other charges for



              15   commodities, services or facilities provided that the



              16   district -- provided by the district, end quote.  While



              17   the statute does not use the specific term, quote,



              18   standby fee, a tap is a facility for which a fee may be



              19   charged.



              20             The commission has dismissed Ms. Seamons'



              21   allegation as to legality in general of the standby fees



              22   and as to the legality of the specific rates and



              23   policies set forth in TUID's tariff.  That means the



              24   standby fees are not at issue today, and I will not



              25   address them any further in my statement.
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  Objection.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Sustained.  Go ahead.



               3             THE WITNESS:  May I proceed?



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



               5             THE WITNESS:  In the order in this docket



               6   dated July 6, 2016, the commission listed seven



               7   questions to be answered at this hearing.  I will now



               8   take a few minutes and address each of those questions



               9   in turn.



              10             TUID has provided the commission and the other



              11   parties with a binder of exhibits that are relevant to



              12   the commission's questions, and I ask that those



              13   documents be admitted into evidence at the conclusion of



              14   my statements.  Footnote:  They already have been, I



              15   guess.



              16             No. 1, when the commission approved the joint



              17   settlement stipulation in Docket No. 15-2508-T01, TUID



              18   was ordered to hold a board meeting within 30 days of



              19   September 10, 2015, or no later than Saturday, October



              20   10th, 2015.  Did TUID comply with that order?



              21             Our response:  The stipulated step -- excuse



              22   me, the stipulated settlement in question was submitted



              23   by the division on August 20th, 2015, with a proposed



              24   settlement stipulation.  The division also filed revised



              25   tariff sheets to reflect the terms of the stipulated
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               1   settlement.



               2             On August 27, 2015, TUID had a publicly and



               3   properly noticed board meeting to approve the settlement



               4   and the revised tariff sheets, although this was prior



               5   to the issuance of the order from the commission on



               6   September 10th, 2015, approving the settlement,



               7   stipulated settlement.  TUID took board action prior to



               8   the issuance of the actual order as the board was



               9   confident that the commission would approve the



              10   settlement as requested by the division.



              11             On November 18, 2015, Justin Jetter, one of



              12   the attorneys for the division, e-mailed TUID's attorney



              13   to check if the required board meeting had been held to



              14   adopt the changes in the stipulated settlement.  On that



              15   same day TUID's attorney replied to Mr. Jetter and sent



              16   him the resolution approving the changes, as well as the



              17   minutes from that meeting.



              18             The stipulated settlement is marked as Exhibit



              19   TUID-001.  The red-lined revised tariff sheets submitted



              20   by the division are marked as Exhibit TUID-002.



              21   Resolution 2015-0019 approving the tariff changes is



              22   marked as Exhibit TUID-003.



              23             The minutes of the August 27, 2015, meeting



              24   are marked as Exhibit TUID-004.  The e-mail



              25   correspondence between Mr. Jetter and TUID's attorney is



                                                                        103

�













               1   marked as Exhibit TUID-005.  The notice of the August



               2   27th meeting posted on the public notice website is



               3   marked as Exhibit TUID-006.  The agenda for the August



               4   27th meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-007.



               5             No. 2, if TUID held the board meeting as



               6   ordered in Docket No. 15-2058-T01, did it also file its



               7   revised tariff with the commission within the ensuing 15



               8   days?  Through an unfortunate oversight, TUID did not



               9   file the revised tariff with the commission within 15



              10   days of the board meeting.



              11             Please note that the board meeting



              12   contemplated by the commission had already happened by



              13   the time this order was issued.  To meet the special



              14   15-day requirement as set by the commission in this



              15   unique case, TUID would have needed to file the revised



              16   tariff within two days of the order.  TUID should have



              17   completed that file, but mistakenly failed to do so.



              18             The changes in this update tariff are



              19   relatively minor and deal with tampering fees and some



              20   details regarding service to tenant-occupied properties.



              21   I am sorry, tenant, hyphen, occupied properties.  From



              22   TUID's perspective, this -- these changes do not have



              23   any material effect on Ms. Seamons' claims that are



              24   currently at issue.



              25             Notice was given of the board meeting by
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               1   public notice website.  See footnotes.  You can see that



               2   in our footnotes from our previous response, and posted



               3   at the meeting location in compliance with the Utah Open



               4   and Public Meetings Act, thus giving notice of the



               5   pending changes to any interested parties.



               6             The fact that TUID mistakenly failed to file



               7   its revised tariff sheets did not disadvantage



               8   Mrs. Seamons, as all of the changes to be made to the



               9   tariff were discussed in the stipulated settlement and



              10   were also shown on the tariff sheets the division filed



              11   along with the stipulated settlement on August 21st,



              12   2015.



              13             TUID did file, including the changes as agreed



              14   to in the stipulated settlement, on March 1st, 2016, in



              15   Docket 16-2508-T01.  The division reviewed those changes



              16   and recommended that the commission acknowledge the



              17   changes on March 30th, 2016.  On April 20th, 2016, the



              18   commission issued a letter acknowledging the changes on



              19   March 31st, 2016.



              20             No. 3, did TUID hold public meetings for



              21   customers as required under Utah Code 17B-2A-406,



              22   (6)(A)(iii), both as to Docket 13-2508-T01 and as to



              23   Docket No. 15-2508-T01?  If so, was Mrs. Seamons



              24   properly notified of the public meetings pursuant to



              25   Utah code 17B-2A-406, (6)(A)(iii).
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               1             Some background is useful in this case to



               2   understand the tariff changes filed with the commission



               3   in these two dockets.  The tariff changes filed with the



               4   commission, Docket 13-2508-T01, set up a variety of



               5   different electric service schedules designed to meet



               6   customers needs and provide predictable revenue to TUID



               7   and set an enrollment period for these different service



               8   schedules.



               9             These changes are described in the division's



              10   action response dated May 30th, 2013, which is marked as



              11   Exhibit TUID-026.  Docket 15-2508-T01 changed certain



              12   definitions, required landlords to be responsible for



              13   utilities instead of tenants, clarified the ability of



              14   property owners to fully abandon the taps on their



              15   properties, and made other changes.



              16             The division's action request response



              17   describing these changes is marked as Exhibit TUID-027.



              18   In that docket TUID and the division disagreed on



              19   several issues.  However, those issues were eventually



              20   resolved, and TUID and the division agreed to a



              21   settlement that was approved by the commission.



              22             As part of that stipulation, TUID agreed to



              23   make certain changes to its tariff, including reducing



              24   the charges for tampering or unauthorized connections,



              25   clarifying that a landlord can have separate accounts
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               1   for multiple rental properties, and made it clear that



               2   tenants may request the status of the landlord's



               3   utilities account for that particular property.  As



               4   noted previously, the stipulation is marked as Exhibit



               5   TUID-001.



               6             As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a regular



               7   meeting of the board -- of the TUID board on April 11,



               8   2013, the board discussed proposed changes to TUID's



               9   electric rates and rules and scheduled a public hearing



              10   on the changes for April 29th, 2013.



              11             Customers were notified at that meeting by a



              12   U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website,



              13   publication of notice in the local newspaper on April



              14   18th and 25th, and posting notice of the hearing on



              15   TUID's community bulletin board located by the community



              16   mailboxes on Ticaboo Drive.  I, personally mailed the



              17   notices and posted the notice on the TUID community



              18   bulletin board.



              19             The agenda and minutes of the April 11th



              20   meeting are marked as Exhibit TUID-008.  The notice of



              21   the April 29th meeting, as posted on the public notice



              22   website is marked as Exhibit TUID-009.  The published



              23   notice of the April 29th meeting is marked as Exhibit



              24   TUID-010.



              25             That public hearing was indeed held on April
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               1   29, 2013.  On that same day the proposed rate changes



               2   were approved by Resolution 2013-0008.  The other tariff



               3   changes were approved by Resolution 2013-0009.  TUID



               4   then submitted the tariff changes in Docket 13-2508-T01,



               5   and the commission issued its letter acknowledging the



               6   tariff on June 14th, 2013.  Mrs. Seamons did not provide



               7   comments or otherwise involve herself in the TUID board



               8   meetings or in the related commission docket.



               9             The minutes of the April 29th meeting are



              10   marked as Exhibit TUID-011.  Resolution 2013-008 is



              11   marked as Exhibit TUID-012.  Resolution 2013-009 -- I'm



              12   sorry, 0009, is marked as Exhibit TUID-013.  The



              13   commission's tariff acknowledgement letter in Docket



              14   13-2508-T01 is marked as Exhibit TUID-014.



              15             As to Docket 13-2508-T01, during a public and



              16   properly noticed board meeting held on March 21st, 2014,



              17   the TUI -- TUID board made changes to rules regarding



              18   the abandonment of taps and imposing an increased



              19   penalty charge for unauthorized connection or tampering.



              20             Customers were notified of this meeting by



              21   U.S. mail, posting on the public notice website, posting



              22   of notice on the TUID community bulletin board, and I,



              23   personally mailed the notices and made the posting on



              24   the public notice website and on the community bulletin



              25   board.
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               1             Mrs. Seamons was in attendance at this



               2   meeting, and her attendance is noted in the meeting



               3   minutes.  Mrs. Seamons was provided with actual notice



               4   of this meeting, as is shown by her attendance.  Note



               5   that the tampering fees that were adopted at this



               6   meeting were later decreased as part of the settlement



               7   stipulation that I mentioned earlier.



               8             The minutes of the March 21st meeting are



               9   marked as Exhibit TUID-015.  The agenda for the March



              10   21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-016.  The notice



              11   of the March 21st meeting is marked as Exhibit TUID-017.



              12             No. 4, when did TUID first begin to charge



              13   Mrs. Seamons' standby fees?  TUID first began charging



              14   standby fees to Mrs. Seamons and other property owners



              15   on August 1st -- excuse me, correct that.  October 1st,



              16   2013.  As I noted previously, the standby fees were



              17   implemented with the tariff changes filed with the



              18   commission in Docket 13-2508-T02.



              19             The division reviewed the proposed changes and



              20   recommended that the commission acknowledge the tariff



              21   changes in the letter dated November 19th, 2013.  The



              22   commission acknowledged the changes on December 6th,



              23   2013.  The changes were effective on September 1st,



              24   2013, and the charges for standby fees began October 1st



              25   of 2013.
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               1             The division's recommendation letter in Docket



               2   13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-018.  The



               3   commission's acknowledgement letter in Docket



               4   13-2508-T02 is marked as Exhibit TUID-019.



               5             No. 5, does TUID allow contracts with tenants?



               6   If so, are Mrs. Seamons' tenants entitled to similar



               7   consideration?  Excuse me.



               8             TUID is required to follow its tariff.  In



               9   accordance with the tariff, TUID does not -- excuse me,



              10   TUID generally does not allow for contracts directly



              11   with tenants.  The tariff allows for exceptions in the



              12   case of long-term existing tenants that are TUID



              13   customers in good standing.  Even if such an exception



              14   is granted, if service is disconnected and then later



              15   reconnected, the landlord will be responsible for



              16   utility services in accordance with the general rule.



              17             As far as TUID is aware, none of the tenants



              18   in Mrs. Seamons' properties would qualify for this



              19   exception.  If Mrs. Seamons has long-term tenants that



              20   may fit this exception, TUID will of course discuss this



              21   issue with her.



              22             Simply stated, the purpose of this rule is to



              23   make sure that TUID is paid for the services it



              24   provides.  Ticaboo generally has a large number of



              25   seasonal, temporary residents, and TUID has found that
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               1   collecting past-due fees from former tenants of rental



               2   properties is often difficult.



               3             Once a tenant moves away from Ticaboo, the



               4   only way for TUID to collect those fees is to sue the



               5   former tenant, obtain a judgment against that tenant,



               6   and collect on that judgment.  Suing a former tenant for



               7   a few hundred or even a few thousand dollars in unpaid



               8   fees is generally not cost effective.  And even once a



               9   judgment is obtained, collecting on a judgment is often



              10   impossible.



              11             In the end, when a tenant moves away without



              12   paying their utility bills, TUID is simply unable to



              13   collect.  Since TUID is a governmental -- local



              14   governmental entity, TUID relies completely on revenues



              15   from utility services to pay its expenses.  When a



              16   customer does not pay and TUID is unable to collect, the



              17   funds to cover the services that customer received must



              18   necessarily come from the remaining TUID customers.



              19             TUID believes that is not fair for those other



              20   customers to pay more than their fair share.  For many



              21   larger utilities a few nonpaying customers may not be a



              22   serious issue.  However, for TUID, the matter of a few



              23   thousand dollars in unpaid fees is a serious issue, and



              24   those costs eventually must be paid by the remaining



              25   customers.
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               1             By making landlords responsible for utility



               2   services, TUID increases the likelihood that it will



               3   actually receive payment for those services it provides.



               4   A tenant in a given property must pay for utility



               5   services.  Whether that tenant pays for those services



               6   as part of the rent to the landlord or directly to TUID



               7   as a customer is really irrelevant as the amounts due



               8   for the services are the same.



               9             Requiring that landlords are responsible for



              10   the utilities makes sense as the landlord is the person



              11   screening and selecting tenants that are likely to pay



              12   their bills.  There is no premium to be charged or added



              13   expense in requiring that landlords be responsible for



              14   utilities, and the tenants are no worse off.  The policy



              15   simply increases the ability of TUID to collect the



              16   amounts it is owed.



              17             No. 6, has TUID mailed a customer information



              18   pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons as required under the tariff



              19   and by commission rule?



              20             TUID has mailed the customer information



              21   pamphlet to Mrs. Seamons.  I mailed the pamphlets every



              22   year myself to the addresses on file with TUID in



              23   September or October with the monthly bills.  TUID does



              24   not obtain proof of delivery of these mailings, as



              25   mailing those notices via certified mail or some similar
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               1   method would be an unnecessary expense and an unneeded



               2   strain on an already very tight budget.



               3             The customer information pamphlet is available



               4   on the TUID website as well, along with a variety of



               5   other documents and information.  The current version of



               6   the -- the current version of the pamphlet is marked as



               7   Exhibit TUID-028.



               8             No. 7, has TUID removed taps from



               9   Mrs. Seamons' properties or property?  If so, what were



              10   the circumstances under which the taps were removed?



              11             TUID has not physically removed any of the



              12   taps from any of Mrs. Seamons' multiple properties.



              13   Note that, quote, taps are the physical connections to a



              14   particular property for a particular service, such as



              15   service laterals for water and sewer service or a power



              16   line terminating on the property.



              17             I also wish to offer my testimony as to



              18   several other minor matters not covered by the



              19   commission's specific list of questions.  TUID has



              20   mailed the annual customer information pamphlet --



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Objection, your Honor.  He has



              22   already admitted to the fact that he is going to be --



              23   I'm sorry.  Objection.  He's stating that he's going to



              24   be making statements outside of the scope of what the



              25   commission has requested to be presented today.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Response?



               2             MR. LONG:  I believe the hearing to this point



               3   has been in large part outside of the bounds of those



               4   seven questions, particularly anything regarding Docket



               5   13-2508-T02 is technically outside the bounds of those



               6   questions as written.  I understand that that may have



               7   been a typo or miscommunication somewhere along the



               8   line, but an objection now seems unfounded.



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, if -- you know, counsel is



              10   raising that one issue.  I mean, but he's stating that



              11   he's going to go outside the scope on a number of



              12   issues.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  What issues do you want to



              14   address, Mr. Shortreed?



              15             THE WITNESS:  Ma'am, I'm addressing the



              16   customer information pamphlet and addressing standby



              17   fees as they relate to Docket 13-2508-T02.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  I do need information about



              19   Docket 13-T02.  If we can deal with it here, that would



              20   be great.  I would hate to have to continue this hearing



              21   and call you all back from the south of the state.  It



              22   is unfortunate that we didn't get the correct docket



              23   number.  That well could be my mistake, so I'd like to



              24   do what we can on that docket.



              25             MR. LONG:  And if I may, the topics that
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               1   Mr. Shortreed is going to address in the last little bit



               2   of his statement are topics that have been raised by



               3   Ms. Seamons in various filings, you know, perhaps



               4   outside of those seven questions.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Let's go ahead and hear



               6   what you have to say, Mr. Shortreed.



               7             THE WITNESS:  I also wish to offer my



               8   testimony as to several other minor matters not covered



               9   by the commission's specific list of questions.  TUID



              10   has mailed the annual customer information pamphlets



              11   every year as required by its tariff and the



              12   commission's rules.



              13             Mrs. Seamons alleges that she has not received



              14   this pamphlet.  While TUID does not have any information



              15   about whether Mrs. Seamons actually received the



              16   pamphlet, I did send out these pamphlets every year as



              17   required by the tariff.



              18             Mrs. Seamons also alleges that the tariff is



              19   not publicly available in the TUID office and that the



              20   required notice is not posted in the office.  Based on



              21   my own personal knowledge as district manager and the



              22   sole full-time employee of TUID, the tariff is indeed



              23   available for public inspection, and the notice is



              24   posted in the office stating that the rate schedules are



              25   available for inspection.
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               1             TUID also posts a variety of information on



               2   its basic website, and all tariff filings are available



               3   on the commission's website.



               4             MR. LONG:  If I may interrupt Mr. Shortreed, I



               5   think now would be a time to discuss briefly



               6   13-2508-T02, even though we had assumed it was outside



               7   the bounds of this hearing.  If that's acceptable to the



               8   commission, Mr. Shortreed has prepared a very short



               9   statement on that.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Please go ahead.



              11             THE WITNESS:  Standby fees were proposed in a



              12   regular TUID board meeting on August 8th, 2013.  TUID



              13   mailed notice to all customers of the proposed rate



              14   changes and hearing, published notice in the newspaper



              15   of the proposed rate increase and hearing on August



              16   15th, 2013, and posted a similar notice on the TUID



              17   community bulletin board.



              18             I, personally mailed those notices.  The



              19   public hearing and public meeting to adopt the proposed



              20   standby fees was held on August 29, 2013, as scheduled.



              21   TUID adopted the standby fees with Resolution 2013-0017



              22   on August 29th, 2013, and the rate went into effect



              23   September 1st, 2013.



              24             TUID filed its revised tariff sheet with the



              25   commission on October 16th, 2013.  The division
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               1   recommended that the commission acknowledge the revised



               2   tariff sheets on November 19th, 2013.  The commission



               3   acknowledged the revised tariff sheets on December 6th,



               4   2013.



               5             In addition to the notices required prior to



               6   adopting the standby fees, TUID also mailed information



               7   brochures to all customers explaining the necessity of



               8   the standby fees and answering common questions about



               9   the standby fees.



              10             August 8th, 2013, meeting minutes are Exhibit



              11   TUID-020.  The published notice of the proposed rate



              12   change and public hearing is marked as Exhibit TUID-021.



              13   August 29, 2013, meeting minutes are marked as Exhibit



              14   TUID-022.  Resolution 2013-0017 is marked as Exhibit



              15   TUID-023.  The division recommendation is marked as



              16   Exhibit TUID-024.  And the commission's acknowledgement



              17   letter is marked as Exhibit TUID-025.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let me just ask you



              19   some questions.  On Docket 13-T02, what was the date



              20   that you mailed out the customer notices?



              21             THE WITNESS:  It was the same day that I



              22   published the notices.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  So what date was that?



              24             THE WITNESS:  Prior to August -- prior or on



              25   to August 15th, immediately following the board meeting.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So on August 15th you



               2   mailed out a notice as to an August 29th, 2013, meeting?



               3             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you have a copy of that



               5   notice for me?



               6             THE WITNESS:  Not here, no, ma'am, and I don't



               7   know if I have one.  I can't readily state that right



               8   now.



               9             MR. LONG:  We do have a copy of the published



              10   notice that made it in the newspaper marked as one of



              11   our exhibits.  Perhaps Mr. Shortreed can testify the



              12   notice mailed out was substantially the same as that



              13   notice.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, here's the difficulty.



              15   Under the statute, the statute does not acknowledge a



              16   website notice or a newspaper notice.  The only thing



              17   that qualifies you for exemption from commission



              18   oversight of your tariff is if you mail a notice at



              19   least 10 days ahead of the date on which you hold the



              20   public meeting.



              21             So that's what I am trying to figure out, is



              22   where is that public notice and when was it mailed.  So



              23   I believe that is your burden to demonstrate, and if all



              24   we have got is a customer testimony saying, "Never got



              25   one," and you saying, "I am absolutely sure I mailed
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               1   that," then this gets decided on the burden of proof.



               2   And it's your burden.



               3             MR. LONG:  Understood and, you know, had we



               4   known this docket was coming three years later, we



               5   perhaps would have sent those in some sort of trackable



               6   format.  Barring that, Mr. Shortreed can testify that he



               7   mailed the notices, to the contents of the notices and



               8   can also testify as to the standard practice and



               9   procedures of the district.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's look then at



              11   the August 29th, 2013, public meeting, in which the



              12   changes that included the introduction of standby fees



              13   were to be proposed and discussed.  I -- we have in the



              14   record a printout of your website, your public notices



              15   website.  Where on that website is this August 29th,



              16   2013, meeting noticed?



              17             Here is what I see.  I see a post on February



              18   6, 2016, of a meeting that occurred prior to that, on



              19   January 28th, 2016.  I see a post on February 6th, 2016.



              20   Then a post on May 20th, 2015, again as to a meeting



              21   that took place previously on April 23rd, 2015.  And



              22   notice of a public meeting for June 11th, 2015.



              23             There is a post on May 20th, 2015, a post on



              24   November 11th, 2013, and then a post on April 20th,



              25   2013.  As I have gone through here, I don't see anything
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               1   on your website that talks about an August 29th, 2013,



               2   meeting.  Am I missing that?



               3             MR. LONG:  Without looking at the public



               4   notice website, I'm not sure we can speak to that.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Here is the printout.  Would



               6   you like a minute to look it over?



               7             MR. LONG:  If that would be helpful to the



               8   commission, certainly.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  That would be great.  Let's go



              10   off the record for about 10 minutes.



              11             (Recess from 11:35 a.m. to 11:46 a.m.)



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Go ahead.  Help me



              13   out with the August 29th, 2013 meeting, if you can, and



              14   if you can't today, then we'll figure out how to deal



              15   with that.



              16             MR. LONG:  And I think it may be the latter.



              17   I am looking at this right here, and this is a printout



              18   from Ticaboo's own website?



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.



              20             MR. LONG:  Not the public notice website.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.



              22             MR. LONG:  And off the top of my head the



              23   district is not required to provide electronic notice on



              24   its own website of public meetings.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Correct.
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               1             MR. LONG:  And again, just off the top of my



               2   head, and again, this may be better addressed in a



               3   written filing, unless we are all very up to speed on



               4   our Open and Public Meeting Act's requirements.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am pretty up to speed.  But



               6   what -- I am not concerned about whether you complied



               7   with the Open and Public Meetings Act.



               8             MR. LONG:  Okay.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  I am concerned with whether



              10   you complied with 17B, which requires mailed notice of



              11   the August 29th, 2013, meeting to customers at least 10



              12   days ahead of that date.  And that's, that's really the



              13   critical issue in this case, is whether that notice was



              14   mailed out.



              15             So, I mean, if I were running a small utility



              16   like this, and I were trying to be sure that I stayed



              17   within my exemption, I would have a copy of that notice.



              18   I would -- you have got 80-some customers.  I would



              19   maybe even photocopy a few of the envelopes to keep in



              20   my files as evidence that they were in fact mailed.



              21             That's up to you, of course, how you handle



              22   that.  But I, I need to see whatever you have got to



              23   demonstrate that you mailed out a notice at least on --



              24   what's 10 days before the 29th?  August 19th, 2013.  And



              25   perhaps we'd have to deal with that after the hearing.
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               1             MR. LONG:  And that may be true.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.



               3             MR. LONG:  We don't have any evidence of a --



               4   we don't have a photocopy of that mailing or something



               5   to that extent.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I have some



               7   additional questions.  Of your 80-some-odd customers,



               8   how many of those lots -- or 80-some-odd lots that you



               9   are either serving or standing ready to serve, how many



              10   of those are standby properties for electricity?  Do you



              11   know?  Even an estimate would be helpful.



              12             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  I'd like to



              13   correct, though, that it's approximately 124 customers



              14   that are billed for active or standby services.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              16             THE WITNESS:  As a rough estimate of that, I



              17   would say that on a guess, probably 60 of those.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  About half -- almost half, not



              19   quite half.



              20             THE WITNESS:  That would be my best guess,



              21   yes, ma'am.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are standbys, okay.  And of



              23   those, do you -- again, do you know -- and you might



              24   not.  Of those 60, how many have structures on the



              25   premises where, you know, upon notice to you, you can do
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               1   something in your computer, and they can flick the



               2   switch and the lights come on?  Versus how many are



               3   vacant lots with nothing built?



               4             THE WITNESS:  Well, I can't give you a



               5   specific number, ma'am.  I can say a majority are vacant



               6   lots with nothing built on them.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Majority are vacant, okay.  So



               8   of those that are vacant, how many are liened for unpaid



               9   standby fees?



              10             THE WITNESS:  I believe at my last



              11   certification with the Garfield County treasurer, we



              12   were at 13.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Thirteen liens, 13 liened



              14   properties.  Have you foreclosed?



              15             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I need to understand



              17   what you consider to be -- mean that you are ready,



              18   willing and able to deliver service to a vacant lot.



              19             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Does that mean simply that you



              21   have your main supply line running through your utility



              22   easement on the property?  Or does that mean that you



              23   have a direct drop line from your supply line to a point



              24   on the property where a structure might be built?



              25             THE WITNESS:  To a point on the property where
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               1   the structure might be built for all utility services.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  So there is a line outside of



               3   the utility easement onto a potential building site on



               4   the property?



               5             THE WITNESS:  Yes.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  In every case?



               7             THE WITNESS:  No.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So do you charge --



               9             THE WITNESS:  In every -- I'm sorry, ma'am.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Do you charge a standby fee



              11   even where you don't have a drop line to a building site



              12   or a potential building site?



              13             THE WITNESS:  Can I have a moment?



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              15             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, ma'am.  Ticaboo is a



              16   very difficult situation when it comes to the



              17   infrastructure because it was constructed in two



              18   primarily different ways.  In the mobile home park,



              19   where Mrs. Seamons' property -- Mrs. Seamons' properties



              20   are, all of the utility electric lines are run to the



              21   perimeter or to the property on the back side of the



              22   property, where there is a ped in place for the customer



              23   to be able to connect from the home to the ped.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              25             THE WITNESS:  Now, in the estates it's a
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               1   little bit different, which is another platted section



               2   of the -- of Ticaboo, where the lines run parallel to



               3   the property on the property line.  But because the lots



               4   are vacant, there may not be a connection to a customer



               5   home because there is no lot -- no home there.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's, let's talk



               7   about the mobile home sites.  And correct me if I am



               8   wrong.  Does -- is that what all of these properties



               9   are?  They are all within a mobile home park?



              10             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if Ms. Seamons had a



              12   tenant bring in a mobile home and site it on her



              13   property, how long would it take for you to deliver



              14   electricity to that mobile home?



              15             THE WITNESS:  In accordance with our rules and



              16   regulations, it would be immediate.  Only the customer



              17   would have to extend the customer service from the home



              18   to the ped.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So there's a drop line



              20   available --



              21             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- to each of those.  Okay.



              23             THE WITNESS:  One second.  Yeah, there's a ped



              24   on every mobile home lot except for maybe one or two.



              25   In Mrs. Seamons' case, they are all there.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So these properties



               2   were all purchased prior to the date on which you first



               3   imposed standby fees.  So -- and you have got maybe a



               4   third of your customers who, who own vacant lots not



               5   paying the standby fees.  And yet you have made the



               6   argument that these fees are necessary to the health and



               7   the ongoing operations of the company.



               8             So my question is, how were you functioning



               9   before 2013 without them?  And how are you continuing to



              10   function where at least a third of your standby



              11   customers are not paying?



              12             THE WITNESS:  Do you want me to be blunt and



              13   frank?



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes, I do.



              15             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So prior to the



              16   implementation of the standby fees, we were operating



              17   dramatically in the red as a utility district, as an



              18   improvement district, barely making enough money to be



              19   able to pay for fuel through usage fees and everything



              20   else.  Oftentimes problems were dealt with in the best



              21   way that we could, given the finances that we had at the



              22   time, which unfortunately was how the utilities were



              23   handled in the town of Ticaboo for 35 years prior to the



              24   Ticaboo Electric Improvement District Coming into



              25   existence in 2009, and going into operations in 2010.
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               1             At that time, the board of trustees realized



               2   that we had to do something in order to be able to



               3   ensure that we could deliver reliable service on demand



               4   to our customers, in an effort to be able to improve



               5   those customer relations.  And also while it is not our



               6   responsibility to promote economic development, but to



               7   be able to support it if economic development were to



               8   happen.



               9             So 2013 was a very tumultuous year in that



              10   regards.  Is that me that keeps knocking this with my



              11   voice?



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.



              13             THE WITNESS:  I apologize.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's all right.



              15             THE WITNESS:  In 2013 was a very involved year



              16   because we got involved in so many different things to



              17   fix.  We started fixing the things that needed to be



              18   fixed in town to be able to ensure we could deliver that



              19   service when required.



              20             MR. LONG:  And I think it may be worth noting



              21   that at this point nobody was getting paid for any of



              22   this work.



              23             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  There were no



              24   paid staff members for much of that time.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  So let's
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               1   turn to the tariff itself.  I read through it very



               2   carefully.  Where is the language that says that the



               3   restriction against the tenant contract is waived or



               4   lifted if we're dealing with a long-term tenant?



               5             THE WITNESS:  Ma'am, I don't have that in



               6   front of me, but I believe it's in Section 8, if I



               7   remember right.  It may be 8.02.  But I don't have that



               8   in front of me, but it does state in there an exception



               9   paragraph.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              11             THE WITNESS:  An exception paragraph does



              12   stipulate that -- I'd like to say, ma'am, that we



              13   actually instituted that exception based upon public



              14   comment and concerns.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              16             THE WITNESS:  Primarily because of SITLA



              17   properties.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              19             THE WITNESS:  So we understood those concerns,



              20   and by putting that exception in place, we were able to



              21   ensure that none of the existing SITLA tenants were -- I



              22   hate to be harsh -- but summarily evicted because SITLA



              23   won't be responsible for utility bills, just as a part



              24   of their policy.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  So have you allowed a
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               1   long-term tenant contract under any owner other than



               2   SITLA?



               3             THE WITNESS:  Yes.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               5             THE WITNESS:  Me, for example.  I am a renter



               6   in Ticaboo, ma'am.  And I was a long-time customer prior



               7   to this rule being put in place.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  So on the 2015 T docket where



               9   you entered into the stipulation with the division, it



              10   was sometime later that the commission issued the order



              11   approving the stipulation.  During that period of time



              12   that passed, you held a public meeting.



              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, excuse me.  You held a



              15   board meeting.  And in the statement that you have read,



              16   you have identified exhibits where that board meeting --



              17   where the board meeting minutes are and so on, correct?



              18             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you also hold a public



              20   meeting?



              21             THE WITNESS:  All of our board meetings are



              22   public, ma'am.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did you send out a mailed



              24   customer notice of a public meeting with regard to the



              25   tariff changes?
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               1             THE WITNESS:  I would have to admittingly say



               2   where the tariff changes were concerned, no, ma'am,



               3   because we weren't instituting any rate changes.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               5             THE WITNESS:  It was just agreeing to the



               6   settlement stipulation that Mr. Jetter had drafted and



               7   sent forward as part of that T docket.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  But it did include,



               9   though, a penalty fee for tampering.  You had proposed a



              10   thousand dollars per day.  But then you agreed with the



              11   division to take it down to a hundred dollars per day.



              12   So this was a new tariff charge.



              13             And my question is whether you noticed within



              14   10 days of a public meeting, sent a notice to customers



              15   within 10 days prior to the public meeting saying,



              16   "We're putting a new fee in our tariff.  It's been



              17   approved by the board, or it's going to be approved by



              18   the board, and here is our public meeting for customers



              19   to come and talk to us about this."



              20             THE WITNESS:  Factually, ma'am, that



              21   particular tampering rate was already in place, and



              22   during this particular T docket it was brought up as a



              23   point of concern or contention.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              25             THE WITNESS:  And was then settled upon
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               1   because I believe, if memory serves me right, our



               2   original charge was a thousand dollars per incident per



               3   day.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               5             THE WITNESS:  And then through the settlement



               6   stipulation with the division, we changed it to a



               7   thousand dollars per incident, a hundred dollars per



               8   day.  Now, having said that, I cannot sit here in front



               9   of you and tell you that I sent out a notice for a



              10   reduction in a fee.  I have no recollection of sending



              11   such a notice out to my customers.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am going to have



              13   to -- I am going to have to check again the records of



              14   that because my, my sense is that the tampering fine was



              15   brand-new in the tariff in that 2015 docket.  You think



              16   you had a tampering fine in place prior to that?



              17             MR. LONG:  I can maybe shed a little bit of



              18   light without looking at the details.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Great.



              20             MR. LONG:  The tampering fee has in recent



              21   memory always been $1,000 per incident.  In the very



              22   beginning of that docket, 15-2508-T01, that fee was



              23   increased to $1,000 per incident plus a $1,000 per-day



              24   tampering fee.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Per day, okay.
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               1             MR. LONG:  Going off the top of my head, I



               2   believe the district complied with all the notice



               3   requirements for that initial change.  At that point,



               4   when those -- when those changes were filed with the



               5   commission, the division had some objections to them.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               7             MR. LONG:  And this was a situation where the



               8   district and the division have some -- and probably



               9   still have some disagreement about how far the



              10   commission's jurisdiction extends.



              11             At any rate, in the settlement stipulation



              12   that we have introduced as Exhibit TUID-001, we



              13   essentially came to a conclusion on the points the



              14   division had problems with.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              16             MR. LONG:  And that tampering fee was reduced,



              17   so -- in the district.  And the tampering fee was



              18   effective upon filing with the commission.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  So wait.  But you just said



              20   that prior to the 2015 docket, the tampering fee was a



              21   thousand dollars per incident, no per-day fine, correct?



              22             MR. LONG:  Correct.



              23             JUDGE JONSSON:  So through the 2015 docket you



              24   implemented a per-day fine.



              25             MR. LONG:  Uh-huh.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  And the dispute between the



               2   district and the division was what the number would be,



               3   correct?



               4             MR. LONG:  Correct, and perhaps it's useful to



               5   think of that 2015 docket as two separate tariff



               6   changes.  We had the initial tariff changes done by the



               7   district on -- I'd have to go look at the docket.  At



               8   any rate, at the very beginning of that docket, that



               9   docket started -- that docket started after the district



              10   had adopted those changes, and following the



              11   requirements, the district is required to file the



              12   tariff with the commission.



              13             So at that point, from the district's



              14   perspective, the tariff was effective.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  So here is my question.  Did



              16   you mail out a notice of a public meeting that included



              17   discussion of a per-day tampering fine, whatever the



              18   amount was?



              19             MR. LONG:  I'd have to defer to Mr. Shortreed,



              20   and perhaps this is something that needs looked at,



              21   but --



              22             THE WITNESS:  I would have to go back and



              23   check my records on that, ma'am.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              25             MR. LONG:  But Mr. Shortreed perhaps can tell
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               1   us if it's the district's policy to mail out notice of



               2   any rate increases or any increases that would cause



               3   dollars paid by customers to go up.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I think that's what the



               5   statute requires.



               6             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, and that is also



               7   what we follow.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Just for the record, we do have



              10   a copy of the tariff that was effective, and this is



              11   redlined, July 25th.  Or I'm sorry, March 21st of



              12   2000 -- I'm sorry.  Never mind.  I withdraw.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  So we have



              14   Ms. Seamons' testimony that the district removed meters



              15   from a rental property twice.  And your -- in your



              16   statement that you read, it seemed to me that you were



              17   stating that that's simply not true.  Well, you said no



              18   taps were removed.



              19             So this is what I want to know.  Is a tap in



              20   your mind equivalent with a drop line?  Is that the same



              21   thing?



              22             THE WITNESS:  What is your definition of a



              23   drop line, ma'am?



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  A drop line is dedicated line



              25   from your main supply source that runs through your
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               1   easement, to the property.  So here is your main --



               2             THE WITNESS:  Saying electric pedestal, ma'am?



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  I don't know what an electric



               4   pedestal is.  Here is your supply line that runs through



               5   your easement.  Here is the property.  Here is your drop



               6   line right there.  Where is -- what is the tap?



               7             THE WITNESS:  The tap is anything from the



               8   main line to service on the property.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              10             THE WITNESS:  To a pedestal, to a meter.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So you have never



              12   pulled the drop line?



              13             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  You have never pulled the tap.



              15             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Have you pulled a



              17   meter?



              18             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Did you comply with the



              20   commission's rules for notice to the customer before



              21   pulling that meter?



              22             THE WITNESS:  I would have complied with those



              23   rules, ma'am, if I were terminating the service.  But



              24   the service was requested to be terminated by the



              25   tenant.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Say that again.



               2             THE WITNESS:  Had I enforced a termination



               3   rule in accordance with the rules, I would have had to



               4   have properly noticed.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  What do you consider to



               6   be termination of electrical service?



               7             THE WITNESS:  Something as -- of an adverse



               8   nature, such as no payment on the bill.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, that would be grounds



              10   for termination.  From the customer's point of view, if



              11   I flip the switch and it doesn't come on, the



              12   electricity doesn't come on, have I been terminated?



              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  But in this



              14   particular circumstance, it was cited by Mrs. Seamons.



              15   The customer at the time, who was a tenant of



              16   Mrs. Seamons, requested the service in writing to be



              17   turned off.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              19             THE WITNESS:  They made that request of us.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              21             THE WITNESS:  As a matter of fact that --



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is that in the record?  Is



              23   that written request in the record?



              24             THE WITNESS:  I do not believe that it is,



              25   ma'am.
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  We have a copy of it.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, it's the original but...



               4             THE WITNESS:  And that should be a letter from



               5   Jim and Valerie Hills, ma'am.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So what action did you



               7   take on receiving this letter?  Shall we put this in the



               8   record?  Let's do.  Let's make this Complainant's



               9   Exhibit 8.  Will you go run a couple copies of this?



              10             So what action did you take on receiving that



              11   letter?



              12             THE WITNESS:  Correct me if I'm wrong, ma'am,



              13   but the rules state that at least three days of notice



              14   have to be given for the turning on or turning off of a



              15   service, and arrangements were made with Mr. and



              16   Mrs. Hills to turn off the service after they had



              17   vacated the property.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So were the tenants



              19   your customers?  Did they have an account with you?



              20             THE WITNESS:  At that time, yes, ma'am.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  They did at that time.



              22             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am, because that was



              23   prior to that rule change.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And then when you



              25   pulled the meter and discontinued their service, you
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               1   also began charging standby fees to the owner.  Is that



               2   correct?



               3             THE WITNESS:  I don't know how that timeline



               4   falls, ma'am.  I would have to go back and check that.



               5             MR. HOGELIN:  Your Honor, let the accounts



               6   that we admitted as exhibits show that the standby fees



               7   did take effect after that.



               8             THE WITNESS:  That's 1115.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.



              10             THE WITNESS:  Actually, ma'am, in answer to



              11   your question, at the time that Mr. and Mrs. Hills



              12   vacated the premises just so happened to be at the time



              13   the standby fees were adopted by the board and made part



              14   of the resolution -- or part of the tariff.  So that



              15   following month the standby fees would have started to



              16   be charged, yes, ma'am.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So if the tenant had



              18   requested to permanently abandon service, what would



              19   have been your response?



              20             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.  That has to come



              21   from a property owner per our rules.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Property owner.



              23             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  Any



              25   cross-examination?
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  Go ahead.



               3                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



               4   BY MR. HOGELIN:



               5        Q.   Mr. Shortreed, in your epilog, you stated that



               6   the standby fees started in October of 2013?



               7        A.   Yes, sir.  That's when they were billed with



               8   the October 1st billing that went out, which was for the



               9   month of September.



              10        Q.   Okay.  So there has been a number of exhibits



              11   submitted today with -- of account summaries provided by



              12   your office and possibly by you to Ms. Seamons that



              13   reflects the standby fees actually started in September.



              14   Why does your testimony conflict with the account audit



              15   histories that you provided to Ms. Seamons?



              16        A.   They don't conflict, sir.  Our billing date is



              17   October 1st for the month, September, that was billed



              18   for.



              19        Q.   Okay.  But you --



              20        A.   So they were billed October 1st for the



              21   standby fees.



              22        Q.   But they were filled for September?



              23        A.   For September services, yes, sir.



              24        Q.   All right.  So just a clarification there.



              25   You also testified that you were granted an exception as



                                                                        139

�













               1   a long-term resident to the owner.  Who granted that



               2   exception?



               3        A.   The, the board did.



               4        Q.   Okay.  And you applied for that exception?



               5        A.   There's no application process.  It's taken as



               6   a case-by-case basis on --



               7        Q.   So when were you granted exception to that?



               8        A.   At the same time that the other residents were



               9   granted exception under that rule.



              10        Q.   Okay.  So you were specifically -- they



              11   specifically gave you that exception?  Or was that just



              12   something that just kind of, everybody kind of went



              13   about their way and assumed that it was there?



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Is it in the meeting minutes?



              15             MR. LONG:  I think this is perhaps a little



              16   bit more of a leading question than I would like.  Maybe



              17   I can explain, and Mr. Shortreed can confirm.



              18             The exception to the tenant rules, it



              19   essentially allows status quo to stay the same, that if



              20   a tenant is there and stays there, that tenant's account



              21   with the district for utility services stays as it was.



              22   If that tenant were to move out and hypothetically move



              23   back in or if a new tenant moves back in after these



              24   rules are implemented, the landlord would then be



              25   responsible for that utility account.
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               1             Is that a correct statement of the rules,



               2   Mr. Shortreed?



               3             THE WITNESS:  Yes.



               4        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Okay.  What I am asking



               5   though, is who determines that?



               6        A.   The district manager does.



               7        Q.   So you determined for yourself to have the



               8   exception apply?



               9             MR. LONG:  Object.  I think we made it clear,



              10   there's no determination that's required.  Simply if no



              11   change is made, no change is required to be made



              12   according to rules of the tariff.



              13             MR. HOGELIN:  The rules -- his testimony said



              14   that exceptions can be applied.



              15             JUDGE JONSSON:  So --



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  So what I am trying to find out



              17   is what's -- how does that happen?  Who has the



              18   discretion?  So I am asking Mr. Shortreed, "Who has



              19   discretion?"  And I am doing it by applying his own



              20   situation which he testified that he was granted this



              21   exception.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, and I think it is a



              23   relevant point.  I want to see the tariff provision that



              24   sets out that exemption, and I would like to see how the



              25   tariff says it works.  If it doesn't say how it works,
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               1   then we potentially have a problem.



               2        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So my point is,



               3   Mr. Shortreed, you testified that there were others.



               4   You included yourself, and so I am just trying to find



               5   out when and how that exception was applied and in what



               6   -- if it was done formally or informally.  So that's a



               7   compound question.  So let me rephrase that.



               8             Was your exception applied formally or



               9   informally?



              10        A.   I don't understand what you mean by formally



              11   or informally.



              12        Q.   So it's your testimony that you didn't apply



              13   for the exception, correct?



              14        A.   We don't have an application process for the



              15   exception, no.



              16        Q.   So was your exception presented to the board,



              17   your specific exception?



              18        A.   No.



              19        Q.   Okay.  So the board never -- so no one ever



              20   really approved your exception?



              21             MR. LONG:  I object to that leading question.



              22   Perhaps Mr. Hogelin could simply ask Mr. Shortreed what



              23   the process is.



              24             MR. HOGELIN:  I can ask leading questions.



              25   This is cross-examination.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, these rules don't apply.



               2   We are in an administrative proceeding, so let's -- this



               3   is what -- this is what I need to know.  These long-term



               4   customers, including yourself, including some tenants of



               5   SITLA, including at least, well --



               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, that's where I want to go.



               7        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Is there any other long-term



               8   tenants that have been granted this exception besides



               9   yourself or the -- associated with SITLA?



              10        A.   No.  Because the long-term tenants, as they



              11   are defined, are those people.  There have been no other



              12   long-term tenants in good standing with the district.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So here is the



              14   question.



              15             THE WITNESS:  And if I -- I'm sorry, ma'am.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Did the tenants have to come



              17   to you and say, "I am a long-term tenant.  I want to



              18   be -- I want to have the contract with you"?  Were they



              19   required to do that?



              20             THE WITNESS:  No, ma'am.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Was the property owner



              22   required to come to you and say, "I have long-term



              23   tenants.  I want your contract to be with my tenant not



              24   with me"?



              25             THE WITNESS:  Not required, no, ma'am.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Did -- so how did you



               2   decide who the long-term tenants were?



               3             THE WITNESS:  Because I know everybody in



               4   Ticaboo, ma'am, because there's a whopping 40 people who



               5   live there.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  So you just did this on your



               7   own.  You went through your accounts and you said,



               8   "Okay.  This is one with a tenant, but this is a



               9   long-term tenant, so we're going to keep the account



              10   with the tenant."



              11             THE WITNESS:  In accordance with the rule that



              12   we set forth, I identified those customers who would



              13   have fit the exception, yes.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              15             MR. LONG:  I think the perhaps the point is



              16   that the rule doesn't require any changes to the



              17   situation as it existed when that rule was implemented.



              18   If a tenant had an account at that time, that tenant



              19   could continue.  And if a new tenant moved in after



              20   that, the owner would then be responsible for the



              21   account.



              22             THE WITNESS:  And I don't -- I apologize,



              23   ma'am.  I don't have a copy of my tariff in front of me,



              24   and I must say that I don't know this particular section



              25   verbatim.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  That's fine.



               2             THE WITNESS:  But if memory serves me right, I



               3   believe there was a one-year stipulation in that



               4   exception that said, so long as the tenant was a



               5   customer, a long-term customer of one year or more in



               6   good standing with the district, then they would qualify



               7   for the exception rule.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  And that's what I want



               9   to see is the tariff language so --



              10             THE WITNESS:  I apologize, I don't have that.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I'll look for it.  But I'm



              12   probably going to order you to submit posthearing briefs



              13   that deal with some of these things.



              14             MR. LONG:  Certainly, and we're happy to do



              15   that.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.



              17   Mr. Hogelin, go ahead.



              18        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) I guess that was my next



              19   question is because SITLA, their tenants came in about



              20   2013, correct?



              21        A.   No.  There are some -- there are some people



              22   in Ticaboo who have been tenants of SITLA for a number



              23   of years, beyond 2013.



              24        Q.   Okay.  But you are including the resort in



              25   these discussion, right?
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               1        A.   No, I am not.



               2        Q.   Okay.  So the resort isn't powered by TUID?



               3        A.   By TUID, powered by TUID?



               4        Q.   Yeah.



               5        A.   We do provide them with power, yes, sir.



               6        Q.   Okay.  And they are owned by SITLA, correct?



               7        A.   No, they are not.



               8        Q.   Who are they owned by?



               9        A.   Themselves, sir.  They are their own



              10   organization.  They own their own land.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  The resort does, the resort



              12   owns the lands?



              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              14             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



              15        A.   I will offer this, though.  They are a master



              16   development lease holder of SITLA.



              17        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) They are what?



              18        A.   A master development lease holder.



              19             MS. BROADBENT:  So they lease the other



              20   property.



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Mary, please.



              22        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So -- but they own the



              23   property.



              24        A.   Not where they are the master development



              25   lease holder, no.



                                                                        146

�













               1        Q.   Who does?



               2        A.   SITLA does.



               3        Q.   Okay.



               4        A.   In that particular case.



               5        Q.   Okay.  So how much of the property do they



               6   own?



               7        A.   SITLA?



               8        Q.   No, the resort.



               9        A.   They own all the commercial property and



              10   approximately one, two, three -- four or five



              11   residential properties.



              12        Q.   So but they are the master -- I'm sorry,



              13   designer on --



              14        A.   Master development lease holder, sir, yes.



              15        Q.   For a property that's owned by SITLA, and are



              16   there standby fees charged on that?



              17        A.   No, because SITLA abandoned all of the taps in



              18   2014.



              19        Q.   Okay.  And so prior to 2014 -- or I mean, so



              20   -- but there was a -- why wouldn't there be a standby



              21   fee then?



              22        A.   Our abandonment rule allows that if a customer



              23   applies for abandonment of their taps, once that



              24   application has been approved and processed, then they



              25   are no longer responsible for paying standby fees.  And
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               1   that abandonment application in turn gets recorded on to



               2   the property records with Garfield County.



               3        Q.   So the abandonment process, doesn't that



               4   include a fee?



               5        A.   An application fee, yes, sir.



               6        Q.   Okay.  And how much is the application fee?



               7        A.   $75.



               8        Q.   Okay.  And that's the only fee that's



               9   associated with abandonment?



              10        A.   Yes, sir.



              11        Q.   Okay.  And the -- but they would have to pay



              12   other fees to get -- to be rehooked back up, correct?



              13        A.   To be hooked back up, yes, sir.  If they



              14   abandon the taps, they essentially would have to pay



              15   fees as if the taps didn't exist.



              16        Q.   Okay.



              17        A.   To have those taps re -- reinitiated.



              18        Q.   Okay.



              19        A.   Or removed from abandonment status, if you



              20   will.



              21        Q.   And that abandonment status was pursuant to



              22   the 2013 docket or tariff?



              23        A.   I believe that it was, but without having it



              24   in front of me, I can't say for sure.



              25        Q.   Okay.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  But a property owner is not



               2   allowed to abandon if you consider that they have a



               3   delinquent account.



               4             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  Their account



               5   has to be in good standing.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  And they have to continue to



               7   pay, at a minimum, standby fees until and unless you



               8   approve the abandonment application.



               9             THE WITNESS:  Yes.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  And there is no -- there is no



              11   requirement in the tariff that would actually state that



              12   you have to approve the abandonment.



              13             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, the standby fees are two



              14   years.



              15             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  Actually, there is



              16   in the tariff.  It does stipulate in the tariff what the



              17   requirements for abandonment are.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  For the customer.  But it



              19   doesn't put any obligation on you to approve it.  As I



              20   read the tariff, it looks like you could just simply



              21   decline to approve an application for abandonment and



              22   continue to require the customer to pay standby fees



              23   into perpetuity.



              24             MR. LONG:  I don't think that's the



              25   understanding of the district.  If it's written that
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               1   way, perhaps it needs revised.



               2             JUDGE JONSSON:  There's a fair bit in the



               3   tariff that I think could use a good hard edit.  Just



               4   throw that out.



               5             MR. LONG:  Sure, and if there are things the



               6   commission would like to see changed, we will certainly



               7   consider that.  I mean, the district is working with



               8   very, very, very, very limited resources.  Most of this



               9   was frankly done by Mr. Shortreed on an unpaid basis for



              10   years.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              12             MR. LONG:  So recognize the district is in a



              13   tough situation all around.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Mr. Hogelin?



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes, and we did -- Mr. Shortreed



              16   was correct.  Under Section 8.02 of the tariff, it does



              17   provide the exceptions.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              19             MR. HOGELIN:  For that.



              20        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) It does state that it is at



              21   the sole discretion of the district, as long as these



              22   conditions apply, meaning that just because you qualify,



              23   you still -- correct me if I am wrong, you still are the



              24   one that makes that determination, correct?



              25        A.   Based upon the rules, yes.
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               1        Q.   Well, it says here, at your sole discretion.



               2   So if they qualify, you could still reject them,



               3   correct?



               4        A.   I suppose that it could be perceived that way,



               5   yes.



               6        Q.   Okay.



               7        A.   But as your Honor just pointed out, we seem to



               8   have some things we need to edit in our tariff.



               9        Q.   Okay.  Well, to me it seems pretty clear that



              10   what this is stating, though, that the sole discretion



              11   of the district under the following conditions.  And



              12   this is something -- and I just want to be real clear.



              13   This isn't something that the board agrees on.  This is



              14   something that -- when it says "the district," is that



              15   just you or is that the board?



              16        A.   By the authority given to me by the board, I



              17   follow the rules that they approve.



              18        Q.   Okay.  And who makes up the board?



              19        A.   What do you mean, sir?



              20        Q.   Who makes up the board?  How is the board



              21   created?



              22        A.   The board is created by appointment from the



              23   Garfield County Commission.



              24        Q.   Okay.  And how many board members are there?



              25        A.   Five.



                                                                        151

�













               1        Q.   And is there any training that the board goes



               2   through?



               3        A.   Yes, there is required training in accordance



               4   with the Open and Public Meetings Act, as well as a



               5   special service district.



               6        Q.   So in August of 2015, was there a -- was the



               7   board meeting that was -- that you have testified was



               8   also a public meeting, was that a training meeting for



               9   the board?



              10        A.   Yes, as a matter of fact it was.  The first



              11   half of the meeting was set as an executive session



              12   where LeGrand Bitter from the UASD came down and



              13   provided the board with their annual training.



              14        Q.   So first, you trained them the first half of



              15   the part, and then the second half of the part addressed



              16   the tariff; is that correct?



              17        A.   I believe it is, if you are speaking to the



              18   joint settlement stipulation.



              19        Q.   Okay.  So prior to that meeting, did the board



              20   have any knowledge of the tariff?



              21        A.   Did the board members have any knowledge of



              22   the tariff?  Absolutely.



              23        Q.   Okay.  They just hadn't been trained.



              24             (Discussion off the record.)



              25             MR. LONG:  The training that Mr. Shortreed and
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               1   I think Mr. Hogelin is referring to is simply the annual



               2   required training by the Utah Open -- required by the



               3   Utah Open and Public Meetings Act.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               5             MR. LONG:  We unfortunately don't have an



               6   expert in running an electric district coming to train



               7   the board members.  There are unfortunately a severe



               8   lack of those.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yeah.



              10        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Mr. Shortreed, are you aware



              11   of how many property owners reside full time in Ticaboo?



              12        A.   I can estimate pretty closely, yes.



              13        Q.   How many would that be?



              14        A.   Thirty to 40, depending upon how many stay



              15   during the off season.



              16        Q.   Okay.



              17        A.   That's full-time, year-round residents.



              18        Q.   Okay.  30 to 40?



              19        A.   Yes, sir.



              20        Q.   Now, is -- so from the briefings you had



              21   stated that the office and your house are kind of the



              22   same; is that correct?



              23        A.   That is correct.  The district doesn't have



              24   the budget to be able to build an office.



              25        Q.   Okay.  And so --
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               1             MR. LONG:  I'd like to point out, this is well



               2   beyond the scope of what this hearing was intended to



               3   be, based on the commission's order.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Where are you headed,



               5   Mr. Hogelin?



               6             MR. HOGELIN:  I am just going off what he



               7   testified.  He was talking about -- he testified today



               8   at the hearing that he makes the tariff visible, so I



               9   just wanted to ask him a question about it.



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Oh, okay.  Where is it?



              11             MR. HOGELIN:  He opened the door so...



              12        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) So in your testimony you said



              13   that you make the tariff, upon request.  But is the



              14   tariff visible to people who come into that office,



              15   slash, home?



              16        A.   The notice is visible.  The tariff is



              17   available for inspection.  The tariff is actually kept



              18   in a three ring binder with all revisions as they were



              19   filed with the commission.



              20        Q.   Okay.  So no -- it's impossible for anybody to



              21   look at the tariff without your presence; is that



              22   correct?



              23        A.   No, not necessarily.  They can look at our



              24   tariff online at the Public Service Commission's



              25   website.
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               1        Q.   Well, but that's electronically.  I'm talking



               2   about the one that's located at the office.



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just tell me.  If I come knock



               4   on your door and say, "I want to see the tariff," what



               5   happens next?



               6             THE WITNESS:  We schedule an appointment for



               7   you to come in and see the tariff.



               8             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               9        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) Have you ever refused to make



              10   the tariff available to Ms. Seamons or anyone acting on



              11   Ms. Seamons' behalf?



              12        A.   No.



              13        Q.   Okay.  Have you ever refused -- have you ever



              14   -- on February 18th, do you recall Ms. Seamons'



              15   daughter, Mary Broadbent, requesting the availability of



              16   the tariff at a public meeting?



              17        A.   No.  I don't recall it, but that doesn't mean



              18   it didn't happen.  I would have to go back and check the



              19   meeting minutes.



              20        Q.   So if you don't recall that, I mean, do you



              21   recall rejecting her request to make an appointment to



              22   come and view the tariff?



              23        A.   No.  I don't recall that because I wouldn't



              24   reject a request for an appointment.



              25        Q.   Okay.  So you don't recall that.  You -- okay.
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               1   I think we have already -- I think the commission



               2   already discussed the date that the notices were sent



               3   out.



               4             We don't -- do we have a date on when the



               5   notices were sent out in the March -- let's see, in



               6   April for the April meeting of 2013, when they were



               7   mailed?



               8        A.   We don't -- yeah.  We don't have -- I'm sorry.



               9   We don't have a specific date.



              10        Q.   Okay.  You had testified that there was a



              11   meeting in 2013 where you addressed the standby fees, a



              12   public meeting.  Do you recall that?



              13        A.   Yes.



              14        Q.   And then you said that Ms. Seamons did not



              15   provide any comments.  Do you know if Ms. Seamons was at



              16   that meeting?



              17        A.   I would have to go back and double-check the



              18   records.  But to the best of my recollection, she was



              19   not present.



              20        Q.   Okay.



              21             MR. LONG:  I'd like to make a clarification.



              22   I think Mr. Shortreed's testimony was as to a meeting in



              23   Docket 13-2508-T01, which, as discussed previously, was



              24   the docket where the district implemented different



              25   electric service rate schedules.
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  I was just trying to -- he made



               2   the statement that she didn't make any statements.  I



               3   was just trying to see if he recollect that she was even



               4   there.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               6        Q.   (By Mr. Hogelin) You had testified that you



               7   recall doing the mailings yourself.



               8        A.   That is correct.



               9        Q.   Do you recall specifically doing a mailing to



              10   Ms. Seamons?



              11        A.   Yes, to all customers.



              12        Q.   Okay.  And that you recall doing that for each



              13   year?



              14        A.   Yes.



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  That's all my questions.



              16   Thank you.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So it's after noon, and



              18   I'd like to try to wrap up, and we can -- I'll certainly



              19   give you time to do closing argument if you want to.



              20   But since, I think, we are going to be some posthearing



              21   briefing, we can maybe do closing argument as part of



              22   that.  But I'll leave it to counsel as to what you would



              23   prefer.



              24             MR. LONG:  I am happy to leave that into a



              25   posthearing brief.  I think we have some issues that
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               1   need, need more discussion.  I do have a couple more



               2   redirect questions.



               3             JUDGE JONSSON:  Some redirect.  Go ahead.



               4             MR. LONG:  But I expect to be very short.



               5             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.



               6                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION



               7   BY MR. LONG:



               8        Q.   Mr. Shortreed, can you describe the process



               9   for sending utility bills every month.  Just describe



              10   the process that you go through in order to send out



              11   utility bills.



              12        A.   Meter readings are entered into a utility



              13   billing system that we have, and then those readings are



              14   printed out onto either three-by-five postcards that go



              15   out to the customers, or in some cases we have several



              16   customers who receive what's called group billing, which



              17   is an eight and a half by 11 sheets of paper.



              18             One page summarizes all of the accounts that



              19   are being billed in the group billing, in the group, and



              20   then following pages that itemize and individualize each



              21   one of those accounts.



              22        Q.   So your testimony is that you send a bill out



              23   every month for every account?



              24        A.   That is correct.



              25        Q.   In the various audit history reports
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               1   introduced by Ms. Seamons; you know, for example, I am



               2   looking at the one that's marked Exhibit 7.  There is a



               3   line item on some dates that says "notice printed for,"



               4   and then a certain amount and a due on date.  Can you



               5   describe what that, what that entry on the audit history



               6   means?



               7        A.   That's a system-generated notice in the



               8   billing software that notifies the customer on a



               9   separate piece of paper, which is eight and a half by



              10   11, that their account is past due and what the amount



              11   past due is.



              12             In some applicable circumstances, it will also



              13   have a termination notice of typically 20 or 21 days,



              14   notifying the customer, if they don't pay the bill



              15   within that time, then their service will be turned off.



              16        Q.   So to summarize, if we look at the audit



              17   history for a given account, the customer receives a



              18   bill for each monthly -- each set of monthly charges,



              19   and the notice lines are simply an extraordinary notice



              20   saying the account is past due or has some other issue?



              21        A.   Yes.  There will be a line on the bill that



              22   says the account is past due.



              23        Q.   But the sending of a regular monthly bill



              24   doesn't generate an entry on the audit history?



              25        A.   No.  That is the audit history.



                                                                        159

�













               1        Q.   Have -- Mr. Hogelin asked you some questions



               2   about, about the approval of longtime tenants to keep a



               3   tenant's utility account.  In your previous testimony



               4   you mentioned that you were one of those tenants.



               5   Mr. Hogelin implied from reading the tariff that the



               6   district had sole discretion in determining that.



               7             I guess, is any particular action required by



               8   the district?  If we have a long-term tenant, and



               9   nothing is changed, that tenant is still present, does



              10   the district take any action?  Or does the district need



              11   to take any action to keep that -- the tenant's account?



              12        A.   No.  It just stays current.



              13        Q.   We also talked about the abandonment



              14   application, and as I understand it, when a person



              15   abandons their utility taps, it essentially returns the



              16   property to an undeveloped state as far as the district



              17   is concerned and relieves the district of any obligation



              18   to provide utility service.  Is that -- is that a fair



              19   description?



              20        A.   Yes.



              21        Q.   And thereby relieving the district of any



              22   costs that it would incur to, say, for example, make



              23   sure the district's generators have sufficient capacity



              24   to serve those properties?



              25        A.   That is correct.



                                                                        160

�













               1        Q.   And for the abandonment application,



               2   Mr. Hogelin asked some questions about the process.  Has



               3   the district ever denied an abandonment application for



               4   a property owner that has met the requirements set forth



               5   in the tariff?



               6        A.   No.



               7        Q.   And I guess one final question as to the



               8   billing process.  Has the billing process you described



               9   been the same since, say, January of 2013?



              10        A.   Yes.



              11             MR. LONG:  I have no further questions.



              12             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am sorry to drag this



              13   out further, but you have mentioned some things that



              14   reminded me of some questions.  On the -- we have the



              15   letter from the Hills who were the tenants requesting



              16   discontinuance of service.  And then we have testimony



              17   from Mrs. Seamons that they brought the account current



              18   sometime later in order to reestablish service, but it



              19   was once again discontinued by the district and on the



              20   district's decision.



              21             Do you -- do you have any testimony to help me



              22   understand what happened there?



              23             THE WITNESS:  When the Hills disconnected the



              24   service, ma'am, the property continued to accrue standby



              25   fees.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               2             THE WITNESS:  At the time that they wanted to



               3   reinstate service.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               5             THE WITNESS:  Thus turn it back on.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               7             THE WITNESS:  Fees had accrued that had not



               8   been paid.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              10             THE WITNESS:  And then of course, there were



              11   turn-on, turn-off fees that were associated with that as



              12   well.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              14             THE WITNESS:  In that particular circumstance,



              15   the tenants at the time actually paid the unpaid fees.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              17             THE WITNESS:  Directly to the district, and



              18   then service was reinstated obviously, at the customer's



              19   request, which is the property owner's request.



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              21             THE WITNESS:  Under a specific rate schedule.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



              23             THE WITNESS:  Of which there was an



              24   application or an e-mail or both that was done for that.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.
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               1             THE WITNESS:  And then the -- that particular



               2   tenant then vacated the property, the one that we had



               3   turned it on for, ma'am.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  After how long?



               5             THE WITNESS:  Oh, I think they were there a



               6   year, ma'am.  I think it was about a year.  They vacated



               7   the property.  During an inspection and audit of our



               8   meters in February of this year, we sent out a number of



               9   notices to customers advising them of our findings in



              10   the inspection and during the audit, things such as



              11   meters that were previously turned on were now turned



              12   off.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right, okay.



              14             THE WITNESS:  And other elementary



              15   inspections, like accessibility to the meter to be able



              16   to read it or things like that.  We then notified the



              17   customers of our findings, and in cases where tampering



              18   was witnessed -- and we did take photographs and



              19   provided those photographs to the customers in the



              20   inspection reports -- we notified the customer that this



              21   was a warning.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              23             THE WITNESS:  We were not going to impose a



              24   tampering fee right away.  We just wanted to make sure



              25   that they were aware that we found this problem.  If
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               1   they need their service turned back on, they need to



               2   notify the district and schedule that turn-on service at



               3   the meter.



               4             Shortly following, sometime in April, I



               5   believe it was, a meter started to show usage that was



               6   previously recorded as having been turned off.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Are we talking all about



               8   water?



               9             THE WITNESS:  Yes.



              10             MS. BROADBENT:  Yes.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Never mind.  All right.



              12   Thanks.



              13             THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So any recross,



              15   Mr. Hogelin?



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Nothing relevant.



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So again, I apologize



              18   to everyone for the error in the docket number.  The



              19   docket number that I need some help with is the 2013-T02



              20   docket.  And what I need there is information as to when



              21   the public meeting was held in which the standby fees



              22   were explained and introduced to customers.



              23             I also need information about how that meeting



              24   was noticed to customers.  It would be very helpful to



              25   me to see the monthly bills that were sent to
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               1   Ms. Seamons.  I don't know if either party has that or



               2   has the ability to --



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  We have -- we have some monthly



               4   bills that were sent.



               5             MS. BROADBENT:  Right now?



               6             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, we'll provide it.



               7             MS. BROADBENT:  Yes, we have current ones.



               8             MR. HOGELIN:  Shhh.



               9             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I am also interested as



              10   to the 15-T01 docket that was subject to settlement, I



              11   am interested in the parties clarifying whether a



              12   per-day tampering charge was introduced in that docket.



              13   And I am interested in better understanding whether a



              14   public meeting was noticed and held to present and



              15   explain to customers a per-day tampering charge.



              16             The commission does not regulate TUID's



              17   provision of water, so to the extent that the testimony



              18   today has dealt with standby fees as to water service or



              19   discontinuation of water service, the order will not go,



              20   go into that.



              21             And then of course, the parties are welcome to



              22   provide closing argument as to the testimony and the



              23   evidence that's been provided today.  How long do you



              24   want to file these briefs?



              25             MR. LONG:  I would suggest 30 days.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Filed simultaneously?



               2             MR. LONG:  That's fine.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  That's fine.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.



               5             MR. LONG:  Maybe as a point of



               6   clarification --



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



               8             MR. LONG:  Are you planning on issuing an



               9   order setting out these questions that you would like to



              10   see additional information on?



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  Would that be helpful?



              12             MR. LONG:  Yes, I think it would be.



              13             MR. HOGELIN:  Very much.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  So I'll do that



              15   today.



              16             MR. LONG:  And while I'm --



              17             JUDGE JONSSON:  And have I missed anything?



              18   Is there anything else that you feel like needs to be



              19   addressed or that you want to address?



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, I would like to address



              21   one thing that's been brought up by TUID.  It's my



              22   understanding that what's been represented to the



              23   commission is that they had an August 27th meeting which



              24   supposedly fit the requirement of the -- of the



              25   mandated --
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  The stipulation and the order



               2   approving the stipulation.



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  -- for the board meeting that



               4   was supposed to happen between September 10th and



               5   October 10th.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



               7             MR. HOGELIN:  I just want to make a statement



               8   regarding that, because one -- in the response from the



               9   commission, you know, it's been made very clear that,



              10   based upon that meeting, that sets a deadline, a 30 day



              11   deadline for a rehearing with regards to any issues



              12   concerning the tariff.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              14             MR. HOGELIN:  And I, I don't quite understand



              15   the argument that August 27th meeting could replace the



              16   other meeting, just by e-mails being made between



              17   individuals without there being a due process of that 30



              18   days for any and all --



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  Right.



              20             MR. HOGELIN:  -- people of interest.



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I'll just tell you some of



              22   the things that I would anticipate discussing with the



              23   commission, is whether the board meeting that was held



              24   prior to the date the commission approved the



              25   stipulation is, is of concern to them or whether they
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               1   feel like that board meeting is okay.  And also whether



               2   they consider that there needed to be a public meeting



               3   noticed at some point.



               4             MR. HOGELIN:  Well, my concern goes farther



               5   than that.



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  Go ahead.



               7             MR. HOGELIN:  Because if the commission says,



               8   "Okay.  The August 27th fulfilled the requirement that



               9   was supposed to be in those."



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              11             MR. HOGELIN:  How in the world are -- was



              12   Ms. Seamons supposed to know that that then started the



              13   30 day time limit to a request for rehearing?



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So I'm not sure that we



              15   actually have anything on that issue in the record.  The



              16   30 day -- the 30 day notice -- are you talking about the



              17   30 day request for rehearing before the commission?



              18             MR. HOGELIN:  In the December 29th, 2015,



              19   memorandum to the original complaint that had been



              20   filed --



              21             JUDGE JONSSON:  Uh-huh.



              22             MR. HOGELIN:  -- from the division to the



              23   commission, it was brought up that the order --



              24             JUDGE JONSSON:  She didn't intervene, right?



              25   We're talking about --
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               1             MR. HOGELIN:  For review of rehearing for 30



               2   days after the issuance, but none was requested by any



               3   party.  In other words, what was brought to light or



               4   what was argued is that after September 10th, there was



               5   30 days to which the request should have or could have



               6   been made with regards to consultation of the tariff.



               7   And because that wasn't done, you know, Ms. Seamons'



               8   formal complaint was moot.



               9             And so I am just saying that that's another



              10   issue.  Based off the testimony -- and I appreciate that



              11   it may not be an issue that's been brought up or has



              12   been contemplated by the order.  But I don't think it's



              13   something that can be neglected.



              14             If it is determined that the timeline was



              15   changed, then I think the commission does need to take



              16   into consideration, how would that 30 day objection be,



              17   you know, administered if, you know, the parties of



              18   interest didn't realize that the August 27th meeting was



              19   the one --



              20             JUDGE JONSSON:  I see.



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  Because not everybody, not all



              22   the property owners were involved, from my



              23   understanding, in these e-mails that were saying that



              24   this August 27th meeting was okay.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  I understand.
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               1             MR. LONG:  I -- perhaps you can clarify for



               2   me.  I'm not sure I understand.  Is it an issue that



               3   Ms. Seamons would have requested review or rehearing of



               4   the commission's September 10th order had some date been



               5   different?



               6             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I -- the question is, if



               7   a customer had read that order and had interpreted it as



               8   requiring a meeting to be held between September 30th



               9   and October 30th; or is that right?



              10             MR. HOGELIN:  10th.



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  September 10th and October



              12   10th and saw no meeting scheduled or held there, would



              13   that customer reasonably have assumed that there was no



              14   need to request rehearing or reconsideration because the



              15   stipulation had not been complied with, and the order



              16   had not been complied with?



              17             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.  You put it very



              18   succinctly.



              19             MR. LONG:  I do have one evidentiary point.



              20   Everyone has this very large binder of exhibits from the



              21   district.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.



              23             MR. LONG:  Can that be admitted into evidence?



              24   I believe Mr. Shortreed spoke to each of those in his



              25   prepared statement.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  Any objection, Mr. Hogelin?



               2             MR. HOGELIN:  Can I use that post briefing?



               3   And the reason being is, Mr. Shortreed did use them, but



               4   he did go through them rather quickly.  It was hard to



               5   keep up and review the exhibits as he was going through



               6   them.



               7             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  So let's do this in a



               8   couple of stages then.



               9             MR. HOGELIN:  Also, I think there are a couple



              10   that are duplicative so --



              11             JUDGE JONSSON:  I'm sure there are.  So let me



              12   give you a very short deadline to give me any objection.



              13             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.  Fair enough.



              14             JUDGE JONSSON:  Just like a couple of days.



              15             MR. HOGELIN:  Sure.



              16             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay?



              17             MR. HOGELIN:  Yes.



              18             JUDGE JONSSON:  So I don't imagine there will



              19   be one.  I haven't looked at every one, but it looks to



              20   me like they are pretty much --



              21             MR. HOGELIN:  I would agree.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  -- records that would come in.



              23             MR. HOGELIN:  I just want to do due diligence.



              24   That's all.



              25             JUDGE JONSSON:  Yes.  That's fine.  So, and
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               1   can you get back to me by Friday end of business with



               2   any objection to any exhibit?



               3             MR. HOGELIN:  Yep.



               4             JUDGE JONSSON:  Okay.  All right.  And then 30



               5   days from now for final briefing, including oral



               6   argument and addressing of these questions related to



               7   the 13-T02 docket as well as the 15-T01 docket.



               8             MR. HOGELIN:  Is the commission going to make



               9   available the order today?



              10             JUDGE JONSSON:  Well, I will write the order



              11   today.



              12             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



              13             JUDGE JONSSON:  But it has to go to the



              14   commissioners, and they have to approve it.  So that



              15   might happen today or it might not.



              16             MR. HOGELIN:  Okay.



              17             MR. LONG:  And I believe you said oral



              18   argument.  I think you meant closing argument.



              19             JUDGE JONSSON:  I'm sorry, yes, closing



              20   argument.



              21             MR. LONG:  Just making sure we're clear.



              22             JUDGE JONSSON:  Closing argument, and if you



              23   can give me documentary evidence as to the notices that



              24   went out to the consumers, you are welcome to do that.



              25             MR. LONG:  Noted.
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               1             JUDGE JONSSON:  All right.  With that I



               2   believe we can close this hearing.  Thank you all very



               3   much.



               4             MR. HOGELIN:  Thank you.



               5



               6             (The hearing adjourned at 12:47 p.m.)
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